
UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF THE TREASURY

1500 P E1\TNSYLVANIA AVENUE, NW
WASHINGTON, D.C. 20220

Dear Ladies and Gentlemen:

The company set forth on the signature page hereto (the "Company") intends to issue in a
private placement the number of shares of a series of its preferred stock set forth on Schedule A
hereto (the "Preferred Shares") and a warrant to purchase the number of shares of a series of its
preferred stock set forth on Schedule A hereto (the "Warrant" and, together with the Preferred
Shares, the "Purchased Securities") and the United States Department of the Treasury (the
"Investor") intends to purchase from the Company the Purchased Securities.

The purpose of this letter agreement is to confirm the terms and conditions of the
purchase by the Investor of the Purchased Securities. Except to the extent supplemented or
superseded by the terms set forth herein or in the Schedules hereto, the provisions contained in
the Securities Purchase Agreement - Standard Terms attached hereto as Exhibit A (the
"Securities Purchase Agreement") are incorporated by reference herein. Terms that are defined
in the Securities Purchase Agreement are used in this letter agreement as so defined. In the event
of any inconsistency between this letter agreement and the Securities Purchase Agreement, the
terms of this letter agreement shall govem.

Each of the Company and the Investor hereby confirms its agreement with the other party
with respect to the issuance by the Company of the Purchased Securities and the purchase by the
Investor of the Purchased Securities pursuant to this letter agreement and the Securities Purchase
Agreement on the terms specified on Schedule A hereto.

This letter agreement (including the Schedules hereto), the Securities Purchase
Agreement (including the Annexes thereto), the Disclosure Schedules and the Warrant constitute
the entire agreement, and supersede all other prior agreements, understandings, representations
and warranties, both written and oral, between the parties, with respect to the subject matter
hereof. This letter agreement constitutes the "Letter Agreement" referred to in the Securities
Purchase Agreement.

This letter agreement may be executed in any number of separate counterparts, each such
counterpart being deemed to be an original instrument, and all such counterparts will together
constitute the same agreement. Executed signature pages to this letter agreement may be
delivered by facsimile and such facsimiles will be deemed as sufficient as if actual signature
pages had been delivered.

* * *
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Name:
Title:

In witness whereof, this letter agreement has been duly executed and delivered by the
duly authorized representatives of the parties hereto as of the date written below.

UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF THE
TREASURY

By:_~ --:-::----:-_

Neel Kashkari
Interim Assistant Secretary

For Financial Stability

COMPANY: Peoples Bancorporation, Inc.

APR 24 2009
Date: -----------
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SCHEDULE C

LITIGATION

List any exceptions to the representation and warranty in Section 2.2(1) of the Securities
Purchase Agreement - Standard Terms.

If none, please so indicate by checking the box: I:RJ.
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SECURITIES PURCHASE AGREEMENT – STANDARD TERMS 

Recitals: 

WHEREAS, the United States Department of the Treasury (the “Investor”) may from 
time to time agree to purchase shares of preferred stock and warrants from eligible financial 
institutions which elect to participate in the Troubled Asset Relief Program Capital Purchase 
Program (“CPP”); 

WHEREAS, an eligible financial institution electing to participate in the CPP and issue 
securities to the Investor (referred to herein as the “Company”) shall enter into a letter agreement 
(the “Letter Agreement”) with the Investor which incorporates this Securities Purchase 
Agreement – Standard Terms; 

WHEREAS, the Company agrees to expand the flow of credit to U.S. consumers and 
businesses on competitive terms to promote the sustained growth and vitality of the U.S. 
economy;  

WHEREAS, the Company agrees to work diligently, under existing programs, to modify 
the terms of residential mortgages as appropriate to strengthen the health of the U.S. housing 
market;  

WHEREAS, the Company intends to issue in a private placement the number of shares of 
the series of its Preferred Stock (“Preferred Stock”) set forth on Schedule A to the Letter 
Agreement (the “Preferred Shares”) and a warrant to purchase the number of shares of the series 
of its Preferred Stock (“Warrant Preferred Stock”) set forth on Schedule A to the Letter 
Agreement (the “Warrant” and, together with the Preferred Shares, the “Purchased Securities”) 
and the Investor intends to purchase (the “Purchase”) from the Company the Purchased 
Securities; and 

WHEREAS, the Purchase will be governed by this Securities Purchase Agreement – 
Standard Terms and the Letter Agreement, including the schedules thereto (the “Schedules”), 
specifying additional terms of the Purchase. This Securities Purchase Agreement – Standard 
Terms (including the Annexes hereto) and the Letter Agreement (including the Schedules 
thereto) are together referred to as this “Agreement”.  All references in this Securities Purchase 
Agreement – Standard Terms to “Schedules” are to the Schedules attached to the Letter 
Agreement.  

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises, and of the representations, 
warranties, covenants and agreements set forth herein, the parties agree as follows: 

Article I 
Purchase; Closing 

1.1 Purchase. On the terms and subject to the conditions set forth in this Agreement, 
the Company agrees to sell to the Investor, and the Investor agrees to purchase from the 
Company, at the Closing (as hereinafter defined), the Purchased Securities for the price set forth 
on Schedule A (the “Purchase Price”). 
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1.2 Closing. 

(a) On the terms and subject to the conditions set forth in this Agreement, the closing 
of the Purchase (the “Closing”) will take place at the location specified in Schedule A, at the 
time and on the date set forth in Schedule A or as soon as practicable thereafter, or at such other 
place, time and date as shall be agreed between the Company and the Investor. The time and date 
on which the Closing occurs is referred to in this Agreement as the “Closing Date”. 

(b) Subject to the fulfillment or waiver of the conditions to the Closing in this Section 
1.2, at the Closing the Company will deliver the Preferred Shares and the Warrant, in each case 
as evidenced by one or more certificates dated the Closing Date and bearing appropriate legends 
as hereinafter provided for, in exchange for payment in full of the Purchase Price by wire 
transfer of immediately available United States funds to a bank account designated by the 
Company on Schedule A. 

(c) The respective obligations of each of the Investor and the Company to 
consummate the Purchase are subject to the fulfillment (or waiver by the Investor and the 
Company, as applicable) prior to the Closing of the conditions that (i) any approvals or 
authorizations of all United States and other governmental, regulatory or judicial authorities 
(collectively, “Governmental Entities”) required for the consummation of the Purchase shall 
have been obtained or made in form and substance reasonably satisfactory to each party and shall 
be in full force and effect and all waiting periods required by United States and other applicable 
law, if any, shall have expired and (ii) no provision of any applicable United States or other law 
and no judgment, injunction, order or decree of any Governmental Entity shall prohibit the 
purchase and sale of the Purchased Securities as contemplated by this Agreement. 

(d) The obligation of the Investor to consummate the Purchase is also subject to the 
fulfillment (or waiver by the Investor) at or prior to the Closing of each of the following 
conditions: 

(i) (A) the representations and warranties of the Company set forth in (x) 
Section 2.2(g) of this Agreement shall be true and correct in all respects as though made 
on and as of the Closing Date, (y) Sections 2.2(a) through (f) shall be true and correct in 
all material respects as though made on and as of the Closing Date (other than 
representations and warranties that by their terms speak as of another date, which 
representations and warranties shall be true and correct in all material respects as of such 
other date) and (z) Sections 2.2(h) through (v) (disregarding all qualifications or 
limitations set forth in such representations and warranties as to “materiality”, “Company 
Material Adverse Effect” and words of similar import) shall be true and correct as though 
made on and as of the Closing Date (other than representations and warranties that by 
their terms speak as of another date, which representations and warranties shall be true 
and correct as of such other date), except to the extent that the failure of such 
representations and warranties referred to in this Section 1.2(d)(i)(A)(z) to be so true and 
correct, individually or in the aggregate, does not have and would not reasonably be 
expected to have a Company Material Adverse Effect and (B) the Company shall have 
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performed in all material respects all obligations required to be performed by it under this 
Agreement at or prior to the Closing;  

(ii) the Investor shall have received a certificate signed on behalf of the 
Company by a senior executive officer certifying to the effect that the conditions set forth 
in Section 1.2(d)(i) have been satisfied;  

(iii) the Company shall have duly adopted and filed with the Secretary of State 
of its jurisdiction of organization or other applicable Governmental Entity the 
amendments to its certificate or articles of incorporation, articles of association, or similar 
organizational document (“Charter”) in substantially the forms attached hereto as Annex 
A and Annex B (the “Certificates of Designations”) and such filing shall have been 
accepted; 

(iv) (A) the Company shall have effected such changes to its compensation, 
bonus, incentive and other benefit plans, arrangements and agreements (including golden 
parachute, severance and employment agreements) (collectively, “Benefit Plans”) with 
respect to its Senior Executive Officers (and to the extent necessary for such changes to 
be legally enforceable, each of its Senior Executive Officers shall have duly consented in 
writing to such changes), as may be necessary, during the period that the Investor owns 
any debt or equity securities of the Company acquired pursuant to this Agreement or the 
Warrant, in order to comply with Section 111(b) of the Emergency Economic 
Stabilization Act of 2008 (“EESA”) as implemented by guidance or regulation thereunder 
that has been issued and is in effect as of the Closing Date, and (B) the Investor shall 
have received a certificate signed on behalf of the Company by a senior executive officer 
certifying to the effect that the condition set forth in Section 1.2(d)(iv)(A) has been 
satisfied;  

(v) each of the Company’s Senior Executive Officers shall have delivered to 
the Investor a written waiver in the form attached hereto as Annex C releasing the 
Investor from any claims that such Senior Executive Officers may otherwise have as a 
result of the issuance, on or prior to the Closing Date, of any regulations which require 
the modification of, and the agreement of the Company hereunder to modify, the terms of 
any Benefit Plans with respect to its Senior Executive Officers to eliminate any 
provisions of such Benefit Plans that would not be in compliance with the requirements 
of Section 111(b) of the EESA as implemented by guidance or regulation thereunder that 
has been issued and is in effect as of the Closing Date;  

(vi) the Company shall have delivered to the Investor a written opinion from 
counsel to the Company (which may be internal counsel), addressed to the Investor and 
dated as of the Closing Date, in substantially the form attached hereto as Annex D;  

(vii) the Company shall have delivered certificates in proper form or, with the 
prior consent of the Investor, evidence of shares in book-entry form, evidencing the 
Preferred Shares to Investor or its designee(s); and 
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(viii) the Company shall have duly executed the Warrant in substantially the 
form attached hereto as Annex E and delivered such executed Warrant to the Investor or 
its designee(s).  

1.3 Interpretation. When a reference is made in this Agreement to “Recitals,” 
“Articles,” “Sections,” or “Annexes” such reference shall be to a Recital, Article or Section of, 
or Annex to, this Securities Purchase Agreement – Standard Terms, and a reference to 
“Schedules” shall be to a Schedule to the Letter Agreement, in each case, unless otherwise 
indicated. The terms defined in the singular have a comparable meaning when used in the plural, 
and vice versa. References to “herein”, “hereof”, “hereunder” and the like refer to this 
Agreement as a whole and not to any particular section or provision, unless the context requires 
otherwise. The table of contents and headings contained in this Agreement are for reference 
purposes only and are not part of this Agreement. Whenever the words “include,” "includes” or 
“including” are used in this Agreement, they shall be deemed followed by the words “without 
limitation.” No rule of construction against the draftsperson shall be applied in connection with 
the interpretation or enforcement of this Agreement, as this Agreement is the product of 
negotiation between sophisticated parties advised by counsel. All references to “$” or “dollars” 
mean the lawful currency of the United States of America. Except as expressly stated in this 
Agreement, all references to any statute, rule or regulation are to the statute, rule or regulation as 
amended, modified, supplemented or replaced from time to time (and, in the case of statutes, 
include any rules and regulations promulgated under the statute) and to any section of any 
statute, rule or regulation include any successor to the section. References to a “business day” 
shall mean any day except Saturday, Sunday and any day on which banking institutions in the 
State of New York generally are authorized or required by law or other governmental actions to 
close. 

Article II 
Representations and Warranties 

2.1 Disclosure. 

(a) On or prior to the Signing Date, the Company delivered to the Investor a schedule 
(“Disclosure Schedule”) setting forth, among other things, items the disclosure of which is 
necessary or appropriate either in response to an express disclosure requirement contained in a 
provision hereof or as an exception to one or more representations or warranties contained in 
Section 2.2. 

(b) “Company Material Adverse Effect” means a material adverse effect on (i) the 
business, results of operation or financial condition of the Company and its consolidated 
subsidiaries taken as a whole; provided, however, that Company Material Adverse Effect shall 
not be deemed to include the effects of (A) changes after the date of the Letter Agreement (the 
“Signing Date”) in general business, economic or market conditions (including changes 
generally in prevailing interest rates, credit availability and liquidity, currency exchange rates 
and price levels or trading volumes in the United States or foreign securities or credit markets), 
or any outbreak or escalation of hostilities, declared or undeclared acts of war or terrorism, in 
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each case generally affecting the industries in which the Company and its subsidiaries operate, 
(B) changes or proposed changes after the Signing Date in generally accepted accounting 
principles in the United States (“GAAP”) or regulatory accounting requirements, or authoritative 
interpretations thereof, or (C) changes or proposed changes after the Signing Date in securities, 
banking and other laws of general applicability or related policies or interpretations of 
Governmental Entities (in the case of each of these clauses (A), (B) and (C), other than changes 
or occurrences to the extent that such changes or occurrences have or would reasonably be 
expected to have a materially disproportionate adverse effect on the Company and its 
consolidated subsidiaries taken as a whole relative to comparable U.S. banking or financial 
services organizations); or (ii) the ability of the Company to consummate the Purchase and other 
transactions contemplated by this Agreement and the Warrant and perform its obligations 
hereunder or thereunder on a timely basis.   

(c) “Previously Disclosed” means information set forth on the Disclosure Schedule, 
provided, however, that disclosure in any section of such Disclosure Schedule shall apply only to 
the indicated section of this Agreement except to the extent that it is reasonably apparent from 
the face of such disclosure that such disclosure is relevant to another section of this Agreement. 

2.2 Representations and Warranties of the Company. Except as Previously Disclosed, 
the Company represents and warrants to the Investor that as of the Signing Date and as of the 
Closing Date (or such other date specified herein): 

(a) Organization, Authority and Significant Subsidiaries. The Company has been 
duly incorporated and is validly existing and in good standing under the laws of its jurisdiction of 
organization, with the necessary power and authority to own its properties and conduct its 
business in all material respects as currently conducted, and except as has not, individually or in 
the aggregate, had and would not reasonably be expected to have a Company Material Adverse 
Effect, has been duly qualified as a foreign corporation for the transaction of business and is in 
good standing under the laws of each other jurisdiction in which it owns or leases properties or 
conducts any business so as to require such qualification; each subsidiary of the Company that 
would be considered a “significant subsidiary” within the meaning of Rule 1-02(w) of 
Regulation S-X under the Securities Act of 1933 (the “Securities Act”), has been duly organized 
and is validly existing in good standing under the laws of its jurisdiction of organization.  The 
Charter and bylaws of the Company, copies of which have been provided to the Investor prior to 
the Signing Date, are true, complete and correct copies of such documents as in full force and 
effect as of the Signing Date. 

(b) Capitalization. The authorized capital stock of the Company, and the outstanding 
capital stock of the Company (including securities convertible into, or exercisable or 
exchangeable for, capital stock of the Company) as of the most recent fiscal month-end 
preceding the Signing Date (the “Capitalization Date”) is set forth on Schedule B.  The 
outstanding shares of capital stock of the Company have been duly authorized and are validly 
issued and outstanding, fully paid and nonassessable, and subject to no preemptive rights (and 
were not issued in violation of any preemptive rights). As of the Signing Date, the Company 
does not have outstanding any securities or other obligations providing the holder the right to 
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acquire its Common Stock (“Common Stock”) that is not reserved for issuance as specified on 
Schedule B, and the Company has not made any other commitment to authorize, issue or sell any 
Common Stock.  Since the Capitalization Date, the Company has not issued any shares of 
Common Stock, other than (i) shares issued upon the exercise of stock options or delivered under 
other equity-based awards or other convertible securities or warrants which were issued and 
outstanding on the Capitalization Date and disclosed on Schedule B and (ii) shares disclosed on 
Schedule B.  Each holder of 5% or more of any class of capital stock of the Company and such 
holder’s primary address are set forth on Schedule B.  

(c) Preferred Shares. The Preferred Shares have been duly and validly authorized, 
and, when issued and delivered pursuant to this Agreement, such Preferred Shares will be duly 
and validly issued and fully paid and non-assessable, will not be issued in violation of any 
preemptive rights, and will rank pari passu with or senior to all other series or classes of 
Preferred Stock, whether or not issued or outstanding, with respect to the payment of dividends 
and the distribution of assets in the event of any dissolution, liquidation or winding up of the 
Company.     

(d) The Warrant and Warrant Shares. The Warrant has been duly authorized and, 
when executed and delivered as contemplated hereby, will constitute a valid and legally binding 
obligation of the Company enforceable against the Company in accordance with its terms, except 
as the same may be limited by applicable bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization, moratorium or 
similar laws affecting the enforcement of creditors’ rights generally and general equitable 
principles, regardless of whether such enforceability is considered in a proceeding at law or in 
equity (“Bankruptcy Exceptions”). The shares of Warrant Preferred Stock issuable upon exercise 
of the Warrant (the “Warrant Shares”) have been duly authorized and reserved for issuance upon 
exercise of the Warrant and when so issued in accordance with the terms of the Warrant will be 
validly issued, fully paid and non-assessable, and will rank pari passu with or senior to all other 
series or classes of Preferred Stock, whether or not issued or outstanding, with respect to the 
payment of dividends and the distribution of assets in the event of any dissolution, liquidation or 
winding up of the Company. 

(e) Authorization, Enforceability. 

(i) The Company has the corporate power and authority to execute and 
deliver this Agreement and the Warrant and to carry out its obligations hereunder and 
thereunder (which includes the issuance of the Preferred Shares, Warrant and Warrant 
Shares). The execution, delivery and performance by the Company of this Agreement and 
the Warrant and the consummation of the transactions contemplated hereby and thereby 
have been duly authorized by all necessary corporate action on the part of the Company 
and its stockholders, and no further approval or authorization is required on the part of 
the Company. This Agreement is a valid and binding obligation of the Company 
enforceable against the Company in accordance with its terms, subject to the Bankruptcy 
Exceptions. 
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(ii) The execution, delivery and performance by the Company of this 
Agreement and the Warrant and the consummation of the transactions contemplated 
hereby and thereby and compliance by the Company with the provisions hereof and 
thereof, will not (A) violate, conflict with, or result in a breach of any provision of, or 
constitute a default (or an event which, with notice or lapse of time or both, would 
constitute a default) under, or result in the termination of, or accelerate the performance 
required by, or result in a right of termination or acceleration of, or result in the creation 
of, any lien, security interest, charge or encumbrance upon any of the properties or assets 
of the Company or any subsidiary of the Company (each a “Company Subsidiary” and, 
collectively, the “Company Subsidiaries”) under any of the terms, conditions or 
provisions of (i) its organizational documents or (ii) any note, bond, mortgage, indenture, 
deed of trust, license, lease, agreement or other instrument or obligation to which the 
Company or any Company Subsidiary is a party or by which it or any Company 
Subsidiary may be bound, or to which the Company or any Company Subsidiary or any 
of the properties or assets of the Company or any Company Subsidiary may be subject, or 
(B) subject to compliance with the statutes and regulations referred to in the next 
paragraph, violate any statute, rule or regulation or any judgment, ruling, order, writ, 
injunction or decree applicable to the Company or any Company Subsidiary or any of 
their respective properties or assets except, in the case of clauses (A)(ii) and (B), for 
those occurrences that, individually or in the aggregate, have not had and would not 
reasonably be expected to have a Company Material Adverse Effect. 

(iii) Other than the filing of the Certificates of Designations with the Secretary 
of State of its jurisdiction of organization or other applicable Governmental Entity, such 
filings and approvals as are required to be made or obtained under any state “blue sky” 
laws and such as have been made or obtained, no notice to, filing with, exemption or 
review by, or authorization, consent or approval of, any Governmental Entity is required 
to be made or obtained by the Company in connection with the consummation by the 
Company of the Purchase except for any such notices, filings, exemptions, reviews, 
authorizations, consents and approvals the failure of which to make or obtain would not, 
individually or in the aggregate, reasonably be expected to have a Company Material 
Adverse Effect. 

(f) Anti-takeover Provisions and Rights Plan.  The Board of Directors of the 
Company (the “Board of Directors”) has taken all necessary action to ensure that the transactions 
contemplated by this Agreement and the Warrant and the consummation of the transactions 
contemplated hereby and thereby, including the exercise of the Warrant in accordance with its 
terms, will be exempt from any anti-takeover or similar provisions of the Company’s Charter and 
bylaws, and any other provisions of any applicable “moratorium”, “control share”, “fair price”, 
“interested stockholder” or other anti-takeover laws and regulations of any jurisdiction. 

(g) No Company Material Adverse Effect. Since the last day of the last completed 
fiscal period for which financial statements are included in the Company Financial Statements 
(as defined below), no fact, circumstance, event, change, occurrence, condition or development 
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has occurred that, individually or in the aggregate, has had or would reasonably be expected to 
have a Company Material Adverse Effect. 

(h) Company Financial Statements.  The Company has Previously Disclosed each of 
the consolidated financial statements of the Company and its consolidated subsidiaries for each 
of the last three completed fiscal years of the Company (which shall be audited to the extent 
audited financial statements are available prior to the Signing Date) and each completed 
quarterly period since the last completed fiscal year (collectively the “Company Financial 
Statements”).  The Company Financial Statements present fairly in all material respects the 
consolidated financial position of the Company and its consolidated subsidiaries as of the dates 
indicated therein and the consolidated results of their operations for the periods specified therein; 
and except as stated therein, such financial statements (A) were prepared in conformity with 
GAAP applied on a consistent basis (except as may be noted therein) and (B) have been prepared 
from, and are in accordance with, the books and records of the Company and the Company 
Subsidiaries. 

(i) Reports. 

(i) Since December 31, 2006, the Company and each Company Subsidiary 
has filed all reports, registrations, documents, filings, statements and submissions, 
together with any amendments thereto, that it was required to file with any Governmental 
Entity (the foregoing, collectively, the “Company Reports”) and has paid all fees and 
assessments due and payable in connection therewith, except, in each case, as would not, 
individually or in the aggregate, reasonably be expected to have a Company Material 
Adverse Effect.  As of their respective dates of filing, the Company Reports complied in 
all material respects with all statutes and applicable rules and regulations of the 
applicable Governmental Entities. 

(ii) The records, systems, controls, data and information of the Company and 
the Company Subsidiaries are recorded, stored, maintained and operated under means 
(including any electronic, mechanical or photographic process, whether computerized or 
not) that are under the exclusive ownership and direct control of the Company or the 
Company Subsidiaries or their accountants (including all means of access thereto and 
therefrom), except for any non-exclusive ownership and non-direct control that would not 
reasonably be expected to have a material adverse effect on the system of internal 
accounting controls described below in this Section 2.2(i)(ii).  The Company (A) has 
implemented and maintains adequate disclosure controls and procedures to ensure that 
material information relating to the Company, including the consolidated Company 
Subsidiaries, is made known to the chief executive officer and the chief financial officer 
of the Company by others within those entities, and (B) has disclosed, based on its most 
recent evaluation prior to the Signing Date, to the Company’s outside auditors and the 
audit committee of the Board of Directors (x) any significant deficiencies and material 
weaknesses in the design or operation of internal controls that are reasonably likely to 
adversely affect the Company’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial 
information and (y) any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or 
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other employees who have a significant role in the Company’s internal controls over 
financial reporting. 

(j) No Undisclosed Liabilities.  Neither the Company nor any of the Company 
Subsidiaries has any liabilities or obligations of any nature (absolute, accrued, contingent or 
otherwise) which are not properly reflected or reserved against in the Company Financial 
Statements to the extent required to be so reflected or reserved against in accordance with 
GAAP, except for (A) liabilities that have arisen since the last fiscal year end in the ordinary and 
usual course of business and consistent with past practice and (B) liabilities that, individually or 
in the aggregate, have not had and would not reasonably be expected to have a Company 
Material Adverse Effect.   

(k) Offering of Securities.  Neither the Company nor any person acting on its behalf 
has taken any action (including any offering of any securities of the Company under 
circumstances which would require the integration of such offering with the offering of any of 
the Purchased Securities under the Securities Act, and the rules and regulations of the Securities 
and Exchange Commission (the “SEC”) promulgated thereunder), which might subject the 
offering, issuance or sale of any of the Purchased Securities to Investor pursuant to this 
Agreement to the registration requirements of the Securities Act. 

(l) Litigation and Other Proceedings.  Except (i) as set forth on Schedule C or (ii) as 
would not, individually or in the aggregate, reasonably be expected to have a Company Material 
Adverse Effect, there is no (A) pending or, to the knowledge of the Company, threatened, claim, 
action, suit, investigation or proceeding, against the Company or any Company Subsidiary or to 
which any of their assets are subject nor is the Company or any Company Subsidiary subject to 
any order, judgment or decree or (B) unresolved violation, criticism or exception by any 
Governmental Entity with respect to any report or relating to any examinations or inspections of 
the Company or any Company Subsidiaries. 

(m) Compliance with Laws.  Except as would not, individually or in the aggregate, 
reasonably be expected to have a Company Material Adverse Effect, the Company and the 
Company Subsidiaries have all permits, licenses, franchises, authorizations, orders and approvals 
of, and have made all filings, applications and registrations with, Governmental Entities that are 
required in order to permit them to own or lease their properties and assets and to carry on their 
business as presently conducted and that are material to the business of the Company or such 
Company Subsidiary.  Except as set forth on Schedule D, the Company and the Company 
Subsidiaries have complied in all respects and are not in default or violation of, and none of them 
is, to the knowledge of the Company, under investigation with respect to or, to the knowledge of 
the Company, have been threatened to be charged with or given notice of any violation of, any 
applicable domestic (federal, state or local) or foreign law, statute, ordinance, license, rule, 
regulation, policy or guideline, order, demand, writ, injunction, decree or judgment of any 
Governmental Entity, other than such noncompliance, defaults or violations that would not, 
individually or in the aggregate, reasonably be expected to have a Company Material Adverse 
Effect.  Except for statutory or regulatory restrictions of general application or as set forth on 
Schedule D, no Governmental Entity has placed any restriction on the business or properties of 
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the Company or any Company Subsidiary that would, individually or in the aggregate, 
reasonably be expected to have a Company Material Adverse Effect. 

(n) Employee Benefit Matters.  Except as would not reasonably be expected to have, 
either individually or in the aggregate, a Company Material Adverse Effect: (A) each “employee 
benefit plan” (within the meaning of Section 3(3) of the Employee Retirement Income Security 
Act of 1974, as amended (“ERISA”)) providing benefits to any current or former employee, 
officer or director of the Company or any member of its “Controlled Group” (defined as any 
organization which is a member of a controlled group of corporations within the meaning of 
Section 414 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the “Code”)) that is sponsored, 
maintained or contributed to by the Company or any member of its Controlled Group and for 
which the Company or any member of its Controlled Group would have any liability, whether 
actual or contingent (each, a “Plan”) has been maintained in compliance with its terms and with 
the requirements of all applicable statutes, rules and regulations, including ERISA and the Code; 
(B) with respect to each Plan subject to Title IV of ERISA (including, for purposes of this clause 
(B), any plan subject to Title IV of ERISA that the Company or any member of its Controlled 
Group previously maintained or contributed to in the six years prior to the Signing Date), (1) no 
“reportable event” (within the meaning of Section 4043(c) of ERISA),  other than a reportable 
event for which the notice period referred to in Section 4043(c) of ERISA has been waived, has 
occurred in the three years prior to the Signing Date or is reasonably expected to occur, (2) no 
“accumulated funding deficiency” (within the meaning of Section 302 of ERISA or Section 412 
of the Code), whether or not waived, has occurred in the three years prior to the Signing Date or 
is reasonably expected to occur, (3) the fair market value of the assets under each Plan exceeds 
the present value of all benefits accrued under such Plan (determined based on the assumptions 
used to fund such Plan) and (4) neither the Company nor any member of its Controlled Group 
has incurred in the six years prior to the Signing Date, or reasonably expects to incur, any 
liability under Title IV of ERISA (other than contributions to the Plan or premiums to the PBGC 
in the ordinary course and without default) in respect of a Plan (including any Plan that is a 
“multiemployer plan”, within the meaning of Section 4001(c)(3) of ERISA); and (C) each Plan 
that is intended to be qualified under Section 401(a) of the Code has received a favorable 
determination letter from the Internal Revenue Service with respect to its qualified status that has 
not been revoked, or such a determination letter has been timely applied for but not received by 
the Signing Date, and nothing has occurred, whether by action or by failure to act, which could 
reasonably be expected to cause the loss, revocation or denial of such qualified status or 
favorable determination letter. 

(o) Taxes.  Except as would not, individually or in the aggregate, reasonably be 
expected to have a Company Material Adverse Effect, (i) the Company and the Company 
Subsidiaries have filed all federal, state, local and foreign income and franchise Tax returns 
required to be filed through the Signing Date, subject to permitted extensions, and have paid all 
Taxes due thereon, and (ii) no Tax deficiency has been determined adversely to the Company or 
any of the Company Subsidiaries, nor does the Company have any knowledge of any Tax 
deficiencies.  “Tax” or “Taxes” means any federal, state, local or foreign income, gross receipts, 
property, sales, use, license, excise, franchise, employment, payroll, withholding, alternative or 
add on minimum, ad valorem, transfer or excise tax, or any other tax, custom, duty, 
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governmental fee or other like assessment or charge of any kind whatsoever, together with any 
interest or penalty, imposed by any Governmental Entity.   

(p) Properties and Leases. Except as would not, individually or in the aggregate, 
reasonably be expected to have a Company Material Adverse Effect, the Company and the 
Company Subsidiaries have good and marketable title to all real properties and all other 
properties and assets owned by them, in each case free from liens, encumbrances, claims and 
defects that would affect the value thereof or interfere with the use made or to be made thereof 
by them.  Except as would not, individually or in the aggregate, reasonably be expected to have a 
Company Material Adverse Effect, the Company and the Company Subsidiaries hold all leased 
real or personal property under valid and enforceable leases with no exceptions that would 
interfere with the use made or to be made thereof by them. 

(q) Environmental Liability. Except as would not, individually or in the aggregate, 
reasonably be expected to have a Company Material Adverse Effect:  

(i) there is no legal, administrative, or other proceeding, claim or action of 
any nature seeking to impose, or that would reasonably be expected to result in the 
imposition of, on the Company or any Company Subsidiary, any liability relating to the 
release of hazardous substances as defined under any local, state or federal environmental 
statute, regulation or ordinance, including the Comprehensive Environmental Response, 
Compensation and Liability Act of 1980, pending or, to the Company’s knowledge, 
threatened against the Company or any Company Subsidiary;  

(ii) to the Company’s knowledge, there is no reasonable basis for any such 
proceeding, claim or action; and  

(iii) neither the Company nor any Company Subsidiary is subject to any 
agreement, order, judgment or decree by or with any court, Governmental Entity or third 
party imposing any such environmental liability. 

(r) Risk Management Instruments.  Except as would not, individually or in the 
aggregate, reasonably be expected to have a Company Material Adverse Effect, all derivative 
instruments, including, swaps, caps, floors and option agreements, whether entered into for the 
Company’s own account, or for the account of one or more of the Company Subsidiaries or its or 
their customers, were entered into (i) only in the ordinary course of business, (ii) in accordance 
with prudent practices and in all material respects with all applicable laws, rules, regulations and 
regulatory policies and (iii) with counterparties believed to be financially responsible at the time; 
and each of such instruments constitutes the valid and legally binding obligation of the Company 
or one of the Company Subsidiaries, enforceable in accordance with its terms, except as may be 
limited by the Bankruptcy Exceptions.  Neither the Company or the Company Subsidiaries, nor, 
to the knowledge of the Company, any other party thereto, is in breach of any of its obligations 
under any such agreement or arrangement other than such breaches that would not, individually 
or in the aggregate, reasonably be expected to have a Company Material Adverse Effect. 
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(s) Agreements with Regulatory Agencies.  Except as set forth on Schedule E, neither 
the Company nor any Company Subsidiary is subject to any material cease-and-desist or other 
similar order or enforcement action issued by, or is a party to any material written agreement, 
consent agreement or memorandum of understanding with, or is a party to any commitment letter 
or similar undertaking to, or is subject to any capital directive by, or since December 31, 2006, 
has adopted any board resolutions at the request of, any Governmental Entity (other than the 
Appropriate Federal Banking Agencies with jurisdiction over the Company and the Company 
Subsidiaries) that currently restricts in any material respect the conduct of its business or that in 
any material manner relates to its capital adequacy, its liquidity and funding policies and 
practices, its ability to pay dividends, its credit, risk management or compliance policies or 
procedures, its internal controls, its management or its operations or business (each item in this 
sentence, a “Regulatory Agreement”), nor has the Company or any Company Subsidiary been 
advised since December 31, 2006 by any such Governmental Entity that it is considering issuing, 
initiating, ordering, or requesting any such Regulatory Agreement.  The Company and each 
Company Subsidiary are in compliance in all material respects with each Regulatory Agreement 
to which it is party or subject, and neither the Company nor any Company Subsidiary has 
received any notice from any Governmental Entity indicating that either the Company or any 
Company Subsidiary is not in compliance in all material respects with any such Regulatory 
Agreement.  "Appropriate Federal Banking Agency" means the “appropriate Federal banking 
agency” with respect to the Company or such Company Subsidiaries, as applicable, as defined in 
Section 3(q) of the Federal Deposit Insurance Act (12 U.S.C. Section 1813(q)). 

(t) Insurance.  The Company and the Company Subsidiaries are insured with 
reputable insurers against such risks and in such amounts as the management of the Company 
reasonably has determined to be prudent and consistent with industry practice.  The Company 
and the Company Subsidiaries are in material compliance with their insurance policies and are 
not in default under any of the material terms thereof, each such policy is outstanding and in full 
force and effect, all premiums and other payments due under any material policy have been paid, 
and all claims thereunder have been filed in due and timely fashion, except, in each case, as 
would not, individually or in the aggregate, reasonably be expected to have a Company Material 
Adverse Effect. 

(u) Intellectual Property.  Except as would not, individually or in the aggregate,  
reasonably be expected to have a Company Material Adverse Effect, (i) the Company and each 
Company Subsidiary owns or otherwise has the right to use, all intellectual property rights, 
including all trademarks, trade dress, trade names, service marks, domain names, patents, 
inventions, trade secrets, know-how, works of authorship and copyrights therein, that are used in 
the conduct of their existing businesses and all rights relating to the plans, design and 
specifications of any of its branch facilities (“Proprietary Rights”) free and clear of all liens and 
any claims of ownership by current or former employees, contractors, designers or others and (ii) 
neither the Company nor any of the Company Subsidiaries is materially infringing, diluting, 
misappropriating or violating, nor has the Company or any or the Company Subsidiaries received 
any written (or, to the knowledge of the Company, oral) communications alleging that any of 
them has materially infringed, diluted, misappropriated or violated, any of the Proprietary Rights 
owned by any other person.  Except as would not, individually or in the aggregate, reasonably be 
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expected to have a Company Material Adverse Effect, to the Company’s knowledge, no other 
person is infringing, diluting, misappropriating or violating, nor has the Company or any or the 
Company Subsidiaries sent any written communications since January 1, 2006 alleging that any 
person has infringed, diluted, misappropriated or violated, any of the Proprietary Rights owned 
by the Company and the Company Subsidiaries.   

(v) Brokers and Finders.  No broker, finder or investment banker is entitled to any 
financial advisory, brokerage, finder's or other fee or commission in connection with this 
Agreement or the Warrant or the transactions contemplated hereby or thereby based upon 
arrangements made by or on behalf of the Company or any Company Subsidiary for which the 
Investor could have any liability. 

Article III 
Covenants 

3.1 Commercially Reasonable Efforts.  Subject to the terms and conditions of this 
Agreement, each of the parties will use its commercially reasonable efforts in good faith to take, 
or cause to be taken, all actions, and to do, or cause to be done, all things necessary, proper or 
desirable, or advisable under applicable laws, so as to permit consummation of the Purchase as 
promptly as practicable and otherwise to enable consummation of the transactions contemplated 
hereby and shall use commercially reasonable efforts to cooperate with the other party to that 
end.   

3.2 Expenses. Unless otherwise provided in this Agreement or the Warrant, each of 
the parties hereto will bear and pay all costs and expenses incurred by it or on its behalf in 
connection with the transactions contemplated under this Agreement and the Warrant, including 
fees and expenses of its own financial or other consultants, investment bankers, accountants and 
counsel. 

3.3 Sufficiency of Authorized Warrant Preferred Stock; Exchange Listing.  

(a) During the period from the Closing Date until the date on which the Warrant has 
been fully exercised, the Company shall at all times have reserved for issuance, free of 
preemptive or similar rights, a sufficient number of authorized and unissued Warrant Shares to 
effectuate such exercise. 

(b) If the Company lists its Common Stock on any national securities exchange, the 
Company shall, if requested by the Investor, promptly use its reasonable best efforts to cause the 
Preferred Shares and Warrant Shares to be approved for listing on a national securities exchange 
as promptly as practicable following such request. 

3.4 Certain Notifications Until Closing. From the Signing Date until the Closing, the 
Company shall promptly notify the Investor of (i) any fact, event or circumstance of which it is 
aware and which would reasonably be expected to cause any representation or warranty of the 
Company contained in this Agreement to be untrue or inaccurate in any material respect or to 
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cause any covenant or agreement of the Company contained in this Agreement not to be 
complied with or satisfied in any material respect and (ii) except as Previously Disclosed, any 
fact, circumstance, event, change, occurrence, condition or development of which the Company 
is aware and which, individually or in the aggregate, has had or would reasonably be expected to 
have a Company Material Adverse Effect; provided, however, that delivery of any notice 
pursuant to this Section 3.4 shall not limit or affect any rights of or remedies available to the 
Investor; provided, further, that a failure to comply with this Section 3.4 shall not constitute a 
breach of this Agreement or the failure of any condition set forth in Section 1.2 to be satisfied 
unless the underlying Company Material Adverse Effect or material breach would independently 
result in the failure of a condition set forth in Section 1.2 to be satisfied. 

3.5 Access, Information and Confidentiality.   

(a) From the Signing Date until the date when the Investor holds an amount of 
Preferred Shares having an aggregate liquidation value of less than 10% of the Purchase Price, 
the Company will permit the Investor and its agents, consultants, contractors and advisors (x) 
acting through the Appropriate Federal Banking Agency, or otherwise to the extent necessary to 
evaluate, manage, or transfer its investment in the Company, to examine the corporate books and 
make copies thereof and to discuss the affairs, finances and accounts of the Company and the 
Company Subsidiaries with the principal officers of the Company, all upon reasonable notice and 
at such reasonable times and as often as the Investor may reasonably request and (y) to review 
any information material to the Investor’s investment in the Company provided by the Company 
to its Appropriate Federal Banking Agency. Any investigation pursuant to this Section 3.5 shall 
be conducted during normal business hours and in such manner as not to interfere unreasonably 
with the conduct of the business of the Company, and nothing herein shall require the Company 
or any Company Subsidiary to disclose any information to the Investor to the extent (i) 
prohibited by applicable law or regulation, or (ii) that such disclosure would reasonably be 
expected to cause a violation of any agreement to which the Company or any Company 
Subsidiary is a party or would cause a risk of a loss of privilege to the Company or any Company 
Subsidiary (provided that the Company shall use commercially reasonable efforts to make 
appropriate substitute disclosure arrangements under circumstances where the restrictions in this 
clause (ii) apply).   

(b) From the Signing Date until the date on which all of the Preferred Shares and 
Warrant Shares have been redeemed in whole, the Company will deliver, or will cause to be 
delivered, to the Investor: 

(i) as soon as available after the end of each fiscal year of the Company, and 
in any event within 90 days thereafter, a consolidated balance sheet of the Company as of 
the end of such fiscal year, and consolidated statements of income, retained earnings and 
cash flows of the Company for such year, in each case prepared in accordance with 
GAAP and setting forth in each case in comparative form the figures for the previous 
fiscal year of the Company, and which shall be audited to the extent audited financial 
statements are available; and  
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(ii) as soon as available after the end of the first, second and third quarterly 
periods in each fiscal year of the Company, a copy of any quarterly reports provided to 
other stockholders of the Company or Company management. 

(c) The Investor will use reasonable best efforts to hold, and will use reasonable best 
efforts to cause its agents, consultants, contractors and advisors to hold, in confidence all non-
public records, books, contracts, instruments, computer data and other data and information 
(collectively, “Information”) concerning the Company furnished or made available to it by the 
Company or its representatives pursuant to this Agreement (except to the extent that such 
information can be shown to have been (i) previously known by such party on a non-confidential 
basis, (ii) in the public domain through no fault of such party or (iii) later lawfully acquired from 
other sources by the party to which it was furnished (and without violation of any other 
confidentiality obligation)); provided that nothing herein shall prevent the Investor from 
disclosing any Information to the extent required by applicable laws or regulations or by any 
subpoena or similar legal process.   

 (d) The Investor’s information rights pursuant to Section 3.5(b) may be assigned by 
the Investor to a transferee or assignee of the Purchased Securities or the Warrant Shares or with 
a liquidation preference or, in the case of the Warrant, the liquidation preference of the 
underlying shares of Warrant Preferred Stock, no less than an amount equal to 2% of the initial 
aggregate liquidation preference of the Preferred Shares. 
 

Article IV 
Additional Agreements 

4.1 Purchase for Investment. The Investor acknowledges that the Purchased Securities 
and the Warrant Shares have not been registered under the Securities Act or under any state 
securities laws. The Investor (a) is acquiring the Purchased Securities pursuant to an exemption 
from registration under the Securities Act solely for investment with no present intention to 
distribute them to any person in violation of the Securities Act or any applicable U.S. state 
securities laws, (b) will not sell or otherwise dispose of any of the Purchased Securities or the 
Warrant Shares, except in compliance with the registration requirements or exemption provisions 
of the Securities Act and any applicable U.S. state securities laws, and (c) has such knowledge 
and experience in financial and business matters and in investments of this type that it is capable 
of evaluating the merits and risks of the Purchase and of making an informed investment 
decision. 

4.2 Legends.  

(a) The Investor agrees that all certificates or other instruments representing the 
Warrant will bear a legend substantially to the following effect: 

“THE SECURITIES REPRESENTED BY THIS INSTRUMENT HAVE NOT BEEN 
REGISTERED UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT OF 1933, AS AMENDED, OR THE 
SECURITIES LAWS OF ANY STATE AND MAY NOT BE TRANSFERRED, SOLD 
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OR OTHERWISE DISPOSED OF EXCEPT WHILE A REGISTRATION 
STATEMENT RELATING THERETO IS IN EFFECT UNDER SUCH ACT AND 
APPLICABLE STATE SECURITIES LAWS OR PURSUANT TO AN EXEMPTION 
FROM REGISTRATION UNDER SUCH ACT OR SUCH LAWS. 

THIS INSTRUMENT IS ISSUED SUBJECT TO THE RESTRICTIONS ON 
TRANSFER AND OTHER PROVISIONS OF A SECURITIES PURCHASE 
AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE ISSUER OF THESE SECURITIES AND THE 
INVESTOR REFERRED TO THEREIN, A COPY OF WHICH IS ON FILE WITH THE 
ISSUER.  THE SECURITIES REPRESENTED BY THIS INSTRUMENT MAY NOT 
BE SOLD OR OTHERWISE TRANSFERRED EXCEPT IN COMPLIANCE WITH 
SAID AGREEMENT.  ANY SALE OR OTHER TRANSFER NOT IN COMPLIANCE 
WITH SAID AGREEMENT WILL BE VOID.” 

(b) In addition, the Investor agrees that all certificates or other instruments 
representing the Preferred Shares and the Warrant Shares will bear a legend substantially to the 
following effect: 

“THE SECURITIES REPRESENTED BY THIS INSTRUMENT ARE NOT SAVINGS 
ACCOUNTS, DEPOSITS OR OTHER OBLIGATIONS OF A BANK AND ARE NOT 
INSURED BY THE FEDERAL DEPOSIT INSURANCE CORPORATION OR ANY 
OTHER GOVERNMENTAL AGENCY. 
 
THE SECURITIES REPRESENTED BY THIS INSTRUMENT HAVE NOT BEEN 
REGISTERED UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT OF 1933, AS AMENDED (THE 
“SECURITIES ACT”), OR THE SECURITIES LAWS OF ANY STATE AND MAY 
NOT BE TRANSFERRED, SOLD OR OTHERWISE DISPOSED OF EXCEPT WHILE 
A REGISTRATION STATEMENT RELATING THERETO IS IN EFFECT UNDER 
SUCH ACT AND APPLICABLE STATE SECURITIES LAWS OR PURSUANT TO 
AN EXEMPTION FROM REGISTRATION UNDER SUCH ACT OR SUCH LAWS. 
EACH PURCHASER OF THE SECURITIES REPRESENTED BY THIS 
INSTRUMENT IS NOTIFIED THAT THE SELLER MAY BE RELYING ON THE 
EXEMPTION FROM SECTION 5 OF THE SECURITIES ACT PROVIDED BY RULE 
144A THEREUNDER.  ANY TRANSFEREE OF THE SECURITIES REPRESENTED 
BY THIS INSTRUMENT BY ITS ACCEPTANCE HEREOF (1) REPRESENTS THAT 
IT IS A “QUALIFIED INSTITUTIONAL BUYER” (AS DEFINED IN RULE 144A 
UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT), (2) AGREES THAT IT WILL NOT OFFER, SELL 
OR OTHERWISE TRANSFER THE SECURITIES REPRESENTED BY THIS 
INSTRUMENT EXCEPT (A) PURSUANT TO A REGISTRATION STATEMENT 
WHICH IS THEN EFFECTIVE UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT, (B) FOR SO LONG 
AS THE SECURITIES REPRESENTED BY THIS INSTRUMENT ARE ELIGIBLE 
FOR RESALE PURSUANT TO RULE 144A, TO A PERSON IT REASONABLY 
BELIEVES IS A “QUALIFIED INSTITUTIONAL BUYER” AS DEFINED IN RULE 
144A UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT THAT PURCHASES FOR ITS OWN 
ACCOUNT OR FOR THE ACCOUNT OF A QUALIFIED INSTITUTIONAL BUYER 
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TO WHOM NOTICE IS GIVEN THAT THE TRANSFER IS BEING MADE IN 
RELIANCE ON RULE 144A, (C) TO THE ISSUER OR (D) PURSUANT TO ANY 
OTHER AVAILABLE EXEMPTION FROM THE REGISTRATION 
REQUIREMENTS OF THE SECURITIES ACT AND (3) AGREES THAT IT WILL 
GIVE TO EACH PERSON TO WHOM THE SECURITIES REPRESENTED BY THIS 
INSTRUMENT ARE TRANSFERRED A NOTICE SUBSTANTIALLY TO THE 
EFFECT OF THIS LEGEND. 
 
THIS INSTRUMENT IS ISSUED SUBJECT TO THE RESTRICTIONS ON 
TRANSFER AND OTHER PROVISIONS OF A SECURITIES PURCHASE 
AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE ISSUER OF THESE SECURITIES AND THE 
INVESTOR REFERRED TO THEREIN, A COPY OF WHICH IS ON FILE WITH THE 
ISSUER.  THE SECURITIES REPRESENTED BY THIS INSTRUMENT MAY NOT 
BE SOLD OR OTHERWISE TRANSFERRED EXCEPT IN COMPLIANCE WITH 
SAID AGREEMENT.  ANY SALE OR OTHER TRANSFER NOT IN COMPLIANCE 
WITH SAID AGREEMENT WILL BE VOID.” 

(c) In the event that any Purchased Securities or Warrant Shares (i) become registered 
under the Securities Act or (ii) are eligible to be transferred without restriction in accordance 
with Rule 144 or another exemption from registration under the Securities Act (other than Rule 
144A), the Company shall issue new certificates or other instruments representing such 
Purchased Securities or Warrant Shares, which shall not contain the applicable legends in 
Sections 4.2(a) and (b) above; provided that the Investor surrenders to the Company the 
previously issued certificates or other instruments. 

4.3 Certain Transactions.  The Company will not merge or consolidate with, or sell, 
transfer or lease all or substantially all of its property or assets to, any other party unless the 
successor, transferee or lessee party (or its ultimate parent entity), as the case may be (if not the 
Company), expressly assumes the due and punctual performance and observance of each and 
every covenant, agreement and condition of this Agreement to be performed and observed by the 
Company. 

4.4 Transfer of Purchased Securities and Warrant Shares; Restrictions on Exercise of 
the Warrant.  Subject to compliance with applicable securities laws, the Investor shall be 
permitted to transfer, sell, assign or otherwise dispose of (“Transfer”) all or a portion of the 
Purchased Securities or Warrant Shares at any time, and the Company shall take all steps as may 
be reasonably requested by the Investor to facilitate the Transfer of the Purchased Securities and 
the Warrant Shares; provided that the Investor shall not Transfer any Purchased Securities or 
Warrant Shares if such transfer would require the Company to be subject to the periodic 
reporting requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (the 
“Exchange Act”).  In furtherance of the foregoing, the Company shall provide reasonable 
cooperation to facilitate any Transfers of the Purchased Securities or Warrant Shares, including, 
as is reasonable under the circumstances, by furnishing such information concerning the 
Company and its business as a proposed transferee may reasonably request (including such 
information as is required by Section 4.5(k)) and making management of the Company 
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reasonably available to respond to questions of a proposed transferee in accordance with 
customary practice, subject in all cases to the proposed transferee agreeing to a customary 
confidentiality agreement. 

4.5 Registration Rights.  

(a) Unless and until the Company becomes subject to the reporting requirements of 
Section 13 or 15(d) of the Exchange Act, the Company shall have no obligation to comply with 
the provisions of this Section 4.5 (other than Section 4.5(b)(iv)-(vi)); provided that the Company 
covenants and agrees that it shall comply with this Section 4.5 as soon as practicable after the 
date that it becomes subject to such reporting requirements. 

(b) Registration.   

(i) Subject to the terms and conditions of this Agreement, the Company 
covenants and agrees that as promptly as practicable after the date that the Company 
becomes subject to the reporting requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Exchange Act 
(and in any event no later than 30 days thereafter), the Company shall prepare and file 
with the SEC a Shelf Registration Statement covering all Registrable Securities (or 
otherwise designate an existing Shelf Registration Statement filed with the SEC to cover 
the Registrable Securities), and, to the extent the Shelf Registration Statement has not 
theretofore been declared effective or is not automatically effective upon such filing, the 
Company shall use reasonable best efforts to cause such Shelf Registration Statement to 
be declared or become effective and to keep such Shelf Registration Statement 
continuously effective and in compliance with the Securities Act and usable for resale of 
such Registrable Securities for a period from the date of its initial effectiveness until such 
time as there are no Registrable Securities remaining (including by refiling such Shelf 
Registration Statement (or a new Shelf Registration Statement) if the initial Shelf 
Registration Statement expires).  Notwithstanding the foregoing, if the Company is not 
eligible to file a registration statement on Form S-3, then the Company shall not be 
obligated to file a Shelf Registration Statement unless and until requested to do so in 
writing by the Investor. 

(ii) Any registration pursuant to Section 4.5(b)(i) shall be effected by means 
of a shelf registration on an appropriate form under Rule 415 under the Securities Act (a 
“Shelf Registration Statement”).  If the Investor or any other Holder intends to distribute 
any Registrable Securities by means of an underwritten offering it shall promptly so 
advise the Company and the Company shall take all reasonable steps to facilitate such 
distribution, including the actions required pursuant to Section 4.5(d); provided that the 
Company shall not be required to facilitate an underwritten offering of Registrable 
Securities unless the expected gross proceeds from such offering exceed (i) 2% of the 
initial aggregate liquidation preference of the Preferred Shares if such initial aggregate 
liquidation preference is less than $2 billion and (ii) $200 million if the initial aggregate 
liquidation preference of the Preferred Shares is equal to or greater than $2 billion.  The 
lead underwriters in any such distribution shall be selected by the Holders of a majority 
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of the Registrable Securities to be distributed; provided that to the extent appropriate and 
permitted under applicable law, such Holders shall consider the qualifications of any 
broker-dealer Affiliate of the Company in selecting the lead underwriters in any such 
distribution.   

(iii) The Company shall not be required to effect a registration (including a 
resale of Registrable Securities from an effective Shelf Registration Statement) or an 
underwritten offering pursuant to Section 4.5(b):  (A) with respect to securities that are 
not Registrable Securities; or (B) if the Company has notified the Investor and all other 
Holders that in the good faith judgment of the Board of Directors, it would be materially 
detrimental to the Company or its securityholders for such registration or underwritten 
offering to be effected at such time, in which event the Company shall have the right to 
defer such registration for a period of not more than 45 days after receipt of the request of 
the Investor or any other Holder; provided that such right to delay a registration or 
underwritten offering shall be exercised by the Company (1) only if the Company has 
generally exercised (or is concurrently exercising) similar black-out rights against holders 
of similar securities that have registration rights and (2) not more than three times in any 
12-month period and not more than 90 days in the aggregate in any 12-month period. 

(iv) If during any period when an effective Shelf Registration Statement is not 
available, the Company proposes to register any of its equity securities, other than a 
registration pursuant to Section 4.5(b)(i) or a Special Registration, and the registration 
form to be filed may be used for the registration or qualification for distribution of 
Registrable Securities, the Company will give prompt written notice to the Investor and 
all other Holders of its intention to effect such a registration (but in no event less than ten 
days prior to the anticipated filing date) and will include in such registration all 
Registrable Securities with respect to which the Company has received written requests 
for inclusion therein within ten business days after the date of the Company’s notice (a 
“Piggyback Registration”).  Any such person that has made such a written request may 
withdraw its Registrable Securities from such Piggyback Registration by giving written 
notice to the Company and the managing underwriter, if any, on or before the fifth 
business day prior to the planned effective date of such Piggyback Registration. The 
Company may terminate or withdraw any registration under this Section 4.5(b)(iv) prior 
to the effectiveness of such registration, whether or not Investor or any other Holders 
have elected to include Registrable Securities in such registration. 

(v) If the registration referred to in Section 4.5(b)(iv) is proposed to be 
underwritten, the Company will so advise Investor and all other Holders as a part of the 
written notice given pursuant to Section 4.5(b)(iv).  In such event, the right of Investor 
and all other Holders to registration pursuant to Section 4.5(b) will be conditioned upon 
such persons’ participation in such underwriting and the inclusion of such person’s 
Registrable Securities in the underwriting if such securities are of the same class of 
securities as the securities to be offered in the underwritten offering, and each such 
person will (together with the Company and the other persons distributing their securities 
through such underwriting) enter into an underwriting agreement in customary form with 
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the underwriter or underwriters selected for such underwriting by the Company; provided 
that the Investor (as opposed to other Holders) shall not be required to indemnify any 
person in connection with any registration. If any participating person disapproves of the 
terms of the underwriting, such person may elect to withdraw therefrom by written notice 
to the Company, the managing underwriters and the Investor (if the Investor is 
participating in the underwriting). 

(vi) If either (x) the Company grants “piggyback” registration rights to one or 
more third parties to include their securities in an underwritten offering under the Shelf 
Registration Statement pursuant to Section 4.5(b)(ii) or (y) a Piggyback Registration 
under Section 4.5(b)(iv) relates to an underwritten offering on behalf of the Company, 
and in either case the managing underwriters advise the Company that in their reasonable 
opinion the number of securities requested to be included in such offering exceeds the 
number which can be sold without adversely affecting the marketability of such offering 
(including an adverse effect on the per share offering price), the Company will include in 
such offering only such number of securities that in the reasonable opinion of such 
managing underwriters can be sold without adversely affecting the marketability of the 
offering (including an adverse effect on the per share offering price), which securities 
will be so included in the following order of priority: (A) first, in the case of a Piggyback 
Registration under Section 4.5(b)(iv), the securities the Company proposes to sell, (B) 
then the Registrable Securities of the Investor and all other Holders who have requested 
inclusion of Registrable Securities pursuant to Section 4.5(b)(ii) or Section 4.5(b)(iv), as 
applicable, pro rata on the basis of the aggregate number of such securities or shares 
owned by each such person and (C) lastly, any other securities of the Company that have 
been requested to be so included, subject to the terms of this Agreement; provided, 
however, that if the Company has, prior to the Signing Date, entered into an agreement 
with respect to its securities that is inconsistent with the order of priority contemplated 
hereby then it shall apply the order of priority in such conflicting agreement to the extent 
that it would otherwise result in a breach under such agreement. 

(c) Expenses of Registration.  All Registration Expenses incurred in connection with 
any registration, qualification or compliance hereunder shall be borne by the Company.  All 
Selling Expenses incurred in connection with any registrations hereunder shall be borne by the 
holders of the securities so registered pro rata on the basis of the aggregate offering or sale price 
of the securities so registered. 

(d) Obligations of the Company.  Whenever required to effect the registration of any 
Registrable Securities or facilitate the distribution of Registrable Securities pursuant to an 
effective Shelf Registration Statement, the Company shall, as expeditiously as reasonably 
practicable: 

(i) Prepare and file with the SEC a prospectus supplement or post-effective 
amendment with respect to a proposed offering of Registrable Securities pursuant to an 
effective registration statement, subject to Section 4.5(d), keep such registration 
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statement effective and keep such prospectus supplement current until the securities 
described therein are no longer Registrable Securities. 

(ii) Prepare and file with the SEC such amendments and supplements to the 
applicable registration statement and the prospectus or prospectus supplement used in 
connection with such registration statement as may be necessary to comply with the 
provisions of the Securities Act with respect to the disposition of all securities covered by 
such registration statement. 

(iii) Furnish to the Holders and any underwriters such number of copies of the 
applicable registration statement and each such amendment and supplement thereto 
(including in each case all exhibits) and of a prospectus, including a preliminary 
prospectus, in conformity with the requirements of the Securities Act, and such other 
documents as they may reasonably request in order to facilitate the disposition of 
Registrable Securities owned or to be distributed by them. 

(iv) Use its reasonable best efforts to register and qualify the securities covered 
by such registration statement under such other securities or Blue Sky laws of such 
jurisdictions as shall be reasonably requested by the Holders or any managing 
underwriter(s), to keep such registration or qualification in effect for so long as such 
registration statement remains in effect, and to take any other action which may be 
reasonably necessary to enable such seller to consummate the disposition in such 
jurisdictions of the securities owned by such Holder; provided that the Company shall not 
be required in connection therewith or as a condition thereto to qualify to do business or 
to file a general consent to service of process in any such states or jurisdictions. 

(v) Notify each Holder of Registrable Securities at any time when a 
prospectus relating thereto is required to be delivered under the Securities Act of the 
happening of any event as a result of which the applicable prospectus, as then in effect, 
includes an untrue statement of a material fact or omits to state a material fact required to 
be stated therein or necessary to make the statements therein not misleading in light of 
the circumstances then existing. 

(vi) Give written notice to the Holders: 

(A) when any registration statement filed pursuant to Section 4.5(a) or 
any amendment thereto has been filed with the SEC (except for any amendment 
effected by the filing of a document with the SEC pursuant to the Exchange Act) 
and when such registration statement or any post-effective amendment thereto has 
become effective; 

(B) of any request by the SEC for amendments or supplements to any 
registration statement or the prospectus included therein or for additional 
information; 



 
-22- 

   
   
   
   
095331-0002-10033-NY02.2690847.9 

(C) of the issuance by the SEC of any stop order suspending the 
effectiveness of any registration statement or the initiation of any proceedings for 
that purpose; 

(D) of the receipt by the Company or its legal counsel of any 
notification with respect to the suspension of the qualification of the applicable 
Registrable Securities for sale in any jurisdiction or the initiation or threatening of 
any proceeding for such purpose; 

(E) of the happening of any event that requires the Company to make 
changes in any effective registration statement or the prospectus related to the 
registration statement in order to make the statements therein not misleading 
(which notice shall be accompanied by an instruction to suspend the use of the 
prospectus until the requisite changes have been made); and 

(F) if at any time the representations and warranties of the Company 
contained in any underwriting agreement contemplated by Section 4.5(d)(x) cease 
to be true and correct. 

(vii) Use its reasonable best efforts to prevent the issuance or obtain the 
withdrawal of any order suspending the effectiveness of any registration statement 
referred to in Section 4.5(d)(vi)(C) at the earliest practicable time. 

(viii) Upon the occurrence of any event contemplated by Section 4.5(d)(v) or 
4.5(d)(vi)(E), promptly prepare a post-effective amendment to such registration statement 
or a supplement to the related prospectus or file any other required document so that, as 
thereafter delivered to the Holders and any underwriters, the prospectus will not contain 
an untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state any material fact necessary to make 
the statements therein, in light of the circumstances under which they were made, not 
misleading.  If the Company notifies the Holders in accordance with Section 4.5(d)(vi)(E) 
to suspend the use of the prospectus until the requisite changes to the prospectus have 
been made, then the Holders and any underwriters shall suspend use of such prospectus 
and use their reasonable best efforts to return to the Company all copies of such 
prospectus (at the Company’s expense) other than permanent file copies then in such 
Holders’ or underwriters’ possession.  The total number of days that any such suspension 
may be in effect in any 12-month period shall not exceed 90 days. 

(ix) Use reasonable best efforts to procure the cooperation of the Company’s 
transfer agent in settling any offering or sale of Registrable Securities, including with 
respect to the transfer of physical stock certificates into book-entry form in accordance 
with any procedures reasonably requested by the Holders or any managing 
underwriter(s). 

(x) If an underwritten offering is requested pursuant to Section 4.5(b)(ii), 
enter into an underwriting agreement in customary form, scope and substance and take all 
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such other actions reasonably requested by the Holders of a majority of the Registrable 
Securities being sold in connection therewith or by the managing underwriter(s), if any, 
to expedite or facilitate the underwritten disposition of such Registrable Securities, and in 
connection therewith in any underwritten offering (including making members of 
management and executives of the Company available to participate in “road shows”, 
similar sales events and other marketing activities), (A) make such representations and 
warranties to the Holders that are selling stockholders and the managing underwriter(s), if 
any, with respect to the business of the Company and its subsidiaries, and the Shelf 
Registration Statement, prospectus and documents, if any, incorporated or deemed to be 
incorporated by reference therein, in each case, in customary form, substance and scope, 
and, if true, confirm the same if and when requested, (B) use its reasonable best efforts to 
furnish the underwriters with opinions of counsel to the Company, addressed to the 
managing underwriter(s), if any, covering the matters customarily covered in such 
opinions requested in underwritten offerings, (C) use its reasonable best efforts to obtain 
“cold comfort” letters from the independent certified public accountants of the Company 
(and, if necessary, any other independent certified public accountants of any business 
acquired by the Company for which financial statements and financial data are included 
in the Shelf Registration Statement) who have certified the financial statements included 
in such Shelf Registration Statement, addressed to each of the managing underwriter(s), if 
any, such letters to be in customary form and covering matters of the type customarily 
covered in “cold comfort” letters, (D) if an underwriting agreement is entered into, the 
same shall contain indemnification provisions and procedures customary in underwritten 
offerings (provided that the Investor shall not be obligated to provide any indemnity), and 
(E) deliver such documents and certificates as may be reasonably requested by the 
Holders of a majority of the Registrable Securities being sold in connection therewith, 
their counsel and the managing underwriter(s), if any, to evidence the continued validity 
of the representations and warranties made pursuant to clause (i) above and to evidence 
compliance with any customary conditions contained in the underwriting agreement or 
other agreement entered into by the Company.   

(xi) Make available for inspection by a representative of Holders that are 
selling stockholders, the managing underwriter(s), if any, and any attorneys or 
accountants retained by such Holders or managing underwriter(s), at the offices where 
normally kept, during reasonable business hours, financial and other records, pertinent 
corporate documents and properties of the Company, and cause the officers, directors and 
employees of the Company to supply all information in each case reasonably requested 
(and of the type customarily provided in connection with due diligence conducted in 
connection with a registered public offering of securities) by any such representative, 
managing underwriter(s), attorney or accountant in connection with such Shelf 
Registration Statement. 

(xii) Use reasonable best efforts to cause all such Registrable Securities to be 
listed on each national securities exchange on which similar securities issued by the 
Company are then listed or, if no similar securities issued by the Company are then listed 
on any national securities exchange, use its reasonable best efforts to cause all such 
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Registrable Securities to be listed on such securities exchange as the Investor may 
designate. 

(xiii) If requested by Holders of a majority of the Registrable Securities being 
registered and/or sold in connection therewith, or the managing underwriter(s), if any, 
promptly include in a prospectus supplement or amendment such information as the 
Holders of a majority of the Registrable Securities being registered and/or sold in 
connection therewith or managing underwriter(s), if any, may reasonably request in order 
to permit the intended method of distribution of such securities and make all required 
filings of such prospectus supplement or such amendment as soon as practicable after the 
Company has received such request. 

(xiv) Timely provide to its security holders earning statements satisfying the 
provisions of Section 11(a) of the Securities Act and Rule 158 thereunder. 

(e) Suspension of Sales.  Upon receipt of written notice from the Company that a 
registration statement, prospectus or prospectus supplement contains or may contain an untrue 
statement of a material fact or omits or may omit to state a material fact required to be stated 
therein or necessary to make the statements therein not misleading or that circumstances exist 
that make inadvisable use of such registration statement, prospectus or prospectus supplement, 
the Investor and each Holder of Registrable Securities shall forthwith discontinue disposition of 
Registrable Securities until the Investor and/or Holder has received copies of a supplemented or 
amended prospectus or prospectus supplement, or until the Investor and/or such Holder is 
advised in writing by the Company that the use of the prospectus and, if applicable, prospectus 
supplement may be resumed, and, if so directed by the Company, the Investor and/or such 
Holder shall deliver to the Company (at the Company’s expense) all copies, other than 
permanent file copies then in the Investor and/or such Holder’s possession, of the prospectus 
and, if applicable, prospectus supplement covering such Registrable Securities current at the time 
of receipt of such notice.  The total number of days that any such suspension may be in effect in 
any 12-month period shall not exceed 90 days. 

(f) Termination of Registration Rights.  A Holder’s registration rights as to any 
securities held by such Holder (and its Affiliates, partners, members and former members) shall 
not be available unless such securities are Registrable Securities. 

(g) Furnishing Information. 

(i) Neither the Investor nor any Holder shall use any free writing prospectus 
(as defined in Rule 405) in connection with the sale of Registrable Securities without the 
prior written consent of the Company. 

(ii) It shall be a condition precedent to the obligations of the Company to take 
any action pursuant to Section 4.5(d) that Investor and/or the selling Holders and the 
underwriters, if any, shall furnish to the Company such information regarding 
themselves, the Registrable Securities held by them and the intended method of 
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disposition of such securities as shall be required to effect the registered offering of their 
Registrable Securities. 

(h) Indemnification. 

(i) The Company agrees to indemnify each Holder and, if a Holder is a 
person other than an individual, such Holder’s officers, directors, employees, agents, 
representatives and Affiliates, and each Person, if any, that controls a Holder within the 
meaning of the Securities Act (each, an “Indemnitee”), against any and all losses, claims, 
damages, actions, liabilities, costs and expenses (including reasonable fees, expenses and 
disbursements of attorneys and other professionals incurred in connection with 
investigating, defending, settling, compromising or paying any such losses, claims, 
damages, actions, liabilities, costs and expenses), joint or several, arising out of or based 
upon any untrue statement or alleged untrue statement of material fact contained in any 
registration statement, including any preliminary prospectus or final prospectus contained 
therein or any amendments or supplements thereto or any documents incorporated therein 
by reference or contained in any free writing prospectus (as such term is defined in Rule 
405) prepared by the Company or authorized by it in writing for use by such Holder (or 
any amendment or supplement thereto); or any omission to state therein a material fact 
required to be stated therein or necessary to make the statements therein, in light of the 
circumstances under which they were made, not misleading; provided, that the Company 
shall not be liable to such Indemnitee in any such case to the extent that any such loss, 
claim, damage, liability (or action or proceeding in respect thereof) or expense arises out 
of or is based upon (A) an untrue statement or omission made in such registration 
statement, including any such preliminary prospectus or final prospectus contained 
therein or any such amendments or supplements thereto or contained in any free writing 
prospectus (as such term is defined in Rule 405) prepared by the Company or authorized 
by it in writing for use by such Holder (or any amendment or supplement thereto), in 
reliance upon and in conformity with information regarding such Indemnitee or its plan 
of distribution or ownership interests which was furnished in writing to the Company by 
such Indemnitee for use in connection with such registration statement, including any 
such preliminary prospectus or final prospectus contained therein or any such 
amendments or supplements thereto, or (B)  offers or sales effected by or on behalf of 
such Indemnitee “by means of” (as defined in Rule 159A) a “free writing prospectus” (as 
defined in Rule 405) that was not authorized in writing by the Company. 

(ii) If the indemnification provided for in Section 4.5(h)(i) is unavailable to an 
Indemnitee with respect to any losses, claims, damages, actions, liabilities, costs or 
expenses referred to therein or is insufficient to hold the Indemnitee harmless as 
contemplated therein, then the Company, in lieu of indemnifying such Indemnitee, shall 
contribute to the amount paid or payable by such Indemnitee as a result of such losses, 
claims, damages, actions, liabilities, costs or expenses in such proportion as is appropriate 
to reflect the relative fault of the Indemnitee, on the one hand, and the Company, on the 
other hand, in connection with the statements or omissions which resulted in such losses, 
claims, damages, actions, liabilities, costs or expenses as well as any other relevant 
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equitable considerations.  The relative fault of the Company, on the one hand, and of the 
Indemnitee, on the other hand, shall be determined by reference to, among other factors, 
whether the untrue statement of a material fact or omission to state a material fact relates 
to information supplied by the Company or by the Indemnitee and the parties’ relative 
intent, knowledge, access to information and opportunity to correct or prevent such 
statement or omission;  the Company and each Holder agree that it would not be just and 
equitable if contribution pursuant to this Section 4.5(h)(ii) were determined by pro rata 
allocation or by any other method of allocation that does not take account of the equitable 
considerations referred to in Section 4.5(h)(i).  No Indemnitee guilty of fraudulent 
misrepresentation (within the meaning of Section 11(f) of the Securities Act) shall be 
entitled to contribution from the Company if the Company was not guilty of such 
fraudulent misrepresentation. 

(i) Assignment of Registration Rights.  The rights of the Investor to registration of 
Registrable Securities pursuant to Section 4.5(b) may be assigned by the Investor to a transferee 
or assignee of Registrable Securities with a liquidation preference or, in the case of the Warrant, 
the liquidation preference of the underlying shares of Warrant Preferred Stock, no less than an 
amount equal to (i) 2% of the initial aggregate liquidation preference of the Preferred Shares if 
such initial aggregate liquidation preference is less than $2 billion and (ii) $200 million if the 
initial aggregate liquidation preference of the Preferred Shares is equal to or greater than $2 
billion; provided, however, the transferor shall, within ten days after such transfer, furnish to the 
Company written notice of the name and address of such transferee or assignee and the number 
and type of Registrable Securities that are being assigned.   

(j) Clear Market.  With respect to any underwritten offering of Registrable Securities 
by the Investor or other Holders pursuant to this Section 4.5, the Company agrees not to effect 
(other than pursuant to such registration or pursuant to a Special Registration) any public sale or 
distribution, or to file any Shelf Registration Statement (other than such registration or a Special 
Registration) covering any preferred stock of the Company or any securities convertible into or 
exchangeable or exercisable for preferred stock of the Company, during the period not to exceed 
ten days prior and 60 days following the effective date of such offering or such longer period up 
to 90 days as may be requested by the managing underwriter for such underwritten offering.  The 
Company also agrees to cause such of its directors and senior executive officers to execute and 
deliver customary lock-up agreements in such form and for such time period up to 90 days as 
may be requested by the managing underwriter.  “Special Registration” means the registration of 
(A) equity securities and/or options or other rights in respect thereof solely registered on Form S-
4 or Form S-8 (or successor form) or (B) shares of equity securities and/or options or other rights 
in respect thereof to be offered to directors, members of management, employees, consultants, 
customers, lenders or vendors of the Company or Company Subsidiaries or in connection with 
dividend reinvestment plans. 

(k) Rule 144; Rule 144A.  With a view to making available to the Investor and 
Holders the benefits of certain rules and regulations of the SEC which may permit the sale of the 
Registrable Securities to the public without registration, the Company agrees to use its 
reasonable best efforts to: 
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(i) make and keep public information available, as those terms are understood 
and defined in Rule 144(c)(1) or any similar or analogous rule promulgated under the 
Securities Act, at all times after the Signing Date; 

(ii) (A) file with the SEC, in a timely manner, all reports and other documents 
required of the Company under the Exchange Act, and (B) if at any time the Company is 
not required to file such reports, make available, upon the request of any Holder, such 
information necessary to permit sales pursuant to Rule 144A (including the information 
required by Rule 144A(d)(4) under the Securities Act);  

(iii) so long as the Investor or a Holder owns any Registrable Securities, 
furnish to the Investor or such Holder forthwith upon request: a written statement by the 
Company as to its compliance with the reporting requirements of Rule 144 under the 
Securities Act, and of the Exchange Act; a copy of the most recent annual or quarterly 
report of the Company; and such other reports and documents as the Investor or Holder 
may reasonably request in availing itself of any rule or regulation of the SEC allowing it 
to sell any such securities to the public without registration; and  

(iv) take such further action as any Holder may reasonably request, all to the 
extent required from time to time to enable such Holder to sell Registrable Securities 
without registration under the Securities Act. 

(l) As used in this Section 4.5, the following terms shall have the following 
respective meanings: 

(i) “Holder” means the Investor and any other holder of Registrable 
Securities to whom the registration rights conferred by this Agreement have been 
transferred in compliance with Section 4.5(h) hereof. 

(ii) “Holders’ Counsel” means one counsel for the selling Holders chosen by 
Holders holding a majority interest in the Registrable Securities being registered. 

(iii) “Register,” “registered,” and “registration” shall refer to a registration 
effected by preparing and (A) filing a registration statement or amendment thereto in 
compliance with the Securities Act and applicable rules and regulations thereunder, and 
the declaration or ordering of effectiveness of such registration statement or amendment 
thereto or (B) filing a prospectus and/or prospectus supplement in respect of an 
appropriate effective registration statement on Form S-3. 

(iv) “Registrable Securities” means (A) all Preferred Shares, (B) the Warrant 
(subject to Section 4.5(q)) and (C) any equity securities issued or issuable directly or 
indirectly with respect to the securities referred to in the foregoing clauses (A) or (B) by 
way of conversion, exercise or exchange thereof, including the Warrant Shares, or share 
dividend or share split or in connection with a combination of shares, recapitalization, 
reclassification, merger, amalgamation, arrangement, consolidation or other 
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reorganization,  provided that, once issued, such securities will not be Registrable 
Securities when (1) they are sold pursuant to an effective registration statement under the 
Securities Act, (2) except as provided below in Section 4.5(p), they may be sold pursuant 
to Rule 144 without limitation thereunder on volume or manner of sale, (3) they shall 
have ceased to be outstanding or (4) they have been sold in a private transaction in which 
the transferor's rights under this Agreement are not assigned to the transferee of the 
securities.  No Registrable Securities may be registered under more than one registration 
statement at any one time. 

(v) “Registration Expenses” mean all expenses incurred by the Company in 
effecting any registration pursuant to this Agreement (whether or not any registration or 
prospectus becomes effective or final) or otherwise complying with its obligations under 
this Section 4.5, including all registration, filing and listing fees, printing expenses, fees 
and disbursements of counsel for the Company, blue sky fees and expenses, expenses 
incurred in connection with any “road show”, the reasonable fees and disbursements of 
Holders’ Counsel, and expenses of the Company’s independent accountants in 
connection with any regular or special reviews or audits incident to or required by any 
such registration, but shall not include Selling Expenses. 

(vi) “Rule 144”, “Rule 144A”, “Rule 159A”, “Rule 405” and “Rule 415” mean, 
in each case, such rule promulgated under the Securities Act (or any successor provision), 
as the same shall be amended from time to time. 

(vii) “Selling Expenses” mean all discounts, selling commissions and stock 
transfer taxes applicable to the sale of Registrable Securities and fees and disbursements 
of counsel for any Holder (other than the fees and disbursements of Holders’ Counsel 
included in Registration Expenses). 

(m) At any time, any holder of Securities (including any Holder) may elect to forfeit 
its rights set forth in this Section 4.5 from that date forward; provided, that a Holder forfeiting 
such rights shall nonetheless be entitled to participate under Section 4.5(b)(iv) – (vi) in any 
Pending Underwritten Offering to the same extent that such Holder would have been entitled to 
if the holder had not withdrawn; and provided, further, that no such forfeiture shall terminate a 
Holder’s rights or obligations under Section 4.5(g) with respect to any prior registration or 
Pending Underwritten Offering.  “Pending Underwritten Offering” means, with respect to any 
Holder forfeiting its rights pursuant to this Section 4.5(m), any underwritten offering of 
Registrable Securities in which such Holder has advised the Company of its intent to register its 
Registrable Securities either pursuant to Section 4.5(b)(ii) or 4.5(b)(iv) prior to the date of such 
Holder’s forfeiture.  

(n) Specific Performance.  The parties hereto acknowledge that there would be no 
adequate remedy at law if the Company fails to perform any of its obligations under this Section 
4.5 and that the Investor and the Holders from time to time may be irreparably harmed by any 
such failure, and accordingly agree that the Investor and such Holders, in addition to any other 
remedy to which they may be entitled at law or in equity, to the fullest extent permitted and 
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enforceable under applicable law shall be entitled to compel specific performance of the 
obligations of the Company under this Section 4.5 in accordance with the terms and conditions 
of this Section 4.5. 

(o) No Inconsistent Agreements.  The Company shall not, on or after the Signing 
Date, enter into any agreement with respect to its securities that may impair the rights granted to 
the Investor and the Holders under this Section 4.5 or that otherwise conflicts with the provisions 
hereof in any manner that may impair the rights granted to the Investor and the Holders under 
this Section 4.5.  In the event the Company has, prior to the Signing Date, entered into any 
agreement with respect to its securities that is inconsistent with the rights granted to the Investor 
and the Holders under this Section 4.5 (including agreements that are inconsistent with the order 
of priority contemplated by Section 4.5(b)(vi)) or that may otherwise conflict with the provisions 
hereof, the Company shall use its reasonable best efforts to amend such agreements to ensure 
they are consistent with the provisions of this Section 4.5. 

(p) Certain Offerings by the Investor.  In the case of any securities held by the 
Investor that cease to be Registrable Securities solely by reason of clause (2) in the definition of 
“Registrable Securities,” the provisions of Sections 4.5(b)(ii), clauses (iv), (ix) and (x)-(xii) of 
Section 4.5(d), Section 4.5(h) and Section 4.5(j) shall continue to apply until such securities 
otherwise cease to be Registrable Securities.  In any such case, an “underwritten” offering or 
other disposition shall include any distribution of such securities on behalf of the Investor by one 
or more broker-dealers, an “underwriting agreement” shall include any purchase agreement 
entered into by such broker-dealers, and any “registration statement” or “prospectus” shall 
include any offering document approved by the Company and used in connection with such 
distribution. 

(q) Registered Sales of the Warrant.  The Holders agree to sell the Warrant or any 
portion thereof under the Shelf Registration Statement only beginning 30 days after notifying the 
Company of any such sale, during which 30-day period the Investor and all Holders of the 
Warrant shall take reasonable steps to agree to revisions to the Warrant to permit a public 
distribution of the Warrant, including entering into a warrant agreement and appointing a warrant 
agent. 

4.6 Depositary Shares. Upon request by the Investor at any time following the 
Closing Date, the Company shall promptly enter into a depositary arrangement, pursuant to 
customary agreements reasonably satisfactory to the Investor and with a depositary reasonably 
acceptable to the Investor, pursuant to which the Preferred Shares or the Warrant Shares may be 
deposited and depositary shares, each representing a fraction of a Preferred Share or Warrant 
Share, as applicable, as specified by the Investor, may be issued. From and after the execution of 
any such depositary arrangement, and the deposit of any Preferred Shares or Warrant Shares, as 
applicable, pursuant thereto, the depositary shares issued pursuant thereto shall be deemed 
“Preferred Shares”, “Warrant Shares” and, as applicable, “Registrable Securities” for purposes of 
this Agreement.  
 

4.7 Restriction on Dividends and Repurchases.   
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(a) Prior to the earlier of (x) the third anniversary of the Closing Date and (y) the date 
on which all of the Preferred Shares and Warrant Shares have been redeemed in whole or the 
Investor has transferred all of the Preferred Shares and Warrant Shares to third parties which are 
not Affiliates of the Investor, neither the Company nor any Company Subsidiary shall, without 
the consent of the Investor, declare or pay any dividend or make any distribution on capital stock 
or other equity securities of any kind of the Company or any Company Subsidiary (other than (i) 
regular quarterly cash dividends of not more than the amount of the last quarterly cash dividend 
per share declared or, if lower, announced to its holders of Common Stock an intention to 
declare, on the Common Stock prior to November 17, 2008, as adjusted for any stock split, stock 
dividend, reverse stock split, reclassification or similar transaction, (ii) dividends payable solely 
in shares of Common Stock, (iii) regular dividends on shares of preferred stock in accordance 
with the terms thereof and which are permitted under the terms of the Preferred Shares and the 
Warrant Shares, (iv) dividends or distributions by any wholly-owned Company Subsidiary or (v) 
dividends or distributions by any Company Subsidiary required pursuant to binding contractual 
agreements entered into prior to November 17, 2008). 

(b) During the period beginning on the third anniversary of the Closing Date and 
ending on the earlier of (i) the tenth anniversary of the Closing Date and (ii) the date on which all 
of the Preferred Shares and Warrant Shares have been redeemed in whole or the Investor has 
transferred all of the Preferred Shares and Warrant Shares to third parties which are not Affiliates 
of the Investor, neither the Company nor any Company Subsidiary shall, without the consent of 
the Investor, (A) pay any per share dividend or distribution on capital stock or other equity 
securities of any kind of the Company at a per annum rate that is in excess of 103% of the 
aggregate per share dividends and distributions for the immediately prior fiscal year (other than 
regular dividends on shares of preferred stock in accordance with the terms thereof and which 
are permitted under the terms of the Preferred Shares and the Warrant Shares); provided that no 
increase in the aggregate amount of dividends or distributions on Common Stock shall be 
permitted as a result of any dividends or distributions paid in shares of Common Stock, any stock 
split or any similar transaction or (B) pay aggregate dividends or distributions on capital stock or 
other equity securities of any kind of any Company Subsidiary that is in excess of 103% of the 
aggregate dividends and distributions paid for the immediately prior fiscal year (other than in the 
case of this clause (B), (1) regular dividends on shares of preferred stock in accordance with the 
terms thereof and which are permitted under the terms of the Preferred Shares and the Warrant 
Shares, (2) dividends or distributions by any wholly-owned Company Subsidiary, (3) dividends 
or distributions by any Company Subsidiary required pursuant to binding contractual agreements 
entered into prior to November 17, 2008) or (4) dividends or distributions on newly issued shares 
of capital stock for cash or other property. 

(c) Prior to the earlier of (x) the tenth anniversary of the Closing Date and (y) the date 
on which all of the Preferred Shares and Warrant Shares have been redeemed in whole or the 
Investor has transferred all of the Preferred Shares and Warrant Shares to third parties which are 
not Affiliates of the Investor, neither the Company nor any Company Subsidiary shall, without 
the consent of the Investor, redeem, purchase or acquire any shares of Common Stock or other 
capital stock or other equity securities of any kind of the Company or any Company Subsidiary, 
or any trust preferred securities issued by the Company or any Affiliate of the Company, other 
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than (i) redemptions, purchases or other acquisitions of the Preferred Shares and Warrant Shares, 
(ii) in connection with the administration of any employee benefit plan in the ordinary course of 
business and consistent with past practice, (iii) the acquisition by the Company or any of the 
Company Subsidiaries of record ownership in Junior Stock or Parity Stock for the beneficial 
ownership of any other persons (other than the Company or any other Company Subsidiary), 
including as trustees or custodians, (iv) the exchange or conversion of Junior Stock for or into 
other Junior Stock or of Parity Stock or trust preferred securities for or into other Parity Stock 
(with the same or lesser aggregate liquidation amount) or Junior Stock, in each case set forth in 
this clause (iv), solely to the extent required pursuant to binding contractual agreements entered 
into prior to the Signing Date or any subsequent agreement for the accelerated exercise, 
settlement or exchange thereof for Common Stock (clauses (ii) and (iii), collectively, the 
“Permitted Repurchases”), (v) redemptions of securities held by the Company or any wholly-
owned Company Subsidiary or (vi) redemptions, purchases or other acquisitions of capital stock 
or other equity securities of any kind of any Company Subsidiary required pursuant to binding 
contractual agreements entered into prior to November 17, 2008. 

(d) Until such time as the Investor ceases to own any Preferred Shares or Warrant 
Shares, the Company shall not repurchase any Preferred Shares or Warrant Shares from any 
holder thereof, whether by means of open market purchase, negotiated transaction, or otherwise, 
other than Permitted Repurchases, unless it offers to repurchase a ratable portion of the Preferred 
Shares or Warrant Shares, as the case may be, then held by the Investor on the same terms and 
conditions.  

(e) During the period beginning on the tenth anniversary of the Closing and ending 
on the date on which all of the Preferred Shares and Warrant Shares have been redeemed in 
whole or the Investor has transferred all of the Preferred Shares and Warrant Shares to third 
parties which are not Affiliates of the Investor, neither the Company nor any Company 
Subsidiary shall, without the consent of the Investor, (i) declare or pay any dividend or make any 
distribution on capital stock or other equity securities of any kind of the Company or any 
Company Subsidiary; or (ii) redeem, purchase or acquire any shares of Common Stock or other 
capital stock or other equity securities of any kind of the Company or any Company Subsidiary, 
or any trust preferred securities issued by the Company or any Affiliate of the Company, other 
than (A) redemptions, purchases or other acquisitions of the Preferred Shares and Warrant 
Shares, (B) regular dividends on shares of preferred stock in accordance with the terms thereof 
and which are permitted under the terms of the Preferred Shares and the Warrant Shares, or (C) 
dividends or distributions by any wholly-owned Company Subsidiary. 

(f) “Junior Stock” means Common Stock and any other class or series of stock of the 
Company the terms of which expressly provide that it ranks junior to the Preferred Shares as to 
dividend rights and/or as to rights on liquidation, dissolution or winding up of the Company. 
“Parity Stock” means any class or series of stock of the Company the terms of which do not 
expressly provide that such class or series will rank senior or junior to the Preferred Shares as to 
dividend rights and/or as to rights on liquidation, dissolution or winding up of the Company (in 
each case without regard to whether dividends accrue cumulatively or non-cumulatively).  
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4.8 Executive Compensation.  Until such time as the Investor ceases to own any debt 
or equity securities of the Company acquired pursuant to this Agreement or the Warrant, the 
Company shall take all necessary action to ensure that its Benefit Plans with respect to its Senior 
Executive Officers comply in all respects with Section 111(b) of the EESA as implemented by 
any guidance or regulation thereunder that has been issued and is in effect as of the Closing Date, 
and shall not adopt any new Benefit Plan with respect to its Senior Executive Officers that does 
not comply therewith.  “Senior Executive Officers” means the Company's "senior executive 
officers" as defined in subsection 111(b)(3) of the EESA and regulations issued thereunder, 
including the rules set forth in 31 C.F.R. Part 30. 

4.9 Related Party Transactions.  Until such time as the Investor ceases to own any 
Purchased Securities or Warrant Shares, the Company and the Company Subsidiaries shall not 
enter into transactions with Affiliates or related persons (within the meaning of Item 404 under 
the SEC’s Regulation S-K) unless (i) such transactions are on terms no less favorable to the 
Company and the Company Subsidiaries than could be obtained from an unaffiliated third party, 
and (ii) have been approved by the audit committee of the Board of Directors or comparable 
body of independent directors of the Company. 

4.10 Bank and Thrift Holding Company Status.  If the Company is a Bank Holding 
Company or a Savings and Loan Holding Company on the Signing Date, then the Company shall 
maintain its status as a Bank Holding Company or Savings and Loan Holding Company, as the 
case may be, for as long as the Investor owns any Purchased Securities or Warrant Shares.  The 
Company shall redeem all Purchased Securities and Warrant Shares held by the Investor prior to 
terminating its status as a Bank Holding Company or Savings and Loan Holding Company, as 
applicable.  “Bank Holding Company” means a company registered as such with the Board of 
Governors of the Federal Reserve System (the “Federal Reserve”) pursuant to 12 U.S.C. §1842 
and the regulations of the Federal Reserve promulgated thereunder.  “Savings and Loan Holding 
Company” means a company registered as such with the Office of Thrift Supervision pursuant to 
12 U.S.C. §1467(a) and the regulations of the Office of Thrift Supervision promulgated 
thereunder. 

4.11 Predominantly Financial. For as long as the Investor owns any Purchased 
Securities or Warrant Shares, the Company, to the extent it is not itself an insured depository 
institution, agrees to remain predominantly engaged in financial activities.  A company is 
predominantly engaged in financial activities if the annual gross revenues derived by the 
company and all subsidiaries of the company (excluding revenues derived from subsidiary 
depository institutions), on a consolidated basis, from engaging in activities that are financial in 
nature or are incidental to a financial activity under subsection (k) of Section 4 of the Bank 
Holding Company Act of 1956 (12 U.S.C. 1843(k)) represent at least 85 percent of the 
consolidated annual gross revenues of the company. 

Article V 
Miscellaneous 

5.1 Termination. This Agreement may be terminated at any time prior to the Closing: 
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(a) by either the Investor or the Company if the Closing shall not have occurred by 
the 30th calendar day following the Signing Date; provided, however, that in the event the 
Closing has not occurred by such 30th calendar day, the parties will consult in good faith to 
determine whether to extend the term of this Agreement, it being understood that the parties shall 
be required to consult only until the fifth day after such 30th calendar day and not be under any 
obligation to extend the term of this Agreement thereafter; provided, further, that the right to 
terminate this Agreement under this Section 5.1(a) shall not be available to any party whose 
breach of any representation or warranty or failure to perform any obligation under this 
Agreement shall have caused or resulted in the failure of the Closing to occur on or prior to such 
date; or 

(b) by either the Investor or the Company in the event that any Governmental Entity 
shall have issued an order, decree or ruling or taken any other action restraining, enjoining or 
otherwise prohibiting the transactions contemplated by this Agreement and such order, decree, 
ruling or other action shall have become final and nonappealable; or 

(c) by the mutual written consent of the Investor and the Company. 

In the event of termination of this Agreement as provided in this Section 5.1, this Agreement 
shall forthwith become void and there shall be no liability on the part of either party hereto 
except that nothing herein shall relieve either party from liability for any breach of this 
Agreement. 

5.2 Survival of Representations and Warranties.  All covenants and agreements, other 
than those which by their terms apply in whole or in part after the Closing, shall terminate as of 
the Closing. The representations and warranties of the Company made herein or in any 
certificates delivered in connection with the Closing shall survive the Closing without limitation.  

5.3 Amendment.  No amendment of any provision of this Agreement will be effective 
unless made in writing and signed by an officer or a duly authorized representative of each party; 
provided that the Investor may unilaterally amend any provision of this Agreement to the extent 
required to comply with any changes after the Signing Date in applicable federal statutes.  No 
failure or delay by any party in exercising any right, power or privilege hereunder shall operate 
as a waiver thereof nor shall any single or partial exercise thereof preclude any other or further 
exercise of any other right, power or privilege.  The rights and remedies herein provided shall be 
cumulative of any rights or remedies provided by law.   

5.4 Waiver of Conditions. The conditions to each party’s obligation to consummate 
the Purchase are for the sole benefit of such party and may be waived by such party in whole or 
in part to the extent permitted by applicable law. No waiver will be effective unless it is in a 
writing signed by a duly authorized officer of the waiving party that makes express reference to 
the provision or provisions subject to such waiver. 

5.5 Governing Law: Submission to Jurisdiction, Etc. This Agreement will be 
governed by and construed in accordance with the federal law of the United States if and to 
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the extent such law is applicable, and otherwise in accordance with the laws of the State of 
New York applicable to contracts made and to be performed entirely within such State. 
Each of the parties hereto agrees (a) to submit to the exclusive jurisdiction and venue of the 
United States District Court for the District of Columbia and the United States Court of 
Federal Claims for any and all civil actions, suits or proceedings arising out of or relating 
to this Agreement or the Warrant or the transactions contemplated hereby or thereby, and 
(b) that notice may be served upon (i) the Company at the address and in the manner set 
forth for notices to the Company in Section 5.6 and (ii) the Investor in accordance with 
federal law.  To the extent permitted by applicable law, each of the parties hereto hereby 
unconditionally waives trial by jury in any civil legal action or proceeding relating to this 
Agreement or the Warrant or the transactions contemplated hereby or thereby. 

5.6 Notices. Any notice, request, instruction or other document to be given hereunder 
by any party to the other will be in writing and will be deemed to have been duly given (a) on the 
date of delivery if delivered personally, or by facsimile, upon confirmation of receipt, or (b) on 
the second business day following the date of dispatch if delivered by a recognized next day 
courier service. All notices to the Company shall be delivered as set forth in Schedule A, or 
pursuant to such other instruction as may be designated in writing by the Company to the 
Investor.  All notices to the Investor shall be delivered as set forth below, or pursuant to such 
other instructions as may be designated in writing by the Investor to the Company. 

 If to the Investor: 

United States Department of the Treasury 
1500 Pennsylvania Avenue, NW, Room 2312  
Washington, D.C. 20220 
Attention: Assistant General Counsel (Banking and Finance) 
Facsimile: (202) 622-1974 

5.7 Definitions  

(a) When a reference is made in this Agreement to a subsidiary of a person, the term 
“subsidiary” means any corporation, partnership, joint venture, limited liability company or other 
entity (x) of which such person or a subsidiary of such person is a general partner or (y) of which 
a majority of the voting securities or other voting interests, or a majority of the securities or other 
interests of which having by their terms ordinary voting power to elect a majority of the board of 
directors or persons performing similar functions with respect to such entity, is directly or 
indirectly owned by such person and/or one or more subsidiaries thereof.  

(b) The term “Affiliate” means, with respect to any person, any person directly or 
indirectly controlling, controlled by or under common control with, such other person. For 
purposes of this definition, “control” (including, with correlative meanings, the terms “controlled 
by” and “under common control with”) when used with respect to any person, means the 
possession, directly or indirectly, of the power to cause the direction of management and/or 
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policies of such person, whether through the ownership of voting securities by contract or 
otherwise.   

(c) The terms “knowledge of the Company” or “Company’s knowledge” mean the 
actual knowledge after reasonable and due inquiry of the “officers” (as such term is defined in 
Rule 3b-2 under the Exchange Act, but excluding any Vice President or Secretary) of the 
Company. 

5.8 Assignment. Neither this Agreement nor any right, remedy, obligation nor 
liability arising hereunder or by reason hereof shall be assignable by any party hereto without the 
prior written consent of the other party, and any attempt to assign any right, remedy, obligation 
or liability hereunder without such consent shall be void, except (a) an assignment, in the case of 
a merger, consolidation, statutory share exchange or similar transaction that requires the approval 
of the Company’s stockholders (a “Business Combination”) where such party is not the surviving 
entity, or a sale of substantially all of its assets, to the entity which is the survivor of such 
Business Combination or the purchaser in such sale and (b) as provided in Sections 3.5 and 4.5. 

5.9 Severability. If any provision of this Agreement or the Warrant, or the application 
thereof to any person or circumstance, is determined by a court of competent jurisdiction to be 
invalid, void or unenforceable, the remaining provisions hereof, or the application of such 
provision to persons or circumstances other than those as to which it has been held invalid or 
unenforceable, will remain in full force and effect and shall in no way be affected, impaired or 
invalidated thereby, so long as the economic or legal substance of the transactions contemplated 
hereby is not affected in any manner materially adverse to any party. Upon such determination, 
the parties shall negotiate in good faith in an effort to agree upon a suitable and equitable 
substitute provision to effect the original intent of the parties. 

5.10 No Third Party Beneficiaries. Nothing contained in this Agreement, expressed or 
implied, is intended to confer upon any person or entity other than the Company and the Investor 
any benefit, right or remedies, except that the provisions of Section 4.5 shall inure to the benefit 
of the persons referred to in that Section.   

*  *  * 
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ANNEX A 
 

FORM OF CERTIFICATE OF DESIGNATIONS FOR PREFERRED STOCK 
 
 

[SEE ATTACHED] 



ANNEX A 
 

FORM OF [CERTIFICATE OF DESIGNATIONS] 
 

OF 
 

FIXED RATE CUMULATIVE PERPETUAL PREFERRED STOCK, SERIES [●] 
 

OF 
 

[●] 
 

[Insert name of Issuer], a [corporation/bank/banking association] organized and existing 
under the laws of the [Insert jurisdiction of organization] (the “Issuer”), in accordance with the 
provisions of Section[s] [●] of the [Insert applicable statute] thereof, does hereby certify: 

The board of directors of the Issuer (the “Board of Directors”) or an applicable committee 
of the Board of Directors, in accordance with the [[certificate of incorporation/articles of 
association] and bylaws] of the Issuer and applicable law, adopted the following resolution on 
[●] creating a series of [●] shares of Preferred Stock of the Issuer designated as “Fixed Rate 
Cumulative Perpetual Preferred Stock, Series [●]”. 

RESOLVED, that pursuant to the provisions of the [[certificate of incorporation/articles 
of association] and the bylaws] of the Issuer and applicable law, a series of Preferred Stock, par 
value $[●] per share, of the Issuer be and hereby is created, and that the designation and number 
of shares of such series, and the voting and other powers, preferences and relative, participating, 
optional or other rights, and the qualifications, limitations and restrictions thereof, of the shares 
of such series, are as follows: 

Part 1.  Designation and Number of Shares.  There is hereby created out of the authorized 
and unissued shares of preferred stock of the Issuer a series of preferred stock designated as the 
“Fixed Rate Cumulative Perpetual Preferred Stock, Series [●]” (the “Designated Preferred 
Stock”).  The authorized number of shares of Designated Preferred Stock shall be [●]. 

Part 2.  Standard Provisions.  The Standard Provisions contained in Schedule A attached 
hereto are incorporated herein by reference in their entirety and shall be deemed to be a part of 
this [Certificate of Designations] to the same extent as if such provisions had been set forth in 
full herein. 

Part. 3. Definitions.  The following terms are used in this [Certificate of Designations] 
(including the Standard Provisions in Schedule A hereto) as defined below: 

(a) “Common Stock” means the common stock, par value $[●] per share, of the 
Issuer. 

(b) “Dividend Payment Date” means February 15, May 15, August 15 and November 
15 of each year. 
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(c) “Junior Stock” means the Common Stock, [Insert titles of any existing Junior 
Stock] and any other class or series of stock of the Issuer the terms of which expressly provide 
that it ranks junior to Designated Preferred Stock as to dividend rights and/or as to rights on 
liquidation, dissolution or winding up of the Issuer. 

(d) “Liquidation Amount” means $[1,000]1 per share of Designated Preferred Stock. 

(e) “Minimum Amount” means $[Insert $ amount equal to 25% of the aggregate 
value of the Designated Preferred Stock issued on the Original Issue Date]. 

(f) “Parity Stock” means any class or series of stock of the Issuer (other than 
Designated Preferred Stock) the terms of which do not expressly provide that such class or series 
will rank senior or junior to Designated Preferred Stock as to dividend rights and/or as to rights 
on liquidation, dissolution or winding up of the Issuer (in each case without regard to whether 
dividends accrue cumulatively or non-cumulatively).  Without limiting the foregoing, Parity 
Stock shall include the Issuer’s [Insert title(s) of existing classes or series of Parity Stock]. 

(g) “Signing Date” means [Insert date of applicable securities purchase agreement]. 

Part. 4. Certain Voting Matters.  [To be inserted if the Charter provides for voting in 
proportion to liquidation preferences:  Whether the vote or consent of the holders of a plurality, 
majority or other portion of the shares of Designated Preferred Stock and any Voting Parity 
Stock has been cast or given on any matter on which the holders of shares of Designated 
Preferred Stock are entitled to vote shall be determined by the Issuer by reference to the specified 
liquidation amount of the shares voted or covered by the consent as if the Issuer were liquidated 
on the record date for such vote or consent, if any, or, in the absence of a record date, on the date 
for such vote or consent.  For purposes of determining the voting rights of the holders of 
Designated Preferred Stock under Section 7 of the Standard Provisions forming part of this 
[Certificate of Designations], each holder will be entitled to one vote for each $1,000 of 
liquidation preference to which such holder’s shares are entitled.]  [To be inserted if the Charter 
does not provide for voting in proportion to liquidation preferences: Holders of shares of 
Designated Preferred Stock will be entitled to one vote for each such share on any matter on 
which holders of Designated Preferred Stock are entitled to vote, including any action by written 
consent.] 

[Remainder of Page Intentionally Left Blank] 

                                                           
1 If Issuer desires to issue shares with a higher dollar amount liquidation preference, liquidation preference 

references will be modified accordingly.  In such case (in accordance with Section 4.6 of the Securities 
Purchase Agreement), the issuer will be required to enter into a deposit agreement.  
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, [Insert name of Issuer] has caused this [Certificate of 
Designations] to be signed by [●], its [●], this [●] day of [●]. 

[Insert name of Issuer] 
 
By:  _____________________ 
Name: 
Title:



 

Schedule A 

STANDARD PROVISIONS 

Section 1. General Matters. Each share of Designated Preferred Stock shall be identical 
in all respects to every other share of Designated Preferred Stock.  The Designated Preferred 
Stock shall be perpetual, subject to the provisions of Section 5 of these Standard Provisions that 
form a part of the Certificate of Designations.  The Designated Preferred Stock shall rank equally 
with Parity Stock and shall rank senior to Junior Stock with respect to the payment of dividends 
and the distribution of assets in the event of any dissolution, liquidation or winding up of the 
Issuer.  

Section 2. Standard Definitions. As used herein with respect to Designated Preferred 
Stock: 

(a)  “Applicable Dividend Rate” means (i) during the period from the Original Issue 
Date to, but excluding, the first day of the first Dividend Period commencing on or after the fifth 
anniversary of the Original Issue Date, 5% per annum and (ii) from and after the first day of the 
first Dividend Period commencing on or after the fifth anniversary of the Original Issue Date, 
9% per annum. 

(b) “Appropriate Federal Banking Agency” means the “appropriate Federal banking 
agency” with respect to the Issuer as defined in Section 3(q) of the Federal Deposit Insurance 
Act (12 U.S.C. Section 1813(q)), or any successor provision. 

(c)  “Business Combination” means a merger, consolidation, statutory share 
exchange or similar transaction that requires the approval of the Issuer’s stockholders. 

 
(d) “Business Day” means any day except Saturday, Sunday and any day on which 

banking institutions in the State of New York generally are authorized or required by law or 
other governmental actions to close. 

(e) “Bylaws” means the bylaws of the Issuer, as they may be amended from time to 
time. 

(f) “Certificate of Designations” means the Certificate of Designations or comparable 
instrument relating to the Designated Preferred Stock, of which these Standard Provisions form a 
part, as it may be amended from time to time. 

(g) “Charter” means the Issuer’s certificate or articles of incorporation, articles of 
association, or similar organizational document. 

(h) “Dividend Period” has the meaning set forth in Section 3(a). 

(i) “Dividend Record Date” has the meaning set forth in Section 3(a). 

(j) “Liquidation Preference” has the meaning set forth in Section 4(a). 
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(k) “Original Issue Date” means the date on which shares of Designated Preferred 
Stock are first issued. 

(l) “Preferred Director” has the meaning set forth in Section 7(b). 

(m) “Preferred Stock” means any and all series of preferred stock of the Issuer, 
including the Designated Preferred Stock. 

(n) “Qualified Equity Offering” means the sale and issuance for cash by the Issuer to 
persons other than the Issuer or any of its subsidiaries after the Original Issue Date of shares of 
perpetual Preferred Stock, Common Stock or any combination of such stock, that, in each case, 
qualify as and may be included in Tier 1 capital of the Issuer at the time of issuance under the 
applicable risk-based capital guidelines of the Issuer’s Appropriate Federal Banking Agency 
(other than any such sales and issuances made pursuant to agreements or arrangements entered 
into, or pursuant to financing plans which were publicly announced, on or prior to November 17, 
2008). 

(o) “Standard Provisions” mean these Standard Provisions that form a part of the 
Certificate of Designations relating to the Designated Preferred Stock. 

(p) “Successor Preferred Stock” has the meaning set forth in Section 5(a). 

(q) “Voting Parity Stock” means, with regard to any matter as to which the holders of 
Designated Preferred Stock are entitled to vote as specified in Sections 7(a) and 7(b) of these 
Standard Provisions that form a part of the Certificate of Designations, any and all series of 
Parity Stock upon which like voting rights have been conferred and are exercisable with respect 
to such matter. 

Section 3. Dividends. 

(a) Rate. Holders of Designated Preferred Stock shall be entitled to receive, on each 
share of Designated Preferred Stock if, as and when declared by the Board of Directors or any 
duly authorized committee of the Board of Directors, but only out of assets legally available 
therefor, cumulative cash dividends with respect to each Dividend Period (as defined below) at a 
rate per annum equal to the Applicable Dividend Rate on (i) the Liquidation Amount per share of 
Designated Preferred Stock and (ii) the amount of accrued and unpaid dividends for any prior 
Dividend Period on such share of Designated Preferred Stock, if any.  Such dividends shall begin 
to accrue and be cumulative from the Original Issue Date, shall compound on each subsequent 
Dividend Payment Date (i.e., no dividends shall accrue on other dividends unless and until the 
first Dividend Payment Date for such other dividends has passed without such other dividends 
having been paid on such date) and shall be payable quarterly in arrears on each Dividend 
Payment Date, commencing with the first such Dividend Payment Date to occur at least 20 
calendar days after the Original Issue Date.  In the event that any Dividend Payment Date would 
otherwise fall on a day that is not a Business Day, the dividend payment due on that date will be 
postponed to the next day that is a Business Day and no additional dividends will accrue as a 
result of that postponement. The period from and including any Dividend Payment Date to, but 
excluding, the next Dividend Payment Date is a “Dividend Period”, provided that the initial 
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Dividend Period shall be the period from and including the Original Issue Date to, but excluding, 
the next Dividend Payment Date.  

Dividends that are payable on Designated Preferred Stock in respect of any Dividend 
Period shall be computed on the basis of a 360-day year consisting of twelve 30-day months. The 
amount of dividends payable on Designated Preferred Stock on any date prior to the end of a 
Dividend Period, and for the initial Dividend Period, shall be computed on the basis of a 360-day 
year consisting of twelve 30-day months, and actual days elapsed over a 30-day month. 

Dividends that are payable on Designated Preferred Stock on any Dividend Payment Date 
will be payable to holders of record of Designated Preferred Stock as they appear on the stock 
register of the Issuer on the applicable record date, which shall be the 15th calendar day 
immediately preceding such Dividend Payment Date or such other record date fixed by the 
Board of Directors or any duly authorized committee of the Board of Directors that is not more 
than 60 nor less than 10 days prior to such Dividend Payment Date (each, a “Dividend Record 
Date”). Any such day that is a Dividend Record Date shall be a Dividend Record Date whether 
or not such day is a Business Day. 

Holders of Designated Preferred Stock shall not be entitled to any dividends, whether 
payable in cash, securities or other property, other than dividends (if any) declared and payable 
on Designated Preferred Stock as specified in this Section 3 (subject to the other provisions of 
the Certificate of Designations). 

(b) Priority of Dividends.  So long as any share of Designated Preferred Stock 
remains outstanding, no dividend or distribution shall be declared or paid on the Common Stock 
or any other shares of Junior Stock (other than dividends payable solely in shares of Common 
Stock) or Parity Stock, subject to the immediately following paragraph in the case of Parity 
Stock, and no Common Stock, Junior Stock or Parity Stock shall be, directly or indirectly,  
purchased, redeemed or otherwise acquired for consideration by the Issuer or any of its 
subsidiaries unless all accrued and unpaid dividends for all past Dividend Periods, including the 
latest completed Dividend Period (including, if applicable as provided in Section 3(a) above, 
dividends on such amount), on all outstanding shares of Designated Preferred Stock have been or 
are contemporaneously declared and paid in full (or have been declared and a sum sufficient for 
the payment thereof has been set aside for the benefit of the holders of shares of Designated 
Preferred Stock on the applicable record date).  The foregoing limitation shall not apply to (i) 
redemptions, purchases or other acquisitions of shares of Common Stock or other Junior Stock in 
connection with the administration of any employee benefit plan in the ordinary course of 
business and consistent with past practice; (ii) the acquisition by the Issuer or any of its 
subsidiaries of record ownership in Junior Stock or Parity Stock for the beneficial ownership of 
any other persons (other than the Issuer or any of its subsidiaries), including as trustees or 
custodians; and (iii) the exchange or conversion of Junior Stock for or into other Junior Stock or 
of Parity Stock for or into other Parity Stock (with the same or lesser aggregate liquidation 
amount) or Junior Stock, in each case, solely to the extent required pursuant to binding 
contractual agreements entered into prior to the Signing Date or any subsequent agreement for 
the accelerated exercise, settlement or exchange thereof for Common Stock. 
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When dividends are not paid (or declared and a sum sufficient for payment thereof set 
aside for the benefit of the holders thereof on the applicable record date) on any Dividend 
Payment Date (or, in the case of Parity Stock having dividend payment dates different from the 
Dividend Payment Dates, on a dividend payment date falling within a Dividend Period related to 
such Dividend Payment Date) in full upon Designated Preferred Stock and any shares of Parity 
Stock, all dividends declared on Designated Preferred Stock and all such Parity Stock and 
payable on such Dividend Payment Date (or, in the case of Parity Stock having dividend 
payment dates different from the Dividend Payment Dates, on a dividend payment date falling 
within the Dividend Period related to such Dividend Payment Date) shall be declared pro rata so 
that the respective amounts of such dividends declared shall bear the same ratio to each other as 
all accrued and unpaid dividends per share on the shares of Designated Preferred Stock 
(including, if applicable as provided in Section 3(a) above, dividends on such amount) and all 
Parity Stock payable on such Dividend Payment Date (or, in the case of Parity Stock having 
dividend payment dates different from the Dividend Payment Dates, on a dividend payment date 
falling within the Dividend Period related to such Dividend Payment Date) (subject to their 
having been declared by the Board of Directors or a duly authorized committee of the Board of 
Directors out of legally available funds and including, in the case of Parity Stock that bears 
cumulative dividends, all accrued but unpaid dividends) bear to each other.  If the Board of 
Directors or a duly authorized committee of the Board of Directors determines not to pay any 
dividend or a full dividend on a Dividend Payment Date, the Issuer will provide written notice to 
the holders of Designated Preferred Stock prior to such Dividend Payment Date. 

Subject to the foregoing, and not otherwise, such dividends (payable in cash, securities or 
other property) as may be determined by the Board of Directors or any duly authorized 
committee of the Board of Directors may be declared and paid on any securities, including 
Common Stock and other Junior Stock, from time to time out of any funds legally available for 
such payment, and holders of Designated Preferred Stock shall not be entitled to participate in 
any such dividends. 

Section 4. Liquidation Rights. 

(a) Voluntary or Involuntary Liquidation. In the event of any liquidation, dissolution 
or winding up of the affairs of the Issuer, whether voluntary or involuntary, holders of 
Designated Preferred Stock shall be entitled to receive for each share of Designated Preferred 
Stock, out of the assets of the Issuer or proceeds thereof (whether capital or surplus) available for 
distribution to stockholders of the Issuer, subject to the rights of any creditors of the Issuer, 
before any distribution of such assets or proceeds is made to or set aside for the holders of 
Common Stock and any other stock of the Issuer ranking junior to Designated Preferred Stock as 
to such distribution, payment in full in an amount equal to the sum of (i) the Liquidation Amount 
per share and (ii) the amount of any accrued and unpaid dividends (including, if applicable as 
provided in Section 3(a) above, dividends on such amount), whether or not declared, to the date 
of payment (such amounts collectively, the “Liquidation Preference”). 

(b) Partial Payment. If in any distribution described in Section 4(a) above the assets 
of the Issuer or proceeds thereof are not sufficient to pay in full the amounts payable with respect 
to all outstanding shares of Designated Preferred Stock and the corresponding amounts payable 
with respect of any other stock of the Issuer ranking equally with Designated Preferred Stock as 
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to such distribution, holders of Designated Preferred Stock and the holders of such other stock 
shall share ratably in any such distribution in proportion to the full respective distributions to 
which they are entitled. 

(c) Residual Distributions. If the Liquidation Preference has been paid in full to all 
holders of Designated Preferred Stock and the corresponding amounts payable with respect of 
any other stock of the Issuer ranking equally with Designated Preferred Stock as to such 
distribution has been paid in full, the holders of other stock of the Issuer shall be entitled to 
receive all remaining assets of the Issuer (or proceeds thereof) according to their respective rights 
and preferences. 

(d) Merger, Consolidation and Sale of Assets Not Liquidation. For purposes of this 
Section 4, the merger or consolidation of the Issuer with any other corporation or other entity, 
including a merger or consolidation in which the holders of Designated Preferred Stock receive 
cash, securities or other property for their shares, or the sale, lease or exchange (for cash, 
securities or other property) of all or substantially all of the assets of the Issuer, shall not 
constitute a liquidation, dissolution or winding up of the Issuer. 

Section 5. Redemption. 

(a) Optional Redemption. Except as provided below, the Designated Preferred Stock 
may not be redeemed prior to the first Dividend Payment Date falling on or after the third 
anniversary of the Original Issue Date.  On or after the first Dividend Payment Date falling on or 
after the third anniversary of the Original Issue Date, the Issuer, at its option, subject to the 
approval of the Appropriate Federal Banking Agency, may redeem, in whole or in part, at any 
time and from time to time, out of funds legally available therefor, the shares of Designated 
Preferred Stock at the time outstanding, upon notice given as provided in Section 5(c) below, at a 
redemption price equal to the sum of (i) the Liquidation Amount per share and (ii) except as 
otherwise provided below, any accrued and unpaid dividends (including, if applicable as 
provided in Section 3(a) above, dividends on such amount) (regardless of whether any dividends 
are actually declared) to, but excluding, the date fixed for redemption.   

 Notwithstanding the foregoing, prior to the first Dividend Payment Date falling on or 
after the third anniversary of the Original Issue Date, the Issuer, at its option, subject to the 
approval of the Appropriate Federal Banking Agency, may redeem, in whole or in part, at any 
time and from time to time, the shares of Designated Preferred Stock at the time outstanding, 
upon notice given as provided in Section 5(c) below, at a redemption price equal to the sum of (i) 
the Liquidation Amount per share and (ii) except as otherwise provided below, any accrued and 
unpaid dividends (including, if applicable as provided in Section 3(a) above, dividends on such 
amount) (regardless of whether any dividends are actually declared) to, but excluding, the date 
fixed for redemption; provided that (x) the Issuer (or any successor by Business Combination) 
has received aggregate gross proceeds of not less than the Minimum Amount (plus the 
“Minimum Amount” as defined in the relevant certificate of designations for each other 
outstanding series of preferred stock of such successor that was originally issued to the United 
States Department of the Treasury (the “Successor Preferred Stock”) in connection with the 
Troubled Asset Relief Program Capital Purchase Program) from one or more Qualified Equity 
Offerings (including Qualified Equity Offerings of such successor), and (y) the aggregate 
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redemption price of the Designated Preferred Stock (and any Successor Preferred Stock) 
redeemed pursuant to this paragraph may not exceed the aggregate net cash proceeds received by 
the Issuer (or any successor by Business Combination) from such Qualified Equity Offerings 
(including Qualified Equity Offerings of such successor). 

 The redemption price for any shares of Designated Preferred Stock shall be payable on 
the redemption date to the holder of such shares against surrender of the certificate(s) evidencing 
such shares to the Issuer or its agent. Any declared but unpaid dividends payable on a 
redemption date that occurs subsequent to the Dividend Record Date for a Dividend Period shall 
not be paid to the holder entitled to receive the redemption price on the redemption date, but 
rather shall be paid to the holder of record of the redeemed shares on such Dividend Record Date 
relating to the Dividend Payment Date as provided in Section 3 above. 

(b) No Sinking Fund. The Designated Preferred Stock will not be subject to any 
mandatory redemption, sinking fund or other similar provisions. Holders of Designated Preferred 
Stock will have no right to require redemption or repurchase of any shares of Designated 
Preferred Stock. 

(c) Notice of Redemption. Notice of every redemption of shares of Designated 
Preferred Stock shall be given by first class mail, postage prepaid, addressed to the holders of 
record of the shares to be redeemed at their respective last addresses appearing on the books of 
the Issuer. Such mailing shall be at least 30 days and not more than 60 days before the date fixed 
for redemption. Any notice mailed as provided in this Subsection shall be conclusively presumed 
to have been duly given, whether or not the holder receives such notice, but failure duly to give 
such notice by mail, or any defect in such notice or in the mailing thereof, to any holder of shares 
of Designated Preferred Stock designated for redemption shall not affect the validity of the 
proceedings for the redemption of any other shares of Designated Preferred Stock. 
Notwithstanding the foregoing, if shares of Designated Preferred Stock are issued in book-entry 
form through The Depository Trust Company or any other similar facility, notice of redemption 
may be given to the holders of Designated Preferred Stock at such time and in any manner 
permitted by such facility. Each notice of redemption given to a holder shall state: (1) the 
redemption date; (2) the number of shares of Designated Preferred Stock to be redeemed and, if 
less than all the shares held by such holder are to be redeemed, the number of such shares to be 
redeemed from such holder; (3) the redemption price; and (4) the place or places where 
certificates for such shares are to be surrendered for payment of the redemption price. 

(d) Partial Redemption. In case of any redemption of part of the shares of Designated 
Preferred Stock at the time outstanding, the shares to be redeemed shall be selected either pro 
rata or in such other manner as the Board of Directors or a duly authorized committee thereof 
may determine to be fair and equitable. Subject to the provisions hereof, the Board of Directors 
or a duly authorized committee thereof shall have full power and authority to prescribe the terms 
and conditions upon which shares of Designated Preferred Stock shall be redeemed from time to 
time. If fewer than all the shares represented by any certificate are redeemed, a new certificate 
shall be issued representing the unredeemed shares without charge to the holder thereof. 

(e) Effectiveness of Redemption. If notice of redemption has been duly given and if 
on or before the redemption date specified in the notice all funds necessary for the redemption 
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have been deposited by the Issuer, in trust for the pro rata benefit of the holders of the shares 
called for redemption, with a bank or trust company doing business in the Borough of 
Manhattan, The City of New York, and having a capital and surplus of at least $500 million and 
selected by the Board of Directors, so as to be and continue to be available solely therefor, then, 
notwithstanding that any certificate for any share so called for redemption has not been 
surrendered for cancellation, on and after the redemption date dividends shall cease to accrue on 
all shares so called for redemption, all shares so called for redemption shall no longer be deemed 
outstanding and all rights with respect to such shares shall forthwith on such redemption date 
cease and terminate, except only the right of the holders thereof to receive the amount payable on 
such redemption from such bank or trust company, without interest. Any funds unclaimed at the 
end of three years from the redemption date shall, to the extent permitted by law, be released to 
the Issuer, after which time the holders of the shares so called for redemption shall look only to 
the Issuer for payment of the redemption price of such shares. 

(f) Status of Redeemed Shares. Shares of Designated Preferred Stock that are 
redeemed, repurchased or otherwise acquired by the Issuer shall revert to authorized but unissued 
shares of Preferred Stock (provided that any such cancelled shares of Designated Preferred Stock 
may be reissued only as shares of any series of Preferred Stock other than Designated Preferred 
Stock). 

Section 6. Conversion. Holders of Designated Preferred Stock shares shall have no right 
to exchange or convert such shares into any other securities.  

Section 7. Voting Rights. 

(a) General. The holders of Designated Preferred Stock shall not have any voting 
rights except as set forth below or as otherwise from time to time required by law. 

(b) Preferred Stock Directors.  Whenever, at any time or times, dividends payable on 
the shares of Designated Preferred Stock have not been paid for an aggregate of six quarterly 
Dividend Periods or more, whether or not consecutive, the authorized number of directors of the 
Issuer shall automatically be increased by two and the holders of the Designated Preferred Stock 
shall have the right, with holders of shares of any one or more other classes or series of  Voting 
Parity Stock outstanding at the time, voting together as a class, to elect two directors (hereinafter 
the “Preferred Directors” and each a “Preferred Director”) to fill such newly created 
directorships at the Issuer’s next annual meeting of stockholders (or at a special meeting called 
for that purpose prior to such next annual meeting) and at each subsequent annual meeting of 
stockholders until all accrued and unpaid dividends for all past Dividend Periods, including the 
latest completed Dividend Period (including, if applicable as provided in Section 3(a) above, 
dividends on such amount), on all outstanding shares of Designated Preferred Stock have been 
declared and paid in full at which time such right shall terminate with respect to the Designated 
Preferred Stock, except as herein or by law expressly provided, subject to revesting in the event 
of each and every subsequent default of the character above mentioned; provided that it shall be 
a qualification for election for any Preferred Director that the election of such Preferred Director 
shall not cause the Issuer to violate any corporate governance requirements of any securities 
exchange or other trading facility on which securities of the Issuer may then be listed or traded 
that listed or traded companies must have a majority of independent directors.  Upon any 
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termination of the right of the holders of shares of Designated Preferred Stock and Voting Parity 
Stock as a class to vote for directors as provided above, the Preferred Directors shall cease to be 
qualified as directors, the term of office of all Preferred Directors then in office shall terminate 
immediately and the authorized number of directors shall be reduced by the number of Preferred 
Directors elected pursuant hereto.  Any Preferred Director may be removed at any time, with or 
without cause, and any vacancy created thereby may be filled, only by the affirmative vote of the 
holders a majority of the shares of Designated Preferred Stock at the time outstanding voting 
separately as a class together with the holders of shares of Voting Parity Stock, to the extent the 
voting rights of such holders described above are then exercisable.  If the office of any Preferred 
Director becomes vacant for any reason other than removal from office as aforesaid, the 
remaining Preferred Director may choose a successor who shall hold office for the unexpired 
term in respect of which such vacancy occurred. 

(c) Class Voting Rights as to Particular Matters. So long as any shares of Designated 
Preferred Stock are outstanding, in addition to any other vote or consent of stockholders required 
by law or by the Charter, the vote or consent of the holders of at least 66 2/3% of the shares of 
Designated Preferred Stock at the time outstanding, voting as a separate class, given in person or 
by proxy, either in writing without a meeting or by vote at any meeting called for the purpose, 
shall be necessary for effecting or validating: 

(i) Authorization of Senior Stock. Any amendment or alteration of the 
Certificate of Designations for the Designated Preferred Stock or the Charter to authorize 
or create or increase the authorized amount of, or any issuance of, any shares of, or any 
securities convertible into or exchangeable or exercisable for shares of, any class or series 
of capital stock of the Issuer ranking senior to Designated Preferred Stock with respect to 
either or both the payment of dividends and/or the distribution of assets on any 
liquidation, dissolution or winding up of the Issuer; 

(ii) Amendment of Designated Preferred Stock.  Any amendment, alteration 
or repeal of any provision of the Certificate of Designations for the Designated Preferred 
Stock or the Charter (including, unless no vote on such merger or consolidation is 
required by Section 7(c)(iii) below, any amendment, alteration or repeal by means of a 
merger, consolidation or otherwise) so as to adversely affect the rights, preferences, 
privileges or voting powers of the Designated Preferred Stock; or 

(iii) Share Exchanges, Reclassifications, Mergers and Consolidations. Any 
consummation of a binding share exchange or reclassification involving the Designated 
Preferred Stock, or of a merger or consolidation of the Issuer with another corporation or 
other entity, unless in each case (x) the shares of Designated Preferred Stock remain 
outstanding or, in the case of any such merger or consolidation with respect to which the 
Issuer is not the surviving or resulting entity, are converted into or exchanged for 
preference securities of the surviving or resulting entity or its ultimate parent, and (y) 
such shares remaining outstanding or such preference securities, as the case may be, have 
such rights, preferences, privileges and voting powers, and limitations and restrictions 
thereof, taken as a whole, as are not materially less favorable to the holders thereof than 
the rights, preferences, privileges and voting powers, and limitations and restrictions 
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thereof, of Designated Preferred Stock immediately prior to such consummation, taken as 
a whole; 

provided, however, that for all purposes of this Section 7(c), any increase in the amount of the 
authorized Preferred Stock, including any increase in the authorized amount of Designated 
Preferred Stock necessary to satisfy preemptive or similar rights granted by the Issuer to other 
persons prior to the Signing Date, or the creation and issuance, or an increase in the authorized or 
issued amount, whether pursuant to preemptive or similar rights or otherwise, of any other series 
of Preferred Stock, or any securities convertible into or exchangeable or exercisable for any other 
series of Preferred Stock, ranking equally with and/or junior to Designated Preferred Stock with 
respect to the payment of dividends (whether such dividends are cumulative or non-cumulative) 
and the distribution of assets upon liquidation, dissolution or winding up of the Issuer will not be 
deemed to adversely affect the rights, preferences, privileges or voting powers, and shall not 
require the affirmative vote or consent of, the holders of outstanding shares of the Designated 
Preferred Stock. 

(d) Changes after Provision for Redemption. No vote or consent of the holders of 
Designated Preferred Stock shall be required pursuant to Section 7(c) above if, at or prior to the 
time when any such vote or consent would otherwise be required pursuant to such Section, all 
outstanding shares of the Designated Preferred Stock shall have been redeemed, or shall have 
been called for redemption upon proper notice and sufficient funds shall have been deposited in 
trust for such redemption, in each case pursuant to Section 5 above. 

(e) Procedures for Voting and Consents. The rules and procedures for calling and 
conducting any meeting of the holders of Designated Preferred Stock (including, without 
limitation, the fixing of a record date in connection therewith), the solicitation and use of proxies 
at such a meeting, the obtaining of written consents and any other aspect or matter with regard to 
such a meeting or such consents shall be governed by any rules of the Board of Directors or any 
duly authorized committee of the Board of Directors, in its discretion, may adopt from time to 
time, which rules and procedures shall conform to the requirements of the Charter, the Bylaws, 
and applicable law and the rules of any national securities exchange or other trading facility on 
which Designated Preferred Stock is listed or traded at the time.  

Record HoldersSection 8. . To the fullest extent permitted by applicable law, the Issuer 
and the transfer agent for Designated Preferred Stock may deem and treat the record holder of 
any share of Designated Preferred Stock as the true and lawful owner thereof for all purposes, 
and neither the Issuer nor such transfer agent shall be affected by any notice to the contrary. 

Section 9.   Notices. All notices or communications in respect of Designated Preferred 
Stock shall be sufficiently given if given in writing and delivered in person or by first class mail, 
postage prepaid, or if given in such other manner as may be permitted in this Certificate of 
Designations, in the Charter or Bylaws or by applicable law. Notwithstanding the foregoing, if 
shares of Designated Preferred Stock are issued in book-entry form through The Depository 
Trust Company or any similar facility, such notices may be given to the holders of Designated 
Preferred Stock in any manner permitted by such facility. 
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Section 10.  No Preemptive Rights. No share of Designated Preferred Stock shall have 
any rights of preemption whatsoever as to any securities of the Issuer, or any warrants, rights or 
options issued or granted with respect thereto, regardless of how such securities, or such 
warrants, rights or options, may be designated, issued or granted. 

Section 11.  Replacement Certificates. The Issuer shall replace any mutilated certificate at 
the holder’s expense upon surrender of that certificate to the Issuer. The Issuer shall replace 
certificates that become destroyed, stolen or lost at the holder’s expense upon delivery to the 
Issuer of reasonably satisfactory evidence that the certificate has been destroyed, stolen or lost, 
together with any indemnity that may be reasonably required by the Issuer. 

Section 12.  Other Rights. The shares of Designated Preferred Stock shall not have any 
rights, preferences, privileges or voting powers or relative, participating, optional or other special 
rights, or qualifications, limitations or restrictions thereof, other than as set forth herein or in the 
Charter or as provided by applicable law. 
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ANNEX B 
 

FORM OF [CERTIFICATE OF DESIGNATIONS] 
 

OF 
 

FIXED RATE CUMULATIVE PERPETUAL PREFERRED STOCK, SERIES [●] 
 

OF 
 

[●] 
 

[Insert name of Issuer], a [corporation/bank/banking association] organized and existing 
under the laws of the [Insert jurisdiction of organization] (the “Issuer”), in accordance with the 
provisions of Section[s] [●] of the [Insert applicable statute] thereof, does hereby certify: 

The board of directors of the Issuer (the “Board of Directors”) or an applicable committee 
of the Board of Directors, in accordance with the [[certificate of incorporation/articles of 
association] and bylaws] of the Issuer and applicable law, adopted the following resolution on 
[●] creating a series of [●] shares of Preferred Stock of the Issuer designated as “Fixed Rate 
Cumulative Perpetual Preferred Stock, Series [●]”. 

RESOLVED, that pursuant to the provisions of the [[certificate of incorporation/articles 
of association] and the bylaws] of the Issuer and applicable law, a series of Preferred Stock, par 
value $[●] per share, of the Issuer be and hereby is created, and that the designation and number 
of shares of such series, and the voting and other powers, preferences and relative, participating, 
optional or other rights, and the qualifications, limitations and restrictions thereof, of the shares 
of such series, are as follows: 

Part 1.  Designation and Number of Shares.  There is hereby created out of the authorized 
and unissued shares of preferred stock of the Issuer a series of preferred stock designated as the 
“Fixed Rate Cumulative Perpetual Preferred Stock, Series [●]” (the “Designated Preferred 
Stock”).  The authorized number of shares of Designated Preferred Stock shall be [●]. 

Part 2.  Standard Provisions.  The Standard Provisions contained in Schedule A attached 
hereto are incorporated herein by reference in their entirety and shall be deemed to be a part of 
this [Certificate of Designations] to the same extent as if such provisions had been set forth in 
full herein. 

Part. 3. Definitions.  The following terms are used in this [Certificate of Designations] 
(including the Standard Provisions in Schedule A hereto) as defined below: 

(a) “Common Stock” means the common stock, par value $[●] per share, of the 
Issuer. 

(b) “Dividend Payment Date” means February 15, May 15, August 15 and November 
15 of each year. 
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(c) “Junior Stock” means the Common Stock, [Insert titles of any existing Junior 
Stock] and any other class or series of stock of the Issuer the terms of which expressly provide 
that it ranks junior to Designated Preferred Stock as to dividend rights and/or as to rights on 
liquidation, dissolution or winding up of the Issuer. 

(d) “Liquidation Amount” means $[1,000]1 per share of Designated Preferred Stock. 

(e) “Minimum Amount” means $[Insert $ amount equal to 25% of the aggregate 
value of the Designated Preferred Stock issued on the Original Issue Date]. 

(f) “Parity Stock” means any class or series of stock of the Issuer (other than 
Designated Preferred Stock) the terms of which do not expressly provide that such class or series 
will rank senior or junior to Designated Preferred Stock as to dividend rights and/or as to rights 
on liquidation, dissolution or winding up of the Issuer (in each case without regard to whether 
dividends accrue cumulatively or non-cumulatively).  Without limiting the foregoing, Parity 
Stock shall include the Issuer’s UST Preferred Stock [and] [Insert title(s) of any other classes or 
series of Parity Stock]. 

(g) “Signing Date” means [Insert date of applicable securities purchase agreement]. 

(h) “UST Preferred Stock” means the Issuer’s Fixed Rate Cumulative Perpetual 
Preferred Stock, Series [●]. 

Part. 4. Certain Voting Matters.  [To be inserted if the Charter provides for voting in 
proportion to liquidation preferences:  Whether the vote or consent of the holders of a plurality, 
majority or other portion of the shares of Designated Preferred Stock and any Voting Parity 
Stock has been cast or given on any matter on which the holders of shares of Designated 
Preferred Stock are entitled to vote shall be determined by the Issuer by reference to the specified 
liquidation amount of the shares voted or covered by the consent as if the Issuer were liquidated 
on the record date for such vote or consent, if any, or, in the absence of a record date, on the date 
for such vote or consent.  For purposes of determining the voting rights of the holders of 
Designated Preferred Stock under Section 7 of the Standard Provisions forming part of this 
[Certificate of Designations], each holder will be entitled to one vote for each $1,000 of 
liquidation preference to which such holder’s shares are entitled.]  [To be inserted if the Charter 
does not provide for voting in proportion to liquidation preferences: Holders of shares of 
Designated Preferred Stock will be entitled to one vote for each such share on any matter on 
which holders of Designated Preferred Stock are entitled to vote, including any action by written 
consent.] 

[Remainder of Page Intentionally Left Blank] 

                                                           
1 If Issuer desires to issue shares with a higher dollar amount liquidation preference, liquidation preference 

references will be modified accordingly.  In such case (in accordance with Section 4.6 of the Securities 
Purchase Agreement), the issuer will be required to enter into a deposit agreement.  
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, [Insert name of Issuer] has caused this [Certificate of 
Designations] to be signed by [●], its [●], this [●] day of [●]. 

[Insert name of Issuer] 
 
By:  _____________________ 
Name: 
Title:



 

Schedule A 

STANDARD PROVISIONS 

Section 1. General Matters. Each share of Designated Preferred Stock shall be identical 
in all respects to every other share of Designated Preferred Stock.  The Designated Preferred 
Stock shall be perpetual, subject to the provisions of Section 5 of these Standard Provisions that 
form a part of the Certificate of Designations.  The Designated Preferred Stock shall rank equally 
with Parity Stock and shall rank senior to Junior Stock with respect to the payment of dividends 
and the distribution of assets in the event of any dissolution, liquidation or winding up of the 
Issuer.  

Section 2. Standard Definitions. As used herein with respect to Designated Preferred 
Stock: 

(a)  “Appropriate Federal Banking Agency” means the “appropriate Federal banking 
agency” with respect to the Issuer as defined in Section 3(q) of the Federal Deposit Insurance 
Act (12 U.S.C. Section 1813(q)), or any successor provision. 

(b)  “Business Combination” means a merger, consolidation, statutory share 
exchange or similar transaction that requires the approval of the Issuer’s stockholders. 

 
(c) “Business Day” means any day except Saturday, Sunday and any day on which 

banking institutions in the State of New York generally are authorized or required by law or 
other governmental actions to close. 

(d) “Bylaws” means the bylaws of the Issuer, as they may be amended from time to 
time. 

(e) “Certificate of Designations” means the Certificate of Designations or comparable 
instrument relating to the Designated Preferred Stock, of which these Standard Provisions form a 
part, as it may be amended from time to time. 

(f) “Charter” means the Issuer’s certificate or articles of incorporation, articles of 
association, or similar organizational document. 

(g) “Dividend Period” has the meaning set forth in Section 3(a). 

(h) “Dividend Record Date” has the meaning set forth in Section 3(a). 

(i) “Liquidation Preference” has the meaning set forth in Section 4(a). 

(j) “Original Issue Date” means the date on which shares of Designated Preferred 
Stock are first issued. 

(k) “Preferred Director” has the meaning set forth in Section 7(b). 
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(l) “Preferred Stock” means any and all series of preferred stock of the Issuer, 
including the Designated Preferred Stock. 

(m) “Qualified Equity Offering” means the sale and issuance for cash by the Issuer to 
persons other than the Issuer or any of its subsidiaries after the Original Issue Date of shares of 
perpetual Preferred Stock, Common Stock or any combination of such stock, that, in each case, 
qualify as and may be included in Tier 1 capital of the Issuer at the time of issuance under the 
applicable risk-based capital guidelines of the Issuer’s Appropriate Federal Banking Agency 
(other than any such sales and issuances made pursuant to agreements or arrangements entered 
into, or pursuant to financing plans which were publicly announced, on or prior to November 17, 
2008). 

(n) “Standard Provisions” mean these Standard Provisions that form a part of the 
Certificate of Designations relating to the Designated Preferred Stock. 

(o) “Successor Preferred Stock” has the meaning set forth in Section 5(a). 

(p) “Voting Parity Stock” means, with regard to any matter as to which the holders of 
Designated Preferred Stock are entitled to vote as specified in Sections 7(a) and 7(b) of these 
Standard Provisions that form a part of the Certificate of Designations, any and all series of 
Parity Stock upon which like voting rights have been conferred and are exercisable with respect 
to such matter. 

Section 3. Dividends. 

(a) Rate. Holders of Designated Preferred Stock shall be entitled to receive, on each 
share of Designated Preferred Stock if, as and when declared by the Board of Directors or any 
duly authorized committee of the Board of Directors, but only out of assets legally available 
therefor, cumulative cash dividends with respect to each Dividend Period (as defined below) at a 
per annum rate of 9.0% on (i) the Liquidation Amount per share of Designated Preferred Stock 
and (ii) the amount of accrued and unpaid dividends for any prior Dividend Period on such share 
of Designated Preferred Stock, if any.  Such dividends shall begin to accrue and be cumulative 
from the Original Issue Date, shall compound on each subsequent Dividend Payment Date (i.e., 
no dividends shall accrue on other dividends unless and until the first Dividend Payment Date for 
such other dividends has passed without such other dividends having been paid on such date) and 
shall be payable quarterly in arrears on each Dividend Payment Date, commencing with the first 
such Dividend Payment Date to occur at least 20 calendar days after the Original Issue Date.  In 
the event that any Dividend Payment Date would otherwise fall on a day that is not a Business 
Day, the dividend payment due on that date will be postponed to the next day that is a Business 
Day and no additional dividends will accrue as a result of that postponement. The period from 
and including any Dividend Payment Date to, but excluding, the next Dividend Payment Date is 
a “Dividend Period”, provided that the initial Dividend Period shall be the period from and 
including the Original Issue Date to, but excluding, the next Dividend Payment Date.  

Dividends that are payable on Designated Preferred Stock in respect of any Dividend 
Period shall be computed on the basis of a 360-day year consisting of twelve 30-day months. The 
amount of dividends payable on Designated Preferred Stock on any date prior to the end of a 
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Dividend Period, and for the initial Dividend Period, shall be computed on the basis of a 360-day 
year consisting of twelve 30-day months, and actual days elapsed over a 30-day month. 

Dividends that are payable on Designated Preferred Stock on any Dividend Payment Date 
will be payable to holders of record of Designated Preferred Stock as they appear on the stock 
register of the Issuer on the applicable record date, which shall be the 15th calendar day 
immediately preceding such Dividend Payment Date or such other record date fixed by the 
Board of Directors or any duly authorized committee of the Board of Directors that is not more 
than 60 nor less than 10 days prior to such Dividend Payment Date (each, a “Dividend Record 
Date”). Any such day that is a Dividend Record Date shall be a Dividend Record Date whether 
or not such day is a Business Day. 

Holders of Designated Preferred Stock shall not be entitled to any dividends, whether 
payable in cash, securities or other property, other than dividends (if any) declared and payable 
on Designated Preferred Stock as specified in this Section 3 (subject to the other provisions of 
the Certificate of Designations). 

(b) Priority of Dividends.  So long as any share of Designated Preferred Stock 
remains outstanding, no dividend or distribution shall be declared or paid on the Common Stock 
or any other shares of Junior Stock (other than dividends payable solely in shares of Common 
Stock) or Parity Stock, subject to the immediately following paragraph in the case of Parity 
Stock, and no Common Stock, Junior Stock or Parity Stock shall be, directly or indirectly,  
purchased, redeemed or otherwise acquired for consideration by the Issuer or any of its 
subsidiaries unless all accrued and unpaid dividends for all past Dividend Periods, including the 
latest completed Dividend Period (including, if applicable as provided in Section 3(a) above, 
dividends on such amount), on all outstanding shares of Designated Preferred Stock have been or 
are contemporaneously declared and paid in full (or have been declared and a sum sufficient for 
the payment thereof has been set aside for the benefit of the holders of shares of Designated 
Preferred Stock on the applicable record date).  The foregoing limitation shall not apply to (i) 
redemptions, purchases or other acquisitions of shares of Common Stock or other Junior Stock in 
connection with the administration of any employee benefit plan in the ordinary course of 
business and consistent with past practice; (ii) the acquisition by the Issuer or any of its 
subsidiaries of record ownership in Junior Stock or Parity Stock for the beneficial ownership of 
any other persons (other than the Issuer or any of its subsidiaries), including as trustees or 
custodians; and (iii) the exchange or conversion of Junior Stock for or into other Junior Stock or 
of Parity Stock for or into other Parity Stock (with the same or lesser aggregate liquidation 
amount) or Junior Stock, in each case, solely to the extent required pursuant to binding 
contractual agreements entered into prior to the Signing Date or any subsequent agreement for 
the accelerated exercise, settlement or exchange thereof for Common Stock. 

When dividends are not paid (or declared and a sum sufficient for payment thereof set 
aside for the benefit of the holders thereof on the applicable record date) on any Dividend 
Payment Date (or, in the case of Parity Stock having dividend payment dates different from the 
Dividend Payment Dates, on a dividend payment date falling within a Dividend Period related to 
such Dividend Payment Date) in full upon Designated Preferred Stock and any shares of Parity 
Stock, all dividends declared on Designated Preferred Stock and all such Parity Stock and 
payable on such Dividend Payment Date (or, in the case of Parity Stock having dividend 
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payment dates different from the Dividend Payment Dates, on a dividend payment date falling 
within the Dividend Period related to such Dividend Payment Date) shall be declared pro rata so 
that the respective amounts of such dividends declared shall bear the same ratio to each other as 
all accrued and unpaid dividends per share on the shares of Designated Preferred Stock 
(including, if applicable as provided in Section 3(a) above, dividends on such amount) and all 
Parity Stock payable on such Dividend Payment Date (or, in the case of Parity Stock having 
dividend payment dates different from the Dividend Payment Dates, on a dividend payment date 
falling within the Dividend Period related to such Dividend Payment Date) (subject to their 
having been declared by the Board of Directors or a duly authorized committee of the Board of 
Directors out of legally available funds and including, in the case of Parity Stock that bears 
cumulative dividends, all accrued but unpaid dividends) bear to each other.  If the Board of 
Directors or a duly authorized committee of the Board of Directors determines not to pay any 
dividend or a full dividend on a Dividend Payment Date, the Issuer will provide written notice to 
the holders of Designated Preferred Stock prior to such Dividend Payment Date. 

Subject to the foregoing, and not otherwise, such dividends (payable in cash, securities or 
other property) as may be determined by the Board of Directors or any duly authorized 
committee of the Board of Directors may be declared and paid on any securities, including 
Common Stock and other Junior Stock, from time to time out of any funds legally available for 
such payment, and holders of Designated Preferred Stock shall not be entitled to participate in 
any such dividends. 

Section 4. Liquidation Rights. 

(a) Voluntary or Involuntary Liquidation. In the event of any liquidation, dissolution 
or winding up of the affairs of the Issuer, whether voluntary or involuntary, holders of 
Designated Preferred Stock shall be entitled to receive for each share of Designated Preferred 
Stock, out of the assets of the Issuer or proceeds thereof (whether capital or surplus) available for 
distribution to stockholders of the Issuer, subject to the rights of any creditors of the Issuer, 
before any distribution of such assets or proceeds is made to or set aside for the holders of 
Common Stock and any other stock of the Issuer ranking junior to Designated Preferred Stock as 
to such distribution, payment in full in an amount equal to the sum of (i) the Liquidation Amount 
per share and (ii) the amount of any accrued and unpaid dividends (including, if applicable as 
provided in Section 3(a) above, dividends on such amount), whether or not declared, to the date 
of payment (such amounts collectively, the “Liquidation Preference”). 

(b) Partial Payment. If in any distribution described in Section 4(a) above the assets 
of the Issuer or proceeds thereof are not sufficient to pay in full the amounts payable with respect 
to all outstanding shares of Designated Preferred Stock and the corresponding amounts payable 
with respect of any other stock of the Issuer ranking equally with Designated Preferred Stock as 
to such distribution, holders of Designated Preferred Stock and the holders of such other stock 
shall share ratably in any such distribution in proportion to the full respective distributions to 
which they are entitled. 

(c) Residual Distributions. If the Liquidation Preference has been paid in full to all 
holders of Designated Preferred Stock and the corresponding amounts payable with respect of 
any other stock of the Issuer ranking equally with Designated Preferred Stock as to such 
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distribution has been paid in full, the holders of other stock of the Issuer shall be entitled to 
receive all remaining assets of the Issuer (or proceeds thereof) according to their respective rights 
and preferences. 

(d) Merger, Consolidation and Sale of Assets Not Liquidation. For purposes of this 
Section 4, the merger or consolidation of the Issuer with any other corporation or other entity, 
including a merger or consolidation in which the holders of Designated Preferred Stock receive 
cash, securities or other property for their shares, or the sale, lease or exchange (for cash, 
securities or other property) of all or substantially all of the assets of the Issuer, shall not 
constitute a liquidation, dissolution or winding up of the Issuer. 

Section 5. Redemption. 

(a) Optional Redemption. Except as provided below, the Designated Preferred Stock 
may not be redeemed prior to the later of (i) first Dividend Payment Date falling on or after the 
third anniversary of the Original Issue Date; and (ii) the date on which all outstanding shares of 
UST Preferred Stock have been redeemed, repurchased or otherwise acquired by the Issuer.  On 
or after the first Dividend Payment Date falling on or after the third anniversary of the Original 
Issue Date, the Issuer, at its option, subject to the approval of the Appropriate Federal Banking 
Agency, may redeem, in whole or in part, at any time and from time to time, out of funds legally 
available therefor, the shares of Designated Preferred Stock at the time outstanding, upon notice 
given as provided in Section 5(c) below, at a redemption price equal to the sum of (i) the 
Liquidation Amount per share and (ii) except as otherwise provided below, any accrued and 
unpaid dividends (including, if applicable as provided in Section 3(a) above, dividends on such 
amount) (regardless of whether any dividends are actually declared) to, but excluding, the date 
fixed for redemption.   

 Notwithstanding the foregoing, prior to the first Dividend Payment Date falling on or 
after the third anniversary of the Original Issue Date, the Issuer, at its option, subject to the 
approval of the Appropriate Federal Banking Agency and subject to the requirement that all 
outstanding shares of UST Preferred Stock shall previously have been redeemed, repurchased or 
otherwise acquired by the Issuer, may redeem, in whole or in part, at any time and from time to 
time, the shares of Designated Preferred Stock at the time outstanding, upon notice given as 
provided in Section 5(c) below, at a redemption price equal to the sum of (i) the Liquidation 
Amount per share and (ii) except as otherwise provided below, any accrued and unpaid 
dividends (including, if applicable as provided in Section 3(a) above, dividends on such amount) 
(regardless of whether any dividends are actually declared) to, but excluding, the date fixed for 
redemption; provided that (x) the Issuer (or any successor by Business Combination) has 
received aggregate gross proceeds of not less than the Minimum Amount (plus the “Minimum 
Amount” as defined in the relevant certificate of designations for each other outstanding series of 
preferred stock of such successor that was originally issued to the United States Department of 
the Treasury (the “Successor Preferred Stock”) in connection with the Troubled Asset Relief 
Program Capital Purchase Program) from one or more Qualified Equity Offerings (including 
Qualified Equity Offerings of such successor), and (y) the aggregate redemption price of the 
Designated Preferred Stock (and any Successor Preferred Stock) redeemed pursuant to this 
paragraph may not exceed the aggregate net cash proceeds received by the Issuer (or any 
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successor by Business Combination) from such Qualified Equity Offerings (including Qualified 
Equity Offerings of such successor). 

 The redemption price for any shares of Designated Preferred Stock shall be payable on 
the redemption date to the holder of such shares against surrender of the certificate(s) evidencing 
such shares to the Issuer or its agent. Any declared but unpaid dividends payable on a 
redemption date that occurs subsequent to the Dividend Record Date for a Dividend Period shall 
not be paid to the holder entitled to receive the redemption price on the redemption date, but 
rather shall be paid to the holder of record of the redeemed shares on such Dividend Record Date 
relating to the Dividend Payment Date as provided in Section 3 above. 

(b) No Sinking Fund. The Designated Preferred Stock will not be subject to any 
mandatory redemption, sinking fund or other similar provisions. Holders of Designated Preferred 
Stock will have no right to require redemption or repurchase of any shares of Designated 
Preferred Stock. 

(c) Notice of Redemption. Notice of every redemption of shares of Designated 
Preferred Stock shall be given by first class mail, postage prepaid, addressed to the holders of 
record of the shares to be redeemed at their respective last addresses appearing on the books of 
the Issuer. Such mailing shall be at least 30 days and not more than 60 days before the date fixed 
for redemption. Any notice mailed as provided in this Subsection shall be conclusively presumed 
to have been duly given, whether or not the holder receives such notice, but failure duly to give 
such notice by mail, or any defect in such notice or in the mailing thereof, to any holder of shares 
of Designated Preferred Stock designated for redemption shall not affect the validity of the 
proceedings for the redemption of any other shares of Designated Preferred Stock. 
Notwithstanding the foregoing, if shares of Designated Preferred Stock are issued in book-entry 
form through The Depository Trust Company or any other similar facility, notice of redemption 
may be given to the holders of Designated Preferred Stock at such time and in any manner 
permitted by such facility. Each notice of redemption given to a holder shall state: (1) the 
redemption date; (2) the number of shares of Designated Preferred Stock to be redeemed and, if 
less than all the shares held by such holder are to be redeemed, the number of such shares to be 
redeemed from such holder; (3) the redemption price; and (4) the place or places where 
certificates for such shares are to be surrendered for payment of the redemption price. 

(d) Partial Redemption. In case of any redemption of part of the shares of Designated 
Preferred Stock at the time outstanding, the shares to be redeemed shall be selected either pro 
rata or in such other manner as the Board of Directors or a duly authorized committee thereof 
may determine to be fair and equitable. Subject to the provisions hereof, the Board of Directors 
or a duly authorized committee thereof shall have full power and authority to prescribe the terms 
and conditions upon which shares of Designated Preferred Stock shall be redeemed from time to 
time. If fewer than all the shares represented by any certificate are redeemed, a new certificate 
shall be issued representing the unredeemed shares without charge to the holder thereof. 

(e) Effectiveness of Redemption. If notice of redemption has been duly given and if 
on or before the redemption date specified in the notice all funds necessary for the redemption 
have been deposited by the Issuer, in trust for the pro rata benefit of the holders of the shares 
called for redemption, with a bank or trust company doing business in the Borough of 
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Manhattan, The City of New York, and having a capital and surplus of at least $500 million and 
selected by the Board of Directors, so as to be and continue to be available solely therefor, then, 
notwithstanding that any certificate for any share so called for redemption has not been 
surrendered for cancellation, on and after the redemption date dividends shall cease to accrue on 
all shares so called for redemption, all shares so called for redemption shall no longer be deemed 
outstanding and all rights with respect to such shares shall forthwith on such redemption date 
cease and terminate, except only the right of the holders thereof to receive the amount payable on 
such redemption from such bank or trust company, without interest. Any funds unclaimed at the 
end of three years from the redemption date shall, to the extent permitted by law, be released to 
the Issuer, after which time the holders of the shares so called for redemption shall look only to 
the Issuer for payment of the redemption price of such shares. 

(f) Status of Redeemed Shares. Shares of Designated Preferred Stock that are 
redeemed, repurchased or otherwise acquired by the Issuer shall revert to authorized but unissued 
shares of Preferred Stock (provided that any such cancelled shares of Designated Preferred Stock 
may be reissued only as shares of any series of Preferred Stock other than Designated Preferred 
Stock). 

Section 6. Conversion. Holders of Designated Preferred Stock shares shall have no right 
to exchange or convert such shares into any other securities.  

Section 7. Voting Rights. 

(a) General. The holders of Designated Preferred Stock shall not have any voting 
rights except as set forth below or as otherwise from time to time required by law. 

(b) Preferred Stock Directors.  Whenever, at any time or times, dividends payable on 
the shares of Designated Preferred Stock have not been paid for an aggregate of six quarterly 
Dividend Periods or more, whether or not consecutive, the authorized number of directors of the 
Issuer shall automatically be increased by two and the holders of the Designated Preferred Stock 
shall have the right, with holders of shares of any one or more other classes or series of  Voting 
Parity Stock outstanding at the time, voting together as a class, to elect two directors (hereinafter 
the “Preferred Directors” and each a “Preferred Director”) to fill such newly created 
directorships at the Issuer’s next annual meeting of stockholders (or at a special meeting called 
for that purpose prior to such next annual meeting) and at each subsequent annual meeting of 
stockholders until all accrued and unpaid dividends for all past Dividend Periods, including the 
latest completed Dividend Period (including, if applicable as provided in Section 3(a) above, 
dividends on such amount), on all outstanding shares of Designated Preferred Stock have been 
declared and paid in full at which time such right shall terminate with respect to the Designated 
Preferred Stock, except as herein or by law expressly provided, subject to revesting in the event 
of each and every subsequent default of the character above mentioned; provided that it shall be 
a qualification for election for any Preferred Director that the election of such Preferred Director 
shall not cause the Issuer to violate any corporate governance requirements of any securities 
exchange or other trading facility on which securities of the Issuer may then be listed or traded 
that listed or traded companies must have a majority of independent directors.  Upon any 
termination of the right of the holders of shares of Designated Preferred Stock and Voting Parity 
Stock as a class to vote for directors as provided above, the Preferred Directors shall cease to be 
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qualified as directors, the term of office of all Preferred Directors then in office shall terminate 
immediately and the authorized number of directors shall be reduced by the number of Preferred 
Directors elected pursuant hereto.  Any Preferred Director may be removed at any time, with or 
without cause, and any vacancy created thereby may be filled, only by the affirmative vote of the 
holders a majority of the shares of Designated Preferred Stock at the time outstanding voting 
separately as a class together with the holders of shares of Voting Parity Stock, to the extent the 
voting rights of such holders described above are then exercisable.  If the office of any Preferred 
Director becomes vacant for any reason other than removal from office as aforesaid, the 
remaining Preferred Director may choose a successor who shall hold office for the unexpired 
term in respect of which such vacancy occurred. 

(c) Class Voting Rights as to Particular Matters. So long as any shares of Designated 
Preferred Stock are outstanding, in addition to any other vote or consent of stockholders required 
by law or by the Charter, the vote or consent of the holders of at least 66 2/3% of the shares of 
Designated Preferred Stock at the time outstanding, voting as a separate class, given in person or 
by proxy, either in writing without a meeting or by vote at any meeting called for the purpose, 
shall be necessary for effecting or validating: 

(i) Authorization of Senior Stock. Any amendment or alteration of the 
Certificate of Designations for the Designated Preferred Stock or the Charter to authorize 
or create or increase the authorized amount of, or any issuance of, any shares of, or any 
securities convertible into or exchangeable or exercisable for shares of, any class or series 
of capital stock of the Issuer ranking senior to Designated Preferred Stock with respect to 
either or both the payment of dividends and/or the distribution of assets on any 
liquidation, dissolution or winding up of the Issuer; 

(ii) Amendment of Designated Preferred Stock.  Any amendment, alteration 
or repeal of any provision of the Certificate of Designations for the Designated Preferred 
Stock or the Charter (including, unless no vote on such merger or consolidation is 
required by Section 7(c)(iii) below, any amendment, alteration or repeal by means of a 
merger, consolidation or otherwise) so as to adversely affect the rights, preferences, 
privileges or voting powers of the Designated Preferred Stock; or 

Share Exchanges, Reclassifications, Mergers and Consolidations(iii) . Any 
consummation of a binding share exchange or reclassification involving the Designated 
Preferred Stock, or of a merger or consolidation of the Issuer with another corporation or 
other entity, unless in each case (x) the shares of Designated Preferred Stock remain 
outstanding or, in the case of any such merger or consolidation with respect to which the 
Issuer is not the surviving or resulting entity, are converted into or exchanged for 
preference securities of the surviving or resulting entity or its ultimate parent, and (y) 
such shares remaining outstanding or such preference securities, as the case may be, have 
such rights, preferences, privileges and voting powers, and limitations and restrictions 
thereof, taken as a whole, as are not materially less favorable to the holders thereof than 
the rights, preferences, privileges and voting powers, and limitations and restrictions 
thereof, of Designated Preferred Stock immediately prior to such consummation, taken as 
a whole; 

 A-8  
095331-0002-11515-NY02.2693646.7 



provided, however, that for all purposes of this Section 7(c), any increase in the amount of the 
authorized Preferred Stock, including any increase in the authorized amount of Designated 
Preferred Stock necessary to satisfy preemptive or similar rights granted by the Issuer to other 
persons prior to the Signing Date, or the creation and issuance, or an increase in the authorized or 
issued amount, whether pursuant to preemptive or similar rights or otherwise, of any other series 
of Preferred Stock, or any securities convertible into or exchangeable or exercisable for any other 
series of Preferred Stock, ranking equally with and/or junior to Designated Preferred Stock with 
respect to the payment of dividends (whether such dividends are cumulative or non-cumulative) 
and the distribution of assets upon liquidation, dissolution or winding up of the Issuer will not be 
deemed to adversely affect the rights, preferences, privileges or voting powers, and shall not 
require the affirmative vote or consent of, the holders of outstanding shares of the Designated 
Preferred Stock. 

(d) Changes after Provision for Redemption. No vote or consent of the holders of 
Designated Preferred Stock shall be required pursuant to Section 7(c) above if, at or prior to the 
time when any such vote or consent would otherwise be required pursuant to such Section, all 
outstanding shares of the Designated Preferred Stock shall have been redeemed, or shall have 
been called for redemption upon proper notice and sufficient funds shall have been deposited in 
trust for such redemption, in each case pursuant to Section 5 above. 

(e) Procedures for Voting and Consents. The rules and procedures for calling and 
conducting any meeting of the holders of Designated Preferred Stock (including, without 
limitation, the fixing of a record date in connection therewith), the solicitation and use of proxies 
at such a meeting, the obtaining of written consents and any other aspect or matter with regard to 
such a meeting or such consents shall be governed by any rules of the Board of Directors or any 
duly authorized committee of the Board of Directors, in its discretion, may adopt from time to 
time, which rules and procedures shall conform to the requirements of the Charter, the Bylaws, 
and applicable law and the rules of any national securities exchange or other trading facility on 
which Designated Preferred Stock is listed or traded at the time.  

Section 8. Record Holders. To the fullest extent permitted by applicable law, the Issuer 
and the transfer agent for Designated Preferred Stock may deem and treat the record holder of 
any share of Designated Preferred Stock as the true and lawful owner thereof for all purposes, 
and neither the Issuer nor such transfer agent shall be affected by any notice to the contrary. 

Section 9.   Notices. All notices or communications in respect of Designated Preferred 
Stock shall be sufficiently given if given in writing and delivered in person or by first class mail, 
postage prepaid, or if given in such other manner as may be permitted in this Certificate of 
Designations, in the Charter or Bylaws or by applicable law. Notwithstanding the foregoing, if 
shares of Designated Preferred Stock are issued in book-entry form through The Depository 
Trust Company or any similar facility, such notices may be given to the holders of Designated 
Preferred Stock in any manner permitted by such facility. 

Section 10.  No Preemptive Rights. No share of Designated Preferred Stock shall have 
any rights of preemption whatsoever as to any securities of the Issuer, or any warrants, rights or 
options issued or granted with respect thereto, regardless of how such securities, or such 
warrants, rights or options, may be designated, issued or granted. 

 A-9  
095331-0002-11515-NY02.2693646.7 



 A-10  
095331-0002-11515-NY02.2693646.7 

Section 11.  Replacement Certificates. The Issuer shall replace any mutilated certificate at 
the holder’s expense upon surrender of that certificate to the Issuer. The Issuer shall replace 
certificates that become destroyed, stolen or lost at the holder’s expense upon delivery to the 
Issuer of reasonably satisfactory evidence that the certificate has been destroyed, stolen or lost, 
together with any indemnity that may be reasonably required by the Issuer. 

Section 12.  Other Rights. The shares of Designated Preferred Stock shall not have any 
rights, preferences, privileges or voting powers or relative, participating, optional or other special 
rights, or qualifications, limitations or restrictions thereof, other than as set forth herein or in the 
Charter or as provided by applicable law. 



   
504278 

FORM OF WAIVER  
 

In consideration for the benefits I will receive as a result of my employer’s participation in the 
United States Department of the Treasury’s TARP Capital Purchase Program, I hereby 
voluntarily waive any claim against the United States or any state or territory thereof or my 
employer or any of its directors, officers, employees and agents for any changes to my 
compensation or benefits that are required in order to comply with Section 111(b) of the 
Emergency Economic Stabilization Act of 2008, as amended (“EESA”), and rules, regulations, 
guidance or other requirements issued thereunder (collectively, the “EESA Restrictions”). 
 
I acknowledge that the EESA Restrictions may require modification of the employment, 
compensation, bonus, incentive, severance, retention and other benefit plans, arrangements, 
policies and agreements (including so-called “golden parachute” agreements), whether or not in 
writing, that I have with my employer or in which I participate as they relate to the period the 
United States holds any equity or debt securities of my employer acquired through the TARP 
Capital Purchase Program and I hereby consent to all such modifications.  I further acknowledge 
and agree that if my employer notifies me in writing that I have received payments in violation 
of the EESA Restrictions, I shall repay the aggregate amount of such payments to my employer 
no later than fifteen business days following my receipt of such notice. 
 
This waiver includes all claims I may have under the laws of the United States or any other 
jurisdiction related to the requirements imposed by the EESA Restrictions (including without 
limitation, any claim for any compensation or other payments or benefits I would otherwise 
receive absent the EESA Restrictions, any challenge to the process by which the EESA 
Restrictions were adopted and any tort or constitutional claim about the effect of the foregoing 
on my employment relationship) and I hereby agree that I will not at any time initiate, or cause 
or permit to be initiated on my behalf, any such claim against the United States, my employer or 
its directors, officers, employees or agents in or before any local, state, federal or other agency, 
court or body.  
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In witness whereof, I execute this waiver on my own behalf, thereby communicating my 
acceptance and acknowledgement to the provisions herein. 
 
      Respectfully,  

  
 
 
____________________________ 
Name: 
Title: 
Date: 
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ANNEX D 
 

FORM OF OPINION 
 

(a) The Company has been duly incorporated and is validly existing as a corporation 
in good standing under the laws of the state of its incorporation. 

(b) The Preferred Shares have been duly and validly authorized, and, when issued and 
delivered pursuant to the Agreement, the Preferred Shares will be duly and validly issued and 
fully paid and non-assessable, will not be issued in violation of any preemptive rights, and will 
rank pari passu with or senior to all other series or classes of Preferred Stock issued on the 
Closing Date with respect to the payment of dividends and the distribution of assets in the event 
of any dissolution, liquidation or winding up of the Company.     

(c) The Warrant has been duly authorized and, when executed and delivered as 
contemplated by the Agreement, will constitute a valid and legally binding obligation of the 
Company enforceable against the Company in accordance with its terms, except as the same may 
be limited by applicable bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization, moratorium or similar laws 
affecting the enforcement of creditors’ rights generally and general equitable principles, 
regardless of whether such enforceability is considered in a proceeding at law or in equity.    

(d) The shares of Warrant Preferred Stock issuable upon exercise of the Warrant have 
been duly authorized and reserved for issuance upon exercise of the Warrant and when so issued 
in accordance with the terms of the Warrant will be validly issued, fully paid and non-assessable, 
and will rank pari passu with or senior to all other series or classes of Preferred Stock, whether 
or not issued or outstanding, with respect to the payment of dividends and the distribution of 
assets in the event of any dissolution, liquidation or winding up of the Company. 

(e) The Company has the corporate power and authority to execute and deliver the 
Agreement and the Warrant and to carry out its obligations thereunder (which includes the 
issuance of the Preferred Shares, Warrant and Warrant Shares).  

(f) The execution, delivery and performance by the Company of the Agreement and 
the Warrant and the consummation of the transactions contemplated thereby have been duly 
authorized by all necessary corporate action on the part of the Company and its stockholders, and 
no further approval or authorization is required on the part of the Company.  

(g) The Agreement is a valid and binding obligation of the Company enforceable 
against the Company in accordance with its terms, except as the same may be limited by 
applicable bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization, moratorium or similar laws affecting the 
enforcement of creditors’ rights generally and general equitable principles, regardless of whether 
such enforceability is considered in a proceeding at law or in equity; provided, however, such 
counsel need express no opinion with respect to Section 4.5(h) or the severability provisions of 
the Agreement insofar as Section 4.5(h) is concerned. 
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ANNEX E 

 
FORM OF WARRANT 

 
[SEE ATTACHED] 



ANNEX E 

FORM OF WARRANT TO PURCHASE PREFERRED STOCK 

THE SECURITIES REPRESENTED BY THIS INSTRUMENT HAVE NOT BEEN 
REGISTERED UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT OF 1933, AS AMENDED, OR THE 
SECURITIES LAWS OF ANY STATE AND MAY NOT BE TRANSFERRED, SOLD OR 
OTHERWISE DISPOSED OF EXCEPT WHILE A REGISTRATION STATEMENT 
RELATING THERETO IS IN EFFECT UNDER SUCH ACT AND APPLICABLE STATE 
SECURITIES LAWS OR PURSUANT TO AN EXEMPTION FROM REGISTRATION 
UNDER SUCH ACT OR SUCH LAWS.  THIS INSTRUMENT IS ISSUED SUBJECT TO 
THE RESTRICTIONS ON TRANSFER AND OTHER PROVISIONS OF A SECURITIES 
PURCHASE AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE ISSUER OF THESE SECURITIES AND THE 
INVESTOR REFERRED TO THEREIN, A COPY OF WHICH IS ON FILE WITH THE 
ISSUER.  THE SECURITIES REPRESENTED BY THIS INSTRUMENT MAY NOT BE 
SOLD OR OTHERWISE TRANSFERRED EXCEPT IN COMPLIANCE WITH SAID 
AGREEMENT.  ANY SALE OR OTHER TRANSFER NOT IN COMPLIANCE WITH SAID 
AGREEMENT WILL BE VOID.   

 

WARRANT  
to purchase 

_____________________  
Shares of Preferred Stock 

 
of ______________________  

 

     Issue Date: ________________________ 

1. Definitions.  Unless the context otherwise requires, when used herein the 
following terms shall have the meanings indicated.  

“Board of Directors” means the board of directors of the Company, including any duly 
authorized committee thereof. 

“business day” means any day except Saturday, Sunday and any day on which banking 
institutions in the State of New York generally are authorized or required by law or other 
governmental actions to close. 

“Charter” means, with respect to any Person, its certificate or articles of incorporation, 
articles of association, or similar organizational document. 

 “Company” means the Person whose name, corporate or other organizational form and 
jurisdiction of organization is set forth in Item 1 of Schedule A hereto. 
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 “Exchange Act” means the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, or any 
successor statute, and the rules and regulations promulgated thereunder. 

 “Exercise Price” means the amount set forth in Item 2 of Schedule A hereto.   

“Expiration Time” has the meaning set forth in Section 3. 

“Issue Date” means the date set forth in Item 3 of Schedule A hereto. 

“Liquidation Amount” means the amount set forth in Item 4 of Schedule A hereto. 

“Original Warrantholder” means the United States Department of the Treasury.  Any 
actions specified to be taken by the Original Warrantholder hereunder may only be taken by such 
Person and not by any other Warrantholder. 

 “Person” has the meaning given to it in Section 3(a)(9) of the Exchange Act and as used 
in Sections 13(d)(3) and 14(d)(2) of the Exchange Act. 

 “Preferred Stock” means the series of perpetual preferred stock set forth in Item 5 of 
Schedule A hereto. 

“Purchase Agreement” means the Securities Purchase Agreement – Standard Terms 
incorporated into the Letter Agreement, dated as of the date set forth in Item 6 of Schedule A 
hereto, as amended from time to time, between the Company and the United States Department 
of the Treasury (the “Letter Agreement”), including all annexes and schedules thereto. 

 “Regulatory Approvals” with respect to the Warrantholder, means, to the extent 
applicable and required to permit the Warrantholder to exercise this Warrant for shares of 
Preferred Stock and to own such Preferred Stock without the Warrantholder being in violation of 
applicable law, rule or regulation, the receipt of any necessary approvals and authorizations of, 
filings and registrations with, notifications to, or expiration or termination of any applicable 
waiting period under, the Hart-Scott-Rodino Antitrust Improvements Act of 1976, as amended, 
and the rules and regulations thereunder. 

“SEC” means the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission. 

“Securities Act” means the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, or any successor statute, 
and the rules and regulations promulgated thereunder. 

“Shares” has the meaning set forth in Section 2. 

 “Warrantholder” has the meaning set forth in Section 2. 

“Warrant” means this Warrant, issued pursuant to the Purchase Agreement. 

2. Number of Shares; Exercise Price.  This certifies that, for value received, the 
United States Department of the Treasury or its permitted assigns (the “Warrantholder”) is 
entitled, upon the terms and subject to the conditions hereinafter set forth, to acquire from the 
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Company, in whole or in part, after the receipt of all applicable Regulatory Approvals, if any, up 
to an aggregate of the number of fully paid and nonassessable shares of Preferred Stock set forth 
in Item 7 of Schedule A hereto (the “Shares”), at a purchase price per share of Preferred Stock 
equal to the Exercise Price.   

3. Exercise of Warrant; Term.  Subject to Section 2, to the extent permitted by 
applicable laws and regulations, the right to purchase the Shares represented by this Warrant is 
exercisable, in whole or in part by the Warrantholder, at any time or from time to time after the 
execution and delivery of this Warrant by the Company on the date hereof, but in no event later 
than 5:00 p.m., New York City time on the tenth anniversary of the Issue Date (the “Expiration 
Time”), by (A) the surrender of this Warrant and Notice of Exercise annexed hereto, duly 
completed and executed on behalf of the Warrantholder, at the principal executive office of the 
Company located at the address set forth in Item 8 of Schedule A hereto (or such other office or 
agency of the Company in the United States as it may designate by notice in writing to the 
Warrantholder at the address of the Warrantholder appearing on the books of the Company), and 
(B) payment of the Exercise Price for the Shares thereby purchased, by having the Company 
withhold, from the shares of Preferred Stock that would otherwise be delivered to the 
Warrantholder upon such exercise, shares of Preferred Stock issuable upon exercise of the 
Warrant with an aggregate Liquidation Amount equal in value to the aggregate Exercise Price as 
to which this Warrant is so exercised. 

  If the Warrantholder does not exercise this Warrant in its entirety, the 
Warrantholder will be entitled to receive from the Company within a reasonable time, and in any 
event not exceeding three business days, a new warrant in substantially identical form for the 
purchase of that number of Shares equal to the difference between the number of Shares subject 
to this Warrant and the number of Shares as to which this Warrant is so exercised.  
Notwithstanding anything in this Warrant to the contrary, the Warrantholder hereby 
acknowledges and agrees that its exercise of this Warrant for Shares is subject to the condition 
that the Warrantholder will have first received any applicable Regulatory Approvals.  
 

4. Issuance of Shares; Authorization.  Certificates for Shares issued upon exercise of 
this Warrant will be issued in such name or names as the Warrantholder may designate and will 
be delivered to such named Person or Persons within a reasonable time, not to exceed three 
business days after the date on which this Warrant has been duly exercised in accordance with 
the terms of this Warrant.  The Company hereby represents and warrants that any Shares issued 
upon the exercise of this Warrant in accordance with the provisions of Section 3 will be duly and 
validly authorized and issued, fully paid and nonassessable and free from all taxes, liens and 
charges (other than liens or charges created by the Warrantholder, income and franchise taxes 
incurred in connection with the exercise of the Warrant or taxes in respect of any transfer 
occurring contemporaneously therewith).  The Company agrees that the Shares so issued will be 
deemed to have been issued to the Warrantholder as of the close of business on the date on which 
this Warrant and payment of the Exercise Price are delivered to the Company in accordance with 
the terms of this Warrant, notwithstanding that the stock transfer books of the Company may 
then be closed or certificates representing such Shares may not be actually delivered on such 
date.  The Company will at all times reserve and keep available, out of its authorized but 
unissued preferred stock, solely for the purpose of providing for the exercise of this Warrant, the 
aggregate number of shares of Preferred Stock then issuable upon exercise of this Warrant at any 
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time.  The Company will use reasonable best efforts to ensure that the Shares may be issued 
without violation of any applicable law or regulation or of any requirement of any securities 
exchange on which the Shares are listed or traded.   

5. No Rights as Stockholders; Transfer Books.  This Warrant does not entitle the 
Warrantholder to any voting rights or other rights as a stockholder of the Company prior to the 
date of exercise hereof.  The Company will at no time close its transfer books against transfer of 
this Warrant in any manner which interferes with the timely exercise of this Warrant. 

6. Charges, Taxes and Expenses.  Issuance of certificates for Shares to the 
Warrantholder upon the exercise of this Warrant shall be made without charge to the 
Warrantholder for any issue or transfer tax or other incidental expense in respect of the issuance 
of such certificates, all of which taxes and expenses shall be paid by the Company. 

7. Transfer/Assignment. 

 (A) Subject to compliance with clause (B) of this Section 7, this Warrant and all rights 
hereunder are transferable, in whole or in part, upon the books of the Company by the registered 
holder hereof in person or by duly authorized attorney, and a new warrant shall be made and 
delivered by the Company, of the same tenor and date as this Warrant but registered in the name 
of one or more transferees, upon surrender of this Warrant, duly endorsed, to the office or agency 
of the Company described in Section 3.  All expenses (other than stock transfer taxes) and other 
charges payable in connection with the preparation, execution and delivery of the new warrants 
pursuant to this Section 7 shall be paid by the Company. 

 (B) The transfer of the Warrant and the Shares issued upon exercise of the Warrant 
are subject to the restrictions set forth in Section 4.4 of the Purchase Agreement.  If and for so 
long as required by the Purchase Agreement, this Warrant shall contain the legends as set forth in 
Section 4.2(a) of the Purchase Agreement. 

8. Exchange and Registry of Warrant.  This Warrant is exchangeable, upon the 
surrender hereof by the Warrantholder to the Company, for a new warrant or warrants of like 
tenor and representing the right to purchase the same aggregate number of Shares.  The 
Company shall maintain a registry showing the name and address of the Warrantholder as the 
registered holder of this Warrant.  This Warrant may be surrendered for exchange or exercise in 
accordance with its terms, at the office of the Company, and the Company shall be entitled to 
rely in all respects, prior to written notice to the contrary, upon such registry. 

9. Loss, Theft, Destruction or Mutilation of Warrant.  Upon receipt by the Company 
of evidence reasonably satisfactory to it of the loss, theft, destruction or mutilation of this 
Warrant, and in the case of any such loss, theft or destruction, upon receipt of a bond, indemnity 
or security reasonably satisfactory to the Company, or, in the case of any such mutilation, upon 
surrender and cancellation of this Warrant, the Company shall make and deliver, in lieu of such 
lost, stolen, destroyed or mutilated Warrant, a new Warrant of like tenor and representing the 
right to purchase the same aggregate number of Shares as provided for in such lost, stolen, 
destroyed or mutilated Warrant. 
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10. Saturdays, Sundays, Holidays, etc. If the last or appointed day for the taking of 
any action or the expiration of any right required or granted herein shall not be a business day, 
then such action may be taken or such right may be exercised on the next succeeding day that is 
a business day. 

11. Rule 144 Information.  The Company covenants that it will use its reasonable best 
efforts to timely file all reports and other documents required to be filed by it under the 
Securities Act and the Exchange Act and the rules and regulations promulgated by the SEC 
thereunder (or, if the Company is not required to file such reports, it will, upon the request of any 
Warrantholder, make publicly available such information as necessary to permit sales pursuant to 
Rule 144 under the Securities Act), and it will use reasonable best efforts to take such further 
action as any Warrantholder may reasonably request, in each case to the extent required from 
time to time to enable such holder to, if permitted by the terms of this Warrant and the Purchase 
Agreement, sell this Warrant without registration under the Securities Act within the limitation 
of the exemptions provided by (A) Rule 144 under the Securities Act, as such rule may be 
amended from time to time, or (B) any successor rule or regulation hereafter adopted by the 
SEC.  Upon the written request of any Warrantholder, the Company will deliver to such 
Warrantholder a written statement that it has complied with such requirements. 

12. Adjustments and Other Rights.  For so long as the Original Warrantholder holds 
this Warrant or any portion thereof, if any event occurs that, in the good faith judgment of the 
Board of Directors of the Company, would require adjustment of the Exercise Price or number of 
Shares into which this Warrant is exercisable in order to fairly and adequately protect the 
purchase rights of the Warrants in accordance with the essential intent and principles of the 
Purchase Agreement and this Warrant, then the Board of Directors shall make such adjustments 
in the application of such provisions, in accordance with such essential intent and principles, as 
shall be reasonably necessary, in the good faith opinion of the Board of Directors, to protect such 
purchase rights as aforesaid.   

Whenever the Exercise Price or the number of Shares into which this Warrant is 
exercisable shall be adjusted as provided in this Section 12, the Company shall forthwith file at 
the principal office of the Company a statement showing in reasonable detail the facts requiring 
such adjustment and the Exercise Price that shall be in effect and the number of Shares into 
which this Warrant shall be exercisable after such adjustment, and the Company shall also cause 
a copy of such statement to be sent by mail, first class postage prepaid, to each Warrantholder at 
the address appearing in the Company’s records. 

13. No Impairment.  The Company will not, by amendment of its Charter or through 
any reorganization, transfer of assets, consolidation, merger, dissolution, issue or sale of 
securities or any other voluntary action, avoid or seek to avoid the observance or performance of 
any of the terms to be observed or performed hereunder by the Company, but will at all times in 
good faith assist in the carrying out of all the provisions of this Warrant and in taking of all such 
action as may be necessary or appropriate in order to protect the rights of the Warrantholder. 

14. Governing Law.  This Warrant will be governed by and construed in accordance 
with the federal law of the United States if and to the extent such law is applicable, and 
otherwise in accordance with the laws of the State of New York applicable to contracts made and 
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to be performed entirely within such State. Each of the Company and the Warrantholder agrees 
(a) to submit to the exclusive jurisdiction and venue of the United States District Court for the 
District of Columbia for any civil action, suit or proceeding arising out of or relating to this 
Warrant or the transactions contemplated hereby, and (b) that notice may be served upon the 
Company at the address in Section 17 below and upon the Warrantholder at the address for the 
Warrantholder set forth in the registry maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 8 hereof.  
To the extent permitted by applicable law, each of the Company and the Warrantholder hereby 
unconditionally waives trial by jury in any civil legal action or proceeding relating to the 
Warrant or the transactions contemplated hereby or thereby.  

15. Binding Effect.  This Warrant shall be binding upon any successors or assigns of 
the Company. 

16. Amendments.  This Warrant may be amended and the observance of any term of 
this Warrant may be waived only with the written consent of the Company and the 
Warrantholder.  

17. Notices.  Any notice, request, instruction or other document to be given hereunder 
by any party to the other will be in writing and will be deemed to have been duly given (a) on the 
date of delivery if delivered personally, or by facsimile, upon confirmation of receipt, or (b) on 
the second business day following the date of dispatch if delivered by a recognized next day 
courier service.  All notices hereunder shall be delivered as set forth in Item 9 of Schedule A 
hereto, or pursuant to such other instructions as may be designated in writing by the party to 
receive such notice. 

18. Entire Agreement.  This Warrant, the forms attached hereto and Schedule A 
hereto (the terms of which are incorporated by reference herein), and the Letter Agreement 
(including all documents incorporated therein), contain the entire agreement between the parties 
with respect to the subject matter hereof and supersede all prior and contemporaneous 
arrangements or undertakings with respect thereto. 

[Remainder of page intentionally left blank] 
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[Form of Notice of Exercise] 
Date:  _________ 

TO: [Company] 

RE:  Election to Purchase Preferred Stock 

The undersigned, pursuant to the provisions set forth in the attached Warrant, hereby 
agrees to subscribe for and purchase such number of shares of Preferred Stock covered by the 
Warrant such that after giving effect to an exercise pursuant to Section 3(B) of the Warrant, the 
undersigned will receive the net number of shares of Preferred Stock set forth below.  The 
undersigned, in accordance with Section 3 of the Warrant, hereby agrees to pay the aggregate 
Exercise Price for such shares of Preferred Stock in the manner set forth in Section 3(B) of the 
Warrant.   

Number of Shares of Preferred Stock:1      

 
 The undersigned agrees that it is exercising the attached Warrant in full and that, upon 
receipt by the undersigned of the number of shares of Preferred Stock set forth above, such 
Warrant shall be deemed to be cancelled and surrendered to the Company. 
 
 

Holder:      
By:       
Name:      
Title:      

 

                                                           
1. Number of shares to be received by the undersigned upon exercise of the attached Warrant pursuant to 

Section 3(B) thereof. 
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Company has caused this Warrant to be duly executed by 
a duly authorized officer. 

Dated:  _______________ 

COMPANY:  _______________ 
 
 
By:      
 Name: 
 Title: 
 
 
Attest: 
 
 
By:       
 Name:  
 Title: 

[Signature Page to Warrant] 



 

SCHEDULE A 
 

 
Item 1  
Name: 
Corporate or other organizational form: 
Jurisdiction of organization: 
 
Item 2 
Exercise Price:2 
 
Item 3 
Issue Date: 
 
Item 4 
Liquidation Amount: 
 
Item 5 
Series of Perpetual Preferred Stock: 
 
Item 6 
Date of Letter Agreement between the Company and the United States Department of the 
Treasury: 
 
Item 7 

3 Number of shares of Preferred Stock:
 
Item 8 
Company’s address: 
 
Item 9 
Notice information: 

                                                           
2  $0.01 per share or such greater amount as the Charter may require as the par value of the Preferred Stock.   

3  The initial number of shares of Preferred Stock for which this Warrant is exercisable shall include the 
number of shares required to effect the cashless exercise pursuant to Section 3(B) of this Warrant (e.g., 
such number of shares of Preferred Stock having an aggregate Liquidation Amount equal in value to the 
aggregate Exercise Price) such that, following exercise of this Warrant and payment of the Exercise Price 
in accordance with such Section 3(B), the net number of shares of Preferred Stock delivered to the 
Warrantholder (and rounded to the nearest whole share) would have an aggregate Liquidation Amount 
equal to 5% of the aggregate amount invested by the United States Department of the Treasury on the 
investment date.  
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SCHEDULE A

ADDITIONAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS

Company Infonnation:

Name of the Company: Peoples Bancorporation, Inc.

Corporate or other organizational fonn: Corporation

Jurisdiction of Organization: South Carolina

Appropriate Federal Banking Agency: Office of the Comptroller of the Currency

Notice Infonnation:

Tenns of the Purchase:

Peoples Bancorporation, Inc.
1818 East Main Street
Easley, SC 29640
Attn: President
Facsimile: (864) 859-5121

Series of Preferred Stock Purchased: Fixed Rate Cumulative Perpetual Preferred
Stock, Series T

Per Share Liquidation Preference of Preferred Stock: $1,000.00

Number of Shares of Preferred Stock Purchased: 12,660

Dividend Payment Dates on the Preferred Stock: February 15, May 15, August 15 and
November 15 of each year

Series of Warrant Preferred Stock: Fixed Rate Cumulative Perpetual Preferred
Stock, Series W

Number of Warrant Shares: 633.00633

Number ofNet Warrant Shares (after net settlement): 633

Exercise Price of the Warrant: $0.01 per share

Purchase Price: $12,660,000.00

Closing:

Location of Closing: Telephonic.
Time of Closing: 9:00 AM EDT.
Date of Closing: April 24, 2009

Letter Agreement UST Seq. No. 921



Wire Information for Closing: ABA Number:
Bank:
Account Name:
Account Number:
Beneficiary:

Contact for Confirmation of Wire Information:

Letter Agreement UST Seq. No. 921



SCHEDULEB

CAPITALIZATION

Capitalization Date: March 31, 2009

Common Stock

Par value: $1.11

Total Authorized: 15,000,000 shares

Outstanding: 7,070,139 shares

Subject to warrants, options, convertible
securities, etc.: 522,913 shares

Reserved for benefit plans and other issuances: None

Remaining authorized but unissued: 7,406,948 shares

Shares issued after Capitalization Date (other
than pursuant to warrants, options,
convertible securities, etc. as set f0l1h
above): None

Preferred Stock

Par value: None

Total Authorized: 15,000,000 shares

Outstanding (by series): None

Reserved for issuance: None

Remaining authorized but unissued: 15,000,000 shares

Holders of 5% or more of any class of capital stock Primary Address

Robert E. Dye, Jr.
Alexander C. Dye

Letter Agreement

(6.8%)
(6.5%)

P.O. Box 1989, Easley, SC 29641
P.O. Box 1989, Easley, SC 29641
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SCHEDULE C

LITIGATION

List any exceptions to the representation and warranty in Section 2.2(1) of the Securities
Purchase Agreement - Standard Terms.

If none, please so indicate by checking the box: I:RJ.
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SCHEDULED

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS

List any exceptions to the representation and warranty in the second sentence of Section 2.2(m)
of the Securities Purchase Agreement - Standard Terms.

If none, please so indicate by checking the box: 1Kl .

List any exceptions to the representation and warranty in the last sentence of Section 2.2(m) of
the Securities Purchase Agreement - Standard Terms.

If none, please so indicate by checking the box: 1Kl .
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SCHEDULEE

REGULATORY AGREEMENTS

List any exceptions to the representation and warranty in Section 2.2(s) of the Securities
Purchase Agreement - Standard Terms.

A Company Subsidiary, Bank of Anderson, N.A., is subject to and a party to a written agreement
with the Comptroller of the Currency dated October 15,2008. A copy ofthe agreement has been
furnished to the Investor.

If none, please so indicate by checking the box: D.
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#2008-141

AGREEMENT BY AND BETWEEN
Bank of Anderson, National Association

Anderson, South Carolina
and

The Comptroller of the Currency

Bank of Anderson, National Association, Anderson, South Carolina ("Bank") and the

Comptroller of the Cunency of the United States of America ("Comptroller") wish to protect the

interests of the depositors, other customers, and shareholders of the Bank, and, toward that end, wish

the Bank to operate safely and soundly and in accordance with all applicable laws, rules and

regulations.

The Comptroller, through his National Bank Examiner, has examined the Bank and his

findings are contained in the RepOlt of Examination ("ROE") for the examination commenced on

April 28, 2008.

In consideration of the above premises, it is agreed, between the Bank, by and through its

duly elected and acting Board of Directors ("Board"), and the Comptroller, through his authorized

representative, that the Bank shall operate at all times in compliance with the articles of this

Agreement.

ARTICLE I

JURISDICTION
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(1) This Agreement shall be construed to be a "written agreement entered into with the

agency" within the meaning of12 US.c. § 1818(b)(1).

(2) This Agreement shall be construed to be a "written agreement between such

depository institution and such agency" within the meaning of 12 US.c. § 1818(e)(1)and 12 US.c.

§ 1818(i)(2).

(3) This Agreement shall be construed to be a "f01111al written agreement" within the

meaning of 12 C.F.R. § 5.51(c)(6)(ii). See 12 US.C. § 183li.

(4) This Agreement shall be construed to be a "written agreement" within the meaning of

12 US.c. § 1818(u)(1)(A).

(5) All reports or plans which the Bank or Board has agreed to submit to the Assistant

Deputy Comptroller pursuant to this Agreement shall be forwarded to:

Kent D. Stone
Assistant Deputy Comptroller
Carolinas Field Office
212 South Tryon Street, Suite 700
Charlotte, N011h Carolina 28281

ARTICLE II

COMPLIANCE COMMITTEE

(1) Within fifteen (15) days of the date of this Agreement, the Board shall appoint a

Compliance Committee of at least five (5) directors, of which no more than one (1) shall be an
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employee or controlling shareholder of the Bank or any of its affiliates (as the tel111 "affiliate" is

defined in 12 U.S.c. § 371c(b)(1)), or a family member of any such person. Upon appointment, the

names of the members of the Compliance Committee and, in the event of a change of the

membership, the name of any new member shall be submitted in writing to the Assistant Deputy

Comptroller. The Compliance Committee shall be responsible for monitoring and coordinating the

Bank's adherence to the provisions of this Agreement.

(2) The Compliance Committee shall meet at least monthly.

(3) Within thirty (30) days of the date of this Agreement and every thirty (30) days

thereafter, the Compliance Committee shall submit a written progress report to the Board setting

f011h in detail:

(a) description of the action needed to achieve full compliance with each Al1icle

of this Agreement;

(b) actions taken to comply with each AI1ic1e of this Agreement; and

(c) the results and status of those actions.

(4) The Board shall fonvard a copy of the Compliance Committee's rep011, with any

additional comments by the Board, to the Assistant Deputy Comptroller within ten (10) days of

receiving such rep011.

LOAN PORTFOLIO MANAGEMENT
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(1) The Board shall, within sixty (60) days, develop, implement, and thereafter ensure

Bank adherence to a written program to improve the Bank's loan portfolio management. The program

shall include, but not be limited to:

(a) procedures to ensure that extensions of credit are granted, by renewal or

otherwise, to any bon"ower only after obtaining and analyzing current and

satisfactory credit information;

(b) a system to track and analyze exceptions;

(c) procedures to ensure continued confom1ance with Call Report instmctions;

(d) procedures to ensure the continued accuracy of intemal management

infom1ation systems;

(e) a performance appraisal process, including perfonl1ance appraisals, job

descriptions, and incentive programs for loan officers, which adequately

consider their performance relative to policy compliance, documentation

standards, accuracy in credit grading, and other loan administration matters;

(f) procedures to track and analyze concentrations of credit, significant

economic factors, and general conditions and their impact on the credit

quality of the Bank's loan and lease portfolios;
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(g) a process to ensure market analysis is perfonned for various property types

and geographic markets represented in the banks portfolio no less than

qUal1erly;

(h) a comprehensive loan review process that quantifies the overall level of

credit risk and assesses the quality of credit risk management; and

(i) procedures to ensure the re-appraisal of property that defines the clitetia for

when a new or adjusted appraisal is required based upon changes in market

conditions or original project plans.

(2) Upon completion, a copy of the program shall be forwarded to the Assistant Deputy

Comptroller.

(3) Within sixty (60) days, the Board shall develop, implement, and thereafter ensure

Bank adherence to systems which provide for effective monitoring of:

(a) early problem loan identification to assure the timely identification and

rating of loans and leases based on lending officer submissions;

(b) statistical records that will serve as a basis for identifying sources of problem

loans and leases by industry, size, collateral, division, group, indirect dealer,

and individual lending officer;

(c)

UST Seq. No. 921
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(d) compliance with the Bank's lending policies and laws, rules, and regulations

pertaining to the Bank's lending function;

(e) adequacy of credit and collateral documentation; and

(f) concentrations of credit.

(4) Beginning December 2008, on a monthly basis management will provide the Board

with written reports including, at a minimum, the following information:

(a) the identification, type, rating, and amount of problem loans and leases;

(b) the identification and amount of delinquent loans and leases ;

(c) credit and collateral documentation exceptions;

(d) the identification and status of credit related violations of law, rule or

regulation ;

(e) the identity of the loan officer who originated each loan repOlied in

accordance with subparagraphs (a) through (d) of this Ariicle and Paragraph;
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(f) an analysis of concentrations of credit, significant economic factors, and

general conditions and their impact on the credit quality of the Bank's loan

and lease portfolios;

(g) the identification and amount of loans and leases to executive officers,

directors, principal shareholders (and their related interests) of the Bank; and

(h) the identification ofloans and leases not in conformance with the Bank's

lending and leasing policies, and exceptions to the Bank's lending and

leasing policies.

(5) The Board shall ensure that the Bank has processes, personnel, and control systems to

ensure implementation of and adherence to the program and systems developed pursuant to this

Article.

ARTICLE IV

ALLOWANCE FOR LOAN AND LEASE LOSSES

(1) Within sixty (60) days, the Board shall adopt, implement, and thereafter ensure

adherence to written policies and procedures for maintaining an adequate Allowance for Loan and

Lease Losses ("ALLL") in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. The ALLL

policies and procedures shall be consistent with the guidance set f01ih in the Federal Financial

Institutions Examination Council's "Interagency Policy Statement on the Allowance for Loan and

Lease Losses" dated December 13, 2006 (OCC Bulletin 2006-47), and shall at a minimum include:
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(a) procedures for detennining whether a loan is impaired and measuring the

amount of impairment, consistent with FASB Statement of Financial

Accounting Standards No. 114, Accounting by Creditors for Impaim1ent of a

Loan;

(b) procedures for segmenting the loan pOlifolio and estimating loss on groups

of loans, consistent with FASB Statement of Financial Accounting Standards

No.5, Accounting for Contingencies;

(c) procedures for validating the ALLL methodology;

(d) a process for summarizing and documenting, for the Board's review and

approval, the amount to be repOlied in the Consolidated RepOlis of

Condition and Income ("Call Reports") for the ALLL. Any deficiency in the

ALLL shall be remedied in the quarter it is discovered, prior to the filing of

the Call RepOlis, through additional provision expense.

(2) The Board shall ensure that the Bank has processes, personnel, and control systems to

ensure implementation of and adherence to the policies and procedures developed pursuant to this

Article.

(3) A copy of the Board's program shall be submitted to the Assistant Deputy

Comptroller for review and prior wlitten detem1ination of no supervisory objection. Upon receiving a

detennination of no supervisory objection from the Assistant Deputy Comptroller, the Bank shall

implement and adhere to the program.
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ARTICLE V

CRITICIZED ASSETS

(1) The Bank shall take immediate and continuing action to protect its interest in those

assets cliticized in the ROE, in any subsequent Rep0l1 of Examination, by intemal or extemalloan

review, or in any list provided to management by the National Bank Examiners during any

examination.

(2) Within sixty (60) days, the Board shall adopt, implement, and thereafter ensure Bank

adherence to a written program designed to eliminate the basis of criticism of assets criticized in the

ROE, in any subsequent Report of Examination, or by any internal or externa110an review, or in any

list provided to management by the National Bank Examiners during any examination as "doubtful,"

"substandard," or "special mention." This program shall include, at a minimum:

(a) an identification of the expected sources of repayment;

(b) the appraised value of SUPP0l1ing collateral and the position of the Bank's

lien on such collateral where applicable;

(c) an analysis of current and satisfactory credit infonnation, including cash

flow analysis where loans are to be repaid from operations; and

(d) the proposed action to eliminate the basis of criticism and the time frame for

its accomplishment.
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(3) Upon adoption, a copy of the program for all criticized assets equal to or exceeding

fifty thousand dollars ($50,000) shall be forwarded to the Assistant Deputy Comptroller.

(4) The Board shall ensure that the Bank has processes, personnel, and control systems to

ensure implementation of and adherence to the program developed pursuant to this Al1icle.

(5) The Board, or a designated committee, shall conduct a review, on at least a monthly

basis, to detern1ine:

(a) the status of each criticized asset or criticized portion thereof that equals or

exceeds fifty thousand dollars ($50,000);

(b) management's adherence to the program adopted pursuant to this A11icle;

(c) the status and effectiveness of the written program; and

(d) the need to revise the program or take alternative action.

(6) A copy of each review shall be fOlwarded to the Assistant Deputy Comptroller on a

monthly basis (in a forn1at similar to Appendix A, attached hereto).

(7) The Bank may extend credit, directly or indirectly, including renewals, extensions or

capitalization of acclUed interest, to a borrower whose loans or other extensions of credit are
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criticized in the ROE, in any subsequent Report of Examination, in any intemal or extemalloan

review, or in any list provided to management by the National Bank Examiners during any

examination and whose aggregate loans or other extensions exceed fifty thousand dollars ($50,000)

only if each of the following conditions is met:

(a) the Board or designated committee finds that the extension of additional

credit is necessary to promote the best interests of the Bank and that plior to

renewing, extending or capitalizing any additional credit, a majOlity of the

full Board (or designated committee) approves the credit extension and

records, in writing, why such extension is necessary to promote the best

interests of the Bank; and

(b) a comparison to the written program adopted pursuant to this Article shows

that the Board's formal plan to collect or strengthen the criticized asset will

not be compromised.

(8) A copy of the approval of the Board or of the designated committee shall be

maintained in the file of the affected bon-ower.

ARTICLE VI

CONSTRUCTION LOAN UNDERWRITING STANDARDS

(1) Within sixty (60) days, the Board shall develop, implement, and thereafter adhere to a

written program to improve its construction loan underwriting standards. The program shall include,

but not be limited to, procedures for ensuring that:
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(a) market feasibility analyses are performed on construction projects;

(b) cash flow analyses are performed on construction loan bOlTowers;

(c) CUlTent rental and sales infom1ation is maintained in all construction

projects;

(d) periodic independent inspections are perfonned on all construction projects;

and

(e) all construction loans are either in confom1ity with the Bank's construction

loan policies and procedures or in compliance with the Bank's written

provisions for exceptions to loan policies and procedures.

(2) Upon completion, the Board shall submit a copy of the program to the Assistant

Deputy Comptroller for review.

(3) The Board shall ensure that the Bank has processes, personnel, and control systems to

ensure implementation of and adherence to the program developed pursuant to this Article.

ARTICLE VII

CONCENTRATrONS OF CREDIT
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(1) Within sixty (60) days, the Board shall adopt, implement, and thereafter ensure Bank

adherence to a written asset diversification program consistent with acc Banking Circular 255 . The

program shall include, but not necessarily be limited to, the following:

(a) a review of the balance sheet to identify any concentrations of credit;

(b) a written analysis of any concentration of credit identified above in order to

identify and assess the inherent credit, liquidity, and interest rate risk;

(c) policies and procedures to control and monitor concentrations of credit;

(d) an action plan approved by the Board to reduce the risk of any concentration

deemed imprudent in the above analysis; and

(e) a review of established North American Industry Classification System

(NAICS) limits to ensure the concentrations of credit limits are reasonable

and establish an effective risk measure.

(2) For purposes of this Al1icle, a concentration of credit is as defined in the "Loan

Portfolio Management" booklet of the Comptroller's Handbook.

(3) The Board shall ensure that future concentrations of credit are subjected to the

analysis required by subparagraph (b) and that the analysis demonstrate that the concentration will

not subject the Bank to undue credit or interest rate risk.
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(4) The Board shall forward a copy of any analysis perforn1ed on existing or potential

concentrations of credit to the Assistant Deputy Comptroller immediately following the review.

(5) The Board shall ensure that the Bank has processes, personnel, and control systems to

ensure implementation of and adherence to the program developed pursuant to this Article.

ARTICLE VIII

STRATEGIC PLAN

(1) Within sixty (60) days, the Board shall adopt, implement, and thereafter ensure Bank

adherence to a written strategic plan for the Bank covering at least a three-year period. The strategic

plan shall establish objectives for the Bank's overall risk profile, earnings performance, growth,

balance sheet mix, off-balance sheet activities, liability structure, capital adequacy, reduction in the

volume of nonperforming assets, product line development and market segments that the Bank

intends to promote or develop, together with strategies to achieve those objectives and, at a

minimum, include:

(a) a mission statement that forn1s the framework for the establishment of

strategic goals and objectives;

(b) an assessment of the Bank's present and future operating environment;

(c) the development of strategic goals and objectives to be accomplished over

the short and long tern1;
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(d) an identification of the Bank's present and future product lines (assets and

liabilities) that will be utilized to accomplish the strategic goals and

objectives established in (1 )(c) of this Article;

(e) an evaluation of the Bank's intemal operations, staffing requirements, board

and management info1l11ation systems and policies and procedures for their

adequacy and contribution to the accomplishment of the goals and objectives

developed under (1)(c) of this Article;

(f) a management employment and succession program to promote the retention

and continuity of capable management;

(g) product line development and market segments that the Bank intends to

promote or develop;

(h) an action plan to improve bank eamings and accomplish identified strategic

goals and objectives, including individual responsibilities, accountability and

specific time frames;

(i) a financial forecast to include projections for major balance sheet and

income statement accounts and desired financial ratios over the period

covered by the strategic plan;

(j) control systems to mitigate risks associated with planned new products,

growth, or any proposed changes in the Bank's operating environment;
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(k) specific plans to establish responsibilities and accountability for the strategic

planning process, new products, growth goals, or proposed changes in the

Bank's operating environment; and

(1) systems to monitor the Bank's progress in meeting the plan's goals and objectives.

(2) Within ninety (90) days, the Board shall develop, implement, and thereafter ensure

Bank adherence to a three year capital program. The program shall include:

(a) projections for growth and capital requirements based upon a detailed

analysis of the Bank's assets, liabilities, earnings, fixed assets, and off­

balance sheet activities;

(b) projections of the sources and timing of additional capital to meet the Bank's

CUlTent and future needs;

(c) the primary source(s) from which the Bank will strengthen its capital

stmcture to meet the Bank's needs;

(d)

(e)
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(i) when the Bank is in compliance with its approved capital program;

and

(ii) when the Bank is in compliance with 12 U.S.c. §§ 56 and 60.

(3) Upon adoption, a copy of the plan shall be forwarded to the Assistant Deputy

Comptroller for review and prior written detennination of no supervisory objection. Upon receiving a

determination of no supervisory objection from the Assistant Deputy Comptroller, the Bank shall

implement and adhere to the strategic and capital plans.

ARTICLE IX

PROFIT PLAN

(1) Within sixty (60) days, the Board shall develop, implement, and thereafter ensure

Bank adherence to a written profit plan to improve and sustain the eamings of the Bank. This plan

shall include, at minimum, the following elements:

(a) identification of the major areas in and means by which the Board will seek

to improve the Bank's operating perfOlmance;

(b) realistic and comprehensive budgets, including projected balance sheets and

year-end income statements;

(c) a budget review process to monitor both the Bank's income and expenses,

and to compare actual figures with budgetary projections; and
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(d) a description of the operating assumptions that f011n the basis for major

projected income and expense components.

(2) The budgets and related documents required in paragraph (1) above for 2008 shall be

submitted to the Assistant Deputy Comptroller upon completion. The Board shall submit to the

Assistant Deputy Comptroller annual budgets as described in paragraph (1) above for each year this

F011nal Agreement remains in effect. The budget for each year shall be submitted on or before

January 31, of that year.

(3) The Board shall forward comparisons of its balance sheet and profit and loss

statement to the profit plan projections to the Assistant Deputy Comptroller on a qUaIierly basis.

(4) The Board shall ensure that the Bank has processes, personnel, and control systems to

ensure implementation of and adherence to the plan developed pursuant to this A11icle.
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ARTICLE X

LIQUIDITY

(1) The Board shall ensure the level of liquidity at the Bank is sufficient to sustain the

Bank's CUlTent operations and to withstand any anticipated or eXh-aordinary demand against its

funding base_ Such actions may include, but are not necessarily limited to :

(a) selling assets;

(b) obtaining lines of credit from the Federal Reserve Bank;

(c) obtaining lines of credit from cOlTespondent banks;

(d) recovering charged-off assets; and

(e) injecting additional equity capital.

(2) The Board shall review the Bank's liquidity on a monthly basis. Such reviews shall

consider:

(a) a maturity schedule of certificates of deposit, including large uninsured

deposits;

(b)

(c)
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(d) an analysis of the continuing availability and volatility of present funding

sources;

(e) an analysis of the impact of decreased cash flow from the Bank's loan

p0l1folio resulting from delinquent and non-perfol111ing loans;

(f) an analysis of the impact of decreased cash flow from the sale ofloans or

loan participations; and

(g) geographic disbursement of and risk from brokered deposits.

(3) The Board shall take appropriate action to ensure adequate sources of liquidity in

relation to the Bank's needs. Monthly reports shall set f011h liquidity requirements and sources and

establish a contingency plan. Copies of these rep0l1s shall be forwarded to the Assistant Deputy

Comptroller in the Bank's quarterly report to the Assistant Deputy Comptroller.

ARTICLE XI

BROKERED DEPOSITS

(1) The Bank may accept Brokered Deposits (as defined by 12 C.F.R. § 337.6(a)(2» for

deposit at the Bank only after obtaining a prior written detelmination of no supervisory objection

from the Assistant Deputy Comptroller.
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(2) The limitation of paragraph (1) shall include the acquisition of Brokered Deposits

through any transfer, purchase, or sale of assets, including Federal funds transactions.

(3) If the Bank seeks to acquire Brokered Deposits, the Board shall apply to the Assistant

Deputy Comptroller for written pelmission. Such application shall contain, at a minimum, the

following:

(a) the dollar volume, maturities, and cost of the Brokered Deposits to be

acquired;

(b) the proposed use of the Brokered Deposits, i.e., short-term liquidity or

restructuring ofliabilities to reduce cost;

(c) altemative funding sources available to the Bank; and

(d) the reasons why the Bank believes that the acceptance of the Brokered

Deposits does not constitute an unsafe and unsound practice in its paIiicular

circumstances.

(e) The Assistant Deputy Comptroller may require the submission of such

additional infom1ation as necessary to make an infol1ned decision. Upon

consideration of the Bank's application, the Assistant Deputy Comptroller

will determine whether the proposed acquisition of Brokered Deposits may

be accomplished in a safe and sound manner and may condition the Bank's

acquisition as the Assistant Deputy Comptroller shall deem appropriate.
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ARTICLE XII

CLOSING

(1) Although the Board has agreed to submit certain programs and reports to the

Assistant Deputy Comptroller for review or prior written dete1111ination of no supervisory objection,

the Board has the ultimate responsibility for proper and sound management of the Bank.

(2) It is expressly and clearly understood that if, at any time, the Comptroller deems it

appropriate in fulfilling the responsibilities placed upon him/her by the several laws of the United

States of America to undertake any action affecting the Bank, nothing in this Agreement shall in any

way inhibit, estop, bar, or otherwise prevent the Comptroller £i'om so doing.

(3) Any time limitations imposed by this Agreement shall begin to run from the effective

date of this Agreement. Such time requirements may be extended in writing by the Assistant Deputy

Comptroller for good cause upon written application by the Board.

(4) The provisions of this Agreement shall be effective upon execution by the parties

hereto and its provisions shall continue in full force and effect unless or until such provisions are

amended in writing by mutual consent of the palties to the Agreement or excepted, waived, or

telminated in writing by the Comptroller.

(5) In each instance in this Agreement in which the Board is required to ensure adherence

to, and undeltake to perf01111 certain obligations of the Bank, it is intended to mean that the Board

shall:
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(a) authOlize and adopt such actions on behalf of the Bank as may be necessary

for the Bank to perform its obligations and undertakings under the tem1S of

this Agreement;

(b) require the timely reporting by Bank management of such actions directed

by the Board to be taken under the ten11S of this Agreement;

(c) fOllow-up on any non-compliance with such actions in a timely and

appropriate manner; and

(d) require corrective action be taken in a timely manner of any non-compliance

with such actions.

(6) This Agreement is intended to be, and shall be construed to be, a supervisory "written

agreement entered into with the agency" as contemplated by 12 US.c. § 1818(b)(1), and expressly

does not fonn, and may not be construed to form, a contract binding on the Comptroller or the United

States. Notwithstanding the absence of mutuality of obligation, or of consideration, or of a contract,

the Comptroller may enforce any of the commitments or obligations herein undertaken by the Bank

under his supervisory powers, including 12 US.c. § 1818(b)(1), and not as a matter of contract law.

The Bank expressly acknowledges that neither the Bank nor the Comptroller has any intention to

enter into a contract. The Bank also expressly acknowledges that no officer or employee of the Office

of the Comptroller of the Currency has statutOly or other authOlity to bind the United States, the US.

Treasury Department, the Comptroller, or any other federal bank regulatory agency or entity, or any

officer or employee of any of those entities to a contract affecting the Comptroller's exercise of his
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supervisory responsibilities. The te1111S of this Agreement, including this paragraph, are not subject to

amendment or modification by any extraneous expression, prior agreements or prior arrangements

between the parties, whether oral or written.

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF, the undersigned, authorized by the Comptroller, has hereunto set his

hand on behalf of the Comptroller.

/S/ JUni:D. Sfune October 15,2008

Kent D. Stone
Assistant Deputy Comptroller
Carolinas Field Office
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DISCLOSURE SCHEDULES

List any infonnation required pursuant to Section 2.1(a) of the Securities Purchase Agreement­
Standard Tenns.

2.2(h) - Audited Financial Statements for the years ended December 31,2006,2007 and 2008 are
attached. Complete unaudited financial statements for the quarter ended March 31, 2009 are not
yet available and will be provided to Investor as soon as reasonably possible. Attached are
incomplete consolidated balance sheets, income statements and stockholders' equity statements
for the first quarter of2009.

Ifnone, please so indicate by checking the box: O.
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Haynsworth Sinkler Boyd, P. A.
4/13/2009

<PAGE>

ITEM 7A QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT ~~RKET RISK

The section "r~ARKET RISK - INTEREST RATE SENSITIVITY"
nBusiness ll under Item 1 of this Annual Report on Form lO-K is
herein by reference.

i:\private\sec-bank\09811 \0001 \0\1 Ok2009\peoples1 0-k09.txt, 48

included in
incorporated

ITEr·j 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA

The following financial statements are filed with this report:

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm.

Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 31, 2008 and 2007.

Consolidated Statements of Income for the years ended December 31, 2008 and
2007.

Consolidated Statements of Shareholders' Equity and Comprehensive Income
for the years ended December 31, 2008 and 2007.

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the years ended December 31, 2008
and 2007.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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To the Shareholders and Board of Directors
Peoples Bancorporation, Inc.
Easley, South Carolina

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Peoples
Bancorporation, Inc. and Subsidiaries (the lICompanyll) as of December 31, 2008
and 2007, and the related consolidated statements of income, shareholders t

equity and comprehensive income, and cash flows for each of the years then
ended. These consolidated financial statements are the responsibility of the
Companyts management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
consolidated financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public
Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those standards require that
we plan and perform the audits to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes
examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting
principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our
audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above
present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Peoples
Bancorporation, Inc. and Subsidiaries as of December 31, 2008 and 2007 and the
results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the years then
ended, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America.

We were not engaged to examine management1s assessment of the
effectiveness of the Company1s internal control over financial reporting as of
December 31, 2008 included in Management's Annual Report on Internal Control
Over Financial Reporting included in the Company's Form 10-K filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission and, accordingly, we do not express an
opinion thereon.

s/Elliott Davis, LLC

Greenville, South Carolina
March 30, 2009
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PEOPLES BANCORPORATION, INC. ~ND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

(Amounts in thousands except share information)

<TABLE>
<CAPTION>
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December 31,

ASSETS
<S>
CASH fu~D DUE FROM BANKS .
INTEREST - BEARING DEPOSITS IN OTHER BN0KS
FEDERAL FUNDS SOLD .

SECURITIES
Trading assets .
Available for sale .
Held to maturity (fair value of $12,666 (2008)

and $13,113 (2007)) .
Other investments, at cost .

LON0S, net of allowance for loan losses of $9,217 (2008)
and $4,310 (2007) .

PREMISES fu~D EQUIPMENT, net of accumulated depreciation ...
ACCRUED INTEREST RECEIVABLE
ASSETS ACQUIRED IN SETTLEMENT OF LOANS .
CASH SURRENDER VALUE OF LIFE INSURANCE , .
OTHER ASSETS , .

Total assets

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
DEPOSITS

Noninterest-bearing
Interest-bearing

Total deposits .
SECURITIES SOLD UNDER REPURCHASE AGREEMENTS .
FEDER.l\L FUNDS PURCHASED .
ADVANCES FROM FEDERAL HOME LO~N BANK .. . , , .
NOTES PAYABLE - OTHER , .. , .... . ......... . ... . .
ACCRUED INTEREST PAY~.BLE .
OTHER LIABILITIES . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Total liabilities

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES - Notes 11 and 12
SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

Common stock 15,000,000 shares authorized; $1.11 par value per
share; 7,070,139 (2008) shares and 7,056,337 (2007) shares
issued and outstanding . .

Additional paid-in capital .
Retained earnings (deficit) .
Accumulated other comprehensive income . , .

Total shareholders' equity .

Total liabilities and shareholders' equity

</TABLE>

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated
financial statements.
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2008

<C>
$ 7,874

765
9,185

17,824

47
96,003

12,651
3,546

389,494
13,200
2,685
5,428

11,815
7,182

$ 559,875

51,091
394,278

445,369
22,181
1,028

34,600
11,000
2,636
1,549

518,363

7,848
41,752
(9,564)
1,476

41,512

$ 559,875

2007

8,618
643

1,263

10,524

84,796

13,102
4,795

414,688
13,757

3,321
1,023

11,350
1,087

$ 558,443

$ 53,950
363,671

417,621
19,824

429
65,100

4,465
763

508,202

7,833
41,624

784

50,241

$ 558,443
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PEOPLES BANCORPORATION, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME

(Amounts in thousands except per share information)

<TABLE>
<CAPTION>
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For the years ended December 31,

2008 2007

INTEREST INCOr,'!E
<S>

Interest and fees on loans .
Interest on securities

Taxable .
Tax - exempt . . .

Interest on federal funds sold

Total interest income

INTEREST EXPENSE
Interest on deposits . .
Interest on federal funds purchased and securities sold

under repurchase agreements . .
Interest on advances from Federal Home Loan Bank
Interest on notes payable . .

Total interest expense .

Net interest income .

PROVISION FOR LOAN LOSSES .

Net interest income after provision for loan losses

NON INTEREST INCOME
Service charges on deposit accounts .
Customer service fees .
Mortgage banking .
Brokerage services .
Bank owned life insurance ..
Loss on sale of securities available for sale .
Gain (loss) on sale of assets acquired in settlement of loans
Impairment write-down on FHLMC preferred stock .
Other noninterest income

Total non interest income

NON INTEREST EXPENSES
Salaries and benefits .
Occupancy . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
·Equipment . _. _. . . . . . . .
Marketing and advertising . . . . . . . . . . .
Communications . .
Printing and supplies .
Bank paid loan costs . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
Directors fees . .
Other post employment benefits .
Legal and professional fees . .
Other operating .

Total noninterest expenses ..

Income (loss) before income taxes .

PROVISION (BENEFIT) FOR INCOME TAXES .....

Net income (loss)

BASIC NET INCOME (LOSS) PER COMMON SHARE

DILUTED NET INCOME (LOSS) PER COMMON SHARE .

</TABLE>

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated
financial statements.
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<C>
$

$

$

$

27,188

3,050
1,502

61

31,801

13,113

343
1,606

105

15,167

16,634

13 , 820

2,814

1,900
133
359
196
532
(48)
(41)

(2,890)
591

732

9,415
956

1,351
403
268
186
813
435
351
650

2,278

17,106

(13,560)

(5,184)

(8,376)

(1.19)

(1.19)

<C>
$

$

$

$

30,959

3,037
1,422

128

35,546

14,308

455
1,859

16,622

18,924

900

18,024

1,844
124
468
205
476

16

709

3,842

9,385
866

1,364
508
253
198
200
450
261
442

2,039

15,966

5,900

1,557

4,343

0.59

0.59
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PEOPLES BANCORPORATION, INC. AND SUbSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY ~~D COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

For the years ended December 31, 2008 and 2007
(Amounts in thousands except share information)

<TABLE>
<CAPTION>

Common stock

<S>
BALANCE, DECEMBER 31, 2006 .

Net income .
Other comprehensive income, net of tax:

Unrealized holding gains on securities
available for sale,
net of income taxes of $396 .

Comprehensive income

Shares

<C>
6,666,568

Amount

<C>
$ 7,400

Additional
paid-in
capital

<C>
38,614

J'.~ccumu-

lated
other

Reta ned compre-
earn ngs hensive
(def cit) income
- ---- ----

<C> <C>
$ 32 $ 18

4,343

766

Total
share­
holders '
equity

<C>
46,064

4,343

766

5,109

Stock dividend (5%)
Cash in lieu of fractional shares

on stock dividend _.
Cash dividends ($.20 per share)
Proceeds from stock options exercised
Tax benefit of stock options exercised
Stock-based compensation .

BALANCE, DECEMBER 31, 2007 .

Net loss . .
Other comprehensive income, net of tax:

Unrealized holding gains on
securities available for sale,
net of income taxes of $1,356 ..

"Less reclassification adjustment
for losses included in net
income, net of income taxes of ($999)

Comprehensive income

335,462

54,307

7,056,337

373 2,654 (3,027)

(5)
(1,343)

60 144
119

93
------_.- -------_._ - --------

7,833 41,624

(8,376 )

784

2,631

(1,939)

(5 )

(1,343 )
204
119

93

50,241

(8,376)

2,631

(1,939)

(7,684)

Cash dividends ($ .15 per share) .
Proceeds from stock options exercised .
Stock-based compensation .
Cumulative effect of post retirement

cost of life insurance .

BALANCE, DECEMBER 31, 2008 .

</T~.BLE>

13,802

7,070,139

15

7,848 $

56
72

41,752 $

(1,060 )

(128)

(9,564 ) $ 1,476 $

(1,060)
71
72

(128)

41,512

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated
financial statements.
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PEOPLES BANCORPORATION, INC. fu~D SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

(Amounts in thousands)

<TABLE>
<CAPTION>
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For the years ended December 31,

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
<S>

Net income (loss)
Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) to net cash

provided by operating activities
Gain on sale of premises and equipment
Loss on sale of securities available for sale
(Gain) loss on sale of assets acquired in settlement of loans
Loss from trading assets .
Other than temporary impairment write - down on FHLMC preferred stock
Provision for loan losses . _ . . . . . . . . . . .
Benefit from deferred income taxes .
Depreciation.......... . _ _. _ _
Amortization and accretion (net) of premiums and discounts on securities , .
Stock-based compensation . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .. . .
(Increase) decrease in accrued interest receivable . , .
(Increase) decrease in other assets , , , .
Increase (decrease) in accrued interest payable .
Increase (decrease) in other liabilities , .

Net cash provided by operating activities

2008

<C>
$ (8,376)

(5)
48
41

145
2,890

13,820
(3,031)
1,142

17
72

636
(3,462)
(1,829)

786

2,894

2007

<C>
4,343

(177)

(16)

900
(96)

I, llO
51
93

(278 )
157

1,539
(648)

6,978

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchases of securities held to maturity
Purchases of securities available for sale ..
Sales (purchases) of other investments
Proceeds from principal pay downs on securities available for sale
Proceeds from the maturities and calls of securities available for
Proceeds from the sale of securities available for sale ..
Proceeds from maturity of securities held to maturity .
Investment in bank owned life insurance ..
Proceeds from sale of other real estate owned
Net (increase) decrease in loans .
Proceeds from the sale of premises and equipment
Purchase of premises and equipment

Net cash used for investing activities

sale

(444)
(28,289)

1,249
7,419
2,750
4,845

865
(593 )

3,283
3,686

97
(677)

(5,809)

(14,091)
(512)

7,575
4,600

315
(416)
ll2

(62,441)
523

(4,096)

(68,431)

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Net increase in deposits ,_ _ .
Net increase in federal funds purchased .. . .
Net increase in securities sold under repurchase agreements .. . _ . . _ . .
Net increase (decrease) in advances from Federal Home Loan Bank .
Proceeds from the exercise of stock options .
Tax benefit of stock options exercised .
Cash dividends paid . .
Cash in lieu of fractional shares on stock dividends .

Net cash provided by financing activities ..

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

CASH PRD CASH EQUIVALENTS, BEGINNING OF YEAR

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, END OF YEAR .

G\.SH PAID FOR
Interest

Income taxes

NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS
Change in unrealized gain (loss) on available for sale securities

27,748
599

2,357
(19,500)

71

(1,060 )

10,215

7,300

10,524

$ 17,824

$ 16,996

126

$ 1,049

32,576
429

1,456
15,100

204
ll9

(1,343)
(5)

48,536

(12,917)

23,441

$ 10,524

$ 15,083

$ 1,504

$ 1,162

Loans transferred to other real estate

</T.Z\BLE>

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated
financial statements.
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PEOPLES BANCORPOR~TION, INC . ft~D SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOL I DATED F INft~CI AL STATEMENTS

NOTE 1 - SUM~W.RY OF S IGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES Ah~ ACTIVITIES
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Principles of consol i dation and nature of operations
The cons olidated financial statements include the accounts of Peoples
Bancorporation, Inc . ( t.he "Company " ) and it s wholly-o.....ned s ubsidiaries,
The Peoples National Bank, Bank of Anders on, N . A., and Seneca Nationa l
Bank (collec tive l y referred to as the "Banks " ). All significant
intercompany ba l ances and transactions have b een eliminated. The Banks
ope rate under individual na t ional bank charters and provide fu l l
banking services to customers . The Banks are subject to regulation b y
the Of fice of the Comptro l le r of the Currency. The Company is subject
t o regulation by the Federal Reserve Board.

Esti mates
The prepara tion of consolidated financial statement s in conformity with
accounting principl es gene rally accepted in the United States of
America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that
affec t the report ed amounts of asse ts and liabiliti es a nd disclosure of
contingent assets and liabilit ies at the date of the financia l
statements and the reported amounts of interest and noninteres t income
and expenses during the report ing pe riod. Actual result s could differ
from those estimates.

Segments
The Company, through its subsidia ries, provides a broad range of
f inancia l services to individuals and companies. These services include
demand, time and savings deposits; lending and ATM processing and are
substantially the same across subsidiaries. While the Company ' s
decision-makers monitor the revenue streams of the various financi a l
products and serv ices by product line and by subsidiary, the operations
and the allocation of resources are managed, and financial perfor mance
is evalua ted, on an organizat i on-wide basis . Accordingly, the Company 's
b anking operation is conside r ed by manageme nt to b e one repor tabl e
operating segment .

Securit ies
The Company accounts for securit ies in acco r dance with Statement of
Financial Accounting Standards ("SFAS") No. 115, Accounting for Certain
Investment s in Deb t and Equi ty Securities. Debt securi t ies are
classified up on purchase as available for sa le, held to maturity, or
trading . Such assets classified as available for sale are carried at
fair value. Unreali zed holding gains or losse s are repor ted as a
component of shareholders' e qu ity (accumulat e d other comprehensive
income (loss )) net of deferred income taxes . Secu r ities classified as
held to maturity are carried at cost, adjusted f or the amortization of
premiums and the accretion of discounts into interest i ncome using a
me thodology which approximates a level yield of int erest over the
estimated remaining period until maturity. To qualify as held to
maturity , the Company must have the ability and intent to hold the
securities to matur ity. Tr adin.g securi ties are carried at market value.
Unrealized holding gains or losses are recognized in income. The
Company had no trading securities at December 31, 2007. Gains or losses
on dispositions of securities are based on the difference between the
net proceeds and the adjusted carrying amount of the securities sold,
u sing the specific identificat i on method .

Loans and interest on loans
Loans are stated at the pr incipal balance outstanding reduced by the
allowance for loan l osses. Interest income is recognized o ver the term
of t he loan based on t h e contractual i n terest rate and the principal
balance out s tanding.

Loans generally are placed on non - acc r ual status when principal or
interest becomes ninety days past due or when payment i n full is not
anticipated. Inte res t payments received after a loan is placed on
non-accrual
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NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFIC.~T ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACTIVITIES, Continued

status are applied as principal reductions until such time the loan is
returned to accrual status. Generally, a loan is returned to accrual
status when the loan is brought current and the collectibility of
principal and interest is no longer in doubt.

Allowance for loan losses
The allowance for loan losses is established as losses are estimated to
have occurred through a provision for loan losses charged to earnings.
Loan losses are charged against the allowance when management believes
the uncollectibility of a loan balance is confirmed. Subsequent
recoveries, if any, are credited to the allowance.

The allowance for loan losses is evaluated on a regular basis by
management and is based upon managementls periodic review of the
anticipated collectibility of the loans in light of historical
experience, the nature and volume of the loan portfolio, adverse
situations that may affect the borrower 1 s ability to repay, estimated
value of any underlying collateral and prevailing economic conditions.
This evaluation is inherently subjective as it requires estimates that
are susceptible to significant revision as more information becomes
available.

The allowance consists of specific, general and unallocated components.
The specific component relates to loans that are classified as
doubtful, substandard or special mention. For such loans that are also
classified as impaired, an allowance is established when the discounted
cash flows (or collateral value or observable market price) of the
impaired loan is lower than the carrying value of that loan. The
general component covers non-classified loans and is based on
historical loss experience adjusted for qualitative factors. An
unallocated component is maintained to cover uncertainties that could
affect management's estimate of probable losses. The unallocated
component of the allowance reflects the margin of imprecision inherent
in the underlying assumptions used in the methodologies for estimating
specific and general losses in the portfolio.

A loan is considered impaired when, based on current information and
events, it is probable that the Company will be unable to collect the
scheduled payments of principal or interest when due according to the
contractual terms of the loan agreement. Factors considered by
management in determining impairment include payment status, collateral
value, and the probability of collecting scheduled principal and
interest payments when due. Loans that experience insignificant payment
delays and payment shortfalls generally are not classified as impaired.
Management determines the significance of payment delays and payment
shortfalls on a case-by-case basis, taking into consideration all of
the circumstances surrounding the loan and the borrower, including the
length of the delay, the reasons for the delay, the borrower's prior
payment record and the amount of the shortfall in relation to the
principal and interest owed. Impairment is measured on a loan by loan
basis for commercial and construction loans by either the present value
of expected future cash flows discounted at the loan's effective
interest rate, the loan's obtainable market price, or the fair value of
the collateral if the loan is collateral dependent.

Large groups of smaller balance homogeneous loans are collectively
evaluated for impairment. Accordingly, the Company does not separately
identify individual consumer and residential loans for impairment
disclosures, unless such loans are the subject of a restructuring
agreement.

Premises and equipment
Premises and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation. Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method
over the estimated useful lives of the assets. Additions to premises
and equipment and major replacements or betterments are added at cost.
MaintenancE, repairs, and minor replacements are charged to expense
when incurred. When assets are retired or otherwise disposed of, the
cost and accumulated depreciation are removed from the accounts and any
gain or loss is reflected in income.
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NOTE - S~411ARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POL ICIES AND ACTIVITIES, Continued

Assets acquired in settlement of loans
Assets acquired in sett l ement of loans represents properties acqui red
through foreclosure and is carried at the lower of cost or fair value,
adjusted for estimated selling costs. Fair values of real estate owned
are reviewed regularly and writedo~ms are recorded when it is
determined that the carrying value of real estate exceeds the fair
value less estimated costs to sell. Costs r elating to the development
and improvement ot such property are capitalized, whereas those costs
relating to holding the property are charged to expense. At December
31. 2008 and 2007 rea l estate owned by the Company totaled $5,428.000
and $1,023,000, respective l y. Dur i ng 2008 and 2007, the Company
transferred loans of $7,688,000 and $864,000, respectively to asse t s
acquired in settlement o f loans.

Advertising and public relat i ons expense
Advertising , promotional and other business development costs are
gene rally expens ed as incurred . External costs incurred in p roducing
media advertising are expensed the first time the advertising takes
place. External costs relating to direct mailing costs a re expens ed in
the period in which the direct mailing s are sent.

Income taxes
The provision f or income taxes includes deferred taxes on tempo rary
differences between the recognition of certain income and expense items
f or tax and financial statement purposes . I ncome taxes are computed on
the liabil i ty method as described in SFAS No . 109, Accounting for
Income Taxes.

I n June 2006, the Financ i al Accounting Standards Board ( " FASB " ) issued
Interpretation ("FIN" ) No . 48, Accounting for uncertainty in Income
Taxes, to c l arify the accounting and disclosure for uncerta inty in tax
positions , as defined. FIN No. 48 seeks to reduce the diversity in
practice associated with certain aspects of the recognition and
measurement related to accounting for income taxes. The Company
implemented the provisions of FIN No. 48 as o f January 1, 2007, and has
analyzed filing positions in all of the federal and state jurisdictions
whe re it is required to file income tax returns, as \.;ell as all ope n
tax years in these jurisdictions . The Company believes that its income
tax filing positions taken or expected to be taken in an its tax
returns wi l l more like ly than not be sustained upon audit by the taxing
authori t ies and does not anticipate any adj ustments that will resu l t in
a material adverse i mpact on t he Company's financial condition, resu l ts
of opera tions , o r cash flow. Therefore , no reserves for unce r tain
income tax positions have been recorded pu rsuant to FIN No . 48. In
addition, the Company did not record a cumulative effect a djustment
related to the adoption of FIN No. 48 at January 1, 2007.

Statements of cash flows
For the purposes of reporting cash flows, the Company considers cash
and cash equival ents to be those amount s included in the ba lance sheet
captions IICash and Due From Banks, II II Interest-bearing Deposits in Other
Banks 11 and II Federal Funds Sold. II Cash and cash equivalents have an
original maturity of three months or less.

Risk a nd uncertainties
In the normal course of it s business the Company encounters two
significant t ypes of risk: economic and regulatory. There are three
main components of economi c r i sk : interest rate risk, credit riSK, and
market risk. The Company is subject to interest rate risk t o the degree
that its interest -bea ring liabil ities mature or reprice at different
speeds, or on d i fferent bases, than its interest - earning assets . Credit
risk is the risk of default on the Company ' s loan portfolio that
results from borro\\lers I inability or unwillingness to ma ke
contractually required payments. Market risk reflects changes in the
value of collateral underlying loans receivable, the valuation of real
estate held by the Company, and the val uat ion of loans he ld for sale
and mortgage-backed securities available for sale.
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NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES ~~D ACTIVITIES, Continued

The Company is subject to the regulations of various government
agencies. These regulations can and do change significantly from period
to period. The Company also undergoes periodic examinations by the
regulatory agencies, which may subject it to further changes with
respect to asset valuations, amounts of required loss allowances, and
operating restrictions, resulting from the regulators' judgments based
on information available to them at the time of their examination.

Reclassifications
Certain prior year amounts have been reclassified to conform with the
current presentation. These reclassifications had no effect on
previously reported net income or shareholders! equity.

Stock option compensation plans
The Company has an employee stock option compensation plan through
which the Board of Directors may grant stock options to officers and
employees to purchase common stock of the Company at prices not less
than 100 percent of the fair value of the stock on the date of grant.
The Company also has another employee stock option plan under which
options may no longer be granted, but under which exercisable options
remain outstanding. The outstanding options under both plans become
exercisable in various increments beginning on the date of grant and
expiring ten years from the date of grant. The Company also has a
non-employee directors' stock option plan through which non-employee
directors of the Con~any are granted options to purchase 500 shares of
common stock for each year served on the board to a maximum of 5,000
options per director The option price shall not be less than 100
percent of the fair value of the stock on the grant date. The
outstanding options become exercisable on the grant date and expire at
the earlier of the end of the director's term or ten years from the
grant date. . The Company also has another non-employee directors'
stock option plan under which options may no longer be granted, but
under which exercisable options remain outstanding.

The Company follows the requirements of SFAS No. 123(R) to account for
its stock option plans. In accordance with the provisions of this
statement, the Company recorded approximately $72,000 and $93,000 of
compensation expense in 2008 and 2007, respectively.

Recently issued accounting standards
The following is a summary of recent authoritative pronouncements that
affect accounting, reporting, and disclosure of financial information
by the Company,

In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 157, Fair Value
Measurements. SFAS No. 157 defines fair value, establishes a framework
for measuring fair value in generally accepted accounting principles,
and expands disclosures about fair value measurements. This standard
does not require any new fair value measurements, but rather eliminates
inconsistencies found in various prior pronouncements. SFAS No. 157 was
effective for the Company on January 1, 2008. Upon adoption, the
Company elected not to expand its use of fair value accounting.

In December 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 141(R), Business
Combinations, which replaces SFAS No. 141. SFAS No. 141(R) establishes
principles and requirements for how an acquirer in a business
combination recognizes and measures in its financial statements the
identifiable assets acquired, the liabilities assumed, and any
controlling interest; recognizes and measures goodwill acquired in the
business combination or a gain from a bargain purchase; and determines
what information to disclose to enable users of the financial
statements to evaluate the nature and financial effects of the business
combination. SFAS No. 141(R) is effective for acquisitions by the
Company taking place on or after January 1, 2009. The Company will
assess the impact of SFAS No. 141(R) if and when a future acquisition
occurs.
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NOTE 1 - Sill""~RY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES k~D ACTIVITIES, Continued

Also, in December 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 160, Noncontrol1ing
Interests in Consolidated Financial Statements an amendment of ARB
No. 51. SFAS No. 160 establishes new accounting and reporting standards
for the noncontrolling interest in a subsidiary and for the
deconsolidation of a subsidiary. Before this statement, limited
guidance existed for reporting noncontrolling interests (minority
interest) As a result, diversity in practice exists. In some cases
minority interest is reported as a liability and in others it is
reported in the mezzanine section between liabilities and equity.
Specifically, SFAS No. 160 requires the recognition of a noncontrolling
interest (minority interest) as equity in the consolidated financial
statements and separate from the parent's equity. The amount of net
income attributable to the noncontrolling interest will be included in
consolidated net income on the face of the income statement. SFAS No.
160 clarifies that changes in a parentIs o~mership interest in a
subsidiary that do not result in deconsolidation are equity
transactions if the parent retains its controlling financial interest.
In addition, this statement requires that a parent recognize gain or
loss in net income when a subsidiary is deconsolidated. Such gain or
loss will be measured using the fair value of the noncontrolling equity
investment on the deconsolidation date. SFAS No. 160 also includes
expanded disclosure requirements regarding the interests of the parent
and its noncontrolling interests. SFAS No. 160 was effective for the
Company on January 1, 2009. SFAS No. 160 had no impact on the Company's
financial position, results of operations or cash flows.

In February 2008, the FASB issued F.l\SB Staff Position ("FSP") No.
140-3, Accounting for Transfers of Financial Assets and Repurchase
Financing Transactions. This FSP provides guidance on accounting for a
transfer of a financial asset and the transferor 1 s repurchase financing
of the asset. This FSP presumes that an initial transfer of a financial
asset and a repurchase financing are considered part of the same
arrangement (linked transaction) under SFAS No. 140. However, if
certain criteria are met, the initial transfer and repurchase financing
are not evaluated as a linked transaction and are evaluated separately
under SFAS No. 140. FSP No. 140-3 was effective for the Company on
January 1, 2009. The adoption of FSP No. 140-3 had no impact on the
Company1s financial position, results of operations or cash flows.

In March 2008, the FASB issued SFAS No. 161, Disclosures about
Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities. SFAS No. 161 requires
enhanced disclosures about an entity 1 s derivative and hedging
activities, thereby improving the transparency of financial reporting.
It is intended to enhance the current disclosure framework in SFAS No.
133 by requiring that objectives for using derivative instruments be
disclosed in terms of underlying risk and accounting designation. This
disclosure is intended to convey the purpose of derivative use in terms
of the risks that the entity is intending to manage. SFAS No. 161 was
effective for the Company on January 1, 2009 and will result in
additional disclosures if the Company enters into any material
derivative or hedging activities.

In April 2008, the FASB issued FSP No. 142-3, Determination of the
Useful Life of Intangible Assets. This FSP amends the factors that
should be considered in developing renewal or extension assumptions
used to determine the useful life of a recognized intangible asset
under SFAS No. 142, Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets. The intent of
this FSP is to improve the consistency between the useful life of a
recognized intangible asset under SFAS No. 142 and the period of
expected cash flows used to measure the fair value of the asset under
SFAS No. 141(R) and other accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States of America. This FSP was effective for the Company on
January 1, 2009 and had no material impact on the Company's financial
position, results of operations or cash flows.

In May 2008, the FASB issued SFAS No. 162, The Hierarchy of Generally
Accepted Accounting Principles. SFAS No. 162 identifies the sources of
accounting principles and the framework for selecting the principles
used in the preparation of financial statements of nongovernmental
entities that are presented in conformity with generally accepted
accounting principles (GAAP) in the United States of America (the Gfu\P
hierarchy) SFAS No. 162 is effective November 15, 2008. The FASB has
stated that it does not
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NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACTIVITIES, Continued

expect SFAS No. 162 will result in a change in
application of SFAS No. 162 had no effect on
position, results of operations or cash flows.

current practice. The
the Company's financial

The SEC's Office of the Chief Accountant and the staff of the FASB
issued press release 2008··234 on September 30, 2008 ("Press Release")
to provide clarifications on fair value accounting. The Press Release
includes guidance on the use of managementts internal assumptions and
the use of "market n quotes. It also reiterates the factors in SEC Staff
Accounting Bulletin ("8ABll) Topic 5M which should be considered when
determining other .. than-temporary impairment: the length of time and
extent to which the market value has been less than cost; financial
condition and near-term prospects of the issuerj and the intent and
ability of the holder to retain its investment for a period of time
sufficient to allow for any anticipated recovery in market value.

On October 10, 2008, the FASB issued FSP No. SFAS 157-3, "Determining
the Fair Value of a Financial Asset When the Market for That Asset Is
Not Active" ("FSP SFAS 157-3"). This FSP clarifies the application of
SFAS No. 157 (see Note 19) in a market that is not active and provides
an example to illustrate key considerations in determining the fair
value of a financial asset when the market for that asset is not
active. The FSP was effective upon issuancE, including prior periods
for which financial statements have not been issued. For the Company,
this FSP was effective for the quarter ended September 30, 2008.

The Company considered the guidance in the Press Release and in FSP
SFAS 157-3 when conducting its review for other-than .. temporary
impairment as of December 31, 2008.

Other accounting standards that have been issued or proposed by the
FASB or other standards-setting bodies that do not require adoption
until a future date are not expected to have a material impact on the
consolidated financial statements upon adoption.

NOTE 2 - RESTRICTIONS ON CASH AND DUE FROM BANKS

The Banks are required to maintain average reserve balances with the
Federal Reserve Bank ("FRB") based upon a percentage of deposits. The average
amounts of reserve balances maintained by the Banks at December 31, 2008 and
2007 were approximately $820,000 and $1,542,000, respectively.

NOTE 3 - SECURITIES

Securities are summarized as follows as of December 31 (tabular amounts
in thousands)

<TABLE>
<CI'.PTION>

2008

TRADING ASSETS

Amortized
Cost

Unrealized Holding

Gains Losses
Fair
Value

OTHER SECURITIES
<S>

Equity security with no maturity

SECURITIES AVAILABLE FOR SALE:

<C>
$ 47

<C>
$

<C> <C>
$ 47

GOVERNMENT SPONSORED ENTERPRISE SECURITIES
Maturing within one year .
Maturing after one but within five years .
Maturing after five years but within ten years .

</TABLE>
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7,990
1,970

10,960

28
384

1

413

1,028
8,374
1,971
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NOTE 3 SECURITIES, Continued

<TABLE>
<CAPTION>

2008

OTHER SECURITIES
<S>

Maturing after one year but within five years
Maturing after five years but within ten years .
Maturing after ten years .. . .

Amortized
Cost

<c>
$ 764

10,380
44,464

55,608

Unrealized Holding

Gains Losses

<c> <c>
$ 6 $

241
1,685 99

1,932 99

Fair
Value

<c>
$ 770

10,621
46,050

57,441

OBLIGATIONS OF STATES ~~D POLITICAL
SUBDIVISIONS
Maturing after one year but within five years
Maturing after five years but within ten years
Maturing after ten years ._

Total securities available for sale

SECURITIES HELD TO MATURITY,

457 28 485
3,221 107 3,328

23,521 130 275 23,376

27,199 265 275 27,189

$93,767 $ 2,610 374 $96,003

Total securities held to maturity

OBLIGATIONS OF STATES AND POLITICAL
SUBDIVISIONS
Maturing within one year ._
Maturing after one but within
Maturing after five years but
Maturing after ten years

five years _ .
within ten years

$ 1,951 $ 9 $ 1,958
4,623 76 4,699
4,100 46 8 4,138
1,977 6 112 1,871

$12,651 137 122 $12,666

</TABLE>

<TABLE>
<CAPTION>

SECURITIES AVAILABLE FOR SALE,

Amortized
Cost

2007

Unrealized Holding

Gains Losses
Fair
Value

GOVERNMENT SPONSORED ENTERPRISE SECURITIES
<S>

Maturing within ODe year . . . . . . . .. . .
Maturing after ODe year but within five years
Maturing after five years but within ten years

OTHER SECURITIES
Maturing within one year __ .
Maturing after one year but within five years .
Maturing after five years but within ten years .
Maturing after ten years .. . .

<C> <c> <C> <C>
$ 2,000 $ $ 9 $ 1,991

750 15 765
6,000 218 6,218

8,750 233 8,974

152 1 151
897 5 892

8,932 63 54 8,941
39,038 927 41 39,924

49,019 990 101 49,908

OBLIGATIONS OF STATES AND POLITICAL
SUBDIVISIONS
Maturing after five years but within ten years
Maturing after ten years ..

Total securities available for sale

</TABLE>
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1,966
23,873

25,839

$83,608

31
88

119

$ 1,342

1 1,996
43 23,918

44 25,914

$ 154 $8'1,796
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<TABLE::>
<CAPTION>

SECURITIES HELD TO MATURITY,
OBLIGATIONS OF STATES AND POLITICAL SUBDIVISIONS
<S>

Maturing within ODe year .
Maturing after one year but within five years ..
Maturing after five years but within ten years
Maturing after ten years ...

Total securities held to maturity

2007

Unrealized Holding
JI.mortized Fair

Cost Gains Losses Value

<C> <C> <C> <c>
.. . ....... 866 $ 2 1 867

5,638 19 14 5,643
........ . ... 4,139 24 29 4,134

..... . ... 2,459 11 1 2,469

. . . . . . . . . . . $13,102 $ 56 45 $13,113

</TI'.BLE>
Management evaluates securities for other··than-temporary impairment at

least on a quarterly basis and more frequently when economic or market concerns
warrant such evaluation. Consideration is given to (1) the length of time and
the extent to which the fair value has been less than cost, (2) the financial
condition and near-term prospects of the issuer, and (3) the intent and ability
of the Company to retain its investment in the issuer for a period of time
sufficient to allow for any anticipated recovery in fair value.

The following table shows gross unrealized losses and fair value,
aggregated by investment category, and length of time that individual securities
have been in a continuous unrealized loss position, at December 31, 2008.

Securities Available for Sale (tabular amounts in thousands) ,
<TABLE>
<CAPTION,

Less than 12 Months 12 Months or More Total

<S>
Government sponsored

enterprise securities
Other securities .
State and political

subdivisions .

Total ..

Fair
Value

517

7,625

$8,142

Unrealized
Losses

$
99

275

$ 374

Fair
Value

Unrealized
Losses

$

$

Fair
Value

<C>

$
517

7,625

$8,142

Unrealized
Losses

<C>

99

275

374

</TABLE>
No individual securities were in a continuous loss position for twelve months or
more.

Securities Held to Maturity (tabular amounts in thousands)
<TABLE>
<CAPTION>

Less than 12 Months 12 Months or More Total

<S>
States and political

subdivisions .

Fair
Value

<C>

$2,295

Unrealized
Losses

<C>

122

Fair
Value

Unrealized
Losses

$

Fair
Value

$2,295

Unrealized
Losses

<C>

122

</TABLE>
No individual securities were in a continuous loss position for twelve months or
more.

The following table shows gross unrealized losses and fair value,
aggregated by investment category, and length of time that individual securities
have been in a continuous unrealized loss position, at December 31, 2007.

Securities Available for Sale (tabular amounts in thousands)
<TABLE>
<CAPTION>

Less than 12 Months

<S>
Government sponsored

enterprise securities
Other securities .
State and political

subdivisions .

Total

Fair Unrealized
Value Losses

<C> <C>

$ $

1,395 10

$ 1,395 $ 10

12 Months or More Total
- - - - _. - - - - -

Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized
Value Losses Value Losses

<C> <C> <C> <C>

2,000 $ 9 $ 2,000 $ 9
7,379 101 7,379 101

7,475 34 8,870 44

$16,854 $ 144 $18,249 154

</TI'.BLE>
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Thirty - fi v e individual securities were in a continuous loss position f or twelve
mon t hs o r mo re .
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Securities Held to Maturity (tabular amounts in thousands)

<TP.BLE>
<CAPTION>

Less than 12 Months

Unrealized
Losses

<S,
States and political

subdivisions .

Fair
Value

335 $ 2

12 Months or r·1ore Total
----------

Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized
Value Losses Value Losses

<C, <C, <C, <C,

$3,785 $ 43 $4,120 $ 45

</TlI.BLE,
Seventeen individual securities were in a continuous loss position for twelve
months or more.

The Company has the ability and intent to hold these securities until
such time as the value recovers or the securities mature. The Company believes,
based on industry analyst reports and credit ratings, that the deterioration in
value is attributable to changes in market interest rates and not in the credit
quality of the issuer and therefore, these losses are not considered
other-than - temporary. The category Hother securities ll above is comprised of
mortgage-backed securities, corporate debt securities, equity securities and
investments in Silverton Bank stock.

During the second half of 2008, the Company determined that our Federal
Home Loan Mortgage Corporation ("FHLMC") preferred stock suffered an
other-than·~temporary impairment as a result of the Government 1 s decision on
September 7, 2008 to place the FHLMC and Federal National Mortgage Association
(llFNV1Al!) under conservatorship. Consequently, the Company recorded a pretax
charge to earnings of $2,890,000 to ",rite down to fair value. As a result of the
passage of the Emergency Economic Stabilization Act of 2008, the Company's
ability to utilize the loss on the FHLMC preferred stock against ordinary income
was considered in determining that the Company did not need to establish a
valuation allowance for the deferred tax asset that was recorded related to the
$2,890,000 impairment charge.

Other Investments, at Cost (tabular amounts in thousands) :

The Banks, as member institutions, are required to own certain stock
investments in the Federal Home Loan Bank of Atlanta ("FHLB") and the FRB. These
investments are carried at cost and are generally pledged against any borrowings
from these institutions (see Note 9) No ready market exists for these stocks
and they have no quoted market values. The Company's investments in these stocks
are summarized below:

December 31,

FRB .
FHLB . .
Interest-bearing deposits in other banks

(maturing after three months) .

2008

$ 483
2,585

478

$3,546

2007

$ 453
3,895

447

$4,795

Securities with carrying amounts of $43,459,000 and $45,438,000
December 31, 2008 and 2007, respectively, were pledged to secure public deposits
and for other purposes required or permitted by 1aJ..'J.

NOTE 4 - LOk~S AND ALLOWANCE FOR LOAN LOSSES

Loans are summarized as follows (tabular amounts in thousands)

December 31,

Commercial and industrial - not secured
by real estate

Commercial and industrial secured by real estate
Residential real estate - mortgage
Residential real estate - construction
Loans to individuals for household, family

and other personal expenditures

Less allowance for loan losses .
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2008

43,451
111,844
124,445
104,390

14,581

398,711
(9,217)

$ 389,494

2007

$ 47,885
107,531
108,161
138,926

16,495

418,998
(4,310)

$ 414,688
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NOTE - LOANS ~~D ALLOWANCE FOR LOAN LOSSES, Continued

The composition of gross loans by ra te type is as foll ows (tabular amounts in
thousands) ,

December 31,

Variable rate loans . . .
Fixed rate loans

2008

$145,998
252,713

$398,711

2007

$197,344
221,654

$418,998

Changes in the allowance for loan losses were as follows (tabular amounts in
thousands) ,

For the years ended December 31,

BAL~~CE, BEGINNING OF YEAR
Provision for loan losses
Loans charged off .
Loa ns recovered __ .

BAL~~CE, END OF YEAR

2008

$ 4,310
13,820
(9,037)

124

9,217

200 7

$ 4,070
900

(706)
46

4,310

The following is a summary of information pertaining to impaired loans
and non - accrual l oans (tabular amounts in thousands) :
<TABLE>
<CAPTION,

December 31 ,

20 08 2007

<S>
Impa ired loans without valuat i on allowance
Impaired loans with a va luat ion al l owance

Total impaired loans .

Valuat ion allowance related to impaired loans _ .
Total non-accrual loans .. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
Total loans past - due ninety days or more and still accruing
Foregone interest income on non - accrual loans
Average investment in impaired loans . .. .
Interest income recognized on impaired loans
Interest income recognized on a cash basis on impaired loans _ _ .
</TABLE>

NOTE 5 - PREMISES AND EQUIPMENT

<C>

$13, 592
3,079

$16,671

$ 1,608
$16,950

753
10,802

<C>

$ 2,024

$ 2,024

7,505

137
1,546

The principal categories and estimated
equipment are summarized in the table be l ow (do l la r
<TABLE>
<CAPTION>

useful lives of premises and
amounts in thousands) ,

Estimated
useful liv es

December 31,

2008 2007

<S>
Land
Building and i mprovements .
Furniture, fixtures and equipment

Les s accumulated depreciation .

</TABLE>

15
3

40 years
10 years

<C>

$

$

3,873
9,951
8,879

22,7 03
9,5 03

13,200

<C>

$ 3,873
9,759
8,561

22 ,193
8 ,436

13, 757

Depreciation expense of approximately $1, 142,000 and $1,110,000 for
2008 and 2007, respectively, is included in occupancy and equipment expenses in
the accompanying consolidated statements of income .
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NOTE 6 DEPOSITS

The composition of deposits is as follows
thousands) ,

( tabular amounts in

December 31.

Demand deposits, noninterest bearing .
NOI'! and money market accounts .
Savings deposits _ _. . .. _......•. . .......
Time certifica te s , $100,000 or more
Othe r time certificates

Total

2008

$ 51,091
96,160

9,771
97,769

190,578

$445 , 369

2007

$ 53,950
83,870

8,172
109,457
162,172

$417,621

December 31,

2008 2007

Time certificates maturing
vii thin one year
After one but within two years
After two but within three years ..
After t hree but within f ou r years .
After fo u r years

Transaction and savings accounts .

$265,342 $253,342
15, 651 12,093

6 , 864 5,421
259 757
231 16

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - --
288,347 271,629
157,022 145,992

-------- -- - -- -- -

$445,369 $417,621
======== ========

Certificates of deposit in excess of $100, 000 totaled approximately
$86,380,000 and $99,06 0,000 at December 31, 2008 and 2007, respecLive 1y.
Interest expense on certificates of deposit in excess of $100,000 was
approximately, $3,907,000 in 2008 and $4,636,000 in 2007 . The Banks had brokered
time certificates o f approximately $77,4 11,000 at December 31, 2008 and
$28, 087,000 at Decembe r 31, 2007.

NOTE 7 - SECURITIES SOLD UNDER REPURCHASE AGREEMENTS

Securities sold under repurchase agreements are summarized as follows
(tabular a mounL S in thousands) ,

<TABLE>
<CAPTION>

December 31 ,

2008 2007

<S>
Governme nt sponsored enterprise securit i es with an amortized cos t o f $28 ,686,000

($29 ,673,000 fair value) and $2 7,855,000 ($28,044,00 0 fair value) at
December 31, 2008 and 2007, respec tiv ely, collaterali ze the agreements.

</TAB LE >

The Banks enter into sa l es of securities under agreements to
repurchase. These obl igations to r epurchase securi t ies so l d are reflected as
l iabilities in the consolidated balance shee t s. The dollar amount of securities
underlying the ag reements rema i ns in the as set accounts. The securities
underlying the agreements are book entry securities ma intained by a safekeeping
agent. The weighted average i nterest rate of these agreements was 1.56 percent
and 1 .92 percent f o r 2008 and 2007, respecLively. The agreements mature daily .
Securities sold under agreements to repurcha se averaged $20,832,000 and
$20,648,000 during 2008 and 2007, respectively. The maximum amounts oULstanding
at any month - end were $25,557,000 and $23,229,000 during 2008 and 2007,
respectively.
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NOTE 8 FEDERAL FUNDS PURCHASED

At December 31, 2008, the Banks had the ability to purchase federal
funds from unrelat ed banks under short-term lines of credit totaling
$37, 000,000. These lines of credit are available on a one to seven day basis for
general corporate purposes. At December 31, 2008 there was $1,028,000
outstanding under these lines of credit and $429,000 outstanding at December 31,
2007.

NOTE 9 - ~nV~~CES FROM FEDERAL HOME LOAN B.~K ~_~ NOTES PAYABLE - OTHER

The Banks have the abi l i t y to borrow up to 20 percent of their total
assets from the FHLB subject to available qualifying collateral. Borrowings may
be obta i ned under various FHLB lending programs with v a rious terms. Borrowing s
from t he FH LB requ ire quali fying collateral (which includes certain mortgage
loans, investment securit ies and FHLB stock) and may require purchasing
additional stock in the FHLB.

The Banks had advances aggregating $34,600,000 and $65 ,1 00 ,000 at
Decembe r 31, 2008 and 200 7 , respectively. At December 31, 2008 and 2007
respec tively, the Banks had $34,600,000 and $23,100,000 of advances at interest
rates of 0.46 percent and 4.40 percent and which matured daily. At December 31,
2007 $21,000,000 of advance s had an interest rate of 4 . 52 percent that matured
in February 2008 and $21,000,0 00 of advances at an interest rate of 4.68 percent
that matured in Novembe r 200 8. At December 31, 2008 and 2007, the advanc es we re
co llate ra l ized by qualifying mortgage loans agg regating approximate l y
$67,201,000 and $66,963,000, respectively, and by FHLB stock owned by a l l t hree
Banks. The Banks also had advances c o l lateral i zed by investment securities owned
by the Banks in t he a mount o f $13,149,000 and $9,620,000 at December 31, 2008
and 2007, respectively . As of December 31, 2008. the Banks had t he abili t y to
borrow an additional $45 , 751,000 in the aggrega te from the FHLB.

I n 2008 , the Company obtained a $15,000,000 line of credit from a
correspondent bank to enable it to inject additional capital into the banks. The
Company subsequently drew on thi s line of credit and injected a total of
$11,5 00,000 into its three Banks. At December 31, 2008 the line of credit, which
matures September 28, 2010, had an outstanding balance of $11,0 00, 0 00 . The line
of credit agreement contains certain covenants to \>Jhich the Company is obligated
in order to retain the line of credit. At December 31, 2008 , the Company's
non -performing asset s to total assets ratio o f 4.08% exceeded the required
non-performing assets to total assets ratio o f 3.50%, for which a wa i ver wa s
obta i ned through March 31, 2009. Management believes the Company will be back in
compliance with the covenant requirements at March 31, 2009.

NOTE 10 - INCOME T~~ES

Provision for income taxes consist s of the following (tabUla r amounts
in thousands)

For the years ended December 31 ,

Current tax provision
Federal ..
State

Total current taxes
Deferred tax bene f it , ..

UST Seq. No . 92 1
64

$

$

2008

(2,153 )

(2, 153 )
(3,031 )

(5,184 ) $

2007

1,452
201

1,653
(96)

1,557
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NOTE 10 - INCOME TAXES, Continued

Income taxes differ
statutory federal income tax
taxes. The reasons for these
thousands ) :

from the tax expense computed by applying the
rate of 34 percent to income ( l oss) before income
differences are as fo llows (tabula r amount s in

For the years ended
December 31,

Tax (benef it) expense at statutory rate
Increase (decrease ) in taxes resu lt ing from:

S t a t e income taxes, net o f federal benefit
Tax - exempt interest income _..
Investment in li fe insurance ...
Other .....

Provision for income taxes (benefit)

2008

$ (4,610)

(511)
(150 )

87

$(5,184)

20 07

$ 2,006

133
(483 )

(62)
(37)

$ 1,557

Defe rred tax assets (liabili t ies) result from temporary differences in
the recognition of revenue and expenses for tax and financia l statement
purposes. Management believes realization of the deferred tax assets is more
likely than not and according ly has not recorded a valuation allowance. The
sources and the cumulative t a x effect of temporary dif ference s are as follows
(t abu l a r amounts in thousands ) :

Deferred tax assets
Allowance for loan l osses ..
Deferred compensation .
Ot her than tempo rary i mpairment
Other

Deferred tax liabi l i ties
Depreciation
Prepaid expenses .
Unreal ized hol ding gains on

securities available for sale _ .

Net deferred tax assets included in other assets

December 31,
- .. - - - - - - - - - -

2008 2007

$ 3,134 $ 1,471
254 156

1,033
4 17 97

4,838 1, 724

(104) (10 8)
(1 80 ) (93 )

(75 8) (404)

(1, 042) (605)

$ 3, 796 $ 1,119

The Company has analyzed the tax positions taken or expected to be
taken in its tax returns and concluded it has no liability relat e d to uncertain
tax positions in accordance with FIN No . 48.

NOTE 11 - FINANC IAL INSTRUMENTS WITH OFF - BALANCE SHEET RISK

The Banks are parties to financial instruments with off-balance sheet
risk i n the normal course of busi ness to meet the financing needs of their
customers. These financial instruments i nc lude commitments t o extend credi t and
standby letters of credit. They i nvolve, to varying degrees, elements of credit
and interest rate risk in excess of the amounts recognized in the balance
shee t s.

The Company' s exposure to cred it loss in the event of nonperformance by
the other party to the financial instrument for commitments to extend credit and
standby let ters of credit is represented by the contractual amounts of those
instruments. The Company uses the same credit pol icie s in making commitments and
conditional obligat ions as it does for on-balance s heet instruments.
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NOTE 11 - FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 'lITH OFF-BALANCE SHEET RISK, Continued
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Commitments to extend credit are agreements to lend to a customer as
long as there is no violation of any material condition established in the
contract. Commitments generally have fixed expiration dates or other termination
clauses and may require the payment of a fee. At December 31, 20 08, un f unded
commi tments to extend credit were $77,530,000, of which $72,359,0 00 were at
variable rates and $5,171,000 were at fixed rates. These commitments inc luded
$11,405,000 of unfunded amounts of construction loans, $44,531,000 of
undisbursed amounts of home equity lines of credit, $13,602,000 of unfunded
amounts under commercial lines of credit, and $7,992,000 other commitments to
extend credit. The Company evaluates each customer's creditworthiness on a
case -by- case basis. The amount of collateral obtained, if deemed necessary by
the Company upon extension of credit, is based on management's credit evaluation
of the borrower. Collatera l varies but may include accounts receivable,
inven cory, property, plant and equipment, commercial and residential real
Estate.

At December 31, 2008, there was $2,845,000 committed under letters of
credit. The credit risk involved in issuing letters of credit is essentially the
same as that involved in extending loan facilities to customers . Collateral
varies but may include accounts receivable , inventory, equipment, marketable
secur i t i es and property. Since most of the letters of credit are expec ted to
expire without being drawn upon, they do not necessarily represent future cash
requirements. The Company has not recorded a liability for the current carrying
amount of the obligation to perform as a guarantor, and no contingent liability
was considered necessary, as such amounts were not considered material.

NOTE 12 - COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

The Company is, from time to time, a party to various lawsuits and
claims arising from the ordinary conduct of its business . Management does not
expect such matte rs to have any material adverse effect on the financial
position or results of operations of the Company.

Financial instruments, which potentially subject the Company to
concent rations of credit risk, consist principally of loans receivable,
investment securities, federal funds sold and amounts due from banks.

The Company makes loans to individuals and small businesses for various
p ersonal and commercial purposes primarily in the upstate region of South
Caroli na . The Company's l oan portfolio is not concentrated in loans to any
single borrower or to a relati vely small number of borrowers. Additionally,
management is not aware of any concentrations of loans to classes of borrowers
or industries that would be similarly a ff ected by economic conditions. However,
a substantial portion of the Company's l oans are secured by real estate.

In addition to monitoring potential concentrat ions of loans to
particular borrowers or groups of borro\vers, industries and geographic regions,
management monitors exposure to credit risk that could arise from potentia l
concentrations of lending products and prac tices such as loans that subject
borrowers to substantial payment increases (e.g. principal deferral periods,
loans with initial interest-only periods, etc), and loans with high
loan - to - value ratios. Additionally, there are industry pract i ces that could
subject the Company to increased credit risk should economic conditions change
over the course of a loan's life. For example , the Company makes variable rate
loans and fixed rate principal-amortizing loans with maturities prior to the
loan being fully paid (i.e. balloon payment loans) These loans are underwrit ten
and monitored to manage the associated risks. Management has determined that
there is no concentration of credit risk associated with i ts lending policies or
practices.

The Company's investment portfol io consists principally of obligations
of the United States of America, its agencies or its corporations and general
obligation municipal securities. In the opinion of management, there is no
concentration of credit risk in its investment portfolio. The Company places its
deposits and correspondent accounts with and sells its federal funds to high
quality institutions. Management believes credit risk associated with
correspondent accounts is not significant.

66
UST Seq. No . 921



Haynswo,·th Sinkler Boyd, 1'. A.
411 3/2009

<PAGE>

NOTE 13 - RELATED P~~TY TRANSACTIONS
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At December 31, 2008 and 2007, certain officers, direc t o r s, employees,
related parties and companies in which they have 10 percent or more beneficial
ownership, were indebted to the Banks in the aggregate amount of $21,691,000 and
$14,886,000, respectively . During 20 08, $9,900,000 of ne", l oans "'ere made to
this group and repayments of $3,095,000 we re received. This same group had
deposits in the Banks of $5,839,000 and $7,033,000 at December 31, 2008 and
2007, respectively.

NOTE 14 - COMMON STOCK AND EARNINGS PER SHARE

SFAS No. 128, Earnings per Share, requires that the Company present
basic and diluted net income ( l oss) per common share. The assumed conversion o f
stock options creat e s the difference between bas i c and diluted net income (loss)
per common share. I ncome (loss) per share is calculated by dividing net income
(loss) by the weighted a verage number of common shares outstanding for each
period presented . The weighted average numbe r of common shares outstandi ng for
bas i c net income (loss) per common share was 7,062,218 a nd 7,40 1, 032 in 20 08 and
200 7, respectively. The weighted average number of common shares outstand i ng for
diluted net income (lossl per common share was 7,062, 218 and 7,403 , 021 i n 2008
and 2007, respectively. Due to the net loss in 2008, basic and diluted loss per
share were the same.

The Company declared a five percent common
payable in 2008. Net income (loss) and dividends
we i ghted a v erage number of common shares outstanding
income (loss ) per common share have been res t ated
transact ion.

NOTE 15 - RESTRICTIONS ON DIVIDENDS

stock dividend in 2007,
per common share and the
for basic and diluted net
for 2007 to reflect this

The ability of the Company to pay cash dividends is dependent upon
rece i ving cash in the form of dividends from the Banks. Federal banking
regulations restrict the amount of dividends that can be paid and such dividends
are payable only from the retained earnings o f the Banks. At December 31, 2008
the Bank s had aggregate retained earnings of $23,135,000. A loan agreement also
prohibits the Company from paying cash dividends without the prior consent of
the lender if the payment would cause the Company to fail to be well
capi ta lized.

NOTE 16 - STOCK OPTION COMPENSATION PLANS

The fair value of each option grant is estimated on the date of grant
us i ng the Bl ack-Scholes option pric ing model with the fo l lowing weighted average
assumptions for grants i n 2008 and 2007, dividend yields of $0.20 per share,
expected vo l atility from 22 to 23 percent, risk-free interest rates from 3.49 to
3.87 percent and expe cted life of 10 years. The weighted average fair market
value of options granted approximated $1.82 in 2008 and $3.49 in 200 7 .

A summa ry of t he status of the plans as of December 31, 2008 and 2007,
and changes during the yea r s ending on those dates i s presented bel ow (all
shares and exe rcise prices have been ad j us t e d for stock dividends and the stock
split) ,
<TABLE>
<C)I.PTION>

Options outstanding

<S>
Outstanding at December 31, 2006
Granted
Exercised
Forfeited or expired

Outstanding at December 31, 2007
</ TABLE>
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Number
of shares

<C>
208,989

25,323
(61,566)

(3,997)

168,749

YJeighted
average

exercise
price

<C>
$ 8.46

10 .46
4 . 04

11 . 68

10 . 29

I'leighted
average

contractual
term (years)

Aggregate
intrinsic

value

$ 243,511
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NOTE 16 - STOCK OPTION COMPENSATION PL~~S, Continued

<TABLE>
<CAPTION>

<S>
Granted
Exercised
Forfeited or expired

Outs t anding at December 31, 2008

Options exerc isable at yea r -end

Shares available for grant

Number
of shares

<C>
16,000

(14,615)
(23,871)

146,263

116,966

376,650

Options outstanding
l'ieighted Heighted

average average Aggregate
exercise contractual intrinsic

price term (years) value
- -- -------- -

<C> <C> <C>
7.62
5.34 $ 13,624
9.89

10.5 6 6 . 62 $

10.56 6.45 $

</TABLE>
<TABLE>
<CAPTION>

<S>
Non-vested options at December 31, 2007 .
Granted . .
Vested .
Forfeited or expired .

Non-vested options at December 31, 2008

</ TABLE>

Number
of shares

<C>
38,615
16,000
(8,124 )

(17,194)

29 ,297

Heighted a verage
grant date fair value

<C>
$11.56

7 .6 2
8.35
9.72

$11.38

AS of December 31, 2008, we hav e unrecognized compensation cost of $127,085
related to unvested stock options.

<TABLE>
<CAPTION>

Options outstanding Options exercisable

Number
of shares

outstanding

<C>
3,480
7,721
5,826
6,318
8,016

10,461
5,730

24,831
1, 823
4, 046
1,158
2 , 3 1 6
5,788
1,736
1,1 02

</ TABLE>
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11eigh t ed
average

remain i ng
contractual

life (years)

< c >
0.2
1.2
2. 0
2 . 3
3.3
3.5
4.3
5.3
5.6
6.3
6.5
6.6
6.7
6 . 8
7.1

68

,ieighted
average

exercise
price

6 . 47
8.16
8.53
7.60
8.86
9.34

10.47
12.89
13.71
15.66
14 . 77
14.90
14 . 90
14.08
12.02

Number
of shares

exerci sable

<c>
3,480
7,721
5,826
6,318
8,016

10,461
5,730

21,927
1 ,550
4,046

811
1,622
4,052
1,215

606

Weighted
average

exerci se
price

6.47
8.16
8.53
7.60
8.86
9.34

10.47
12 . 89
13.71
15.66
14.77
14.90
14.90
14.08
12.02



HaynsWOI·th Sinkler Boyd, P. A.
4/13/2009

i:\private\sec-bank\09811 \0001 \0\1 Ok2009\peoplesl 0-k09.txt, 72

<PAGE>

NOTE 16 - STOCK OPTION COMPENSATION PL~~S, Continued

<TABLE>
<CAPTION>

Options outstanding Options exercisable

<S>

Number
of shares

outstanding

<C>
1,102
6,063
6,613
1,102
4,280
2,204
6,422
1,050
3,675
6,300
1,050
1,050
1,500
3,500
1,000
7,000

500
1,500

146,263

\'Ieighted
average

remaining
contractual

life (years)

<C>
7.2
7.3
7.3
7.5
7.7
7.8
8.0
8.2
8.3
8.3
8.5
8.9
9.0
9.3
9.3
9.4
9.5
9.7

,Ieighted
average

exercise
price

<C>
11.89
10.25
11.42
10.44
10.43
10.21
10.48

9.95
9.52

11.19
11. 42

9.57
8.05
7.75
7.50
7.60
5.35
7.50

Number
of shares

exercisable

606
3,335
5,373

606
2,354
1,212
2,569

420
1,470
6,300

420
420
375
875
250

7,000

116,966

~'Jeighted

average
exercise

price

<C>
11.89
10.25
11.42
10.44
10.43
10.21
10.48

9.95
9.52

11.19
11.42

9.57
8.05
7.75
7.50
7.60

</TABLE>

The plans are administered by the Board of Directors or by a committee
designated by the Board. The plans provide that if the shares of common stock
shall be subdivided or combined into a greater or smaller number of shares or if
the Company shall issue any shares of common stock as a stock dividend on its
outstanding common stock, the number of shares of common stock deliverable upon
the exercise of options shall be increased or decreased proportionately, and
appropriate adjustments shall be made in the purchase price per share to reflect
such subdivision, combination or stock dividend.

NOTE 17 - EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS

The Company maintains a 401(k) retirement plan for all eligible
employees. Upon ongoing approval of the Board of Directors, the Company matches
employee contributions equal to one-hundred percent of the first three percent
of such contributions, plus fifty percent of the next two percent of such
contributions, subject to certain adjustments and limitations. Contributions to
the plan of $240,441 and $206,971, were charged to operations during 2008 and
2007, respectively.

Supplemental benefits have been approved by the Board of Directors for
certain executive officers of the Company. These benefits are not qualified
under the Internal Revenue Code and they are not funded. However, certain
funding is provided informally and indirectly by life insurance policies. The
Company recorded expense related to these benefits of $260,746 and $201,356 in
2008 and 2007. respectively.
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The Banks are subject to va rious regulatory capital requirement s
administered by the federal bank ing agencies . Fai lu re to meet minimum capi tal
requirement s can initiate certain mandatory , and poss i bly addi t ional
discretionary, actions by regulators that , if undertaken, could have a direc t
mater ial effect on t he Banks' financ i al statements. Unde r capita l adequacy
guidel ine s and the regulatory framewo r k for prompt corrective act i on, t he Banks
must meet specific capital guide l ine s t ha t invo l v e quantitative measures of the
Banks' assets , liabi lities, and certain off-balance s hee t items as ca l cu l ate d
under regulatory account ing p r actices . The Banks ' capital amounts a nd
classi fic a tions are a l so s ubject t o qual itative judgment s by the regulators
about components, risk weighting, and other factors.

Quantitative measures established by regulation t o en s u re capital
adequacy require the Banks to maintain minimum amounts and ratios (set forth in
the table below) of total and Tier 1 capital to risk - weighted assets , and of
Tier 1 capital to average assets. Management believes, as of December 31 , 2008,
that the Banks meet all capita l adequacy requirements to which they are subj ect.

On Octobe r 15, 2008, Bank of Anderson, N.A., the assets of which
repre s e nt approximately 25% of the Company's total consolidated assets, entered
into a formal agreement with the Office of the Comptro ller of the Currency (the
"OCC") for the bank to take various ac tions \'lith respect to the ope r ation of the
bank . The actions include,

a. creation o f a committee of the bank's board o f di rectors t o
moni t o r c ompliance wi t h the agreement a nd make mon t hly report s to
the board of d irector s and the OCC;

b. d e velopment , implementation and a dhe rence to a program to improve
the bank's loan portfolio management;

c. adoption, impl ant at i on and adherence to written pol icies and
procedures for mai n taining an adequate a llowance for l oan and
lease losses in acco rdance with generally accepted accounting
principles and regulatory guidance ;

d. protection of it s interest in i ts crit i ci zed assets (those assets
classified as "loss," "doubtful,'1 I'substandard." or "special
mention u by internal or external loan revie ..., or examination), and
adoption, implementat ion and adherence to a writ ten prog ram
designed to e liminate the basi s o f the critic i sm, as well as
restricting further extensions of credit to borrowers whose loans
are subject to criticism;

e. development, implementation and adhere nce to a wr itten program to
improve ie s cons truc tion loans unde rwriting standards;

f. a doption , implan t at i on and adherence to a written asset
diversification prog ram that appropriately identifies and manages
concentration o f credit risk;

g. adoption, implementation and adherence to a strategic p l an, a
capital program and a profit plan;

h. ensuring that the level of liquidity at the bank is sufficient to
sustain the bank'S current operations and meet anticipated or
extraordinary demand; and

i. obtaining a determination of no supervisory ob jection from the
OCC before accepting brokered deposits.

Additionally, the bank is required by the agreement to submit numerous
periodic reports to the OCC regarding v a r ious aspects of the foregoing actions .

Th e agreement resulted f rom the OCC 's examina tion of the bank that
commenced in the second quarter o f 2008 . Since the l a ter part of 2006 the bank
has experienced an increase in c ri ticized assets as the economy i n the bank's
primary lending areas has come under increas i ng downward pressure. The
substantive actions called for by t he agreement should stre ng t hen the bank and
make i t more efficient in the l ong -t erm. Implementation of the agreement wil l
i ncrease the bank's administrative costs somewhat in the near-term, but the
amoun t of s uch increase is not expected to be material t o the Company.
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As of December 31, 2008, the most recent notification from the Office
of the Comptroller of the Currency categorized the Banks as well capitalized
under the regulatory framework for prompt corrective action. There are no
conditions or events since that notification that management believes have
changed the Banks' categories. The Banks' actual capital amounts and ratios and
mininrum regulatory amounts and ratios are presented as follows:

<TABLE>
<CAPTION>

Actual

For capital
adequacy purposes

Minimum

To be \'1811
capitalized under
prompt corrective
action provisions

Hinimum

.lI.mount Ratio Amount Ratio Amount Ratio

(dollar amounts in thousands)
Peoples BancorporatioD, Inc.
<S> <C> <C> <C> <C> <C>

As of December 31, 2008
Total Capital (to risk-weighted assets) $45,435 10.77% $33,749 8.00% N/A
Tier 1 Capital (to risk-weighted assets) 40,040 9.49 16,877 4.00 N/A
Tier 1 Capital (to average assets) 40,040 7.33 21,850 4.00 N/A

As of December 31, 2007
Total Capital (to risk-weighted assets) 53,766 12.02 35,784 8.00 N/A
Tier 1 Capital (to risk-vJeighted assets) 49,456 11.06 17,886 4.00 N/A
Tier 1 Capital (to average assets) ......... . . 49,446 8.80 22,480 4.00 N/A

The Peoples National Bank:
As of December 31, 2008

Total Capital (to risk-v;eighted assets) 34,922 12.44 22,458 8.00 $28,072
Tier 1 Capital (to risk-weighted assets) 31,297 11.15 11,228 4.00 16,841
Tier 1 Capital (to average assets) . . . . . . . . . 31,297 9.06 13,818 4.00 17,272

As of December 31, 2007
Total Capital (to risk-weighted assets) 31,146 10.64 23,418 8.00 29,273
Tier 1 Capital (to risk-weighted assets) 28,371 9.69 11,711 4.00 17,567
Tier 1 Capital (to average assets) ......... . .. 28,371 8.52 13,320 4.00 16,650

Bank of Anderson, N.A. :
As of December 31, 2008 (1 )

Total Capital (to risk-\>;eighted assets) 13,922 15.27 10,941 12.00 N/A
Tier 1 Capital (to risk-weighted assets) 12,777 14.02 9,113 10.00 N/A
Tier 1 Capital (to average assets) .......... 12,777 9.58 10,670 8.00 N/A

As of December 31, 2007
Total Capital (to risk-weighted assets) 14,013 13.25 8,461 8.00 10,576
Tier 1 Capital (to risk - weighted assets) 12,808 12.11 4,231 4.00 6,346
Tier 1 Capital (to average assets) ....... . . .. . 12,808 8.34 6,143 4.00 7,679

Seneca National Bank:
As of December 31, 2008

Total Capital (to risk-weighted assets) 7,198 14.44 3,988 8.00 4,985
Tier 1 Capital (to risk-weighted assets) 6,574 13 .19 1,994 4.00 2,990
Tier 1 Capital (to average assets) 6,574 9.76 2,695 4.00 3,368

As of December 31, 2007
Total Capital (to risk"\oJeighted assets) 5,840 11.47 4,073 8.00 5,092
Tier 1 Capital (to risk-weighted assets) 5,373 10.55 2,037 4.00 3,056
Tier 1 Capital (to average assets) 5,373 7.82 2,748 4.00 3,435

</T.r,BLE>

(1) I-1inimum ratios have been revised to reflect minimum required regulatory
ratios for this bank as required by the Comptroller.
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N/A
N/A
N/A

N/l'.
N/A
N/A

10.00%
6.00
5.00

10.00
6.00
5.00

N/A
N/A
N/A

10.00
6.00
5.00

10.00
6.00
5.00

10.00
6.00
5.00
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SFAS No. 107, Disclosures about Fair Value of Financial Instruments,
requires disclosure of fair value information, whether or not recognized in the
balance sheets, when it is practical to estimate the fair value. SFAS No. 107
defines a financial instrument as cash, evidence of an ownership interest in an
entity or contractual obligations which require the exchange of cash or other
financial instruments. Certain items are specifically excluded from the
disclosure requirements, including the Company's common stock, premises and
equipment and other assets and liabilities.

Fair value approximates
instruments due to the short-term
banks, interest-bearing deposits
purchased.

carrying value for the following financial
nature of the instrument: cash and due from

in other banks and federal funds sold and

Securities are valued using quoted fair market
investments are valued at par value.

prices. Other

Fair value for variable rate loans that reprice frequently, loans held
for sale, and for loans that mature in less than three months is based on the
carrying value. Fair value for fixed rate mortgage loans, personal loans, and
all other loans (primarily commercial) maturing after three months is based on
the discounted present value of the estimated future cash flows. Discount rates
used in these computations approximate the rates currently offered for similar
loans of comparable terms and credit quality.

Fair value for demand deposit accounts and interest-bearing accounts
with no fixed maturity date is equal to the carrying value. Certificate of
deposit accounts and securities sold under repurchase agreements maturing within
one year are valued at their carrying value. The fair value of certificate of
deposit accounts and securities sold under repurchase agreements maturing after
one year are estimated by discounting cash flows from expected maturities using
current interest rates on similar instruments.

Fair value for long-term FHLB advances is based on discounted cash
flows using the Company1s current incremental borrowing rate. Discount rates
used in these computations approximate rates currently offered for similar
borrowings of comparable terms and credit quality.

Fair value of off-balance sheet instruments is based on fees currently
charged to enter into similar arrangements, taking into account the remaining
terms of the agreement and the counterparties 1 credit standing.

The Company has used management's best estimate of fair
the above assumptions. Thus, the fair values presented may not
which could be realized in an immediate sale or settlement of the
addition, any income taxes or other expenses which would be
actual sale or settlement are not taken into consideration in
presented.

value based on
be the amounts
instrument. In
incurred in an
the fair value

The estimated fair values of the Company 1 s financial instruments are as
fo110\0JS (amounts in thousands) ,

<TABLE>
<CAPTION>

December 31,

Financial assets:
<S>

Cash and due from banks . .
Interest-bearing deposits in other banks .
Federal funds sold . .
Trading assets . .
Securities available for sale .. . .
Securities held to maturity .
Other investments . _ .
Loans (gross) .

</TABLE>

2008 2007

Carrying Fair Carrying Fair
amount value amount value

<C> <C> <C> <C>
$ 7,874 7,874 $ 8,618 8,618

765 765 643 643
9,185 9,185 1,263 1,263

47 47
96,003 96,003 84,796 84,796
12,651 12,666 13,102 13,113

3,546 3,546 4,795 4,795
398,711 395,447 418,998 412,240
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NOTE 19 - FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRill"ENTS, Continued

<TABLE>
<CAPTION>
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<S>
Cash surrender value life insurance .

Financial liabilities:
Deposits .
Securities sold under repurchase agreements
Federal funds purchased .
Advances from Federal Home Loan Bank
Notes Payable - Other ..

</TABLE>

Carrying
amount

<C>
11,815

445,369
22,181

1,028
34,600
11,000

2008

Fair
value

<C>
11,815

442,221
22,181
l,028

34,600
11,000

Carrying
amount

<C>
11,350

417,621
19,824

429
65,100

2007

Fair
value

<C>
11,350

418,273
19,824

429
65,055

As noted in Note 1, effective January 1, 2008, the Company adopted SFAS
No. 157, Fair Value Measurements, which provides a framework for measuring and
disclosing fair value under accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America. SFAS No. 157 requires disclosures about the fair value
of assets and liabilities recognized in the balance sheet in periods subsequent
to initial recognition, whether the measurements are made on a recurring basis
(for example, available for sale investment securities) or on a nonrecurring
basis (for example, impaired loans)

SFAS No. 157 defines fair value as the exchange price that would be
received for an asset or paid to transfer a liability (an exit price) in the
principal or most advantageous market for the asset or liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants on the measurement date. SFAS No. 157
also establishes a fair value hierarchy which requires an entity to maximize the
use of observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs when
measuring fair value. The standard describes three levels of inputs that may be
used to measure fair value:

Level 1

Level 2

Level 3

Quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities. Levell assets and liabilities include debt and
equity securities and derivative contracts that are traded in an
active exchange market, as well as U.S. Treasury, other U.S.
Government and agency mortgage-backed debt securities that are
highly liquid and are actively traded in over .. the - counter
markets.

Observable inputs other than Level 1 prices such as quoted prices
for similar assets or liabilities; quoted prices in markets that
are not active; or other inputs that are observable or can be
corroborated by observable market data for substantially the full
term of the assets or liabilities. Level 2 assets and liabilities
include debt securities with quoted prices that are traded less
frequently than exchange - traded instruments and derivative
contracts whose value is determined using a pricing model with
inputs that are observable in the market or can be derived
principally from or corroborated by observable market data. This
category generally includes certain derivative contracts and
impaired loans.

Unobservable inputs that are supported by little or no market
activity and that are significant to the fair value of the assets
or liabilities. Level 3 assets and liabilities include financial
instruments whose value is determined using pricing models,
discounted cash flow methodologies, or similar techniques, as
well as instruments for which the determination of fair value
requires significant management judgment or estimation. For
example, this category generally includes certain private equity
investments, retained residual interests in securitizations,
residential mortgage servicing rights, and highly-structured or
long-term derivative contracts.
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NOTE 19 - FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS, Continued

Assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis are as
follows as of December 31, 2008,

<TABLE>
<CAPTION>

Quoted market
price in active

markets
(Levell)

Significant
other observable

inputs
(Level 2)

Significant.
unobservable

inputs
(Level 3)

<s>

</TABLE>

Available for sale securities
Trading Assets
Impaired loans .

95,585,000
47,000

95,632,000 $

418,000

16,671,000

17,089,000

<C>
$

The Company has no liabilities carried at fair value or measured at
fair value on a nonrecurring basis.

The Company is predominantly an asset based lender with real estate
serving as collateral on a substantial majority of loans. Loans which are deemed
to be impaired are primarily valued on a nonrecurring basis at the fair values
of the underlying real estate collateral. Such fair values are obtained using
independent appraisals, which the Company considers to be level 2 inputs. The
aggregate carrying amount of impaired loans at December 31, 2008 was
$16,671,000.

FSP FAS 157-2 delays the implementation of SFAS No. 157 until the first
quarter of 2009 with respect to goodwill, other intangible assets, real estate
and other assets acquired through foreclosure and other non-financial assets
measured at fair value on a nonrecurring basis.
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NOTE 20 - CONDENSED FINANCIAL INFORr~TION

Following is condensed financial information of Peoples Bancorporation,
Inc. (parent company only) (tabular amounts in thousands)

CONDENSED BALANCE SHEETS
<TABLE>
<CAPTION>

December 31,

ASSETS
<S>

Cash 0 •••• 0 ••••••• 0 •• 0 •• 0 •••••

Investment in bank subsidiaries . . . . . . . . . . .
Other assets 0 •••• • • • •• 0 •••• 0 •• 0 ••••••• • •• 0 ••

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
Notes payable 0 • 0 ••••••••• 0 •••••••••• 0 •• • •••••

Other liabilities . .
Shareholders' equity . 0 •• • • 0 •• 0 •• • •••• • •• 0 ••

</TABLE>

CONDENSED STATEMENTS OF INCOME

<TABLE>
<CAPTION>

<C>
$

$

$

$

2008

373
52,123

287

52,783

11,000
271

41,512

52,783

<C>
$

$

$

$

2007

2,173
47,347
1,306

50,826

585
50,241

50,826

For the years ended December 31,

INCOME
<S>

Fees and dividends from subsidiaries .

EXPENSES
Interest expense .
Salaries and benefits 0 •••• • ••••••••••• 0 •••• 0 ••••••• 0 •••••••• • • 0 •••

Occupancy 0 ••••••••••• • •• • • 0 •• • • • •• 0 •••••••• • •••• 0

Equipment . 0 • • • • • • • • • • ••••• _ •••• • _ •• •••• 0

Other operating 0 •••• 0 ' • 0 • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •• 0 • • •• • •• 0 •• 0 •• 0 •• 0

EQUITY IN UNDISTRIBUTED NET INCOME (LOSS) OF BANK SUBSIDIARIES _....

Income (loss) before income taxes

INCOME TAX BENEFIT

Net income (loss)

</TABLE>
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<C>
$

$

2008

6,724

104
3,751

9
457

1,394

5,715

(9,481)

(8,472)

(96)

(8,376)

<C>
$

$

2007

6,582

3,814
8

436
1,129

5,387

3,121

4,316

(27)

4,343
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NOTE 20 - CONDENSED FINANCIAL INFORMATION, Continued

CONDENSED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
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<TABLE>
<CAPTION>

For the years ended December 31,

OPERATING ACTIVITIES
<S>

Net income (loss)
Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) to net cash provided

by operating activities
Equity in undistributed net (income) loss of bank subsidiaries
Cumulative effect of post retirement cost of life insurance .
(Increase) decrease in other assets .
Decrease in other liabilities .

Net cash provided by operating activities

FINF~CING ACTIVITIES
Payments for investments in bank subsidiaries .
Net change in borrowings . .
Proceeds from the exercise of stock options .
Cash dividends ...
Cash in lieu of fractional share on stock dividends and splits ....
Proceeds (repayment) of advances from subsidiaries

Net cash used for financing activities

Net increase (decrease) in cash ..

CASH, BEGINNING OF YEAR .

2008

<C>
$ (8,376)

9,481
72

1,026
(314)

1,889

(12,500)
11,000

71
(1,060)

(1,200)

(3,689)

(1,800)

2,173

2007

<C>
$ 4,343

(3,121 )
93

(l 72)
(295 )

848

204
(1,343)

(5)
321

(823)

25

2,148

CF.SH, END OF YEAR .

</TF.BLE>
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ITEM 7A QU~~T ITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT ~~KET RISK

The section "~KET RISK - INTEREST RATE SENSITIVITY"
ltBusiness" under Item 1 of th i s Annua l Report on Form lO - K is
herein by ref erence.
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i ncluded in
incorporated

ITEt·l 8 . FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA

The fo l lowing financial statements are filed with this report,

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm .

Consolidated Balance Shee t s as of December 31, 2007 and 2006.

Consolidated Statements of Income for the years ended December 31, 2007,
2006 and 2005.

Consolidated Statements of Shareholders' Equity and Compre h ensive Income
for the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005.

Con so lida t ed Statements of Cash Flows for the years ended December 31,
200 7, 2006 and 2005.

Notes to Consol idated Financial Statements.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Shareholders and Board of Directors
Peoples Bancorporation, Inc.
Easley, South Carolina

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Peoples
Bancorporation, Inc. and Subsidiaries as of December 31, 2007 and 2006, and the
related consolidated statements of income, shareholders 1 equity and
comprehensive income, and cash flows for each of the years in the three year
period ended December 31, 2007. These consolidated financial statements are the
responsibility of the Company's management. Our responsibility is to express an
opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public
Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those standards require that
we plan and perform the audits to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit
includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. An audit also includes
assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall consolidated financial statement
presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our
opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above
present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Peoples
Bancorporation, Inc. and Subsidiaries as of December 31, 2007 and 2006 and the
results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the years in the
three year period ended December 31, 2007, in conformity with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

We were not engaged to examine management1s assertion about the
effectiveness of the Company's internal control over financial reporting as of
December 31, 2007 included in the Management's Annual Report on Internal Control
Over Financial Reporting included in the Company's Form lOoK filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission and, accordingly, we do not express an
opinion thereon.

lsi Elliott Davis, LLC

Greenville, South Carolina
I'larch 25, 2008

54
UST Seq. No. 921



Haynsworth Sinkler Boyd, P. A.
4/1312009

i:\private\sec-bank\09811 \0001 \0\1 Ok2008\peoples1 0-k08.txt, 55

<PAGE>

PEOPLES BANCORPORATION, INC. ~ND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED BAL~~CE SHEETS

(Amounts in thousands except share information)
<TABLE>
<CAPTION>

DEcm·mER 31,

2007 2006

ASSETS

FEDERAL Fill,DS SOLD

INTEREST - BEARING DEPOSITS IN OTHER BANKS

TOTAL ASSETS .

ACCRUED INTEREST RECEIVABLE

<C> <C>
8,618 $ 10,819

643 108

1,263 12,514
- - - - - - --

10,524 23,441

84,796 81,686
13,102 13,500

4,795 4,283

414,688 354,011

13,757 11,117

3,321 3,043

11,350 10,934

2,110 1,799
- - - - _ .. -- .. - - - .. - - -
$558,443 $503,814
===-=.==== ====== .::::=

$ 53,950 $ 54,993
363,671 330,052

- - - - - - -- - - - - - - - -
417,621 385,045

19,824 18,368

429

65,100 50,000

4,465 2,926

763 1,411
- - - - - - -- - - - - - - --
508,202 457,750

- - _. - - -- - - - - _. - - -

of $13,113 (2007) and $13,382 (2006))

Total liabilities

<S>
CASH fu,D DUE FROM B~~KS .

OTHER ASSETS .

LOANS, net of allowance for loan losses of $4,310 (2007) and $4,070 (2006) .

Total deposits .

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

SECURITIES
Availa.ble for sale .
Held to maturity (fair value
Other investments, at cost

CASH SURRENDER VALUE OF LIFE INSURANCE

OTHER LIABILITIES

PREMISES AND EQUIPMENT, net of accumulated depreciation ...

ACCRUED INTEREST PAYABLE

FEDERAL FUNDS PURCHASED

ADVANCES FROM FEDERAL HOME LOAN B~~K .....

SECURITIES SOLD ill'DER REPURCHASE AGREEMENTS

DEPOSITS
Noninterest-bearing
Interest-bearing .

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES Notes 11 and 12

SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
Common stock - 15,000,000 shares authorized; $1.11 par value

share; 7,056,337 (2007) shares and 6,666,568 (2006) shares
issued and outstanding .

Additional paid-in capital .
Retained earnings .
Accumulated other comprehensive income

per

7,833
41,624

784

7,400
38,614

32

18

Total shareholders' equity . 50,241 46,064

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITy . $558,443 $503,814

</TABLE>

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial
statements.
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PEOPLES BANCORPORATION, INC . fu~D SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME

(Amounts in thousands except per share information )
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<TABLE,
<CAPTION,

INTEREST INCOME
<S,

Interest and fees on loans
Interest on securities

Taxable .. . .
Tax - exempt

Interest on federal funds sold ..

Total i nterest income .

INTEREST EXPENSE
Interest on depo s its .
Interest on federal funds purchased and securities sold

under repurchase agreements .. _ .
Interest on advances from Federal Home Loan Bank

Total i nterest expense

Net interest income

PROVISION FOR LON, LOSSES ..

Net interest income after provision for loan losses

NON INTEREST INCOME
Service charges on deposit accounts . . _._.
Customer serv ice fees . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
Mortgage banking . .
Brokerage services _ .
Bank o\'Jned life insurance .. . .
Other noninterest income
Gain (loss) on sale of securities available fo r sale .

Total noninterest income ...

NON INTEREST EXPENSES
Salaries and benefits .. " .
Occupancy , . , ,
Equipment .. , . , . , . . . . . . , , . . , . . . . . . . .
~larketing and a dve r t ising , . . , , . ' , , . . , , ',., . , .
Communications . ... • . . .. • .... . .. . .. . ... .. . .. • . . . .. .. ... . . . ... ....
Prin t ing and supplie s ,.. . , . , , , . . . . , , .. , , . . , . , .
Bank paid loan costs , " , , .,."., .. ,. . , .
Directors fees .. , , . , , . , , . . . ... . .. , ,
Other post employment benefits , .,. , . . , . , , . , .
Legal and professional fees , .
Other operating ., ",.,.. . , ,

Total non i nteres t expenses

Income before income taxes

PROVISION FOR INCOME TAXES

Net income

BASIC NET INCOME PER COMMON SHARE (1 )

DILUTED NET INCOME PER COMMON SHARE (1 )

</TABLE>

(1) Per share data has been restated to reflect 5 percent stock dividends.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial
statements.

56
UST Seq, No . 921

For the years ended Decembe r 31,

2007 2006 2005

<C, <C, <C,
$ 30,959 $ 28,576 $ 23,915

3,037 2,460 1 ,921
1,422 700 260

128 242 194
-- ------ - - - - - - -- - _. - -, - - --

35,546 31, 97 8 26,290
-- - ~ -- ~'- - - - - - --

14,308 10,712 7,924

455 773 642
1,859 1 ,156 367

- - - - - - - - -------- - - - - _.- --
16, 622 12 ,6 41 8,933

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - -- - - - - - - --
18,924 19,337 17,357

900 943 848
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -- ------

18,024 18,394 16,509
------ - - -------- - - - - - - - -

1,844 1,829 2,017
124 159 168
468 44 4 494
205 223 195
476 389 417
725 666 311

(62 ) 7
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - -- - ~ - - - - - -

3,842 3,648 3,609
---- - --- -------- -- -- ----

9,385 8,966 8,565
866 821 747

1,364 1,365 1,362
508 414 415
253 2 58 222
1 98 17 6 139
200 2 26 318
450 362 349
261 109 137
442 580 371

2,039 2,344 1,713
- - - -- - - ~ -------- -- ----- -

15,966 15,621 14.338
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - --

5,900 6,421 5,78 0

1,557 1,935 1,652
- - - - - - -- - - - - - - -- - - - - - - --
$ 4,343 $ 4,486 $ 4,128
======== ======== ========

$ 0.59 $ 0.65 $ 0.60
======== ======== ========
$ 0.59 $ 0 .64 $ 0.59
======== ======== ========
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PEOPLES BANCORPORATION, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY ft~D COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

For the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005
(Amounts in thousands except share information)

Common stock

<TABLE>
<CAPTION>

Shares JI..mount

Additional
paid - in
capital

Retained
earnings

Accumu­
lated
other

compre­
hensive

income
(loss)

Total
share­

holders!
equity

<S>
BALA~CE, DECEMBER 31, 2004 .

<C>
5,822,608 6,463

<C>
$ 32,237

<C>
$ (460)

<C>
$ 38,240

Net income .
Other comprehensive income, net of tax:

Unrealized holding losses on securities available
for sale, net of income taxes of $202 ....

Less reclassification adjustment for gains
included in net income, net of income
taxes of $2 .

4,128

(388)

(5)

4,128

(388 )

(5 )

3,735
296,844 330 2,194 (2,524 )

( 9) (9)
(1,187 ) (1,187 )

125,904 139 253 392
- - _. - - - - -- -------- --------- - - - - - - - _.-

6,245,356 6,932 34,684 408 (853) 41,171
---------

4,486 4,486

Comprehensive income .
Stock dividend (5%) .
Cash in lieu of fractional shares on stock dividend
Cash dividends ($.20 per share) .
Proceeds from stock options exercised .

BALA~CE, DECEMBER 31, 2005

Net income .
Other comprehensive income, net of tax:

Unrealized holding gains on securities available
for sale, net of income taxes of $(470)

Less reclassification adjustment for gains
included in net income, net of income
taxes of $20... . .

831

40

831

40

Comprehensi ve income . .
Stock dividend (5%) .
Cash in lieu of fractional shares on stock dividend .
Cash dividends ($.20 per share)
Proceeds from stock options exercised .
Tax benefit of stock options exercised .. . .
Stock-based compensation .

316,873

104,339

352

116

3,245

421
172

92

(3,597 )
(7)

(1,258)

5,357

(7 )
(1,258 )

537
172

92

BALft~CE, DECEMBER 31, 2006 .. 6,666,568 7,400 38,614 32 18 46,064

Net income .
Other comprehensive income, net of tax:

Unrealized holding gains on securities
available for sale, net of income taxes of $(396)

4,343

766

4,343

766

Comprehensive income .
Stock Dividend (5%) .
Cash in lieu of fractional shares on stock dividend
Cash dividends ($.20 per share) ..
Proceeds from stock options exercised .
Tax benefit of stock options exercised
Stock-based compensation

335,462

54,307

373

60

2,654

144
119

93

(3,027)
(5 )

(1,343)

5,109

(5)
(1,343 )

204
119

93

BALANCE, DECEMBER 31, 2007 . 7,056,337 $ 7,833 $ 41,624 $ $ 784 $ 50,241

</TABLE>

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial
statements.
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PEOPLES BANCORPORATION, INC. ~,D SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

(Amounts in thousands)
<TABLE>
<CAPTION>

For the years ended December 31,

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
<S>

Income taxes

Loans transferred to other real estate .

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, BEGINNING OF YEAR .

2007 2006 2005

<C> <C> <C>
$ 4,343 $ 4,486 $ 4,128

(177 ) (3) 25
62 (7)

(16) (181) (60 )
900 943 848
(96) 422 (10 )

1,110 1,091 1,127
51 97 132
93 92

(278) (602) (611)
157 (809) (1,639)

1,539 645 1,127
(648) 510 (321 )

---- --- - - - - - - - --

6,978 6,753 4,739
_. - - - - - -- - ,. - - - - --

(2,893 ) (4,737)
(14,091) (62,172) (8,035 )

(512) (2,238) (388 )
7,575 5,207 3,543
4,600 37,950 500

3,740 362
315 160 1,218

(416) (1,531) (354 )
112 2,164 413

(62,441) 18,427 (52,277)
523 30 82

(4,096) (1,600 ) (794)
-- - - - -- - - - - - - --

(68,431) (2,756) (60,467)
_.. - - - - -- -_._._-_._.-

32,576 (5,304) 44,204
429 (4,039) 3,467

1,456 (13,368) (2,217 )
15,100 32,500 9,000

204 537 392
119 172

(1,343 ) (1,258) (1,187)
(5) (7) (9)

_.. - - - _.-

48,536 9,233 53,650
---- ---- - - - - - - --

(12,917) 13,230 (2,078 )

23,441 10,211 12,289
_.- - - -- - - - - - - - -- _._- - - --

10,524 $ 23,441 $ 10,211
==.==:0:::=== ======== ========

$ 15,083 $ 11,996 $ 7,806
======== ======== =====.===

$ 1,504 $ 2,286 2,200
======== ======== ========

$ 1,162 $ 1,321 (597 )
======== ====.=::::== === == ===
$ 864 $ 260 $ 1,757
======== ======== ========

Net cash used for investing activities .

Net cash provided by financing activities

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Net increase (decrease) in deposits . _ _
Net increase (decrease) in federal funds purchased .
Net increase (decrease) in securities sold under repurchase agreements .
Net increase in advances from Federal Home Loan Bank .
Proceeds from the exercise of stock options
Tax benefit of stock options exercised . .
Cash dividends paid .. ~........ . .
Cash in lieu of fractional shares on stock dividends and splits .

CASH PAID FOR
Interest

CASH ~ED CASH EQUIVALENTS, END OF YEAR .

NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS
Change in unrealized gain (loss) on available for sale securities ..

Net income .
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash

provided by operating activities
(Gain) loss on sale of premises and equipment
(Gain) loss on sale of securities available for sale
Gain on sale of assets acquired in settlement of loans
Provision for loan losses .
Provision (benefit) from deferred income taxes
Depreciation .
Amortization and accretion (net) of premiums and discounts on securities
Stock-based compensation ....
Increase in accrued interest receivable
(Increase) decrease in other assets ..
Increase in accrued interest payable .
Increase (decrease) in other liabilities

Net cash provided by operating activities ..

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchases of securities held to maturity
Purchases of securities available for sale
Purchases of other investments
Proceeds from principal pay downs on securities available for sale
Proceeds from the maturities and calls of securities available for sale .
Proceeds from the sale of securities available for sale
Proceeds from maturity of securities held to maturity .
Investment in bank o~med life insurance .. _ . . .
Proceeds from sale of other real estate owned . .
Net (increase) decrease in loans . . .
Proceeds from the sale of premises and equipment . .
Purchases of premises and equipment . . .

CASH

</TABLE>

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial
statements.
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PEOPLES BANCORPORATION, INC. fu~D SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICk~T ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACTIVITIES

Principles of consolidation and nature of operations
The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Peoples
Bancorporation, Inc. (the llCompanyll) and its vlholly-o\'Jned subsidiaries, The
Peoples National Bank, Bank of Anderson, N.A., and Seneca National Bank
(collectively referred to as the IIBanks ll

). All significant intercompany
balances and transactions have been eliminated. The Banks operate under
individual national bank charters and provide full banking services to
customers. The Banks are subject to regulation by the Office of the
Comptroller of the Currency. The Company is subject to regulation by the
Federal Reserve Board (the "FRB").

Estimates
The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America
requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent
assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the
reported amounts of interest and noninterest income and expenses during the
reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Segments
The Company, through its subsidiaries, provides a broad range of financial
services to individuals and companies. These services include demand, time
and savings deposits; lending and ATM processing and are substantially the
same across subsidiaries. While the Company's decision~makers monitor the
revenue streams of the various financial products and services by product
line and by subsidiary, the operations and the allocation of resources are
managed, and financial performance is evaluated, on an organization-wide
basis. Accordingly, the Company's banking operation is considered by
management to be one reportable operating segment.

Securities
The Company accounts for securities in accordance with Statement of
Financial Accounting Standards ("SFAS") No. 115, Accounting for Certain
Investments in Debt and Equity Securities. Debt securities are classified
upon purchase as available for sale, held to maturity, or trading. Such
assets classified as available for sale are carried at fair value.
Unrealized holding gains or losses are reported as a component of
shareholders' equity (accumulated other comprehensive income (loss)) net of
deferred income taxes. Securities classified as held to maturity are
carried at cost, adjusted for the amortization of premiums and the
accretion of discounts into interest income using a methodology which
approximates a level yield of interest over the estimated remaining period
until maturity. To qualify as held to maturity, the Company must have the
ability and intent to hold the securities to maturity. Trading securities
are carried at market value. The Company has no trading securities. Gains
or losses on dispositions of securities are based on the difference between
the net proceeds and the adjusted carrying amount of the securities sold,
using the specific identification method.

Loans and interest on loans
Loans are stated at the principal balance outstanding reduced by the
allowance for loan losses. Interest income is recognized over the term of
the loan based on the contractual interest rate and the principal balance
outstanding.

Loans generally are placed on non-accrual status when principal or interest
becomes ninety days past due, or when payment in full is not anticipated.
Interest payments received after a loan is placed on non-accrual status are
applied as principal reductions until such time the loan is returned to
accrual status. Generally, a loan is returned to accrual status when the
loan is brought current and the collectibility of principal and interest no
longer is in doubt.
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NOTE 1 - Sill4MARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES .~D ACTIVITIES, Continued

Allowance for loan losses
The allowance for loan losses is established through a provision for loan
losses charged to earnings. It is the Company's policy to charge loan
losses against the allowance when management believes a loss is probable.
Subsequent recoveries, if any, are credited to the allowance.

The allowance for loan losses is evaluated on a regular basis by management
and is based upon management's periodic review of the collectibility of the
loans in light of historical experiences, the nature and volume of the loan
portfolio, trends in delinquent, non-accruing and pOLential problem loans,
adverse situations that may affect the borrower's ability to repay,
estimated value of any underlying collateral and prevailing economic
conditions. This evaluation is inherently subjective as it requires
estimates that are susceptible to significant revision as more information
becomes available.

The allowance consists of specific, general and unallocated components. The
specific component relates to loans that are classified as doubtful,
substandard or special mention. For such loans that are also classified as
impaired, an allowance is established when the discounted cash flows (or
collateral value or observable market price) of the impaired loan is lower
than the carrying value of that loan. The general component covers
non-classified loans and is based on historical loss experience adjusted
for qualitative factors. An unallocated component is maintained to cover
uncertainties that could affect management's estimate of probable losses.
The unallocated component of the allowance reflects the margin of
imprecision inherent in the underlying assumptions used in the
methodologies for estimating specific and general losses in the portfolio.

A loan is considered impaired when, based on current information and
events, it is probable that the Company will be unable to collect the
scheduled payments of principal or interest when due according to the
contractual terms of the loan agreement. Factors considered by management
in determining impairment include payment status, collateral value, and the
probability of collecting scheduled principal and interest payments when
due. Loans that experience insignificant payment delays and payment
shortfalls generally are not classified as impaired. Management determines
the significance of payment delays and payment shortfalls on a case-by-case
basis, taking into consideration all of the circumstances surrounding the
loan and the borrower, including the length of the delay, the reasons for
the delay, the borrower's prior payment record and the amount of the
shortfall in relation to the principal and interest owed. Impairment is
measured on a loan by loan basis for commercial and construction loans by
either the present value of expected future cash flows discounted at the
loan's effective interest rate, the loan's obtainable market price, or the
fair value of the collateral if the loan is collateral dependent. Interest
payments received on an impaired loan are applied as principal reductions.

Large groups of smaller balance homogeneous loans are collectively
evaluated for impairment. Accordingly, the Company does not separately
identify individual consumer and residential loans for impairment
disclosures, unless such loans are the subject of a restructuring
agreement.

Premises and equipment
Premises and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation.
Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method over the estimated
useful lives of the assets. Additions to premises and equipment and major
replacements or betterments are added at cost. Maintenance, repairs, and
minor replacements are charged to expense when incurred. When assets are
retired or otherwise disposed of, the cost and accumulated depreciation are
removed from the accounts and any gain or loss is reflected in income.

Other real estate owned

Other real estate owned represents properties acquired through foreclosure
and is carried at the lower of cost or fair value, adjusted for estimated
selling costs. Fair values of real estate owned are reviewed regularly and
writedowns are recorded when it is determined that the carrying value of
real estate exceeds the fair value less estimated costs to sell. Costs
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NOTE SUMMARY OF SIGNIFIC.~T ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACTIVITIES, Continued

relating to the development and improvement of such properties are
capitalized, whereas those costs relating to holding the properties are
charged to expense. At December 31, 2007 and 2006 real estate owned by the
Company totaled $1,023,000 and $271,000, respectively, and is included in
other assets. During 2007 and 2006, the Company transferred loans of
$864,000 and $260,000, respectively to real estate acquired in foreclosure.

Advertising and public relations expense
Advertising. promotional and other business development costs are generally
expensed as incurred. External costs incurred in producing media
advertising are expensed the first time the advertising takes place.
External costs relating to direct mailing costs are expensed in the period
in which the direct mailings are sent.

Income taxes
The provision for
differences between
tax and financial
liability method as

income taxes includes deferred taxes on temporary
the recognition of certain income and expense items for
statement purposes_ Income taxes are computed on the
described in SFAS No. 109, Accounting for Income Taxes.

Statements of cash flows
For the purposes of reporting cash flows, the Company considers cash and
cash equivalents to be those amounts included in the balance sheet captions
llCash and Due From Banks,u lIInterest-bearing Deposits in Other Banks ll and
"Federal Funds Sold." Cash and cash equivalents have an original maturity
of three months or less.

Reclassifications
Certain prior year amounts have been reclassified to conform to the current
Dresentation. These reclassifications have no effect on previously reported
~et income or shareholders' equity.

Risk and uncertainties
In the normal course of its business the Company encounters two significant
types of risk: economic and regulatory. There are three main components of
economic risk: interest rate risk, credit risk, and market risk. The
Company is subject to interest rate risk to the degree that its
interest-bearing liabilities mature or reprice at different speeds, or on
different bases, than its interest-earning assets. Credit risk is the risk
of default on the Company's loan portfolio that results from borrowers'
inability or unwillingness to make contractually required payments. Market
risk reflects changes in the value of collateral underlying loans
receivable, the valuation of real estate held by the Company, and the
valuation of loans held for sale and mortgage-backed securities available
for sale.

The Company is subject to the regulations of various government agencies.
These regulations can and do change significantly from period to period.
The Company also undergoes periodic examinations by the regulatory
agencies, which may subject it to further changes with respect to asset
valuations, amounts of required loss allowances, and operating
restrictions, resulting from the regulators' judgments based on information
available to them at the time of their examination.

Stock option compensation plans
The Company has an employee stock option con~ensation plan through which
the Board of Directors may grant stock options to officers and employees to
purchase common stock of the Company at prices not less than 100 percent of
the fair value of the stock on the date of grant. The Company also has
another employee stock option plan under which options may no longer be
granted, but under which exercisable options remain outstanding. The
outstanding options under both plans become exercisable in various
increments beginning on the date of grant and expiring ten years from the
date of grant. The Company also has a directors' stock option plan through
which non~employee directors of the Company are granted options to purchase
500 shares of common stock for each year served on the board to a maximum
of 5,000 options per director in the aggregate under that plan and the plan
referred to in the next sentence. The Company also has another director
stock option plan under which options may no longer be granted, but under
which exercisable options remain outstanding. The option price shall not be
less than 100 percent of the fair value of the stock on the grant date. The
outstanding options become exercisable on the grant date and expire at the
earlier of the end of the director's term or ten years from the grant date.
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NOTE 1 SUMY~RY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES I~D ACTIVITIES, Continued

The Company has historically accounted for the plans under the recognition
and measurement principles of Accounting Principles Board (I!APB ll

) Opinion
No. 25, Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees, and related
Interpretations. For the year ended December 31, 2005, no stock-based
employee compensation cost is reflected in net income, as all stock options
granted under these plans had an exercise price equal to the market value
of the underlying common stock on the date of grant.

Effective January 1, 2006, the Company adopted the provisions of SFAS No.
123 (R), Share-Based Payment, which changed the accounting methodology for
its stock option plans - see Note 16. In conjunction with this change, the
Company recorded approximately $93,000 and $92,000 of compensation expense
in 2007 and 2006, respectively.

Recently issued accounting standards
The following is a summary of recent authoritative pronouncements that
affect accounting, reporting, and disclosure of financial information by
the Company:

In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 157, Fair Value Measurements
("SFAS 157") SFAS 157 defines fair value, establishes a framework for

measuring fair value in generally accepted accounting principles, and
expands disclosures about fair value measurements. This standard eliminates
inconsistencies found in various prior pronouncements but does not require
any new fair value measurements. SFAS 157 is effective for the Company on
January 1, 2008 and will not impact the Company's accounting measurements
but it is expected to result in additional disclosures.

In September 2006, The FASB ratified the consensuses reached by the FASB's
Emerging Issues Task Force ("EITF") relating to EITF 06 - 4, Accounting for
the Deferred Compensation and Postretirement Benefit Aspects of Endorsement
Split-Dollar Life Insurance Arrangements ("EITF 06-4"). Entities purchase
life insurance for various reasons including protection against loss of key
employees and to fund postretirement benefits. The two most common types of
life insurance arrangements are endorsement split dollar life and
collateral assignment split dollar life. EITF 06-4 covers the former and
EITF 06-10 (discussed below) covers the latter. EITF 06-4 states that
entities with endorsement split-dollar life insurance arrangements that
provide a benefit to an employee that extends to postretirement periods
should recognize a liability for future benefits in accordance with SFAS
No. 106, Employers' Accounting for Postretirement Benefits Other Than
Pensions, (if, in substance, a postretirement benefit plan exists) or
Accounting Principles Board (tlAPB lI

) Opinion No. 12, Omnibus Opinion -- 1967
(if the arrangement is, in substance, an individual deferred compensation
contract) Entities should recognize the effects of applying this Issue
through either (a) a change in accounting principle through a
cumulative-effect adjustment to retained earnings or to other components of
equity or net assets in the statement of financial position as of the
beginning of the year of adoption or Ib) a change in accounting principle
through retrospective application to all prior periods. EITF 06-4 is
effective for the

Company on January 1, 2008. The Company does not believe the adoption of
EITF 06-4 will have a material impact on its financial position, results of
operations or cash flows.

In September 2006, the FASB ratified the consensus reached on EITF 06-5,
Accounting for Purchases of Life Insurance - -Determining the Amount That
Could Be Realized in Accordance with FASB Technical Bulletin No. 85-4,
Accounting for Purchases of Life Insurance ("EITF 06-5"). EITF 06-5 states
that a policyholder should consider any additional amounts included in the
contractual terms of the insurance policy other than the cash surrender
value in determining the amount that could be realized under the insurance
contract. EITF 06-5 also states that a policyholder should determine the
amount that could be realized under the life insurance contract assuming
the surrender of an individual-life by individual-life policy (or
certificate by certificate in a group policy). EITF 06-5 is effective for
the Company on January 1, 2008. The Company does not believe the adoption
of EITF 06-5 will have a material impact on its financial position, results
of operations or cash flows.
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NOTE - SUMV~RY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACTIVITIES, Continued

In March 2007, the FASB ratified the consensus reached on EITF 06-10,
Accounting for Collateral Assignment Split-Dollar Life Insurance
Arrangements (llEITF 06-10 11 ). The postretirement aspect of this EITF is
substantially similar to EITF 06-4 discussed above and requires that an
employer recognize a liability for the postretirement benefit related to a
collateral assignment split-dollar life insurance arrangement in accordance
with either FASB Statement No. 106 or APB Opinion No. 12, as appropriate,
if the employer has agreed to maintain a life insurance policy during the
employee's retirement or provide the employee with a death benefit based on
the substantive agreement with the employee. In addition, a consensus was
reached that an employer should recognize and measure an asset based on the
nature and substance of the collateral assignment split-dollar life
insurance arrangement. EITF 06-10 is effective for the Company on January
1, 2008. The Company does not believe the adoption of EITF 06-10 will have
a material impact on its financial position, results of operations or cash
flows.

In February 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 159, The Fair Value Option for
Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities - Including an amendment of FASB
Statement No. 115 ("SFAS 159") This statement permits, but does not
require, entities to measure many financial instruments at fair value. The
objective is to provide entities with an opportunity to mitigate volatility
in reported earnings caused by measuring related assets and liabilities
differently without having to apply complex hedge accounting provisions.
Entities electing this option will apply it when the entity first
recognizes an eligible instrument and will report unrealized gains and
losses on such instruments in current earnings. This statement I} applies
to all entities, 2) specifies certain election dates, 3) can be applied on
an instrument-by-instrument basis with some exceptions, 4) is irrevocable
and 5) applies only to entire instruments. One exception is demand deposit
liabilities which are explicitly excluded as qualifying for fair value.
With respect to SFAS 115, available-for-sale and held-to-maturity
securities at the effective date are eligible for the fair value option at
that date. If the fair value option is elected for those securities at the
effective date, cumulative unrealized gains and losses at that date shall
be included in the cumulative-effect adjustment and thereafter, such
securities will be accounted for as trading securities. SPAS 159 is
effective for the Company on January 1, 2008. The Company is currently
analyzing the fair value option that is permitted, but not required, under
SFAS 159. In November 2007, the Securities and Exchange Commission (llSECll)
issued Staff Accounting Bulletin No. 109, Written Loan Commitments Recorded
at Fair Value Through Earnings ("SAB 109"). SAB 109 expresses the current
view of the SEC staff that the expected net future cash flows related to
the associated servicing of the loan should be included in the measurement
of all written loan commitments that are accounted for at fair value
through earnings. SEC registrants are expected to apply this guidance on a
prospective basis to derivative loan commitments issued or modified in the
first quarter of 2008 and thereafter. The Company is currently analyzing
the impact of this guidance, which relates to the Company's mortgage loans
held for sale. In December 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 141(R), Business
Combinations, ("SFAS 141(R)") which replaces SFAS 141. SFAS 141(R)
establishes principles and requirements for how an acquirer in a business
combination recognizes and measures in its financial statements the
identifiable assets acquired, the liabilities assumed, and any controlling
interesti recognizes and measures goodwill acquired in the business
combination or a gain from a bargain purchase; and determines what
information to disclose to enable users of the financial statements to
evaluate the nature and financial effects of the business combination. FAS
141(R) is effective for acquisitions by the Company taking place on or
after January 1, 2009. Early adoption is prohibited. Accordingly, a
calendar year-end company is required to record and disclose business
combinations following existing accounting guidance until January I, 2009.
The Company will assess the impact of SFAS 141(R) if and when a future
acquisition occurs.

In December 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 160, Noncontrolling Interests in
Consolidated Financial Statements - an amendment of ARB No. 51 ("SFAS
160"). SFAS 160 establishes new accounting and reporting standards for the
noncontrolling interest in a subsidiary and for the deconsolidation of a
subsidiary. Before this statement, limited guidance existed for reporting
noncontrolling interests (minority interest). As a result, diversity in
practice exists. In some cases minority interest is reported as a liability
and in others it is reported in the mezzanine section between liabilities
and equity. Specifically, SFAS 160 requires the recognition of a
noncontrolling interest (minority interest) as equity in the consolidated
financials statements and separate from
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NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES fu~D ACTIVITIES, Continued

the parent's equity. The amount of net income attributable to the
noncontrolling interest will be included in consolidated net income on the
face of the income statement. SFAS 160 clarifies that changes in a parent's
ownership interest in a subsidiary that do not result in deconsolidation
are equity transactions if the parent retains its controlling financial
interest. In addition, this statement requires that a parent recognize gain
or loss in net income when a subsidiary is deconsolidated. Such gain or
loss will be measured using the fair value of the noncontrolling equity
investment on the deconsolidation date. SFAS 160 also includes expanded
disclosure requirements regarding the interests of the parent and its
noncontrolling interests. SFAS 160 is effective for the Company on January
1, 2009. Earlier adoption is prohibited. The Company is currently
evaluating the impact, if any, the adoption of SFAS 160 will have on its
consolidated financial statements.

Other accounting standards that have been issued or proposed by the FASB or
other standards-setting bodies are not expected to have a material impact
on the Company1s financial position, results of operations or cash flows.

NOTE 2 - RESTRICTIONS ON CASH MiD DUE FROM BMiKS

The Banks are required to maintain average reserve balances with the
Federal Reserve Bank ("FRB") based upon a percentage of deposits. The average
amounts of reserve balances maintained by the Banks at December 31, 2007 and
2006 were approximately $1,542,000 and $1,036,000, respectively.

NOTE 3 - SECURITIES
Securities are summarized as follows as of December 31 (tabular

amounts in thousands)

<TABLE>
<CAPTION>

2007

Unrealized holding

SECURITIES AVAILABLE FOR SALE,

GOVERNMENT SPONSORED ENTERPRISE
SECURITIES

Amortized
Cost Gains Losses

Fair
value

<S>
Maturing within one year
Maturing after one year but within five years .
Maturing after five years but within ten years . .

OTHER SECURITIES
Maturing within one year .
Maturing after one year but within five years .
Maturing after five years but within ten years .
Maturing after ten years .. . .

OBLIGATIONS OF STATES AND POLITICAL
SUBDIVISIONS
Maturing after five years but within ten years
Maturing after ten years .

Total securities available for sale . .

</TABLE>
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<C> <C> <C> <C>
$ 2,000 $ $ 9 1,991

750 15 765
6,000 218 6,218

8,750 233 8,974

152 1 151
897 5 892

8,932 63 54 8,941
39,038 927 41 39,924

49,019 990 101 49,908

1,966 31 1 1,996
23,873 88 43 23,918

25,839 119 44 25,914

$83,608 $ 1,342 $ 154 $84,796
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Note 3 Securities (Continued )

Unrealized holding

<TABLE,
<CAPTION,

SECUR I TI ES HELD TO ~~TURITY,

OBLIGATIONS OF STATES AND POLITICAL
SUBDIVISIONS

Amortized
Cost Ga i ns

2007

Losses
Fa ir
value

Matur i ng \·; i th i n o ne year , .
Matur i ng a f t er one y ear but within five years
Matur i ng a fter five years b u t wit h i n ten years .
Maturi ng a fter ten yea r s .

Tota l securi ti es hel d to maturity

</TABLE,

<TABL E,
<CAPTION,

<C, <C, <C, <C,
$ 866 $ 2 $ 1 $ 867

5, 6 38 1 9 14 5 , 643
4,139 2 4 29 4 , 134
2, 459 11 1 2 , 46 9

$13 ,102 56 45 $13,113

2006

Unreal i zed holding

SECURITIES AVAILABLE FOR SALE ,

GOVERNMENT SPONSORED ENTERPRISE
SECURITIES

Amortized
Cost Gains Losses

Fair
value

<C,
$ 23

43

66

2
25

260
102

3 89

Maturing within one year
Maturing after one year but within five years
Maturing after five y ears but within ten years

OTHER SECUR ITIES
Maturing within one year .. . .
Maturing afte r one year but within five yea rs
Maturing af ter f i v e years but wi th i n ten years .
Ma t uring af t er ten years ..

OBLIGATIONS OF STATES AND POLI TICAL
SUBDIVIS IONS
Maturi ng after f ive years but within ten years
~laturing a fter ten years . .

Total securiti e s available for sale .

SECURITIES HELD TO ~TURITY,

<C , <C,
$ 4,600 $

2,25 0
5,500 53

12.350 53

31 2 240
1 ,178

10,732 19
32,520 268

44,742 527

860 1 4
23,706 19

24,566 33

$8 1 .658 $ 613 $

13 0

130

585

<C,
$ 4, 577

2.2 07
5,553

12,337

550
1 , 153

10,491
32 , 686

4 4, 880

8 74
23,59 5

24,469

$81,686

OBLIGATIONS OF STATES AND POLITICAL
SUBDIVISIONS
Maturing within one year .
Maturing after one year but within five years .
Maturing after five years but within ten years .
Mat u ring after ten years . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Total securities held to maturity .

</T.~BLE>

$ 315 $ $ 315
5,631 3 65 5,569
3,818 11 63 3,766
3, 736 7 11 3,732

$13,50 0 $ 21 $ 139 $13,382

The following table shows gross unrea l ized losses and fa i r value,
aggregated by investment category, and length of time that individua l securit ie s
have been in a conti nuou s unrealized l oss position, a t December 31, 2007 .
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Securities Ava ilable f or Sale (tabular amounts in thousands) ,
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<TABLE>
<CAPT I ON>

Less than 12 Months 12 Mon t h s or More Total

<S>
Government s ponsored

ente rprise securities .
Other securities
State and political

subdivisions .

Total

</TABLE>

Fair Unrea lized Fair
Value Losses Va lue

<C> <C> <C>

$ $ $ 2,00 0
7,379

1,395 (10 ) 7,475

$ 1,395 (10) $16,85 4

Unrealized
Losses

$ (9)
(101 )

(34)

$ (144)

Fair
Va luE

<C>

2,00 0
7,379

8,87 0

$18,24 9

Unrea l ized
Losses

$ (9)
(1 0 1 )

(44)

$ (1 54)

Thirty-f ive individual securities were in a continuous loss position
for twelve months or more.

Securities Held to Maturit y (tabular amounts in thousands)

<TABLE>
<CAPTION>

Les s than 12 Mont hs 12 Months or More Tota l

<S>
States and political

s ubdivisi ons

</ TABLE>

Fa ir
Va lue

335

Unrea l ized
Los ses

(2)

Fair
Va l ue

<C>

$3,785

Unreal i zed
Losses

$ (43)

Fa ir
Va lue

$4,120

Unrealized
Losses

$ (4 5 )

S e venteen indi vidual securities were in a c ontinuous loss position fo r
twelve months or more .

The following table shows gross u nrealized los ses and fair va l ue,
aggregated by investment category, and length of time that individua l securiti es
have been in a continuous unrea lized loss pos ition, at December 31, 2006 .

Securities Avail able for Sa le (tabu lar amounts in thousands ) ,
<TABLE>
<CAPTION>

Less than 12 Months

$

Unrea lized
Losses

<S>
Government sponsored

enterprise securities
Other securities
State a nd polit i cal

s ubd i vis i ons .

Total .

</TABLE>

Fair
Value

<C>

$
435

18,4 41

$18 ,8 76 $

130

13 0

12 Months or More Total
-- -------

Fair Un r ea li zed Fair Unrealized
Value Losses Value Losses

<C > <C> <C> <C>

$ 6,784 $ 66 $ 6,78 4 66
13,75 0 389 14,185 389

18,441 130

$2 0, 5 34 $ 455 $39, 410 $ 585

Forty individual secur itie s were in a c ontinuous loss position for
twelve months or more.

Securities Held to Ma t urity (tabular amounts in thou sands) ,

<TABLE>
<CAPTION>

Less than 12 Months 12 Months or Mo r e Total

<S>
Sta tes and pol it ica l

subdivis ions

</TABL E>

Fair
Va lue

$1,665

Unrea l ized
Losses

$

Fair
Value

<C>

$6,654

Unreali z ed
Losses

$ 133

Fair
Value

<C>

$8,319

Un r eal i zed
Losses

139

Thirty individual securities were in a cont inuous loss positi on for
twelve mont,hs or more.
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The Company has the ability and intent to hold the securities in a
continuous loss position until such time as the value recovers or the securities
mature. The Company believes, based on industry analyst reports and credit
ratings, that the deterioration in value is attributable to changes in market
interest rates and not in the credit quality of the issuers and therefore, these
losses are not considered other-than-temporary. The category "other securities H

above is comprised of mortgage - backed securities and investments in Silverton
Bank stock.

Other Investments, at Cost (tabular amounts in thousands) ,

The Banks, as member institutions, are required to own certain stock
investments in the Federal Home Loan Bank of Atlanta ("FHLB") and the FRB. These
investments are carried at cost and are generally pledged against any borrowings
from these institutions (see Note 9) No ready market exists for these stocks
and they have no quoted market values. The Company's investments in these stocks
are summarized below:

<TABLE>
<CAPTION>

December 31/

2007 2006

<S>
FRB .
FHLB .
Interest-bearing deposits in other banks (maturing after three months)

</TABLE>

Securities with carrying amounts of $45,438,000 and $43,494,000
December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively, were pledged to secure public deposits
and for other purposes required or permitted by law.

<C>
$3,895

453
447

$4,795

<C>
$ 453

3,271
559

$4,283

NOTE 4 LOANS AND ALLOWANCE FOR LO~~ LOSSES

Loans are summarized as follows (tabular amounts in thousands) ,

<TABLE>
<CAPTION>

December 31,

2007 2006

<S>
Commercial and industrial - not secured by real estate
Commercial and industrial - secured by real estate .
Residential real estate - mortgage
Residential real estate - construction .
Loans to individuals for household, family and other personal expenditures

Less allowance for loan losses .

</TABLE>

The composition of gross loans by rate type is as follows (tabular
amounts in thousands) :

December 31,

<C> <C>
$ 47,885 38,505

107,531 90,298
108,161 97,835
138,926 117,465

16,495 13,978
-------- - - - - - - --
418,998 358,081

4,310 4,070
-------- - - - - ----

$414,688 $354,011
======== ========

Variable rate loans .
Fixed rate loans .
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2007

$197,344
221,654

$418,998

2006

$180,545
177,536

$358,081
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NOTE 4 - LOANS AND ALLOWANCE FOR LOAN LOSSES (Continued)

Changes in the allowance for loan losses were as follows (tabular
amounts in thousands) ,

For the years ended December 31,

BAL~~CE, BEGINNING OF YEAR .
Provision for loan losses
Loans charged off .
Loans recovered .

BALANCE, END OF YEAR .

2007 2006 2005

4,070 3,854 $ 3,691
900 943 848

(706 ) (995 ) (704)
46 268 19

$ 4,310 $ 4,070 $ 3,854

At December 31, 2007 and 2006 nonaccrual loans amounted to $7,505,000
and $993,000, respectively. Foregone interest income was approximately $137,000,
$95,000 and $89,000 on nonaccrual loans for 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively.
Impaired loans totaled approximately $2,024,000 at December 31, 2007 and there
were no impaired loans at December 31, 2006.

NOTE 5 - PREMISES AND EQUIPMENT

The principal categories and estimated useful lives of premises and
equipment are summarized below (tabular amounts in thousands) ,

Estimated
useful lives

December 31,

2007 2006

Land .
Building and improvements .
Furniture, fixtures and equipment .

Less accumulated depreciation

15 - 40 years
3 - 10 years

3,873
9,759
8,561

22,193
8,436

$13,757

$ 2,869
8,040
7,602

18,511
7,394

$11,117

Depreciation expense of approximately $1,110,000, $1,091,000 and
$1,127,000 for 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively, is included in occupancy and
equipment expenses in the accompanying consolidated statements of income.

NOTE 6 - DEPOSITS
The composition of deposits is as follows (tabular amounts in

thousands) ,
December 31,

Demand deposits, noninterest bearing .
NOW and money market accounts
Savings deposits .
Time certificates, $100,000 or more. . .
Other time certificates .

Total .
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2007

$ 53,950
83,870

8,172
109,457
162,172

$417,621

2006

$ 54,993
86,165

8,987
87,365

147,535

$385,045
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NOTE 6 - DEPOSITS (Continued)
December 31,

2007 2006

Time certificates maturing
Within one year . . .
After one but within two years
After two but within three years ..
After three but within four years .
After four years . .

Transaction and sav i ng s accounts

$253,342 $201,669
12.093 29,789

5, 421 2.938
757 486

16 18
- - - - - - - - - -------

271.629 234,900

145,992 15 0 ,1 45
- .. - - - - -- - - - - - - - -

$417,621 $385,045
;::======= ====== ==

Ce rtificates of deposit in excess of $100,000 totaled approximately
$99 , 060,000 and $76,758.0 00 at December 31, 2007 a nd 2006, respectiv ely.
Interest expense on certificates of de posit in excess of $100.00 0 was
approximately, $4, 636, 000 and $3, 567,000 in 2006. The Banks had broke red time
certificates of app r o x imately $28,087,000 a t December 31 , 2007 and $28,999,000
at December 3 1 , 2006 .

NOTE 7 - SECURITI ES SOLD UNDER REPURCHASE AGREEMENTS

Securities sol d under repurchase agreements are summarized as follows
(tabular amounts in t housands ) ,

<TABLE,
<CAPT I ON,

2007

December 31,

2006

<S,
Government sponsored enterprise secu rities with an amortized cost of $27,855,000

($28,044,000 f a ir value) and $35,235,000 ($35,828.000 fair value) at
December 31, 2007 and 20 06. respectively, col lateralize the agreements.

</ TABLE,

The Ba nk s ente r into sale s of secu r it ie s under agreement s t o
repurchase. These ob l igations to repurchase securities sold are reflected as
liabilities in t h e conso l i dated balance sheet s. The dollar amount of secu ri ti es
under l ying the agreements remains i n the asset accoun t s. The secu ri ti es
u nderlying t he agreements are book entry sec u rities mai nta ined by a safekeeping
agent . The we ighted average int eres t r a te of these agree me n ts was 1 . 92 percent
a nd 2. 50 p e rcent for 2007 and 2006 . r esp ectively. The agre ement s ma t ure daily.
Secu r ities sold under agreements t o repurchase averaged $20 . 648.000 and
$28 , 443,000 during 2007 and 2006 , respec t ively. The maximum amoun t s ou t standing
a t a ny mont h - end were $2 3 ,2 29 , 000 and $30,962,000 dur i ng 200 7 a nd 2006.
respe c t ively .

NOTE 8 - FEDERAL FUNDS PURCHASED

At December 31 . 2007, the Banks had the ability to purchase federal
funds from u nrela ted banks under short-term lines of credit tota l ing
$42,000,000. These l ines of credit are availabl e on a one to seven day basis for
general corporate purposes. At December 31, 2007 t here was $429,000 outstanding
under these l i nes of credi t and no federal funds purchased at December 31, 2006
under these lines of credit.

NOTE 9 - ADVANCES FROM FEDERAL HOME LOAN BANK

The Banks have the ability to borrow up to 20 percent of their total
assets from the FH LB subject to ava ilable qualifying col l ateral. Borrowings may
be obtained under v a rious FHLB lending programs with various terms. Borrowing s
from the FHLB require qua l ifying collatera l (which includes certain mortgage
loans. investment securities and FHLB stock) and ma y require purchasing
additional s t ock in the FHLB.
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NOTE 9 ADVANCES FROM FEDERAL HOME LOfu~ Bfu~K (Continued)

The Banks had advances aggregating $65,100,000 and $50,000,000 at
December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively. At December 31, 2007 and 2006
respectively, the Banks had $23,100,000 and $45,000,000 of advances at interest
rates of 4.40 percent and 5.50 percent and which matured daily. At December 31,
2007 $21,000,000 of advances bear interest at 4.52 percent that mature in
February 2008 and $21,000,000 of advances bear interest at 4.68 percent that
mature in November 2008. At December 31, 2006, $5,000,000 of the advances bear
interest at 4.82 percent and mature in December 2010. At December 31, 2007 and
2006, the advances were collateralized by qualifying mortgage loans aggregating
approximately $66,963,000 and $55,679,000, respectively, and by FHLB stock owned
by all three Banks. At December 31, 2007 the advances were also collateralized
by $9,620,000 in investment securities owned by the banks. As of December 31,
2007, the Banks had the ability to borrow an additional $11,523,000 in the
aggregate from the FHLB.

NOTE 10 - INCOME TAXES

Provision for income taxes consists of the following (tabular
amounts in thousands) :

For the years ended December 31,

Current tax provision
Federal
State

Total current taxes
Deferred tax benefit ..

~~--------- ----------- - ----- - --

2007 2006 2005

1,452 $ 1,302 $ 1,474
201 211 188

1,653 1,513 1,662
(96) 422 (10)

$ 1,557 $ 1,935 $ 1,652

Income taxes differ from the tax expense computed by applying the
statutory federal income tax rate of 34 percent to income before income taxes.
The reasons for these differences are as follows (tabular amounts in thousands) :

For the years ended December 31,

Tax expense at statutory rate .
Increase (decrease) in taxes resulting from:

State income taxes, net of federal benefit
Tax-exempt interest income ...
Investment in life insurance
Other

2007

$ 2,006

133
(483 )

(62)
(37 )

2006 2005

2,183 $ 1,965

140 124
(238 ) (77)

(99) (120 )
(51) (240)

Provision for income taxes . $ 1,557 $ 1,935 $ 1,652

Deferred tax assets (liabilities) result from temporary differences
in the recognition of revenue and expenses for tax and financial statement
purposes. Management believes realization of the deferred tax assets is more
likely than not and accordingly has not recorded a valuation allowance. The
sources and the cumulative tax effect of temporary differences are as follows
(tabular amounts in thousands) :
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NOTE 10 - INCOME TAXES (Continued)

<TABLE>
<CAPTION>
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December 31,

2007 2006

Deferred tax assets
<5>

Allo\'Jance for loan losses .
Deferred compensation .
Other . .

Depreciation .
Prepaid expenses .
Unrealized holding gains on securities available for sale

Net deferred tax assets included in other assets

</TABLE>

The Company has analyzed the tax positions taken or expected to be
taken in its tax returns and concluded it has no liability related to uncertain
tax positions in accordance with FIN No. 48.

NOTE 11 - FINANCIAL INSTR~IENTS WITH OFF-BALANCE SHEET RISK

The Banks are parties to financial instruments with off-balance
sheet risk in the normal course of business to meet the financing needs of their
customers. These financial instruments include commitments to extend credit and
standby letters of credit. They involve, to varying degrees, elements of credit
and interest rate risk in excess of the amounts recognized in the balance
sheets.

The Company's exposure to credit loss in the event of nonperformance
by the other party to the financial instrument for commitments to extend credit
and standby letters of credit is represented by the contractual amounts of those
instruments. The Company uses the same credit policies in making commitments and
conditional obligations as it does for on-balance sheet instruments.

Commitments to extend credit are agreements to lend to a customer as
long as there is no violation of any material condition established in the
contract. Commitments generally have fixed expiration dates or other termination
clauses and may require the payment of a fee. At December 31, 2007, unfunded
commitments to extend credit were $113,020,000, of which $108,032,000 were at
variable rates and $4,988,000 were at fixed rates. These commitments included
$41,790,000 of unfunded amounts of construction loans, $40,572,000 of
undisbursed amounts of home equity lines of credit, $18,975,000 of unfunded
amounts under commercial lines of credit, and $11,683,000 other commitments to
extend credit. The Company evaluates each customer1s creditworthiness on a
case-by - case basis. The amount of collateral obtained, if deemed necessary by
the Company upon extension of credit, is based on management 1 s credit evaluation
of the borrower. Collateral varies but may include accounts receivable,
inventory, property, plant and equipment, commercial and residential real
estate.

At December 31, 2007, there was $2,800,000 committed under letters
of credit. The credit risk involved in issuing letters of credit is essentially
the same as that involved in extending loan facilities to customers. Collateral
varies but may include accounts receivable, inventory, equipment, marketable
securities and property. Since most of the letters of credit are expected to
expire without being drawn upon, they do not necessarily represent future cash
requirements. The Company has not recorded a liability for the current carrying
amount of the obligation to perform as a guarantor, and no contingent liability
was considered necessary, as such amounts were not considered material.
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<C> <C>
$ 1,471 1,388

156 366
97 83

1,724 1,837

(108) (209)
(93 ) (201 )

(404) (9)

(605) (419)

1,119 $ 1,418
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The Company has, from time to time, various lawsuits and claims arising
from the conduct of its business. Management does not expect such items to have
any material adverse effect on the financial position or results of operations
of the Company.

Financial instruments, which potentially subject the Company to
concentrations of credit risk, consist principally of loans receivable,
investment securities, federal funds sold and amounts due from banks.

The Company makes loans to individuals and small businesses for various
personal and commercial purposes primarily in the upstate region of South
Carolina. The Company's loan portfolio is not concentrated in loans to any
single borrower or in a relatively small number of borrowers. Additionally,
management is not aware of any concentrations of loans to classes of borrowers
or industries that would be similarly affected by economic conditions.

In addition to monitoring potential concentrations of loans to
particular borrowers or groups of borrowers, industries and geographic regions,
management monitors exposure to credit risk that could arise from potential
concentrations of lending products and practices such as loans that subject
borrowers to substantial payment increases (e.g. principal deferral periods,
loans with initial interest-only periods, etc) , and loans with high
loan - to-value ratios. Additionally, there are industry practices that could
subject the Company to increased credit risk should economic conditions change
over the course of a loan's life. For example, the Company makes variable rate
loans and fixed rate principal - amortizing loans with maturities prior to the
loan being fully paid (i.e. balloon payment loans). These loans are underwritten
and monitored to manage the associated risks. Management has determined that
there is no concentration of credit risk associated with its lending policies or
practices.

The Company's investment portfolio consists principally of obligations
of the United States, its agencies or its corporations and general obligation
municipal securities. In the opinion of management, there is no concentration of
credit risk in its investment portfolio. The Company places its deposits and
correspondent accounts with and sells its federal funds to high quality
institutions. Management believes credit risk associated with correspondent
accounts is not significant.

NOTE 13 - RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

At December 31, 2007 and 2006, certain officers, directors, employees,
related parties and companies in which they have 10 percent or more beneficial
ownership, were indebted to the Banks in the aggregate amount of $11,043,000 and
$9,352,000, respectively. During 2007, $3,469,000 of new loans were made to this
group and repayments of $1,087,000 were received. This same group had deposits
in the Banks of $7,033,000 at December 31, 2007.

NOTE 14 - COMMON STOCK AND EARNINGS PER SHARE

SFAS No. 128, Earnings Per Share, requires that the Company present
basic and diluted net income per common share. The assumed conversion of stock
options creates the difference between basic and diluted net income per common
share. Income per share is calculated by dividing net income by the weighted
average number of common shares outstanding for each period presented. The
weighted average number of common shares outstanding for basic net income per
common share was 7,401,032 in 2007, 6,933,929 in 2006 and 6,860,112 in 2005. The
weighted average number of common shares outstanding for diluted net income per
common share was 7,403,021 in 2007, 6,986,233 in 2006 and 7,020,811 in 2005.

The Company declared or issued five percent common stock dividends in
2007, 2006 and 2005. Net income and dividends per common share and the weighted
average number of common shares outstanding for basic and diluted net income per
common share in prior years have been restated to reflect these transactions.
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NOTE 15 - RESTRICTION OF DIVIDENDS

The ability of the Company to pay cash dividends is dependent upon
receiving cash in the form of dividends from the Banks. Federal banking
regulations restrict the amount of dividends that can be paid and such dividends
are payable only from the retained earnings of the Banks. At December 31, 2007
the Banks had aggregate retained earnings of $31,444,000.

NOTE 16 STOCK OPTION COMPENSATION PLANS

Prior to 2006, the Company accounted for stock options in accordance
with APB Opinion No. 25. The following table illustrates the effect on net
income and earnings per share had the Company accounted for share-based
compensation in accordance with SFAS No. 123 (R) for the periods indicated:

<TABLE>
<CAPTION>

(tabular amounts in thousands, except per share information) For the years ended December 31,

<S>
Net income, as reported .
Add: Stock-based employee compensation expense included

in reported net income net of related tax effects
Deduct: total stock-based employee compensation expense

Determined under fair value based method for all awards,
Net of related tax effects .

Pro forma net income .

Net income per common share
Basic-as reported .

Basic-pro forma

Diluted-as reported

-------- - - - _.- -- _._-
2007 2006

<C> <C>
$4,343 $4,486

93 92

(93) (92)

$4,343 $4,486

$ 0.59 $ 0.65

$ 0.59 $ 0.64

2005

<c>
$ 4,128

(131)

$ 3,997

0.60

0.58

0.59

Diluted-pro forma . $ 0.57

</TABLE>

The fair value of each option grant is estimated on the date of grant using the
Black-Scholes option pricing model with the following weighted average
assumptions for grants in 2007, 2006 and 2005: dividend yields of $.20 per
share, expected volatility from 22 to 27 percent, risk-free interest rates from
4.06 to 5.06 percent and expected life of 10 years. The weighted average fair
market value of options granted approximated $3.49 in 2007, $3.98 in 2006 and
$6.66 in 2005. For purposes of the proforma calculations, compensation expense
is recognized on a straight-line basis over the vesting period.

A summary of the status of the plans as of December 31, 2007, 2006 and
2005, and changes during the years ending on those dates is presented below (all
shares and exercise prices have been adjusted for stock dividends and the stock
split) :

<TABLE>
<CAPTION>

Options Outstanding

$ 243,511

314,640

$1,256,625

Aggregate
Intrinsic Value

59,917

59,917$

$

<C>

6.59

6.39

vleighted
Average

Contractual
Term (Years)

vleighted
Average
Exercise

Shares Price

<C> <C>
452,830 $5.61

22,574 15.56
(154,142) 3.49

(3,509) 14.03
- - - - - ---

317,753 7.24
26,882 10.86

(119,572) 4.95
(16,074) 13 .46

- _._----

208,989 8.46
25,323 10.46

(61,566) 4.04
(3,997) 11.68

--_._----

168,749 10.29
========

130,134 $9.08

392,650

Options exercisable at year-end .

Outstanding at December 31, 2007

Shares available for grant .
</TABLE>

Outstanding at December 31, 2006 .
Granted .
Exercised .
Forfeited or expired

<S>
Outstanding at December 31, 2004 .
Granted .
Exercised _ .
Forfeited or expired .

Outstanding at December 31, 2005
Granted
Exercised
Forfeited or expired ..
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<TABLE>
<CAPTION>

<S>
Non-vested options at December 31, 2006 Granted .
Granted . .
Vested . .
Forfeited or expired

Non-vested options at December 31, 2007

</TABLE>

Number of
shares

<C>
37,229
25,323

(19,940)
(3,997)

38,615

Weighted average grant
date fair value

5.06
10.46
10.55
11. 68

11.56

Options ExercisableOptions Outstanding
---------- - - - - - - --

Weighted
average Weighted

remaining average
Number contractual exercise

outstanding life price
- ---------

3,642 0.3 years $ 5.35
5,734 0.5 years 5.33

10,973 0.8 years 5.33
3,480 1.3 years 6.47
8,824 2.3 years 8.16
5,826 3.0 years 8.53
7,371 3.3 years 7.60
9,018 4.3 years 8.86

10,461 4.5 years 9.34
6,685 5.3 years 10.47

25,741 6.3 years 12.89
1,823 6.6 years 13.71
1,823 6.8 years 14.73
1,736 7.0 years 17.93
4,624 7.3 years 15.66
1,158 7.5 years 14.77
2,316 7.6 years 14.90
5,788 7.7 years 14.90
1,736 7.8 years 14.08
1,102 8.1 years 12.02
1,102 8.2 years 11.89
6,063 8.3 years 10.25
7,164 8.3 years 11. 45
1,102 8.5 years 10.44
4,280 8.7 years 10.43
3,855 8.8 years 10.21
6,422 9.0 years 10.48
2,625 9.1 years 10.18
1,050 9.2 years 9.95
3,675 9.3 years 9.52
6,825 9.3 years 11.19
1,050 9.5 years 11.42
2,625 9.6 years 10.24
1,050 9.9 years 9.57

168,749
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Number
exercisable

3,642
5,734

10,973
3,480
8,824
5,826
7,371
9,018

10,461
6,685

19,932
1,276
1,276

955
4,624

637
1,274
3,183

955
441
441

2,425
5,510

441
1,712
1,542
2,569

656
263
920

6,825
263

130,134

vleighted
average

exercise
price

$ 5.35
5.33
5.33
6.47
8.16
8.53
7.60
8.86
9.34

10.47
12.89
13.71
14.73
17.93
15.66
14.77
14.90
14.90
14.08
12.02
11.89
10.25
11.45
10.44
10.43
10.21
10.48
10.18

9.95
9.52

11.19
11.42
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NOTE 16 . STOCK OPTION COMPENSATION PLANS, Continued

The plans are administered by the Board of Directors or by a
committee designated by the Board. The plans provide that if the shares of
common stock shall be subdivided or combined into a greater or smaller number of
shares or if the Company shall issue any shares of common stock as a stock
dividend on its outstanding common stock, the number of shares of common stock
deliverable upon the exercise of options shall be increased or decreased
proportionately, and appropriate adjustments shall be made in the purchase price
per share to reflect such subdivision, combination or stock dividend.

NOTE 17 . EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS

The Company maintains a 401(k) retirement plan for all eligible
employees. Upon ongoing approval of the Board of Directors, the Company matches
employee contributions equal to fifty percent of the first six percent of such
contributions, subject to certain adjustments and limitations. Contributions to
the plan of $206,971, $159,824 and $142,255, were charged to operations during
2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively.

Supplemental benefits have been approved by the Board of Directors
for certain executive officers of the Company. These benefits are not qualified
under the Internal Revenue Code and they are not funded. However, certain
funding is provided informally and indirectly by life insurance policies. The
Company recorded expense related to these benefits of $201,356, $51,585 and
$74,383, in 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively.

NOTE 18 . REGULATORY MATTERS

The Company and the Banks are subject to various regulatory capital
requirements administered by the federal banking agencies. Failure to meet
minimum capital requirements can initiate certain mandatory, and possibly
additional discretionary, actions by regulators that, if undertaken, could have
a direct material effect on the Banks l financial statements. Under capital
adequacy guidelines and the regulatory framework for prompt corrective action,
the Banks must meet specific capital guidelines that involve quantitative
measures of the Banks 1 assets, liabilities, and certain off-balance sheet items
as calculated under regulatory accounting practices. The Banks! capital amounts
and classifications are also subject to qualitative judgments by the regulators
about components, risk weighting, and other factors.

Quantitative measures established by regulation to ensure capital
adequacy require the Company and the Banks to maintain minimum amounts and
ratios (set forth in the table below) of total and Tier 1 capital to
risk-weighted assets, and of Tier 1 capital to average assets. Management
believes, as of December 31, 2007, that the Company and the Banks meet all
capital adequacy requirements to which they are subject.

As of December 31, 2007, the most recent notification from the
Office of the Comptroller of the Currency categorized the Banks as well
capitalized under the regulatory framework for prompt corrective action. There
are no conditions or events since that notification that management believes
have changed the Banks' categories. The Companyls and the Banks l actual capital
amounts and ratios and minimum regulatory amounts and ratios are presented as
folIo\>'s:
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NOTE 18 - REGULATORY MATTERS. Continued

<TABLE,
<CAPTION,

".ctua1

For capital
adequacy purposes

Minimum

TO be "Jell
capita l ized under
prompt correctiv e
action provi s i ons

t'-1inimum

Amount Ratio ".mount Ratio Amount Ratio

Peop l es Bancorpora tion. I nc.

As of December 31. 2007
<S,

Total Capital (to ri sk-weighted assets) .
Tier 1 Capital (to ri sk - weighted assets) .
Tie r 1 Capita l (to average assets) .

AS of December 31. 2006
Total Capital (to risk -weighted assets)
Tie r 1 Capital (to risk-weighted assets)
Tie r 1 Capital (to average assets)

The Peoples Nationa l Bank,

As of Dece mber 31. 2007
Total Capital (to risk-weighted assets) .
Tier 1 Capital (to risk-weighted assets ) .
Tier 1 Capital ( t o average assets ) .

AS of December 31 , 2006
Total Capital (to risk-weighted assets)
Tier 1 Capital (to risk-I"eighted assets)
Tier 1 Capital (to average assets )

Bank of Anderson. N.A .·

As of December 31. 2007
Total Capital ( t o risk-vleighted assets) .
Tier 1 Capital (to risk - weigh t ed assets )
Tier 1 Capital (to average assets) .

As of December 31, 2006
Tota l Capital (to risk-vJeighted assets) .
Tier 1 Capital ( t o risk-weight ed assets) .
Tier 1 Capital (to a verage assets) .

Seneca National Bank,

AS of Decembe r 31, 2007
To t al Capital (to risk-weight ed assets)
Tier 1 Capital (to risk-weighted assets)
Tier 1 Capital ( to average assets)

AS of December 31, 2006
Total Capital (to risk-weighted assets )
Ti er 1 Capita l (to risk-weighted assets )
Tier 1 Capital (to a v erage assets)

</ TABLE,
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(dollar amounts in thousands )

<C, <C , <C, <C, <C, <C,
$53.766 12.02 % $35,784 8 . 00% N/A N/A

49,456 11.06 17,8 86 4.0 0 N/A N/A
49,456 8.80 22,480 4.0 0 N/A N/A

$50.116 13 . on $30,675 8 .00% N/". N/A
46.046 12.00 15,349 4.00 N/A N/A
46.046 9 .06 20,329 4 .00 N/A N/A

$31, 146 10 . 64% $23,418 8.00% $29,2 7 3 10. 00 %
28,3 71 9 . 69 11,71 1 4. 00 17. 567 6 . 00
28,3 7 1 8 . 52 13,32 0 4.00 16,650 5. 0 0

$28,925 12 . 05% $19,203 8.00% $24, 0 04 10.00%
26 , 4 7 0 1 1 . 03 9,599 4.00 14,399 6.00
26, 4 70 8.90 11 , 89 7 4.00 14, 871 5.0 0

$14,013 13 .25 % $ 8.461 8 . 00% $1 0 .576 10.00%
12,80 8 12 .11 4,231 4.00 6,346 6.00
12,808 8 .34 6,143 4.00 7,679 5.00

$13 .176 12.65% $ 8,333 8.00% $10.41 6 10.00%
11, 926 11. 4 5 4, 1 66 4.00 6,249 6.00
11,926 7.80 6, 116 4.00 7,645 5.00

5.840 11.47% $ 4,073 8.00% 5,092 10.00%
5,373 10.55 2.037 4.00 3,056 6.00
5.373 7.82 2,748 4.00 3,435 5.00

$ 5.5 0 8 13.31% $ 3,311 8.00% $ 4,138 10. 00%
5,035 12 .17 1,655 4. 00 2 ,4 82 6. 0 0
5, 035 9 . 10 2,2 1 3 4. 00 2,7 66 5. 00
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NOTE 19 - FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
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SFAS No. 107, Disclosures about Fair Value of Financial Instruments,
requires disclosure of fair value information, whether or not recognized in the
balance sheets, when it is practical to estimate the fair value. SFAS No. 107
defines a financial instrument as cash, evidence of an ownership interest in an
entity or contractual obligations which require the exchange of cash or other
financial instruments. Certain items are specifically excluded from the
disclosure requirements, including the Company's common stock, premises and
equipment and other assets and liabilities.

Fair value approximates
instruments due to the short-term
banks, interest-bearing deposits
purchased.

carrying value for the following financial
nature of the instrument: cash and due from
in other banks and federal funds sold and

Securities are valued using quoted fair market
investments are valued at par value.

prices. Other

Fair value for variable rate loans that reprice frequently, loans held
for sale, and for loans that mature in less than three months is based on the
carrying value. Fair value for fixed rate mortgage loans, personal loans, and
all other loans (primarily commercial) maturing after three months is based on
the discounted present value of the estimated future cash flows. Discount rates
used in these computations approximate the rates currently offered for similar
loans of comparable terms and credit quality.

Fair value for demand deposit accounts and interest-bearing accounts
with no fixed maturity date is equal to the carrying value. Certificate of
deposit accounts and securities sold under repurchase agreements maturing within
one year are valued at their carrying value. The fair value of certificate of
deposit accounts and securities sold under repurchase agreements maturing after
one year are estimated by discounting cash flows from expected maturities using
current interest rates on similar instruments.

Fair value for long-term FHLB advances is based on discounted cash
flows using the Company1s current incremental borrowing rate. Discount rates
used in these computations approximate rates currently offered for similar
borrowings of comparable terms and credit quality.

Fair value of off-balance sheet instruments is based on fees
currently charged to enter into similar arrangements, taking into account the
remaining terms of the agreement and the counterparties 1 credit standing.

The Company has used management's best estimate of fair
the above assumptions. Thus, the fair values presented may not
which could be realized in an immediate sale or settlement of the
addition, any income taxes or other expenses which would be
actual sale or settlement are not taken into consideration in
presented.

value based on
be the amounts
instrument. In
incurred in an
the fair value

The estimated fair values of the Company's financial instruments are as
follows (amounts in thousands) :
<TABLE>
<CAPTION>

December 31,

2007 2006

Financial assets:
<S>

Cash and due from banks
Interest-bearing deposits in other banks
Federal funds sold
Securities available for sale .
Securities held to maturity .
Other investments ....
Loans (gross)
Cash surrender value of life insurance _ __ .

</TABLE>
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Carrying
Amount

<C>
$ 8,618

643
1,263

83,608
13,102

4,795
418,998

II,350

Fair
value

<C>
$ 8,618

643
1,263

84,796
13,113

4,795
412,240

II,350

Carrying
amount

<C>
$ 10,819

108
12,514
81,658
13,500

4,283
358,081

10,934

Fair
value

<c>
10,819

108
12,514
81,686
13 , 382

4,283
351,533

10,934
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NOTE 19 - FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRill4ENTS, Continued

<TABLE,
<CAPTION,

Financial liabilities:
<S,

Deposits
Securities sold under repurchase agreements .
Federal funds purchased .
Advances from Federal Home Loan Bank .

</TABLE,

NOTE 20 - CONDENSED FINANCIAL INFOR~~TION
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December 31,
--------

2007 2006

Carrying Fair Carrying Fair
Amount value amount value

<C, <C, <C, <C,
$417,621 $418,273 $385,045 $385,672

19,824 19,824 18,368 18,368
429 429

65,100 65,055 50,000 49,968

Following is condensed financial information of Peoples Bancorporation,
Inc. (parent company only) (tabular amounts in thousands) :

CONDENSED BALANCE SHEETS

December 31,

2007 2006

ASSETS
Cash .
Investment in bank subsidiaries .
Other assets .

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
Other liabilities .
Shareholders' equity .

78
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$ 2,173 $ 2,148
47,347 43,568
1,306 1,228

$50,826 $46,944

$ 585 $ 880
50,241 46,064

$50,826 $46,944



r--.--------------~--.---------.--.----~~-------.--- ..---.- ..------.-----------~~- ..---~.--.---.---,

! Haynsworth Sinkler' Boyd, P. A. i:\private\scc-bank\0981l \0001 \o\ \0k2008\pcoplesI0-k08 .txt, 79 !
! 4/13/2009
L.-. . ._. .. ._.. ._

<PAGE,

NOTE 20 - CONDENSED FINANCIAL I NFORr~TION . Continued

CONDENSED STATEMENTS OF I NCOME

<T.Il.BLE>
<CAPTION,

Fo r the years ended December 31,

INCO~1E

<S,
Fees and dividends from subsidiaries

EXPENSES
Sa l aries and benefits .. . .. _ . . .
Occupancy
Equipmen t _ .
Other ope rating . __ . _ _.. _ .

EQU ITY IN ill,DISTRIBUTED NET INCOME OF BANK
SUBS IDI ARIES .

Income be f ore income taxes

INCOME TAX BENEFIT _ _ .

Net income

</TABLE,

CONDENSED STATE~lENTS OF CASH FLO\'/S

<TABLE,
<CAPTION,

OPERATING ACTIVITIES
<S,

Net income . .
Adjustments to reconcile net i ncome to net cash provided

by operating act i vities
Equity in undis tributed net income o f b a nk subsidiaries
Increase in othe r assets .
Increase (decrea s e ) i n other l iabi lities .

Ne t cash provided b y operating activ i ties .

FINANCI NG ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from the exerc ise of s t ock options .
Cash dividends .
Cash in l ieu of fractional share on stock dividends and split s _ . . _
Proceeds (rep ayme n t ) o f advances from subsidiaries _ .

Net cash used for financing act ivi ties

Net increase (decrease) i n cash

CASH, BEGINNING OF YEAR

CASH , END OF YEAR _ _. _ .. _. _ .

</ TABLE,
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2007 20 06 2005

<c, <C, <C,
$ 6,582 $ 5,989 $ 4.945

3,814 3,620 2 . 970
8 24 25

4 36 379 330
1,129 1,002 84 4

5, 387 5,0 2 5 4, 1 69

3,121 3 .4 4 1 2,974

4.316 4.405 3, 750

(26) ( 81 ) (378)

$ 4.342 $ 4,486 $ 4,128

For the y ears ended December 31.
- - - - ----- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -- --

20 07 2006 2 00 5

<C, <C, <C,
$ 4 ,342 $ 4,486 $ 4,128

(3, 1 21) (3,441) (2 ,974)
(78) (669) (369)

(295 ) 54 1 (1 )

84 8 917 7 84

204 5 37 392
(1,343 ) (1,258 ) (1,187)

(5) (7) (9)
321 315 (37)

(82 3 ) (413 ) (8 41 )

25 5 04 (5 7)

2,148 1,644 1.701

$ 2. 17 3 $ 2,14 8 $ 1.644
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NOTE 21 - QUARTERLY FINfu~CIA L DATA (u~AUDITED)
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Unaudited condensed financial data by quarter for 2007 and 2006 is as
follows (amounts, except share data, in thousands)

<TABLE>
<CAPTION>

Quarter ended

2007

<S>
Interest income .
Interest expense . .

Net interest income .
Provision for loan losses

Net interest income after
provision for loan losses _ .

Noninterest income _ _ _ .
Noninterest expenses .

Income before income taxes
Provision for income taxes

~larch 31

<C>
$ 8,383

3,692

4,691
150

4,541
1,026
3,815

1,752
480

June 30

<C>
$ 8,793

3,999

4,794
150

4,644
917

3,915

1,646
449

September 30

<C>
$ 9,193

4,410

4,783
150

4,633
925

3,953

1,605
424

December 31

<C>
$ 9,177

4,521

4,656
450

4,206
974

4,283

897
204

Net income .

Basic net income per common share (1)

Diluted net income per common share (1)

Basic weighted average shares
outstanding (1)

Diluted weighted average shares
outstanding (1) ..

</TABLE>

$

$

$

1,272

0.18

0.18

7,030,102

7,043,962

$

$

$

1,197

0.16

0.16

7,052,599

7,059,092

$

$

1,181

0.16

0.16

7,055,759

7,058,568

693

0.09

0.09

7,412,304

7,386,091

<T!'.BLE>
<CAPTION>

Quarter ended

2006 March 31 June 30 September 30 December 31

<S>
Interest income .
Interest expense .

Net interest income .
Provision for loan losses .

Net interest income after
Provision for loan losses .

Noninterest income . .
Noninterest expenses .

Income before income taxes .
Provision for income taxes .

Net income

Basic net income per common share (1)

Diluted net income per common share (1)

$

7,537
2,761

4,776
237

4,539
1,028
3,880

1,687
506

1,181

0.17

0.17

<C>
$

$

$

$

7,863
3,015

4,848
256

4,592
933

3,786

1,739
593

1,146

0.17

0.16

<C>
$

$

$

$

8,210
3,269

4,941
225

4,716
895

3,682

1,929
608

1,321

0.19

0.19

8,368
3,596

4,772
225

4,547
792

4,273

1,066
228

838

$0.12

$0.12

Basic weighted average shares
outstanding (1) .............•. . . . .. . ... . . .... . . . ..

Diluted weighted average shares
outstanding (1)

</TABLE>

6,895,382

6,979,886

6,916,146

7,002,957

6,940,751

7,025,386

6,983,440

7,031,717

(1) Per share data has been restated to reflect 5 percent stock dividends.
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ITEM 7A. QU.~~TITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSL~ES ABOUT MARKET RISK

The section l1Market Risk - Interest Rate Sensitivityl!
l1Business li under Item 1 of this Annual Report on Form lO-K is
herein by reference.

ITEM 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ~~D SUPPLEMENTARY DATA

The following financial statements are filed with this report:

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm.

Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 31, 2006 and 2005.

i:lprivatclscc-bankI09811 10001 loll 0k2007\pcoplcsl 0-k07.txt, 60

included in
incorporated

Consolidated Statements of Income for the years ended December 31, 2006,
2005 and 2004.

Consolidated Statements of Shareholders' Equity and Comprehensive Income
for the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004.

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the years ended December 31,
2006, 2005 and 2004.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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PEOPLES B~~CORPORATION, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

REPORT ON CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2006, 2005 k~D 2004

61
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOG1,TING FIRM

To the Shareholders and Board of Directors
Peoples Bancorporation, Inc.
Easley, South Carolina

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of
Peoples Bancorporation, Inc. and Subsidiaries as of Deceniller 31, 2006 and 2005,
and the related consolidated statements of income, shareholders! equity and
comprehensive income, and cash flows for each of the years in the three year
period ended Deceniller 31, 2006. These consolidated financial statements are the
responsibility of the Company's management. Our responsibility is to express an
opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the
Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audits to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements are free of material misstatement.
An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts
and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. An audit also includes
assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall consolidated financial statement
presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our
opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to
above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of
Peoples Bancorporation, Inc. and Subsidiaries as of December 31, 2006 and 2005
and the results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the years
in the three year period ended December 31, 2006, in conformity with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

/s/ Elliott Davis, LLC

Greenville, South Carolina
March 28, 2007
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PEOPLES B~~CORPORATION, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED BALfu~CE SHEET

(Amounts in thousands except share information)
<TABLE>
<CAPTION>

DECEMBER 31,

2006 2005

ASSETS

FEDERAL FUNDS SOLD

Total cash and cash equivalents

OTHER ASSETS ..

ACCRUED INTEREST RECEIVABLE

<C> <C>
10,819 $ 9,311

108 900

12,514
... - - - _.- ---- - - .. -

23,441 10,211

81,686 65,161
13,500 10,855

4,283 2,045

354,011 373,641

11,117 10,635

3,043 2,441

10,934 9,403

1,799 3,585

$ 503,814 $ 487,977
========= =========

BEARING DEPOSITS IN OTHER B.~KS

CASH SURRENDER VALUE OF LIFE INSURANCE .. _ _ _ .

PRE~lISES AND EQUIPMENT, net of accumulated depreciation .

INTEREST

SECURITIES
Available for sale . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . _. _. _. _ __ _ _ .
Held to maturity (fair value of $13,382 (2006) and $10,674 (2005)) .
Other investments, at cost .. . .

<S>
CASH AND DUE FROM BANKS .

LOANS, net of allowance for loan losses of $4,070 (2006) and $3,854 (2005)

TOTAL ASSETS _ _ .

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

DEPOSITS
Noninterest-bearing .
Interest -bearing _ _. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

54,993
330,052

$ 52,467
337,882

Total deposits 385,045 390,349

SECURITIES SOLD UNDER REPURCHASE AGREEMENTS 18,368 31,736

FEDERAL FUNDS PURCHASED 4,039

ADVANCES FROM FEDERAL HOME LOAN BANK 50,000 17,500

ACCRUED INTEREST PAYABLE .. _ 2,926 2,281

OTHER LIABILITIES 1,411 901

Total liabilities .. . .. 457,750 4'16,806

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES . Notes 11 and 12

SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
Common stock· 15,000,000 shares authorized; $1.11 par value per

share; 6,666.568 (2006) shares and 6,245,356 (2005) shares
issued and outstanding . . _ _.

Additional paid·in capital.. . .. _ _ _. __ . _ .
.Retained earnings . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) .

7,400
38,614

32
18

6,932
34,684

408
(853 )

Total shareholders' equity 46,064 41,171

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITy . $ 503,814 $ 487,977

</TJI.BLE>

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial
statements
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PEOPLES BANCORPORATION, INC . .;ND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME

(Amounts in thousands except per s hare informa t ion)

<TABLE,
<CAPTION,

i:\pri\'ute\sec-bank\09811 \0001 \0\1Ok2007\peoplesl 0-k07.lxt, 64

For the years ended December 31,

INTEREST INCOME
<S,

Interest and fe es on loans .
Interes t on s ecur ities

Taxab l e . .
Tax - exempt ..

I n te r est o n federal fund s sold

To t a l interest income

INT EREST EXPENSE
I nt erest o n deposits .
Interes t on federal funds purchased a n d securities s o l d

under repu rchase agreements . .. . .
I nterest on adva n ce s f rom Fede r al Home Loan Bank

Total int e re s t expense ..

Net int erest income
PROV I SION FOR LOAN LOSSES ..

Net interest income after provision for loan l osses

NON INTEREST I NCOME
Service charge s on deposit accounts . .
Cus tomer service f e es .
Mortgage banking .
Brokerage servi c es _. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
Bank owned l ife insurance .
Other non i nt e r e s t income . .
Gain on sale of mortgage loans held for sa l e
Gain ( loss) on s a le of securit i es available for sale _ .

Total nonint e rest income

NON INTER EST EXPENS ES
Salar i es a nd b enefi t s
Occupanc y . _ .
Equ ipment
Ma rke ti ng and advertising
Commun i c ations
Printing and supplies _
Bank paid loan costs .
Directors fees .....
Other post employment bene fi t s
Lega l a nd p r ofessional f ees
Othe r operat ing .. __ .

Tota l noni n t ere s t expenses

I ncome b e fore income taxes

PROVISION FOR INCOME TAXES

Net income

BASIC NET INCOME PER COMMON SHARE ( I )

DILD,ED NET I NCOME PER COMMON SHARE ( I)

</T!>'BLE>

(1) Per share data has been restated to reflect 5 percent stock dividends .

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial
statement s .
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2006 2005 2004

<C, <C, <C,
$ 28,576 $ 23,915 $ 18,867

2,460 1,92 1 1,875
700 2 60 233
242 1 94 88

- - - - - - - - - _.- - - - - - - - - - - - -

31, 97 8 26,2 90 2 1,063
---- ---- --. __... _ ---

10 ,71 2 7,924 5, 82 8

773 6 42 368
1 ,156 367 245

- - - - ---- - - - - - - -- ---- - - - -
12,641 8,933 6,44 1

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - --- -----
19,337 17.357 14,622

943 848 589
- - - - - - -- ------- - - ---- ---

18,394 16,509 14,033
-------- - - - - - - -- - - - - - - --

1,829 2,0 17 2,002
159 168 16 1
444 494
223 195 143
389 41 7 330
666 311 525

1 , 707
(6 2 ) 7 128

- ----- -- -------- --------
3,648 3 ,609 4,996

- - - - - - -- - - - - - - -- - - ------

8 , 966 8 ,5 65 8,167
82 1 7 4 7 668

1, 36 5 1,3 62 1 , 29 0
41 4 415 2 97
25 8 222 206
17 6 139 208
2 2 6 318 310
362 349 2 7 6
109 137 4 95
580 371 260

2 , 344 1 , 713 1,670
- - - - - - - - - - ------ - - - - - - --

1 5 ,62 1 14,338 13 , 847
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - -- - - - - - - --

6,421 5,780 5,182

1,935 1 .652 1,654
-------- - - - - - - -- - - - - - - - -
$ 4,486 $ 4, 1 28 $ 3,528
======== ==== === = === =====
$ 0.68 $ 0.63 $ 0.55
== === === ======== === =====
$ 0.67 $ 0.62 $ 0.53
== ====== =====::== === ====:;;;
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PEOPLES B~~CORPORATION, INC. fu~D SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY ~~D COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

For the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005
and 2004 (Amounts in thousands except share information)

<TABLE>
<CAPTION>

(5) (5 )
- - - - - - --

3,735
296,844 330 2,194 (2,524)

(9) ( 9)
(1,187) (1,187 )

125,904 139 253 392
- - - - - -- . -------- . - - - - -- - - - - -. - - - --

6,245,356 6,932 34,684 408 (853) 41,171
4,486 4,486

Common stock

Accumu-
lated
other

compre- Total
hensive share-

Retained income holders'
earnings (loss) equity
- - - _. - - --

<C> <C> <C>
444 $ 62 36,161

- - - - - - - - _.-

3,528 3,528

(438 ) (438)

(84) (84)
-------- --- _._----

3,006
(2,901 )

(7 ) (7)
(13) (13)

(1,051) (1,051)
144

---------- -_.- - - --

(460) 38,240
_. -- ----

4,128 4,128

(388 ) (388 )

<s>
BALk~CE, DECEMBER 31, 2003

Net income . .
Other comprehensive income, net of tax:

Unrealized holding losses on securities available
for sale, net of income taxes of $224 ...

Less reclassification adjustment for gains
included in net income, net
of income taxes of $44 .

Comprehensive income .. . .
Stock dividend (5%) . .
Cash in lieu of fractional shares

on 3-for-2 stock split .
Cash in lieu of fractional shares on stock dividend
Cash dividends ($.26 per share)
Proceeds from stock options exercised

BAL~~CE, DECEMBER 31, 2004

Net income .
Other comprehensive income, net of tax:

Unrealized holding losses on securities available
for sale, net of income taxes of $202

Less reclassification adjustment for gains
included in net income,
net of income taxes of $2 .

Comprehensive income .
Stock dividend (5%) .
Cash in lieu of fractional shares on stock dividend
Cash dividends ($.20 per share)
Proceeds from stock options exercised .

BALA1'1CE, DECEMBER 31, 2005 .
Net income . .
Other comprehensive income, net of tax:

Unrealized holding gains on
securities available for sale,
net of income taxes of $470 .

Less reclassification adjustment for losses
included in net income, net of
income taxes of $(20) .

Comprehensive income .
Stock dividend (5%) _ .
Cash in lieu of fractional shares on stock dividend
Cash dividends ($.20 per share)
Proceeds from stock options exercised .
Tax benefit of stock options exercised
Stock-based compensation .

Shares

<C>

5,523,842

276,423

22,343

5,822,608

316,873

104,339

Amount

<C>
$ 6,131

307

25

6,463

352

116

Additional
paid-in
capital

<C>

$ 29,524

2,594

119

32,237

3,245

421
172

92

13,597)
(7)

(1,258)

831

40

831

40

5,357

(7)
(1,258 )

537
172

92

BALANCE, DECEMBER 31, 2006 .

</TABLE>

6,666,568 7,400 $ 38,614 32 $ 18 46,064

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial
statements.
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<TABLE>
<CAPTION>

For the years ended December 31,

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
<S>
Net income
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash

provided by operating activities
(Gain) loss on sale of premises and equipment
Gain on sale of mortgage loans held for sale
(Gain) loss on sale of securities available for sale .
Gain on sale of assets acquired in settlement of loans . . . . . . . . .. . .
Provision for loan losses........................ _'0 . • 0 .•••..

Provision (benefit) from deferred income taxes .
Depreciation . . . . . . . . . . . .
Amortization and accretion (net) of premiums and discounts on securities .
Origination of mortgage loans held for sale .
Sale of mortgage loans held for sale . .
Stock-based compensation .
Increase in accrued interest receivable . .
Increase in other assets
Increase (decrease) in accrued interest payable .
Increase (decrease) in other liabilities

Net cash provided by operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchases of securities held to maturity . .
Purchases of securities available for sale . .
Sales (purchases) of other investments . .
Proceeds from principal pay downs on securities available for sale .
Proceeds from the maturities and calls of securities available for sale .
Proceeds from the sale of securities available for sale .
Proceeds from maturity of securities held to maturity .
Investment in bank o\'Jned life insurance .
Proceeds from sale of other real estate owned .
Net (increase) decrease in loans .
Proceeds from the sale of premises and equipment . .
Purchase of premises and equipment . .

Net cash used for investing activities .

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Net increase (decrease) in deposits .
Net increase (decrease) in federal funds purchased
Net increase (decrease) in securities sold under repurchase agreements .
Net increase in advances from Federal Home Loan Bank .
Proceeds from the exercise of stock options . .
Tax benefit of stock options exercised .
Cash dividends paid . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
Cash in lieu of fractional shares on stock dividends and splits ..

Net cash provided by financing activities

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, BEGINNING OF YEAR

Co,SH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, END OF YEAR .

CASH PAID FOR
Interest ....

2006

<C>
$ 4,486

(3)

62
(181 )
943
422

1,091
97

92
(602)
(809)
645
510

6,753

(2,893 )
(62,172)

(2,238 )
5,207

37,950
3,740

160
(1,531)
2,164

18,427
30

(1,600 )

(2,756)

(5,304 )
(4,039)

(13,368)
32,500

537
172

(1,258)
(7)

9,233

13,230

10,211

$ 23,441

$ 11,996

2005

4,128

25

(7)
(60)
848
(10 )

1,127
132

(611)
(1,639)
1,127

(321 )

4,739

(4,737)
(8,035)

(388)
3,543

500
362

1,218
(354)
413

(52,277)
82

(794)

(60,467)

44,204
3,467

(2,217)
9,000

392

(1,187)
(9)

53,650

(2,078)

12,289

$ 10,211

7,806

2004

<C>
$ 3,528

(20)
n,707)

(128 )
(6)

589
(209)

1,075
168

(149,881)
156,689

(9)
(814)
(450)

57

8,882

(2,302 )
(25,375)

338
4,879

26,325
10,028

510
(6,755)

262
(29,371)

53
(1,952 )

(23,360)

(7,184 )
572

9,563
3,500

144

(1,051 )
(20 )

5,524

(8,954)

21,243

$ 12,289

6,432

Income taxes

NON-CASH TRM0SACTIONS
Change in unrealized gain (loss) on available for sale securities

Loans transferred to other real estate .

</T}\.BLE>

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial
statements.
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PEOPLES BANCORPORATION, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOill,TING POLICIES AND ACTIVITIES

Principles of consolidation and nature of operations
The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Peoples
Bancorporation, Inc. (the 11 Company II ) and its wholly·~o1,o}ned subsidiaries, The
Peoples National Bank, Bank of Anderson, N.A., and Seneca National Bank
(collectively referred to as the "Banks ll

). All significant intercompany
balances and transactions have been eliminated. The Banks operate under
individual national bank charters and provide full banking services to
customers. The Banks are subject to regulation by the Office of the
Comptroller of the Currency. The Company is subject to regulation by the
Federal Reserve Board.

Estimates
The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America
requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent
assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the
reported amounts of interest and noninterest income and expenses during the
reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Segments
The Company, through its subsidiaries, provides a broad range of financial
services to individuals and companies. These services include demand, time
and savings deposits; lending and ATM processing and are substantially the
same across subsidiaries. While the Company IS decision·-makers monitor the
revenue streams of the various financial products and services by product
line and by subsidiary, the operations and the allocation of resources are
managed, and financial performance is evaluated, on an organization-wide
basis. Accordingly, the Company's banking operation is considered by
management to be one reportable operating segment.

Securities
The Company accounts for securities in accordance with Statement of
Financial Accounting Standards (IiSFASl1) NO. 115, Accounting for Certain
Investments in Debt and Equity Securities. Debt securities are classified
upon purchase as available for sale, held to maturity, or trading. Such
assets classified as available for sale are carried at fair value.
Unrealized holding gains or losses are reported as a component of
shareholders' equity (accumulated other comprehensive income (loss)) net of
deferred income taxes. Securities classified as held to maturity are
carried at cost, adjusted for the amortization of premiums and the
accretion of discounts into interest income using a methodology which
approximates a level yield of interest over the estimated remaining period
until maturity. To qualify as held to maturity, the Company must have the
ability and intent to hold the securities to maturity. Trading securities
are carried at market value. The Company has no trading securities. Gains
or losses on dispositions of securities are based on the difference between
the net proceeds and the adjusted carrying amount of the securities sold,
using the specific identification method.

Loans and interest on loans
Loans are stated at the principal balance outstanding reduced by the
allowance for loan losses. Interest income is recognized over the term of
the loan based on the contractual interest rate and the principal balance
outstanding.

Loans generally are placed on non-accrual status when principal or interest
becomes ninety days past due, or when payment in full is not anticipated.
Interest payments received after a loan is placed on non-accrual status are
applied as principal reductions until such time the loan is returned to
accrual status. Generally, a loan is returned to accrual status when the
loan is brought current and the collectibility of principal and interest no
longer is in doubt.

(Continued)
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NOTE 1 - S~lt4ARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOu~TING POLICIES AND ACTIVITIES, Continued

Allowance for loan losses
The allowance f or loan losses is establi s hed as losses are estimated to
have occurred through a provision for loan losses charged to earnings. Loan
losses are charged against the a llowance when management believes the
uncollectibility of a loan balance is confirmed. Subsequent recoveries, if
any, are credi ted to the al l owance.

The allowance f or loan l osses is evaluated on a regular basis by management
and i s based upon management's periodic review of the collectibility of the
loans in light of historical experiences, t he nature and volume of the loan
portfolio, adverse situations that may affect the borrower's ability to
repay, estimated value of any underlying collateral and preva ili ng economic
conditions . This evaluation is inherentl y s ubjective as it requires
estimates that are suscept ible to significant revision as more informa t i on
becomes available.

The allowance consists of specific, general and una l l ocated component s. The
specific component rela tes to loans that are classif ied a s either doubtful,
substanda rd or special ment ion. For such loans that are also class ified as
i mpa ired, an allowanc e is established when the discounted cash flows (or
coll a teral value or observable market price) of the impaired loan is lower
t han the carrying value of that loan. The general component covers
non -c l ass ified loans and is based on historical loss experience adjust ed
for qual itative factors. An una l located component is mainta i ned to cover
uncertainties tha t cou ld affec t management's est ima te of p robable losses.
The unal l ocat ed compone nt o f the allowance reflects the ma rgin of
i mprecision i nherent in the underly i ng assumptions used in the
methodol ogies for estimating specific and general losses in the portfolio .

A loan is considered i mpaired when, based on current informacion and
events, i t is probable that the Corporat i on will be unable to collect the
schedu l ed payments of principal or interest when due according to the
contractual t erms of the loan agreement. Factors considered by management
in determining impairment include payment s t a tus, collateral value, and the
p r obability o f collecting scheduled principal and interest payments whe n
due. Loans that experience insignificant payment delays and payment
s hortfal ls g enerall y are not classified as impai r ed . Management determines
the significance of payment delays and payme nt shortfa l ls on a case -by -case
basis , taking into cons i deration al l of the ci rcumstances surrounding the
l oan and the borrower, including the lengt h of the de lay , the reasons for
the delay , the borrower 's prior payment record and the amount of the
shortfal l in relat ion to the principal and i nterest owed. Impairment is
me asured on a loan by l oan basis for commercial and const ruct ion l oans by
either the p resent va l ue of expec ted future cash f l ows discounted at the
loan ' s effective interest rate, the loan 's obtainable ma rket price, or the
fair va l ue of the collateral if the loan is c o l lateral dependent.

La rge groups of smal le r ba l ance homogeneous loan s a re collectively
evaluated for impairment . Accordingly, the Corporation does not separately
i dentify individual consumer and residential loans f o r impairment
disclosures, unless such l oans are the subject of a restructuring
agreement .

Mortgage loans held for sale
Mo r t gage loans originated and intend ed for sale in the secondary market are
carried at the lower of cost or estimated market value in t he aggregate.
Ne t unrealized losses are p rovi ded for in a valuation a llowance by charges
to operati ons. Gains and losses o n sales of loans are recognized when the
loans are sold to secondary ma rket investors. During 2004, the Company
ended its o r igination and sa l e of loans in the secondary market.

Premi ses and equipment
Premises and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated dep reciation.
Deprec i ation is calculated using the straight-line method over the
estimated useful lives of the assets. Additions to premises and equipment
and major replace ments or betterments are added at cost. Maintenance,
repairs, and minor replacements are charged to expense when incurred . When
assets are retired or otherwise disposed of, the cost and accumu l ated
depreciation are removed from the accounts and any gain or loss is
reflected in income.

(Continued)

68
UST Seq. No. 921



i :\privatc\scc-bank\09811 \0001\0\1 Ok2007\pcoplcs1 0-k07.txt, 69

<PAGE>

NOTE 1 - SUM~~RY OF SIGNIFIC~~T ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACTIVITIES, Continued

Other real estate owned
Other real estate owned represents properties acquired through foreclosure
and is carried at the lower of cost or fair value, adjusted for estimated
selling costs. Fair values of real estate owned are reviewed regularly and
writedowns are recorded when it is determined that the carrying value of
real estate exceeds the fair value less estimated costs to sell. Costs
relating to the development and improvement of such property are
capitalized, whereas those costs relating to holding the property are
charged to expense. At December 31, 2006 and 2005 real estate owned by the
Company totaled $271,000 and $2,007,000 respectively, and is included in
other assets. During 2006 and 2005, the Company transferred loans of
$260,000 and $1,756,000, respectively to real estate acquired in
foreclosure.

Advertising and public relations expense
Advertising, promotional and other business development costs are generally
expensed as incurred. External costs incurred in producing media
advertising are expensed the first time the advertising takes place.
External costs relating to direct mailing costs are expensed in the period
in which the direct mailings are sent.

Income taxes
The provision for
differences between
tax and financial
liability method as

income taxes includes deferred taxes on temporary
the recognition of certain income and expense items for
statement purposes. Income taxes are computed on the
described in SPAS No. 109, Accounting for Income Taxes.

Statements of cash flows
For the purposes of reporting cash flows, the Company considers cash and
cash equivalents to be those amounts included in the balance sheet captions
JlCash and Due From Banks, 11 11 Interest ..bearing Deposits in Other Banks ll and
lIFederal Funds Sold.!! Cash and cash equivalents have an original maturity
of three months or less.

Reclassifications
Certain prior year amounts have been reclassified to conform \~ith the
current presentation. These reclassifications have no effect on previously
reported net income or shareholders' equity.

Risk and uncertainties
In the normal course of its business the Company encounters two significant
types of risk: economic and regulatory. There are three main components of
economic risk: interest rate risk, credit risk, and market risk. The
Company is subject to interest rate risk to the degree that its
interest-bearing liabilities mature or reprice at different speeds, or on
different bases, than its interest-earning assets. Credit risk is the risk
of default on the Company's loan portfolio that results from borrowers'
inability or unwillingness to make contractually required payments. Market
risk reflects changes in the value of collateral underlying loans
receivable, the valuation of real estate held by the Company, and the
valuation of loans held for sale and mortgage-backed securities available
for sale.

The Company is subject to the regulations of various government agencies.
These regulations can and do change significantly from period to period.
The Company also undergoes periodic examinations by the regulatory
agencies, which may subject it to further changes with respect to asset
valuations, amounts of required loss allowances, and operating
restrictions, resulting from the regulators' judgments based on information
available to them at the time of their examination.

Stock option compensation plans
The Company has an employee stock option compensation plan through which
the Board of Directors may grant stock options to officers and employees to
purchase common stock of the Company at prices not less than 100 percent of
the fair value of the stock on the date of grant. The Company also has
another employee stock option plan under which options may no longer be
granted, but under which exercisable options remain outstanding. The
outstanding options under both plans become exercisable in various
increments beginning on the date of grant and expiring ten years from the
date of grant. The Company also has a directors' stock option plan through
which non-employee directors of the Company are granted options to purchase
500 shares of common stock for each year served on the board to a maximum
of 5,000 options per director.

(Continued)
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NOTE S~~~RY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES ~~D ACTIVITIES, Continued

The option price shall not be less than 100 percent of the fair value of
the stock on the grant date. The outstanding options become exercisable on
the grant date and expire at the earlier of the end of the director's term
or ten years from the grant date.

The Company has historically accounted for the plans under the recognition
and measurement principles of Accounting Principles Board ( lIAPS") Opinion
No. 25, Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees, and related
Interpretations . For the years ended December 31, 2004 and 2005, no
stock-based employee compensation cost is reflected in net income, as all
stock options granted under these plans had an exercise price equal to the
market value of the underlying common stock on the date of grant.

Effective January I, 2006, the Company adopted the provisions o f SFAS No.
123(R), which changed the accounting methodology for its stock option plans
- see Note 16. In conjunc tion "lith this change, the Company recorded
approximate ly $92,000 of compensation expense in 2006.

Recent ly issued accounting standards
The following is a summa ry of recent authoritative pronouncements that
affect accounting, reporting, and disclosure of financ i al information by
the Company,

In July 2006, the Financial Accounting Standards Board ("FASB") issued FASB
Interpretation No . 48 ( "FIN No. 48"), Accounting for Uncertainty in Income
Taxes. FIN No . 48 clarifies the accounting for uncertainty in income taxes
recognized in enterprises' financial statements in accordance with FASB
Statement No. 109, Accounting for Income Taxes. FIN No . 48 prescribes a
recognition threshold and measurement attributable for the financial
statement recognition and measurement of a tax position taken or expected
to be taken in a tax return. FIN No . 48 also provides guidance on
derecognition, classification, interest and penalties, accounting in
interim periods, disclosures and transitions. FIN No. 48 is effective for
fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2006. FIN No . 48 is not expected
to have any impact on the Company's financial statements.

In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 157, Fair Value Measurements.
SFAS No. 157 defines fair value, establishes a framework for measuring fair
value in general l y accepted accounting principles, and expands disclosures
about fair v alue measurements. This standard does not require any new fair
va lue measuremen ts , bu t rather eliminates inconsistencies found in various
prior pronounce me n t s. SFAS No. 157 is effective for the Company on January
1, 2008 and is not expected to have any impact on the Company ' s f inancial
statements.

I n September, 2006, The FASB ratified the consensuses reached by the FASB 's
Emerging Issue s Task Force ( "EITF ") relating t o EITF No. 06 -4, Accounting
for the Deferred Compensation and Postretirement Benefit Aspects of
Endorsement Split ·Dollar Life Insurance Arrangements. EITF No. 06-4
addresse s employer accounting for endorsement split· dollar life insurance
arrangements that provide a benefit to an employee tha t extends to
postretirement periods and required a company to recognize a liabi lity for
future benef its in accordance with SFAS No. 106, Employers' Accounting for
Pos tretirement Benef its Other Than Pensions, or Account i ng Principles Board
("APB ") Opinion No. 12, Omnibus Opinion--1967. EITF No. 06-4 is effective
for fiscal years beginning after December IS, 2007. En t ities should
recognize the effects of applying this Issue through eithe r (a) a change in
accounting principle through a cumulative -effect adjustment to retained
earn i ngs or to other components of equity or net assets in the statement of
financial position as of the beginning of the year of adoption or (b) a
change in accounting principle through retrospectiv e application to all
prior peri ods . The Company is currently analyzing the effect of adoption of
EITF No. 06-4 on its financial position, results of operations and cash
flows .

(Continue d)
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NOTE - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOill,TING POLICIES fu~D ACTIVITIES, Continued

In September 2006, the FASB ratified the consensus reached related to EITF
No. 06 - 5, Accounting for Purchases of Life Insurance--Determining the
Amount That Could Be Realized in Accordance with FASB Technical Bulletin
No. 85-4, Accounting for Purchases of Life Insurance. EITF No. 06-5 states
that a policyholder should consider any additional amounts included in the
contractual terms of the insurance policy other than the cash surrender
value in determining the amount that could be realized under the insurance
contract. EITF No. 06-5 also states that a policyholder should determine
the amount that could be realized under the life insurance contract
assuming the surrender of an individual-life by individual-life policy (or
certificate by certificate in a group policy). EITF No. 06-5 is effective
for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2006. The adoption of EITF
No. 06-5 is not expected to have a material impact on the Company's
financial statements ..

In September 2006, the SEC issued Staff Accounting Bulleting ("SAB") No.
108. SAB No. 108 provides interpretive guidance on how the effects of the
carryover or reversal of prior year misstatements should be considered in
quantifying a potential current year misstatement. Prior to SAB No. 108,
Companies might evaluate the materiality of financial statement
misstatements using either the income statement or balance sheet approach,
with the income statement approach focusing on new misstatements added in
the current year, and the balance sheet approach focusing on the cumulative
amount of misstatement present in a company's balance sheet. Misstatements
that would be material under one approach could be viewed as immaterial
under another approach, and not be corrected. SAB No. 108 now requires that
companies view financial statement misstatements as material if they are
material according to either the income statement or balance sheet
approach. The Company has analyzed SAB No. 108 and determined that upon
adoption it will have no impact on the reported results of operations or
financial conditions.

In February 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 159, The Fair Value Option for
Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities - Including an amendment of FASB
Statement No. 115. This statement permits, but does not require, entities
to measure many financial instruments at fair value. The objective is to
provide entities with an opportunity to mitigate volatility in reported
earnings caused by measuring related assets and liabilities differently
without having to apply complex hedge accounting provisions. Entities
electing this option will apply it when the entity first recognizes an
eligible instrument and will report unrealized gains and losses on such
instruments in current earnings. This statement 1) applies to all entities,
2) specifies certain election dates, 3) can be applied on an
instrument-by-instrument basis with some exceptions, 4) is irrevocable and
5) applies only to entire instruments. One exception is demand deposit
liabilities which are explicitly excluded as qualifying for fair value.
With respect to SFAS No. 115, available for sale and held to maturity
securities at the effective date are eligible for the fair value option at
that date. If the fair value option is elected for those securities at the
effective date, cumulative unrealized gains and losses at that date shall
be included in the cumulative-effect adjustment and thereafter, such
securities will be accounted for as trading securities. SFAS No. 159 is
effective for the Company on January 1, 2008. Earlier adoption is permitted
in 2007 if the Company also elects to apply the provisions of SFAS NO. 157,
Fair Value Measurement. The Company is currently analyzing the fair value
option provided under SFAS No. 159.

Other accounting standards that have been issued or proposed by the Public
Company Accounting Oversight Board or other standards-setting bodies that
do not require adoption until a future date are not expected to have a
material impact on the consolidated financial statements upon adoption.

NOTE 2 - RESTRICTIONS ON CASH AND DUE FROM BANKS

The Banks are required to maintain average reserve balances with the
Federal Reserve Bank ("FRB") based upon a percentage of deposits. The average
amounts of reserve balances maintained by the Banks at December 31, 2006 and
2005 were approximately $1,036,000 and $3,070,000, respectively.
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NOTE 3 SECURITIES

Securitie s are summarized as follows as of December 31 (tabular
amount s in thousands )

<TABLE,
<CAPTION,

2006

Unrealized holding

SECUR I TIES AVAILABLE FOR SALE,

Amortized
cost Ga i ns Losses

Fair
va lue

<C>
$ 23

43

66

2
25

260
102

389

GOVERNMENT SPONSORED ENTERPR I SE SECUR ITI ES
<.S>

Maturing within one year .
Maturing after one but within five years . _. __ . _..
Maturing afte r 5 years but wi thin t en years . _ . _. __ .... . _ . .. _ .

OTHER SECURITIES
Maturing within one year .
Maturing after one year bu t withi n five years . __ . _ .
Maturing after five years but within ten years
Mat u ring after ten years. _... ___ _ __ _ _ . _. __ . __ ...

OBLIGAT IONS OF STATES k~ POLITICAL
SUBDIVISIONS
Maturing after five years but within ten years
Maturing after ten years .

Total securities available for sa l e

SECURITIES HELD TO MATURITY,

<C, <C>
4,600 $
2,250
5,500 53

12,350 53

312 240
1,178

10,732 19
32,520 268

44,742 527

860 14
23 ,706 19

24,566 33

$81,658 613 $

130

130

5 85

<C>
$ 4,577

2 , 20 7
5 , 553

12 ,337

550
1 ,153

10,491
32,686

44,880

874
23,595

24,469

$8 1,686

To t al securities held to maturity

OBLIGATI ONS OF STATES AND POLITICAL
SUBDI VIS IONS
Ma t uring within one year
Mat uring after one but within five
Maturi ng after five but with i n ten
Maturing after ten years

years
y ears

$ 315 $ $ $ 315
5,631 3 65 5,569
3,818 11 63 3,766
3,736 7 11 3,732

$13,500 $ 21 139 $13,382

<CAPTION,

SECURI TIES AVAI LAB LE FOR SALE,

Amortized
cost

2005

Unrea lized holding
Gains Losses

Fair
value

GOVERNMENT SPONSORED ENTERPRISE SECURITIES
<S,

f"o1atu ring within one year .. . .. _ .
Maturing after one but within five years . _. _..

OTH ER SECURITIES
Maturing after one but within five years

Maturing after f ive buc within ten years
Maturing after ten years _. . __

Total securi t ies available for sale .. _.. _

</TABLE,
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<C,
$37,949

10 ,2 55

48,204

1,030

12,12 4
5,097

18 , 251

$66,455

(Continued)

<C,
$

$

21

<C,
$ 55 6

254

810

1,009

356
107

484

$ 1,294

<C,
$37,393
10,001

47,394

11,768
4,990

1 7,767

$65,161
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NOTE 3 SECURITIES, Continued
<TABLE>
<CAPTION>

2006

Unrealized holding
Amortized

cost

SECURITIES HELD TO MATURITY (continued),

Gains Losses
Fair
value

OBLIGATIONS OF STATES AND POLITICAL SUBDIVISIONS
<S>

Maturing within one year . .
Maturing after one but within five years .
Maturing after five but within ten years .
Maturing after ten years .

Total securities held to maturity .

</TABLE>

<C> <C> <C> <C>
$ 160 $ 2 162

3,800 6 40 3,766
4,546 2 113 4,435
2,349 38 2,311

$10,855 10 191 $10,674

The following table shows gross unrealized losses and fair value,
aggregated by investment category, and length of time that individual securities
have been in a continuous unrealized loss position, at December 31, 2006.

Securities Available for Sale (tabular amounts in thousands) ,

<TABLE>
<CAPTION>

Less than 12 Months 12 Months or More Total

Fair
Value

Unrealized
Losses

Fair
Value

Unrealized
Losses

Fair
Value

Unrealized
Losses

<S>
Government sponsored

enterprise securities
Other securities
State and political

subdivisions

$
435

18,441

<C>

$

130

$ 6,784
13,750

<C>

$ 66
389

<C>

$ 6,784
14,185

18,441

$ 66
389

130

Total

</TABLE>

$18,876 $ 130 $20,534 $ 455 $39,410 $ 585

Forty individual securities were in a continuous loss position for
twelve months or more.

Securities Held to Maturity (tabular amounts in thousands) ,

<TABLE>
<CAPTION>

Less than 12 Months

<S>
States and political

subdivisions

</TABLE>

Fair
Value

<C>

$1,665

Unrealized
Losses

<C>

$ 6

12 Months or More Total
- - - - - - -- --- -- ---

Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized
Value Losses Value Losses

<C> <C> <C> <C>

$6,654 $ 133 $8,319 $ 139

Thirty individual securities were in a continuous loss position for
twelve months or more.

(Continued)
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NOTE 3 - SECURITIES, Continued

The following table shows gross unrealized losses and fair value,
aggregated by investment category, and length of time that individual securities
have been in a continuous unrealized loss position, at December 31, 2005.

Securities Available for Sale (tabular amounts in thousands) ;

<TABLE>
<CAPTION>

Less than 12 Months 12 Months or More Total

<S>
Government sponsored

enterprise securities
Other securities .

Total .

- - - - - - - - - --
Fair Unrealized

Value Losses

<C> <C>

$ 247 $ 2
10,075 194

$10,322 $ 196

Fair
Value

$47,147
7,540

$54,687

Unrealized
Losses

<C>

$ 808
290

$ 1,098

Fair
Value

<C>

$47,394
17,615

$65,009

Unrealized
Losses

$ 810
484

$ 1,294

</TABLE>

Sixty-two individual securities were in a continuous loss position for
twelve months or more.

Securities Held to Maturity (tabular amounts in thousands) ,

<TABLE>
<CAPTION>

Less than 12 Months 12 Months or More Total

<8>
States and political

subdivisions

</TABLE>

Fair
Value

$7,848

Unrealized
Losses

<C>

108

Fair
Value

$1,826

Unrealized
Losses

<C>

83

Fair
Value

<C>

$9,674

Unrealized
Losses

<C>

$ 191

Eight individual securities were in a continuous loss position for
twelve months or more.

The Company has the ability and intent to hold these securities until
such time as the value recovers or the securities mature. The Company believes,
based on industry analyst reports and credit ratings, that the deterioration in
value is attributable to changes in market interest rates and not in the credit
quality of the issuer and therefore, these losses are not considered
other-than-temporary. The category llother securities ll above is comprised of
mortgage-backed securities and investments in Banker'S Bank stock.

Other Investments, at Cost (tabular amounts in thousands) ,

The Banks, as member institutions, are required to own certain stock
investments in the Federal Home Loan Bank of Atlanta ("FHLB") and the FRB. These
investments are carried at cost and are generally pledged against any borrowings
from these institutions (see Note 9). No ready market exists for these stocks
and they have no quoted market values. The Company's investments in these stocks
are summarized below:

December 31,

FRB .
FHLB .
Interest-bearing deposits in

other banks (maturing after three months)

2006

$ 453
3,271

559

$4,283

2005

$ 396
1,649

$2,045

Securities with carrying amounts of $43,494,000 and $54,936,000
December 31, 2006 and 2005, respectively, were pledged to secure public deposits
and for other purposes required or permitted by law.
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NOTE 4 - LO~~S k~D ALLOWk~CE FOR LOk~ LOSSES
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Loans are summarized as follows (tabular amounts in thousands) :

December 31,

2006 2005

Commercial and industrial _. not secured by real estate
Commercial and industrial - secured by real estate
Residential real estate - mortgage .
Residential real estate - construction .
Loans to individuals for household, family

and other personal expenditures ...

Less allowance for loan losses

38,505 39,669
90,298 90,186
97,835 107,398

117,465 121,048

13,978 19,194
- - - - - - -- - - - - - - - -
358,081 377,495

4,070 3,854
_... - - - - -- - -- - - --

$354,011

The composition of gross loans by rate type is as follows:
amounts in thousands) :

$373,641

(tabular

2006

December 31,

2005

Variable rate loans ..
Fixed rate loans .

$180,545
177,536

$358,081

$194,904
182,591

$377,495

Changes in the allowance for loan losses were as follows:

For the years ended December 31,

BALANCE,BEGINNINGOFYEAR .
Provision for loan losses .
Loans charged off .
Loans recovered .

BALk~CE,ENDOFYEAR .

----------------- - - - -- - _._-----

2006 2005 2004

$ 3,854 $ 3,691 3,438
943 848 589

(995) (704) (448)
268 19 112

$ 4,070 $ 3,854 $ 3,691

At December 31, 2006 and 2005 nonaccrual loans amounted to $993,000
and $1,206,000, respectively. Foregone interest income was approximately
$95,000, $89,000, and $46,000 on nonaccrual loans for 2006, 2005 and 2004,
respectively. There were no impaired loans at December 31, 2006 and 2005.
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NOTE 5 - PREMISES .~D EQUIPMENT
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The principal categories and estimated useful lives of premises and
equipment are summarized below (tabular amounts in thousands) :

<TABLE>
<CAPTION>

<S>
Land . , , .
Building and improvements . .
Furniture, fixtures and equipment . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Less accumulated depreciation , , .

</TABLE>

Depreciation expense of approximately $1,091,000, $1,127,000 and
$1,075,000 for 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively, is included in occupancy and
equipment expenses in the accompanying consolidated statements of income.

NOTE 6 . DEPOSITS

Estimated
useful lives

15 40 years
3 . 10 years

December 31,

2006

<C>
$ 2,869

8,040
7,602

18,511
7,394

$11,117

2005

<C>
2,195
7,622
7,267

17,084
6,449

$10,635

The composition of deposits is as follows
thousands) ,

<TABLE>
<CAPTION>

<S>
Demand deposits, noninterest bearing .
NOW and money market accounts .
Savings deposits .
Time certificates, $100,000 or more .
Other time certificates ....

Total

<CAPTION>

(tabular amounts in

December 31,

2006

<C>
54,993
86,165

8,987
87,365

147,535

$385,045

December 31/

2006

2005

<C>
$ 52,467

102,225
11 , 294
99,255

125,108

$390,349

2005

Time certificates maturing
<S>

~'Ji thin one year .
After one but \'lithin t\vO years .
After two but within three years . .
}\fter three but wi thin four years .
After four years . . _ .

Transaction and savings accounts ....

</TABLE>

Certificates of deposit in excess of $100,000 totaled approximately
$76,758,000 and $89,607,000 at December 31, 2006 and 2005, respectively.
Interest expense on certificates of deposit in excess of $100,000 was
approximately, $3,567,000 in 2006 and $2,893,000 in 2005. The Banks had brokered
time certificates of approximately $28,999,000 at December 31, 2006 and
$2,295,000 at December 31, 2005.
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<C>
$201,669

29,789
2,938

486
18

234,900
150,145

$385,045

<C>
$127,271

78,344
17,844

527
377

224,363
165,986

$390,349
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NOTE 7 SECURITIES SOLD UNDER REPURCHASE AGREEMENTS

Securities sold under repurchase agreements are summarized as follows
(tabular amounts in thousands I ,

<TABLE>
<CAPTION>

2006

December 31,

2005

<S>
Government sponsored enterprise securities with an amortized cost of $35,235,000

($35,828,000 fair value) and $44,851,000 ($44,000,000 fair valuel at
December 31, 2006 and 2005, respectively, collateralize the agreements

</TABLE>

The Banks enter into sales of securities under agreements to
repurchase. These obligations to repurchase securities sold are reflected as
liabilities in the consolidated balance sheets. The dollar amount of securities
underlying the agreements remains in the asset accounts. The securities
underlying the agreements are book entry securities maintained by a safekeeping
agent. The weighted average interest rate of these agreements was 2.50 percent
and 1.94 percent for 2006 and 2005, respectively. The agreements mature daily.
Securities sold under agreements to repurchase averaged $28,443,000 and
$31,594,000 during 2006 and 2005, respectively. The maximum amounts outstanding
ac any month-end were $30,962,000 and $34,757,000 during 2006 and 2005,
respectively.

<C>

$18,368 $31,736

NOTE 8 FEDERAL FUNDS PURCHASED

At December 31, 2006, the Banks had the ability to purchase federal
funds from unrelated banks under short-term lines of credit totaling
$42,000,000. These lines of credit are available on a one to seven day basis for
general corporate purposes. There were no federal funds purchased under these
lines of credit at December 31, 2006 and $4,039,000 outstanding at December 31,
2005.

NOTE 9 - ADVANCES FROM FEDERAL HOME LOAN BANK
The Banks have the ability to borrow up to 20 percent of their total

assets from the FHLB subject to available qualifying collateral. Borrowings may
be obtained under various FHLB lending programs with various terms. Borrowings
from the FHLB require qualifying collateral (which includes certain mortgage
loans, investment securities and FHLB stock) and may require purchasing
additional stock in the FHLB.

The Banks had advances aggregating $50,000,000 and $17,500,000 at
December 31, 2006 and 2005, respectively. At December 31, 2006 and 2005
respectively, the Banks had $45,000,000 and $12,500,000 of advances at interest
rates of 5.50 and 4.44 percent and which matured daily. At December 31, 2006 and
2005, $5,000,000 of the advances bear interest at 4.82 percent and mature in
December 2010. At December 31, 2006 and 2005, the advances were collateralized
by qualifying mortgage loans aggregating approximately $55,679,000 and
$68,112,000, respectively, and by FHLB stock owned by all three Banks. As of
December 31, 2006, the Banks had the ability to borrow an additional $46,240,000
in the aggregate from the FHLB.
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NOTE 10 ~ INCOME TAXES

Provision for income taxes consists of the following (tabular amounts
in thousands) :

<TABLE>
<CAPTION>

For the years ended December 31,

Current tax provision
<S>

Federal
State

Total current taxes
Deferred tax benefit

</Tl'.BLE>

2006

<C>
$ 1,302

211

1,513
422

$ 1,935

2005

<C>
$ 1,474

188

1,662
(10)

$ 1,652

2004

<C>
$ 1,703

160

1,863
(209)

$ 1,654

Income taxes differ from the tax expense computed by applying the
statutory federal income tax rate of 34 percent to income before income taxes.
The reasons for these differences are as follows (tabular amounts in thousands) ,

<TABLE>
<CAPTION>

2006

For the years ended December 31,

2005 2004

<S>
Tax expense at statutory rate .
Increase (decrease) in taxes resulting from:

State income taxes, net of federal benefit .
Tax- exempt interest income . . . . . . . . . .
Investment in life insurance . .
Other . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Provision for income taxes .

</TABLE>

Deferred tax assets (liabilities) result from temporary differences
in the recognition of revenue and expenses for tax and financial statement
purposes. Management believes realization of the deferred tax assets is more
likely than not and accordingly has not recorded a valuation allowance. The
sources and the cumulative tax effect of temporary differences are as follows
(tabular amounts in thousands) ,
<TABLE>
<CAPTION>

<C>
2,183

140
(238)

(99)
(51)

$ 1,935

<C> <C>
$ 1,965 $ 1,762

124 104
(77) (79)

(120 ) (159 )
(240 ) 26

$ 1,652 $ 1,654

December 31,

2006 2005

Deferred tax assets
<S>

Allowance for loan losses .. _ .
Deferred compensation .. . .
Unrealized holding losses on securities available for sale . .
Other . . . . . . . . . . .

<C>
$ 1,388

366

83

1,837

<C>
1,318

138
439

11

1,906

Deferred tax liabilities
Depreciation ...
Prepaid expenses
Unrealized holding gains on securities available for sale

(209)
(201)

( 9)

(419)

(351 )
(111)

(462 )

Net deferred tax assets included in other assets .

</TABLE>
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NOTE 11 - FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS WITH OFF-BALM,CE SHEET RISK

i:\privatc\scc-bank\09811 \0001 \0\1 Ok2007\pcoplcsl 0-k07.txt, 79

The Banks are parties to financial instruments with off-balance sheet
risk in the normal course of business to meet the financing needs of their
customers. These financial instruments include commitments to extend credit and
standby letters of credit. They involve, to varying degrees, elements of credit
and interest rate risk in excess of the amounts recognized in the balance
sheets.

The Company1s exposure to credit loss in the event of nonperformance by
the other party to the financial instrument for commitments to extend credit and
standby letters of credit is represented by the contractual amounts of those
instruments. The Company uses the same credit policies in making commitments and
conditional obligations as it does for on-balance sheet instruments.

Commitments to extend credit are agreements to lend to a customer as
long as there is no violation of any material condition established in the
contract. Commitments generally have fixed expiration dates or other termination
clauses and may require the payment of a fee. At December 31, 2006, unfunded
commitments to extend credit were $108,431,000, of which $103,349,000 were at
variable rates and $5,082,000 were at fixed rates. These commitments included
$41,224,000 of unfunded amounts of construction loans, $42,475,000 of
undisbursed amounts of home equity lines of credit, $17,175,000 of unfunded
amounts under commercial lines of credit, and $7,557,000 other commitments to
extend credit. The Company evaluates each customer's creditworthiness on a
case-by - case basis. The amount of collateral obtained, if deemed necessary by
the Company upon extension of credit, is based on management's credit evaluation
of the borrower. Collateral varies but may include accounts receivable,
inventory, property, plant and equipment, commercial and residential real
estate.

At December 31, 2006, there was $6,922,000 committed under letters of
credit. The credit risk involved in issuing letters of credit is essentially the
same as that involved in extending loan facilities to customers. Collateral
varies but may include accounts receivable, inventory, equipment, marketable
securities and property. Since most of the letters of credit are expected to
expire without being drawn upon, they do not necessarily represent future cash
requirements. The Company has not recorded a liability for the current carrying
amount of the obligation to perform as a guarantor, and no contingent liability
was considered necessary, as such amounts were not considered material.

NOTE 12 - COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

The Company has, from time to time, various lawsuits and claims arising
from the conduct of its business. Management does not expect such items to have
any material adverse effect on the financial position or results of operations
of the Company (see Note 20 for subsequent event disclosure) .

Financial instruments, which potentially subject the Company to
concentrations of credit risk, consist principally of loans receivable,
investment securities, federal funds sold and amounts due from banks.

The Company makes loans to individuals and small businesses for various
personal and commercial purposes primarily in the upstate region of South
Carolina. The Company's loan portfolio is not concentrated in loans to any
single borrower or in a relatively small number of borrowers. Additionally,
management is not aware of any concentrations of loans to classes of borrowers
or industries that would be similarly affected by economic conditions.

(Continued)
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NOTE 12 - COMMITMENTS fu~D CONTINGENCIES, Continued
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In addition to monitoring potential concentrations of loans to
particular borrowers or groups of borrowers, industries and geographic regions,
management monitors exposure to credit risk that could arise from potential
concentrations of lending products and practices such as loans that subject
borrowers to substantial payment increases (e.g. principal deferral periods,
loans with initial interest-only periods, etc) , and loans with high
loan-to-value ratios. Additionally, there are industry practices that could
subject the Company to increased credit risk should economic conditions change
over the course of a loan's lite. For example, the Company makes variable rate
loans and fixed rate principal-amortizing loans with maturities prior to the
loan being fully paid (i.e. balloon payment loans) These loans are underwritten
and monitored to manage the associated risks. Management has determined that
there is no concentration of credit risk associated with its lending policies or
practices.

The Company's investment portfolio consists principally of obligations
of the United States, its agencies or its corporations and general obligation
municipal securities. In the opinion of management, there is no concentration of
credit risk in its investment portfolio. The Company places its deposits and
correspondent accounts with and sells its federal funds to high quality
institutions. Management believes credit risk associated ~lith correspondent
accounts is not significant.

NOTE 13 - RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

At December 31, 2006 and 2005, certain officers, directors, employees,
related parties and companies in which they have 10 percent or more beneficial
ownership, were indebted to the Banks in the aggregate amount of $9,352,000 and
$8,661,000, respectively. During 2006, $2,130,000 of new loans were made to this
group and repayments of $1,439,000 were received. This same group had deposits
in the Banks of $6,713,000 at December 31, 2006.

NOTE 14 - COMMON STOCK AND EARNINGS PER SHARE

SFAS No. 128, Earnings per Share, requires that the Company present
basic and diluted net income per common share. The assumed conversion of stock
options creates the difference between basic and diluted net income per common
share. Income per share is calculated by dividing net income by the weighted
average number of common shares outstanding for each period presented. The
weighted average number of common shares outstanding for basic net income per
common share was 6,603,742 in 2006, 6,533,440 in 2005 and 6,419,425 in 2004. The
weighted average number of common shares outstanding for diluted net income per
common share was 6,653,555 in 2006, 6,686,487 in 2005 and 6,652,960 in 2004.

The Company declared or issued five percent common stock dividends in
2006, 2005 and 2004. Additionally, the Company effected a 3-for-2 stock split in
October 2004. Upon issuance of the 3-for-2 stock split, the Company filed
articles of amendment to its Articles of Incorporation increasing its authorized
shares from 10,000,000 to 15,000,000 and decreasing its par value from $1.67 per
share to $1.11 per share. Net income and dividends per common share and the
weighted average number of common shares outstanding for basic and diluted net
income per common share in prior years have been restated to reflect these
transactions.

NOTE 15 - RESTRICTION OF DIVIDENDS

The ability of the Company to pay cash dividends is dependent upon
receiving cash in the form of dividends from the Banks. Federal banking
regulations restrict the amount of dividends that can be paid and such dividends
are payable only from the retained earnings of the Banks. At December 31, 2006
the Banks had aggregate retained earnings of $28,618,000.

(Continued)
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NOTE 16 - STOCK OPTION COMPENSATION PL~~S

Prior to 2006, the Company accounted for stock options in accordance
with APB Opinion No. 25. The following table illustrates the effect on net
income and earnings per share had the Company accounted for share-based
compensation in accordance with SFAS No. 123(R) for the periods indicated,.

<TABLE>
<CAPTION>

(tabular amounts in thousands, except per share information) For the years ended December 31,

2006 2005 2004

Net income, as reported .
Add, Stock-based employee compensation expense included

in reported net income net of related tax effects
Deduct, total stock-based employee compensation expense

determined under fair value based method for all awards,
net of related tax effects

Pro forma net income ..

Net income per common share
Basic as reported

$

$

4,486

92

(92)

4,486

0.68

<C>
$

$

$

4,128

(131)

3,997

o. 63

<C>
$ 3,528

(120)

$ 3,408

0.55

Basic pro forma .. $ 0.61 0.53

Diluted - as reported . $ 0.67 $ 0.62 $ 0.53

Diluted pro forma . 0.60 0.51

</TABLE>
The fair value of each option grant is estimated on the date of grant using the
Black-Scholes option pricing model with the following weighted average
assumptions for grants in 2006, 2005 and 2004, dividend yields from $.17 to $.20
per share, expected volatility from 22 to 27 percent, risk-free interest rates
from 4.06 to 5.00 percent and expected life of 10 years. The weighted average
fair market value of options granted approximated $4.03 in 2006, $6.66 in 2005,
and $5.25 in 2004. For purposes of the proforma calculations, compensation
expense is recognized on a straight-line basis over the vesting period.

A summary of the status of the plans as of December 31, 2006, 2005 and
2004, and changes during the years ending on those dates is presented below (all
shares and exercise prices have been adjusted for stock dividends and the stock
split) .

<TABLE>
<CAPTION>

Options Outstanding

<S>
Outstanding at December 31, 2003
Granted .
Exercised . .
Forfeited or expired .
Outstanding at December 31, 2004 ..
Granted .
Exercised _ .
Forfeited or expired .
Outstanding at December 31, 2005
Granted .
Exercised .
Forfei ted or expi red .

Shares

<C>
414,316

42,538
(25,539)

431,315
21,498

(146,802)
(3,342 )

302,669
25,602

(113,878)
(15,309)

Weighted average
exercise price

<C>
$ 5.00

13.65
5.62

$ 5.90
16.34

3.85

$ 7.54
11.41

5.19
14.14

\'Ieighted
average

contractual
term (years)

Aggregate
intrinsic value

$ 661,631

$1,256,625

$ 314,640

Outstanding at December 31, 2006

Options exercisable at year-end .

Shares available for grant .
</TABLE>
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199,084

163,628

380,262

$

$

8.88

8.03

(Cont inued)

4.52

4.52

$1,156,678

$ 950,679
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NOTE 16 . STOCK OPT ION COMPENSATION PLANS, Continued

<TABLE >
<CAPTION>

<S>
Non - vested options at December 31, 2005
Granted .
Vested . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
Forfeited or expired . .
Non-vested options at December 31, 2006 .
</TABLE>

Number of
shares

<C>
32,346
25,6 02

(20,917 )
(1 ,5 7 5 )
35,456

Weighted average grant
date fair value

<C>
$ 5.99
$ 4.03
$ 5.5 0
$ 4.63
$ 5.31

Options Exercisable

\'leighted
average

Number exercise
exercisable price

<TABLE>
<CAPTION>

Opti ons Outstanding
- ---- -- --- --- --_._- -

l'Ieight ed
average vieighted

remaining average
Number contractual exercise

outs tanding life price
--- - -- - -- --

<s><c;> <C> <C>
48,841 0 .3 yea rs $ 3.69

3,471 1.3 years 5.60
9,131 1. 5 years 5.60

10, 451 1.8 years 5.60
4,420 2.3 years 6.79
9.459 3 .3 years 8.56
5,549 4.0 years 8.96
8, 024 4 .3 years 7.98
2,0 09 4 .6 years 7.52
9, 550 5 .3 years 9.24

10,923 5.5 years 9 .90
7,280 6.3 years 10.99

25,386 7 .3 years 13.55
1,737 7.6 years 14.39
1,737 7 . 8 years 15.46
1,654 8.0 years 18.82
4,959 8.3 years 16.43
1,103 8.5 years 15.5 0
2 ,206 8.6 years 15.64
5,513 8.7 years 15.64
1,654 8 . 8 years 14 . 78
1 ,050 9. 1 years 12 . 62
1,050 9.2 years 12.48

13,125 9 . 4 years 11 . 48
1, 050 9 .5 yea rs 10.95
4,0 77 9.7 years 10.95
3,67 5 9.6 years 10.71

- - - - - - --
199,084 8 .88
===== ===

</TABLE>
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<C>
48,841

3, 471
9,131

10 , 451
4,420
9,459
5,549
8,024
2 ,009
9 , 550
9,286
7,280

17,085
955
955
662

4,959
441
882

2,205
662
263
263

6 ,825

163,628

3.69
5.60
5.60
5.6 0
6.79
8.56
8.96
7.98
7.52
9.2 4
9.90

10 .99
13.55
14.39
15.46
18.82
16.43
15.50
15.64
15.64
14.78
12.62
12.48
11.48
10.95
10.95
10.71

8.03

(Continued)
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NOTE 16 - STOCK OPTION COMPENSATION PL~~S, Continued

The plans are administered by the Board of Directors or by a committee
designated by the Board. The plans provide that if the shares of common stock
shall be subdivided or combined into a greater or smaller number of shares or if
the Company shall issue any shares of common stock as a stock dividend on its
outstanding common stock, the number of shares of common stock deliverable upon
the exercise of options shall be increased or decreased proportionately, and
appropriate adjustments shall be made in the purchase price per share to reflect
such subdivision, combination or stock dividend.

NOTE 17 - EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PL~~S

The Company maintains a 401(k) retirement plan for all eligible
employees. Upon ongoing approval of the Board of Directors, the Company matches
employee contributions equal to fifty percent of the first six percent of such
contributions, subject to certain adjustments and limitations. Contributions to
the plan of $159,824, $142,255 and $136,526, were charged to operations during
2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively.

Supplemental benefits have been approved by the Board of Directors for
certain executive officers of the Company. These benefits are not qualified
under the Internal Revenue Code and they are not funded. However, certain
funding is provided informally and indirectly by life insurance policies. The
Company recorded expense related to these benefits of $51,585, $74,383 and
$495,210, in 2006, 2005, and 2004, respectively.

NOTE 18 REGULATORY MATTERS

The Banks are subject to various regulatory capital requirements
administered by the federal banking agencies. Failure to meet minimum capital
requirements can initiate certain mandatory, and possibly additional
discretionary, actions by regulators that, if undertaken, could have a direct
material effect on the Banks' financial statements. Under capital adequacy
guidelines and the regulatory framework for prompt corrective action, the Banks
must meet specific capital guidelines that involve quantitative measures of the
Banks' assets, liabilities, and certain off-balance sheet items as calculated
under regulatory accounting practices. The Banks! capital amounts and
classifications are also subject to qualitative judgments by the regulators
about components, risk weighting, and other factors.

Quantitative measures established by regulation to ensure capital
adequacy require the Banks to maintain minimum amounts and ratios (set forth in
the table below) of total and Tier 1 capital to risk-weighted assets, and of
Tier 1 capital to average assets. Management believes, as of December 31, 2006,
that the Banks meet all capital adequacy requirements to which they are subject.

As of December 31, 2006, the most recent notification from the Office
of the Comptroller of the Currency categorized the Banks as well capitalized
under the regulatory framework for prompt corrective action. There are no
conditions or events since that notification that management believes have
changed the Banks' categories. The Banks' actual capital amounts and ratios and
minimum regulatory amounts and ratios are presented as follows:
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NOTE 18 REGULATORY ~~TTERS, Continued
<TABLE,
<CAPTI ON,

The People s Nationa l Bank,

Peoples Bancorporat i on, I nc . :

As o f December 31, 2006
<S,

Total Capita l (to r isk-"Jeighted assets) .
Ti er 1 Capita l (to risk - weighted assets) .
Tier 1 Capi tal (to average assets) .

To be ",ell
capital ized under

For capita l prompt corrective
adequacy purposes action prov isions

J:I.ctual Minimum Mi nimum

Amount Ratio Amount Rat.io Amount. Ratio

(dollar amounts in thou sands )

<C, <C, <C, <C,
$50,116 13. 07% $30,675 8 .00 % N/A N/A

46 , 046 12. 00 15, 349 4.00 N/A N/A
46 , 046 9.0 6 20,329 4.00 N/.~ N/A

$45,880 11.9 3% $30,766 8 .00% N/A N/A
42,025 1 0 . 93 15,380 4 .00 N/A N/A
42,025 8.67 19,389 4 . 00 N/A N/A

$28,925 12 . 05% $19,203 8.00% $24,004 10.00%
26,470 11 . 03 9,599 4 .0 0 14 ,39 9 6.00
26,470 8 . 90 11,897 4 . 00 14,871 5.00

$26,129 11.58% $18,0 51 8 . 00% $22,564 10.00
24,136 1 0 . 69 9,031 4.00 13 , 547 6.00
24,136 8.93 10,811 4.00 13,514 5. 00

of December 31 , 2006 .
Tota l Capital (to risk-we ight e d asset s )
Tier 1 Capital (to risk - weighted assets )
Tier 1 Capital (to average assets)

As of December 31 , 2005
Total Capital (to risk -weighted assets )
Tier 1 Capital (to risk - weighted assets)
Tier 1 Cap i ta l (to average assets)

As

As of December 31, 2005
To t al Capita l (to risk - weighted assets) .
Tier 1 Capital (to ri sk - weighted assets) .
Tie r 1 Capital (to average assets) .

Bank of Anderson, N.A.,

As of December 31, 2006
Total Capita l ( to risk-weighted assets) .
Tier 1 Capital (to risk-we ight ed assets ) .
Tier 1 Capi tal (to average assets) .

AS of December 31 , 2005
Total Capital ( t o risk-weighted assets)
Tier 1 Capital (to risk- weighted assets)
Tier 1 Capital ( t o average assets )

$13,176 12 . 65% $ 8 ,3 33 8.00% $1 0,4 16 10.00%
11 , 926 11 . 45 4,166 4 . 00 6, 249 6.00
11 ,926 7 .80 6,116 4 . 00 7,645 5.00

$12,539 10.68% $ 9,393 8.00% $11,741 10 .0 0%
11 , 185 9.53 4, 695 4.00 7,042 6. 00
11,185 7.08 6,3 19 4 . 00 7,899 5. 00

Seneca National Bank,

AS of December 31, 2006
To t a l Cap ital (to risk - weighted assets) .
Tier 1 Capital (to risk -weighted assets)
Tier 1 Capi t al (to average assets) .

As of December 31, 2005
Total Cap i tal (to risk-weight e d asse t s) .
Tier 1 Capital (to risk-weighted assets ) .
Ti er 1 Capital (to average assets) .

</TABLE,

$ 5,508 13.31 % $ 3 , 311 8.00% $ 4 , 138 1 0 . 00%
5,035 12.17 1,6 5 5 4.00 2 , 482 6 . 00
5,035 9.1 0 2,213 4.00 2, 766 5 . 00

$ 5,177 12.53% $ 3,305 8.00% $ 4,132 10. 00%
4,669 11.30 1, 6 53 4.00 2,479 6 . 00
4,669 8.52 2,192 4 .00 2 , 740 5.00
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NOTE 19 - FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
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SFAS No. 107, Disclosures about Fair Value of Financial Instruments,
requires disclosure of fair value information, whether or not recognized in the
balance sheets, when it is practical to estimate the fair value. SFAS No. 107
defines a financial instrument as cash, evidence of an ownership interest in an
entity or contractual obligations which require the exchange of cash or other
financial instruments. Certain items are specifically excluded from the
disclosure requirements, including the Company's common stock, premises and
equipment and other assets and liabilities.

Fair value approximates
instruments due to the short-term
banks, interest-bearing deposits
purchased.

carrying value for the following financial
nature of the instrument, cash and due from

in other banks and federal funds sold and

Securities are valued using quoted fair market
investments are valued at par value.

prices. Other

Fair value for variable rate loans that reprice frequently, loans held
for sale, and for loans that mature in less than three months is based on the
carrying value. Fair value for fixed rate mortgage loans, personal loans, and
all other loans (primarily commercial) maturing after three months is based on
the discounted present value of the estimated future cash flows. Discount rates
used in these computations approximate the rates currently offered for similar
loans of comparable terms and credit quality.

Fair value for demand deposit accounts and interest-bearing accounts
with no fixed maturity date is equal to the carrying value. Certificate of
deposit accounts and securities sold under repurchase agreements maturing within
one year are valued at their carrying value. The fair value of certificate of
deposit accounts and securities sold under repurchase agreements maturing after
one year are estimated by discounting cash flows from expected maturities using
current interest rates on similar instruments.

Fair value for long-term FHLB advances is based on discounted cash
flows using the Company1s current incremental borrowing rate. Discount rates
used in these computations approximate rates currently offered for similar
borrowings of comparable terms and credit quality.

Fair value of off-balance sheet instruments is based on fees currently
charged to enter into similar arrangements, taking into account the remaining
terms of the agreement and the counterparties' credit standing.

The Company has used management1s best estimate of fair
the above assumptions. Thus, the fair values presented may not
which could be realized in an immediate sale or settlement of the
addition, any income taxes or other expenses which would be
actual sale or settlement are not taken into consideration in
presented.

value based on
be the amounts
instrument. In
incurred in an
the fair value

The estimated fair values of the Company's financial instruments are as
follows (amounts in thousands)

<TABLE,
<CAPTION,

December 31,

Financial assets:
<S,

Cash and due from banks . .
Interest-bearing deposits in other banks .
Federal funds sold .
Securities available for sale .
Securities held to maturity .
Other investments .
Loans (gross) .

</TABLE,
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Carrying
amount

<C,
$ 10,819

108
12,514
81,294
13,500

4,675
358,081

2006
Fair
value

<C,
$ 10,819

108
12,514
81,294
13,382

4,675
351,533

Carrying
amount

<C,
9,311

900

65,009
10,855

2,197
377,495

2005
Fair
value

<C,
9,311

900

65,009
10,674

2,197
372,750
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NOTE 19 - FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRU}lENTS, Continued

<TABLE>
<CAPTION>

Financial liabilities:
<S>
Deposits .
Securities sold under repurchase agreements .
Federal funds purchased .
Advances from Federal Home Loan Bank ..
</TABLE>

December 31,

2006 2005

Carrying Fair Carrying Fair
amount value amount value

<C> <C> <C> <C>
$385,049 $385,672 $390,349 $392,023

18,368 18,368 31,736 31,736
4,039 4,039

50,000 49,968 17,500 17,406

NOTE 20 SUBSEQUENT EVENT

On February 15, 2007 the Company received the results of
arbitration proceedings regarding an employment contract dispute. A former
employee of a subsidiary of the Company was awarded $712,280, pre-judgment
interest at the rate of 8% from January 25, 2006, and $150,000 in attorney's
fees and costs. The award also provided that the administrative fees and
expenses of the American Arbitration Association, as well as the compensation
and expenses of the arbitrators, were to be borne by the Company. The impact of
this settlement has been included in the accompanying consolidated financial
statements.

NOTE 21 CONDENSED FINANCIAL INFORMATION

Following is condensed financial information of Peoples Bancorporation ,
Inc. (parent company only) (tabular amounts in thousands)

CONDENSED BAL~~CE SHEETS
December 31,

ASSETS
Cash .
Investment in bank
Other assets ...

TOTAL ASSETS ..

subsidiaries .

2006

$ 2,148
43,568

1,228

$46,944

2005

$ 1,644
39,307

559

$41,510

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
Other liabilities .
Shareholders' equity .

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITy .
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$ 880
46,064

$46,944

$ 339
41,171

$41,510

(Continued)
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NOTE 21

<TABLE>
<CAPTION>

CONDENSED FINANCIAL INFORMATION, Continued

CONDENSED STATEMENTS OF INCOME

INCO~lE

<S>
Fees and dividends from subsidiaries .

EXPENSES
Salaries and benefits .
Occupancy
Equipment
Other operating .

EQUITY IN UNDISTRIBUTED NET INCOME OF BP~K

SUBSIDIARIES

Income before income taxes

INCOME TAX BENEFIT ....

Net income .

</TABLE>

CONDENSED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

<T.n..BLE>
<CAPTION>

OPERATING ACTIVITIES
<S>

Net income .
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided

by operating activities
Equity in undistributed net income of bank subsidiaries
(Increase) decrease in other assets
Increase (decrease) in other liabilities

Net cash provided by operating activities

FINP~CING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from the exercise of stock options
Cash dividends . .
Cash in lieu of fractional share on stock dividends and splits
Proceeds (repayment) of advances from subsidiaries

Net cash used for financing activities .

Net increase (decrease) in cash .

CASH, BEGINNING OF YEAR

CASH, END OF YEAR .

</TABLE>
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For the years ended December 31,
.. - - - _ .. - - --

2006 2005 2004

<C> <C> <C>
$ 5,989 $ 4,945 $ 4,271

3,620 2,970 2,205
24 25 22

379 330 298
1,002 844 706

5,025 4,169 3,231

3,441 2,974 2,478

4,405 3,750 3,518

(81) (378) (10 )

$ 4,486 $ 4,128 $ 3,528

For the years ended December 31,
- - - - _.- - - - - - -- - - - ---

2006 2005 2004

<C> <C> <C>
$ 4,486 $ 4,128 $ 3,528

(3,4411 (2,974 ) (2,478)
(669) (369) 706
541 (1 ) 124

917 784 1,880

537 392 144
(1,258 ) (1,187 ) (1,051)

(7) (9) (20 )
315 (37) 192

(413 ) (841 ) (735)

504 (57) 1,145

1,644 1,701 556

$ 2,148 $ 1,644 $ 1,701
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NOTE 22 - QUARTERLY FIN~~CIAL DATA (UNAUDITED )

i:\p"ivate\scc-bank\0981 J\0001 \0\10k2007\peoplesJ 0-k07.txt, 88

Unaudited condensed financial data by quarter for 2006 and 2005
is as f ol lows (amounts, except share data, in thousands )

<TABLE>
<CAPTION>

Quarter ended

2006

<S>
I nterest i ncome .
Interest expense

Net interest income
Provision for loan losses

Ne t interest income after
provision for loan losse s

Noninte rest income
Noninterest expenses ....

Income before income taxes
Provis ion f o r income taxes

March 31

<C>
S 7,537

2,761

4,776
237

4,539
1,028
3,880

1,687
506

June 30

<C>
S 7,863

3,015

4,848
256

4,592
933

3 , 786

1,739
593

September 30

<C>
$ 8,210

3,269

4,941
225

4,716
895

3,682

1,929
608

December 31

<C>
S 8 , 368

3,596

4,772
225

4 ,547
792

4,273

1,066
228

Net income ..

Bas ic net income per c ommon share ( 1 )

Diluted net income per common sha r e (1)

Bas ic \'Je i ghted average s hares
ou t standing (1 )

Diluted weighted a verage shares
outstanding (l) .

<CAPTION>

s

s

s

1,181

0 . 18

0.18

6,567,030

6,647,510

s

s

s

1 , 1 46

0. 1 7

0.17

6,586,806

6,669, 483

s

$

$

1, 321

0.20

0 . 20

6,610,239

6 , 690 ,8 84

s

s
s

838

0 . 13

0 .12

6,650,895

6,696,873

Quarter ended

2005

<S >
Interes t i ncome ..
Interest expense .

Net int erest income .
Provision for loan losses .

Net interest income after
provision for loan los se s

Nonint erest income .
Noninterest expenses .

Income before income taxes .
Provis i on for income taxes .

March 31

<C>
S 5,807

1,845

3,962
173

3,789
889

3,333

1,345
434

June 30

6,398
2,166

4,232
183

4,049
890

3,451

1.488
487

September 30

<C>
$ 6,843

2,393

4,450
165

4,285
899

3,583

1,601
5 28

December 31

<C>
S 7,242

2,529

4,713
327

4 , 386
931

3,971

1 ,346
203

Ne t income

Basic net i ncome per con~on share (1 )

Dilu t ed ne t income per common share (1)

Basi c we i ghted ave rage shares
outstandi ng (l)

Diluted weight ed average shares
outstand i ng (1) .

</TABLE>

s

$

s

9 11

0 .14

0.14

6,486,362

6,696,936

s

s

s

1,001

0. 15

0 .1 5

6,538,001

6,702,325

$

s

s

1, 073

0. 16

0 . 16

6,552,533

6,676,553

s

s
s

1,143

0.18

0.17

6,556 , 865

6,726,910

(1 ) Per share data has been restated to reflect 5 percent stock divide nds.
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

PEOPLES BANCORPORATJON, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY

March 31, December 31 ,

2009 2008 2008

Unaudited Audited

ASSETS
CASH AND DUE FROM BANKS S S 8,980 S 7,874

INTEREST-BEARING DEPOSITS IN OTHER BANKS 983 765

FEDERAL FUNDS SOLD 6, 796 9,185

Total casg and cash equivalents 16,759 17,824

SECURITIES

Trading assets a 47

Available for sale 80,807 96,003

Held for investment (market value of S12, 11 0,000

$ 12,878,000 and $12,666,000) 12,878 12,651

Other investments, at cost 4,877 3,546

NET SECURITIES 98,562 112,247

GROSS LOANS 423,491 398,711

Less: allowance for loan losses 3,665 9,217

NET LOANS 419,826 389,494

PREMISES AND EQUIPMENT, net of accumulated

depreciation and amortization 13,740 13,200

ACCRUED INTEREST RECEIV..<\BLE 3, 147 2,685

ASSETS ACQUIRED IN SETTLENIENT OF LOANS 930 5,428

CASH SURRENDER V.ALUE OF LIFE INSURANCE 11,456 11 ,8 15

OTHER ASSETS 998 7,182
TOTAL ASSETS S S 565,418 S 559,875

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
DEPOSITS:

Nonimerest-bearing

~
S 47,070 S 51,09 1

Interest-bearing 381,740 394,278

Total deposits • 428,8 10 445,369

SECURITIES SOLD UNDER REPURCHASE AGREEN 18,840 22,181

FEDERAL FUNDS PURCHASED • 0 1,028

ADV.t\NCES FROM FEDERAL HOME LOAN BANK 63,000 34,600

NOTES PAYABLE-OTHER

~
0 11,000

ACCRUED INTEREST PAYABLE 3,668 2,636

OTHER LIABILITIES 488 1,549

Total Liabilities - 514,806 $ 518,363
--- -

SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

Common Stock - 15,000,000 shares authorized, S1.11 par value per

share,_ es, 7,057,551 shares and 7,070,139 shares

I
outstanding. 7,834 7,848

Additional paid-in capital 41,643 41,752

Retained earnings 132 (9,564)

Unrealized loss on securities available for sale 1,003 1,476

Total Shareholders' Equity ____ 50,612 41 ,512

TOTAL LIABILITIES & SHAREHOLDERS' EQUJT S -= $ 565,418 S 559,875
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CONSOLIDATED STATE:-" l ENTS Of INCOM E

PEOPLES BANCORPORATI00i, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY

(U naudited)

Three MOllths Ellllcd

i\hrch 3J,

2008 2008

7,504

I)-';'TEREST INCOl-.,jE

Interest and fees On loans

Interest on securities

T axable

Tax-exempt

Interest On fe deral funds

To tal in ie rest income

s • s

-I 792

370

. • - .--8,6~-~ -

=-, ..:4-,-,,0:..:8..:6__

Customer service fees

110rtgagc banking

Brokerage service

Bank o\vncd life insurance

Gain On sale ofavailable- for-;;ale securities

Gain (loss) on sale of assets acq uired in seti!emen t ofloans

Other noni nlCrC~( income

INTEREST EXPENSE

Interest On dcpo sil~

Interest on federal funds purchased and

securi ties sold un der repurchase

agreemenls

Inlerest on advances from Federal Home Loan Bank

Interest on note s payable

Tolal interest expense

Net in terest income

PROVISIONS f OR LOAN LOSSES

Net interest in come aller provi:-iun for

loan losses

:NON-INTEREST INCOt\lE

Service fees and a l.her income

OTHER EXPENSES

- 3,586

107

672

o
4,365

4,321

235

460

48

131

60

124

2

(9)

145

96 1

2,486

235

_ 790

__ 177

~f-S---61-3-

329

137

7 1

57

135

Sl

82

III

• 3;_~__=--= 4,257

Salaries and benetits

Occupancy

Equipment

Marke ting and advertising

Communicati ons

Printing and supplies

Bank paid loan cos ts

ATM and int~rehange expellSes

Legal and pro fes sional

Di recto r fees

Regulalory A,$$cssnlcnl$

Otherpo;;t empl oyment beneli.ts

O ther operating e>;pe nses

l ncomc before income taxes

N et inC01l1C

PROVISIO?-l FOR INCOME TtL,'XES

INcorvlE PER COMJvCON SHARE:

BASIC

DILUTED
~s' . - =S~~O=.O=8=27=3=
~ S 0.08272

0.05s

__ 7,409,579
=-==7~,4=1=0,=5=86=-DlVIDENDS PAID PER COMMON SnARE

WEIGHTED .-\VER.-\GE COlvlMON SHARES:

BASIC

DILUTED
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PEOPLES BANCORPORATION, INC

STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY (Ul'iAUDlTED)

for the three months ended 1\-1arch 30, 2009 and 2003

Unrealized

hold ing guirl

(loss) on

Common stock

Sbares Amolln t

7,056 ,337 S 7,333 S

613

(353)

5

14

217

832

o

2

613

(128)

(353)

6

14

50,6 12

Total

217

2

1,003

securities

ftvuilable shareholders'

for sale cq uity

S 784 S 50,241

132

(128)

41 ,643

Additional

puid-in Rctuined

capital earnings

41,624 S

7 ,834

1,214

7,057 ,55 1

Balance at December 31 , 2007

Net Ineome

Other comprehensive income, net of tIlx:

Unrealized holding gains on securities

llvailable for sa le, nct of

income taxes S 16

Reclassilication adj ustments for

gains included in net income

nct of income UlXCS SO

Comprehensive incomc

Stock Dividcnd

Cilsh in lieu of tractional shares(slk div)

Cash Dividends

Proeccds from stock options

S tock-based compensat ion

Cumulativc effect ofpos! retirement

cost o fJile insu rance

Bal:lJlce as of Mureh 3 1, 200S

--..tIIIV?

50,612

o
1,003

o

-

132

°
41,643

oo
7,8347,057,551

o

-Balancc at December 31, 2008

Nct Income

O tha comprehcnsive income, net of tax:

Unrealized holding gains on securities

avai lable (or sale, net of

income tnxes S 11 5

Lcss rcclassificHiion adjustments for

ga ins included in net income,

nct of income taxes S1

Comprehensive income

Stock Dlvidcnd

Cash in licll of trfictional shares(stk div)

Cash Di \'idcnds

Proceeds from stock options

S tock-based compcnsation

Post retiremcnt cost of insurancc fl.),.

split-dollar life insu rance coverage

Balance as oUvlarch 31, :W08
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	(e) “Minimum Amount” means $[Insert $ amount equal to 25% of the aggregate value of the Designated Preferred Stock issued on the Original Issue Date].
	(f) “Parity Stock” means any class or series of stock of the Issuer (other than Designated Preferred Stock) the terms of which do not expressly provide that such class or series will rank senior or junior to Designated Preferred Stock as to dividend rights and/or as to rights on liquidation, dissolution or winding up of the Issuer (in each case without regard to whether dividends accrue cumulatively or non-cumulatively).  Without limiting the foregoing, Parity Stock shall include the Issuer’s UST Preferred Stock [and] [Insert title(s) of any other classes or series of Parity Stock].
	(g) “Signing Date” means [Insert date of applicable securities purchase agreement].
	Section 1. General Matters
	Section 2. Standard Definitions
	(a)  “Appropriate Federal Banking Agency” means the “appropriate Federal banking agency” with respect to the Issuer as defined in Section 3(q) of the Federal Deposit Insurance Act (12 U.S.C. Section 1813(q)), or any successor provision.
	(b)  “Business Combination” means a merger, consolidation, statutory share exchange or similar transaction that requires the approval of the Issuer’s stockholders.
	(c) “Business Day” means any day except Saturday, Sunday and any day on which banking institutions in the State of New York generally are authorized or required by law or other governmental actions to close.
	(d) “Bylaws” means the bylaws of the Issuer, as they may be amended from time to time.
	(e) “Certificate of Designations” means the Certificate of Designations or comparable instrument relating to the Designated Preferred Stock, of which these Standard Provisions form a part, as it may be amended from time to time.
	(f) “Charter” means the Issuer’s certificate or articles of incorporation, articles of association, or similar organizational document.
	(g) “Dividend Period” has the meaning set forth in Section 3(a).
	(h) “Dividend Record Date” has the meaning set forth in Section 3(a).
	(i) “Liquidation Preference” has the meaning set forth in Section 4(a).
	(j) “Original Issue Date” means the date on which shares of Designated Preferred Stock are first issued.
	(k) “Preferred Director” has the meaning set forth in Section 7(b).
	(l) “Preferred Stock” means any and all series of preferred stock of the Issuer, including the Designated Preferred Stock.
	(m) “Qualified Equity Offering” means the sale and issuance for cash by the Issuer to persons other than the Issuer or any of its subsidiaries after the Original Issue Date of shares of perpetual Preferred Stock, Common Stock or any combination of such stock, that, in each case, qualify as and may be included in Tier 1 capital of the Issuer at the time of issuance under the applicable risk-based capital guidelines of the Issuer’s Appropriate Federal Banking Agency (other than any such sales and issuances made pursuant to agreements or arrangements entered into, or pursuant to financing plans which were publicly announced, on or prior to November 17, 2008).
	(n) “Standard Provisions” mean these Standard Provisions that form a part of the Certificate of Designations relating to the Designated Preferred Stock.
	(o) “Successor Preferred Stock” has the meaning set forth in Section 5(a).
	(p) “Voting Parity Stock” means, with regard to any matter as to which the holders of Designated Preferred Stock are entitled to vote as specified in Sections 7(a) and 7(b) of these Standard Provisions that form a part of the Certificate of Designations, any and all series of Parity Stock upon which like voting rights have been conferred and are exercisable with respect to such matter.

	Section 3. Dividends
	(a) Rate. Holders of Designated Preferred Stock shall be entitled to receive, on each share of Designated Preferred Stock if, as and when declared by the Board of Directors or any duly authorized committee of the Board of Directors, but only out of assets legally available therefor, cumulative cash dividends with respect to each Dividend Period (as defined below) at a per annum rate of 9.0% on (i) the Liquidation Amount per share of Designated Preferred Stock and (ii) the amount of accrued and unpaid dividends for any prior Dividend Period on such share of Designated Preferred Stock, if any.  Such dividends shall begin to accrue and be cumulative from the Original Issue Date, shall compound on each subsequent Dividend Payment Date (i.e., no dividends shall accrue on other dividends unless and until the first Dividend Payment Date for such other dividends has passed without such other dividends having been paid on such date) and shall be payable quarterly in arrears on each Dividend Payment Date, commencing with the first such Dividend Payment Date to occur at least 20 calendar days after the Original Issue Date.  In the event that any Dividend Payment Date would otherwise fall on a day that is not a Business Day, the dividend payment due on that date will be postponed to the next day that is a Business Day and no additional dividends will accrue as a result of that postponement. The period from and including any Dividend Payment Date to, but excluding, the next Dividend Payment Date is a “Dividend Period”, provided that the initial Dividend Period shall be the period from and including the Original Issue Date to, but excluding, the next Dividend Payment Date. 
	(b) Priority of Dividends.  So long as any share of Designated Preferred Stock remains outstanding, no dividend or distribution shall be declared or paid on the Common Stock or any other shares of Junior Stock (other than dividends payable solely in shares of Common Stock) or Parity Stock, subject to the immediately following paragraph in the case of Parity Stock, and no Common Stock, Junior Stock or Parity Stock shall be, directly or indirectly,  purchased, redeemed or otherwise acquired for consideration by the Issuer or any of its subsidiaries unless all accrued and unpaid dividends for all past Dividend Periods, including the latest completed Dividend Period (including, if applicable as provided in Section 3(a) above, dividends on such amount), on all outstanding shares of Designated Preferred Stock have been or are contemporaneously declared and paid in full (or have been declared and a sum sufficient for the payment thereof has been set aside for the benefit of the holders of shares of Designated Preferred Stock on the applicable record date).  The foregoing limitation shall not apply to (i) redemptions, purchases or other acquisitions of shares of Common Stock or other Junior Stock in connection with the administration of any employee benefit plan in the ordinary course of business and consistent with past practice; (ii) the acquisition by the Issuer or any of its subsidiaries of record ownership in Junior Stock or Parity Stock for the beneficial ownership of any other persons (other than the Issuer or any of its subsidiaries), including as trustees or custodians; and (iii) the exchange or conversion of Junior Stock for or into other Junior Stock or of Parity Stock for or into other Parity Stock (with the same or lesser aggregate liquidation amount) or Junior Stock, in each case, solely to the extent required pursuant to binding contractual agreements entered into prior to the Signing Date or any subsequent agreement for the accelerated exercise, settlement or exchange thereof for Common Stock.

	Section 4. Liquidation Rights
	(a) Voluntary or Involuntary Liquidation. In the event of any liquidation, dissolution or winding up of the affairs of the Issuer, whether voluntary or involuntary, holders of Designated Preferred Stock shall be entitled to receive for each share of Designated Preferred Stock, out of the assets of the Issuer or proceeds thereof (whether capital or surplus) available for distribution to stockholders of the Issuer, subject to the rights of any creditors of the Issuer, before any distribution of such assets or proceeds is made to or set aside for the holders of Common Stock and any other stock of the Issuer ranking junior to Designated Preferred Stock as to such distribution, payment in full in an amount equal to the sum of (i) the Liquidation Amount per share and (ii) the amount of any accrued and unpaid dividends (including, if applicable as provided in Section 3(a) above, dividends on such amount), whether or not declared, to the date of payment (such amounts collectively, the “Liquidation Preference”).
	(b) Partial Payment. If in any distribution described in Section 4(a) above the assets of the Issuer or proceeds thereof are not sufficient to pay in full the amounts payable with respect to all outstanding shares of Designated Preferred Stock and the corresponding amounts payable with respect of any other stock of the Issuer ranking equally with Designated Preferred Stock as to such distribution, holders of Designated Preferred Stock and the holders of such other stock shall share ratably in any such distribution in proportion to the full respective distributions to which they are entitled.
	(c) Residual Distributions. If the Liquidation Preference has been paid in full to all holders of Designated Preferred Stock and the corresponding amounts payable with respect of any other stock of the Issuer ranking equally with Designated Preferred Stock as to such distribution has been paid in full, the holders of other stock of the Issuer shall be entitled to receive all remaining assets of the Issuer (or proceeds thereof) according to their respective rights and preferences.
	(d) Merger, Consolidation and Sale of Assets Not Liquidation. For purposes of this Section 4, the merger or consolidation of the Issuer with any other corporation or other entity, including a merger or consolidation in which the holders of Designated Preferred Stock receive cash, securities or other property for their shares, or the sale, lease or exchange (for cash, securities or other property) of all or substantially all of the assets of the Issuer, shall not constitute a liquidation, dissolution or winding up of the Issuer.

	Section 5. Redemption
	(a) Optional Redemption. Except as provided below, the Designated Preferred Stock may not be redeemed prior to the later of (i) first Dividend Payment Date falling on or after the third anniversary of the Original Issue Date; and (ii) the date on which all outstanding shares of UST Preferred Stock have been redeemed, repurchased or otherwise acquired by the Issuer.  On or after the first Dividend Payment Date falling on or after the third anniversary of the Original Issue Date, the Issuer, at its option, subject to the approval of the Appropriate Federal Banking Agency, may redeem, in whole or in part, at any time and from time to time, out of funds legally available therefor, the shares of Designated Preferred Stock at the time outstanding, upon notice given as provided in Section 5(c) below, at a redemption price equal to the sum of (i) the Liquidation Amount per share and (ii) except as otherwise provided below, any accrued and unpaid dividends (including, if applicable as provided in Section 3(a) above, dividends on such amount) (regardless of whether any dividends are actually declared) to, but excluding, the date fixed for redemption.  
	 Notwithstanding the foregoing, prior to the first Dividend Payment Date falling on or after the third anniversary of the Original Issue Date, the Issuer, at its option, subject to the approval of the Appropriate Federal Banking Agency and subject to the requirement that all outstanding shares of UST Preferred Stock shall previously have been redeemed, repurchased or otherwise acquired by the Issuer, may redeem, in whole or in part, at any time and from time to time, the shares of Designated Preferred Stock at the time outstanding, upon notice given as provided in Section 5(c) below, at a redemption price equal to the sum of (i) the Liquidation Amount per share and (ii) except as otherwise provided below, any accrued and unpaid dividends (including, if applicable as provided in Section 3(a) above, dividends on such amount) (regardless of whether any dividends are actually declared) to, but excluding, the date fixed for redemption; provided that (x) the Issuer (or any successor by Business Combination) has received aggregate gross proceeds of not less than the Minimum Amount (plus the “Minimum Amount” as defined in the relevant certificate of designations for each other outstanding series of preferred stock of such successor that was originally issued to the United States Department of the Treasury (the “Successor Preferred Stock”) in connection with the Troubled Asset Relief Program Capital Purchase Program) from one or more Qualified Equity Offerings (including Qualified Equity Offerings of such successor), and (y) the aggregate redemption price of the Designated Preferred Stock (and any Successor Preferred Stock) redeemed pursuant to this paragraph may not exceed the aggregate net cash proceeds received by the Issuer (or any successor by Business Combination) from such Qualified Equity Offerings (including Qualified Equity Offerings of such successor).
	 The redemption price for any shares of Designated Preferred Stock shall be payable on the redemption date to the holder of such shares against surrender of the certificate(s) evidencing such shares to the Issuer or its agent. Any declared but unpaid dividends payable on a redemption date that occurs subsequent to the Dividend Record Date for a Dividend Period shall not be paid to the holder entitled to receive the redemption price on the redemption date, but rather shall be paid to the holder of record of the redeemed shares on such Dividend Record Date relating to the Dividend Payment Date as provided in Section 3 above.
	(b) No Sinking Fund. The Designated Preferred Stock will not be subject to any mandatory redemption, sinking fund or other similar provisions. Holders of Designated Preferred Stock will have no right to require redemption or repurchase of any shares of Designated Preferred Stock.
	(c) Notice of Redemption. Notice of every redemption of shares of Designated Preferred Stock shall be given by first class mail, postage prepaid, addressed to the holders of record of the shares to be redeemed at their respective last addresses appearing on the books of the Issuer. Such mailing shall be at least 30 days and not more than 60 days before the date fixed for redemption. Any notice mailed as provided in this Subsection shall be conclusively presumed to have been duly given, whether or not the holder receives such notice, but failure duly to give such notice by mail, or any defect in such notice or in the mailing thereof, to any holder of shares of Designated Preferred Stock designated for redemption shall not affect the validity of the proceedings for the redemption of any other shares of Designated Preferred Stock. Notwithstanding the foregoing, if shares of Designated Preferred Stock are issued in book-entry form through The Depository Trust Company or any other similar facility, notice of redemption may be given to the holders of Designated Preferred Stock at such time and in any manner permitted by such facility. Each notice of redemption given to a holder shall state: (1) the redemption date; (2) the number of shares of Designated Preferred Stock to be redeemed and, if less than all the shares held by such holder are to be redeemed, the number of such shares to be redeemed from such holder; (3) the redemption price; and (4) the place or places where certificates for such shares are to be surrendered for payment of the redemption price.
	(d) Partial Redemption. In case of any redemption of part of the shares of Designated Preferred Stock at the time outstanding, the shares to be redeemed shall be selected either pro rata or in such other manner as the Board of Directors or a duly authorized committee thereof may determine to be fair and equitable. Subject to the provisions hereof, the Board of Directors or a duly authorized committee thereof shall have full power and authority to prescribe the terms and conditions upon which shares of Designated Preferred Stock shall be redeemed from time to time. If fewer than all the shares represented by any certificate are redeemed, a new certificate shall be issued representing the unredeemed shares without charge to the holder thereof.
	(e) Effectiveness of Redemption. If notice of redemption has been duly given and if on or before the redemption date specified in the notice all funds necessary for the redemption have been deposited by the Issuer, in trust for the pro rata benefit of the holders of the shares called for redemption, with a bank or trust company doing business in the Borough of Manhattan, The City of New York, and having a capital and surplus of at least $500 million and selected by the Board of Directors, so as to be and continue to be available solely therefor, then, notwithstanding that any certificate for any share so called for redemption has not been surrendered for cancellation, on and after the redemption date dividends shall cease to accrue on all shares so called for redemption, all shares so called for redemption shall no longer be deemed outstanding and all rights with respect to such shares shall forthwith on such redemption date cease and terminate, except only the right of the holders thereof to receive the amount payable on such redemption from such bank or trust company, without interest. Any funds unclaimed at the end of three years from the redemption date shall, to the extent permitted by law, be released to the Issuer, after which time the holders of the shares so called for redemption shall look only to the Issuer for payment of the redemption price of such shares.
	(f) Status of Redeemed Shares. Shares of Designated Preferred Stock that are redeemed, repurchased or otherwise acquired by the Issuer shall revert to authorized but unissued shares of Preferred Stock (provided that any such cancelled shares of Designated Preferred Stock may be reissued only as shares of any series of Preferred Stock other than Designated Preferred Stock).

	Section 6. Conversion
	Section 7. Voting Rights
	(a) General. The holders of Designated Preferred Stock shall not have any voting rights except as set forth below or as otherwise from time to time required by law.
	(b) Preferred Stock Directors.  Whenever, at any time or times, dividends payable on the shares of Designated Preferred Stock have not been paid for an aggregate of six quarterly Dividend Periods or more, whether or not consecutive, the authorized number of directors of the Issuer shall automatically be increased by two and the holders of the Designated Preferred Stock shall have the right, with holders of shares of any one or more other classes or series of  Voting Parity Stock outstanding at the time, voting together as a class, to elect two directors (hereinafter the “Preferred Directors” and each a “Preferred Director”) to fill such newly created directorships at the Issuer’s next annual meeting of stockholders (or at a special meeting called for that purpose prior to such next annual meeting) and at each subsequent annual meeting of stockholders until all accrued and unpaid dividends for all past Dividend Periods, including the latest completed Dividend Period (including, if applicable as provided in Section 3(a) above, dividends on such amount), on all outstanding shares of Designated Preferred Stock have been declared and paid in full at which time such right shall terminate with respect to the Designated Preferred Stock, except as herein or by law expressly provided, subject to revesting in the event of each and every subsequent default of the character above mentioned; provided that it shall be a qualification for election for any Preferred Director that the election of such Preferred Director shall not cause the Issuer to violate any corporate governance requirements of any securities exchange or other trading facility on which securities of the Issuer may then be listed or traded that listed or traded companies must have a majority of independent directors.  Upon any termination of the right of the holders of shares of Designated Preferred Stock and Voting Parity Stock as a class to vote for directors as provided above, the Preferred Directors shall cease to be qualified as directors, the term of office of all Preferred Directors then in office shall terminate immediately and the authorized number of directors shall be reduced by the number of Preferred Directors elected pursuant hereto.  Any Preferred Director may be removed at any time, with or without cause, and any vacancy created thereby may be filled, only by the affirmative vote of the holders a majority of the shares of Designated Preferred Stock at the time outstanding voting separately as a class together with the holders of shares of Voting Parity Stock, to the extent the voting rights of such holders described above are then exercisable.  If the office of any Preferred Director becomes vacant for any reason other than removal from office as aforesaid, the remaining Preferred Director may choose a successor who shall hold office for the unexpired term in respect of which such vacancy occurred.
	(c) Class Voting Rights as to Particular Matters. So long as any shares of Designated Preferred Stock are outstanding, in addition to any other vote or consent of stockholders required by law or by the Charter, the vote or consent of the holders of at least 66 2/3% of the shares of Designated Preferred Stock at the time outstanding, voting as a separate class, given in person or by proxy, either in writing without a meeting or by vote at any meeting called for the purpose, shall be necessary for effecting or validating:
	(i) Authorization of Senior Stock. Any amendment or alteration of the Certificate of Designations for the Designated Preferred Stock or the Charter to authorize or create or increase the authorized amount of, or any issuance of, any shares of, or any securities convertible into or exchangeable or exercisable for shares of, any class or series of capital stock of the Issuer ranking senior to Designated Preferred Stock with respect to either or both the payment of dividends and/or the distribution of assets on any liquidation, dissolution or winding up of the Issuer;
	(ii) Amendment of Designated Preferred Stock.  Any amendment, alteration or repeal of any provision of the Certificate of Designations for the Designated Preferred Stock or the Charter (including, unless no vote on such merger or consolidation is required by Section 7(c)(iii) below, any amendment, alteration or repeal by means of a merger, consolidation or otherwise) so as to adversely affect the rights, preferences, privileges or voting powers of the Designated Preferred Stock; or
	(iii) Share Exchanges, Reclassifications, Mergers and Consolidations. Any consummation of a binding share exchange or reclassification involving the Designated Preferred Stock, or of a merger or consolidation of the Issuer with another corporation or other entity, unless in each case (x) the shares of Designated Preferred Stock remain outstanding or, in the case of any such merger or consolidation with respect to which the Issuer is not the surviving or resulting entity, are converted into or exchanged for preference securities of the surviving or resulting entity or its ultimate parent, and (y) such shares remaining outstanding or such preference securities, as the case may be, have such rights, preferences, privileges and voting powers, and limitations and restrictions thereof, taken as a whole, as are not materially less favorable to the holders thereof than the rights, preferences, privileges and voting powers, and limitations and restrictions thereof, of Designated Preferred Stock immediately prior to such consummation, taken as a whole;

	(d) Changes after Provision for Redemption. No vote or consent of the holders of Designated Preferred Stock shall be required pursuant to Section 7(c) above if, at or prior to the time when any such vote or consent would otherwise be required pursuant to such Section, all outstanding shares of the Designated Preferred Stock shall have been redeemed, or shall have been called for redemption upon proper notice and sufficient funds shall have been deposited in trust for such redemption, in each case pursuant to Section 5 above.
	(e) Procedures for Voting and Consents. The rules and procedures for calling and conducting any meeting of the holders of Designated Preferred Stock (including, without limitation, the fixing of a record date in connection therewith), the solicitation and use of proxies at such a meeting, the obtaining of written consents and any other aspect or matter with regard to such a meeting or such consents shall be governed by any rules of the Board of Directors or any duly authorized committee of the Board of Directors, in its discretion, may adopt from time to time, which rules and procedures shall conform to the requirements of the Charter, the Bylaws, and applicable law and the rules of any national securities exchange or other trading facility on which Designated Preferred Stock is listed or traded at the time. 
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	(a) “Common Stock” means the common stock, par value $[●] per share, of the Issuer.
	(b) “Dividend Payment Date” means February 15, May 15, August 15 and November 15 of each year.
	(c) “Junior Stock” means the Common Stock, [Insert titles of any existing Junior Stock] and any other class or series of stock of the Issuer the terms of which expressly provide that it ranks junior to Designated Preferred Stock as to dividend rights and/or as to rights on liquidation, dissolution or winding up of the Issuer.
	(d) “Liquidation Amount” means $[1,000] per share of Designated Preferred Stock.
	(e) “Minimum Amount” means $[Insert $ amount equal to 25% of the aggregate value of the Designated Preferred Stock issued on the Original Issue Date].
	(f) “Parity Stock” means any class or series of stock of the Issuer (other than Designated Preferred Stock) the terms of which do not expressly provide that such class or series will rank senior or junior to Designated Preferred Stock as to dividend rights and/or as to rights on liquidation, dissolution or winding up of the Issuer (in each case without regard to whether dividends accrue cumulatively or non-cumulatively).  Without limiting the foregoing, Parity Stock shall include the Issuer’s UST Preferred Stock [and] [Insert title(s) of any other classes or series of Parity Stock].
	(g) “Signing Date” means [Insert date of applicable securities purchase agreement].
	Section 1. General Matters
	Section 2. Standard Definitions
	(a)  “Appropriate Federal Banking Agency” means the “appropriate Federal banking agency” with respect to the Issuer as defined in Section 3(q) of the Federal Deposit Insurance Act (12 U.S.C. Section 1813(q)), or any successor provision.
	(b)  “Business Combination” means a merger, consolidation, statutory share exchange or similar transaction that requires the approval of the Issuer’s stockholders.
	(c) “Business Day” means any day except Saturday, Sunday and any day on which banking institutions in the State of New York generally are authorized or required by law or other governmental actions to close.
	(d) “Bylaws” means the bylaws of the Issuer, as they may be amended from time to time.
	(e) “Certificate of Designations” means the Certificate of Designations or comparable instrument relating to the Designated Preferred Stock, of which these Standard Provisions form a part, as it may be amended from time to time.
	(f) “Charter” means the Issuer’s certificate or articles of incorporation, articles of association, or similar organizational document.
	(g) “Dividend Period” has the meaning set forth in Section 3(a).
	(h) “Dividend Record Date” has the meaning set forth in Section 3(a).
	(i) “Liquidation Preference” has the meaning set forth in Section 4(a).
	(j) “Original Issue Date” means the date on which shares of Designated Preferred Stock are first issued.
	(k) “Preferred Director” has the meaning set forth in Section 7(b).
	(l) “Preferred Stock” means any and all series of preferred stock of the Issuer, including the Designated Preferred Stock.
	(m) “Qualified Equity Offering” means the sale and issuance for cash by the Issuer to persons other than the Issuer or any of its subsidiaries after the Original Issue Date of shares of perpetual Preferred Stock, Common Stock or any combination of such stock, that, in each case, qualify as and may be included in Tier 1 capital of the Issuer at the time of issuance under the applicable risk-based capital guidelines of the Issuer’s Appropriate Federal Banking Agency (other than any such sales and issuances made pursuant to agreements or arrangements entered into, or pursuant to financing plans which were publicly announced, on or prior to November 17, 2008).
	(n) “Standard Provisions” mean these Standard Provisions that form a part of the Certificate of Designations relating to the Designated Preferred Stock.
	(o) “Successor Preferred Stock” has the meaning set forth in Section 5(a).
	(p) “Voting Parity Stock” means, with regard to any matter as to which the holders of Designated Preferred Stock are entitled to vote as specified in Sections 7(a) and 7(b) of these Standard Provisions that form a part of the Certificate of Designations, any and all series of Parity Stock upon which like voting rights have been conferred and are exercisable with respect to such matter.

	Section 3. Dividends
	(a) Rate. Holders of Designated Preferred Stock shall be entitled to receive, on each share of Designated Preferred Stock if, as and when declared by the Board of Directors or any duly authorized committee of the Board of Directors, but only out of assets legally available therefor, cumulative cash dividends with respect to each Dividend Period (as defined below) at a per annum rate of 9.0% on (i) the Liquidation Amount per share of Designated Preferred Stock and (ii) the amount of accrued and unpaid dividends for any prior Dividend Period on such share of Designated Preferred Stock, if any.  Such dividends shall begin to accrue and be cumulative from the Original Issue Date, shall compound on each subsequent Dividend Payment Date (i.e., no dividends shall accrue on other dividends unless and until the first Dividend Payment Date for such other dividends has passed without such other dividends having been paid on such date) and shall be payable quarterly in arrears on each Dividend Payment Date, commencing with the first such Dividend Payment Date to occur at least 20 calendar days after the Original Issue Date.  In the event that any Dividend Payment Date would otherwise fall on a day that is not a Business Day, the dividend payment due on that date will be postponed to the next day that is a Business Day and no additional dividends will accrue as a result of that postponement. The period from and including any Dividend Payment Date to, but excluding, the next Dividend Payment Date is a “Dividend Period”, provided that the initial Dividend Period shall be the period from and including the Original Issue Date to, but excluding, the next Dividend Payment Date. 
	(b) Priority of Dividends.  So long as any share of Designated Preferred Stock remains outstanding, no dividend or distribution shall be declared or paid on the Common Stock or any other shares of Junior Stock (other than dividends payable solely in shares of Common Stock) or Parity Stock, subject to the immediately following paragraph in the case of Parity Stock, and no Common Stock, Junior Stock or Parity Stock shall be, directly or indirectly,  purchased, redeemed or otherwise acquired for consideration by the Issuer or any of its subsidiaries unless all accrued and unpaid dividends for all past Dividend Periods, including the latest completed Dividend Period (including, if applicable as provided in Section 3(a) above, dividends on such amount), on all outstanding shares of Designated Preferred Stock have been or are contemporaneously declared and paid in full (or have been declared and a sum sufficient for the payment thereof has been set aside for the benefit of the holders of shares of Designated Preferred Stock on the applicable record date).  The foregoing limitation shall not apply to (i) redemptions, purchases or other acquisitions of shares of Common Stock or other Junior Stock in connection with the administration of any employee benefit plan in the ordinary course of business and consistent with past practice; (ii) the acquisition by the Issuer or any of its subsidiaries of record ownership in Junior Stock or Parity Stock for the beneficial ownership of any other persons (other than the Issuer or any of its subsidiaries), including as trustees or custodians; and (iii) the exchange or conversion of Junior Stock for or into other Junior Stock or of Parity Stock for or into other Parity Stock (with the same or lesser aggregate liquidation amount) or Junior Stock, in each case, solely to the extent required pursuant to binding contractual agreements entered into prior to the Signing Date or any subsequent agreement for the accelerated exercise, settlement or exchange thereof for Common Stock.

	Section 4. Liquidation Rights
	(a) Voluntary or Involuntary Liquidation. In the event of any liquidation, dissolution or winding up of the affairs of the Issuer, whether voluntary or involuntary, holders of Designated Preferred Stock shall be entitled to receive for each share of Designated Preferred Stock, out of the assets of the Issuer or proceeds thereof (whether capital or surplus) available for distribution to stockholders of the Issuer, subject to the rights of any creditors of the Issuer, before any distribution of such assets or proceeds is made to or set aside for the holders of Common Stock and any other stock of the Issuer ranking junior to Designated Preferred Stock as to such distribution, payment in full in an amount equal to the sum of (i) the Liquidation Amount per share and (ii) the amount of any accrued and unpaid dividends (including, if applicable as provided in Section 3(a) above, dividends on such amount), whether or not declared, to the date of payment (such amounts collectively, the “Liquidation Preference”).
	(b) Partial Payment. If in any distribution described in Section 4(a) above the assets of the Issuer or proceeds thereof are not sufficient to pay in full the amounts payable with respect to all outstanding shares of Designated Preferred Stock and the corresponding amounts payable with respect of any other stock of the Issuer ranking equally with Designated Preferred Stock as to such distribution, holders of Designated Preferred Stock and the holders of such other stock shall share ratably in any such distribution in proportion to the full respective distributions to which they are entitled.
	(c) Residual Distributions. If the Liquidation Preference has been paid in full to all holders of Designated Preferred Stock and the corresponding amounts payable with respect of any other stock of the Issuer ranking equally with Designated Preferred Stock as to such distribution has been paid in full, the holders of other stock of the Issuer shall be entitled to receive all remaining assets of the Issuer (or proceeds thereof) according to their respective rights and preferences.
	(d) Merger, Consolidation and Sale of Assets Not Liquidation. For purposes of this Section 4, the merger or consolidation of the Issuer with any other corporation or other entity, including a merger or consolidation in which the holders of Designated Preferred Stock receive cash, securities or other property for their shares, or the sale, lease or exchange (for cash, securities or other property) of all or substantially all of the assets of the Issuer, shall not constitute a liquidation, dissolution or winding up of the Issuer.

	Section 5. Redemption
	(a) Optional Redemption. Except as provided below, the Designated Preferred Stock may not be redeemed prior to the later of (i) first Dividend Payment Date falling on or after the third anniversary of the Original Issue Date; and (ii) the date on which all outstanding shares of UST Preferred Stock have been redeemed, repurchased or otherwise acquired by the Issuer.  On or after the first Dividend Payment Date falling on or after the third anniversary of the Original Issue Date, the Issuer, at its option, subject to the approval of the Appropriate Federal Banking Agency, may redeem, in whole or in part, at any time and from time to time, out of funds legally available therefor, the shares of Designated Preferred Stock at the time outstanding, upon notice given as provided in Section 5(c) below, at a redemption price equal to the sum of (i) the Liquidation Amount per share and (ii) except as otherwise provided below, any accrued and unpaid dividends (including, if applicable as provided in Section 3(a) above, dividends on such amount) (regardless of whether any dividends are actually declared) to, but excluding, the date fixed for redemption.  
	 Notwithstanding the foregoing, prior to the first Dividend Payment Date falling on or after the third anniversary of the Original Issue Date, the Issuer, at its option, subject to the approval of the Appropriate Federal Banking Agency and subject to the requirement that all outstanding shares of UST Preferred Stock shall previously have been redeemed, repurchased or otherwise acquired by the Issuer, may redeem, in whole or in part, at any time and from time to time, the shares of Designated Preferred Stock at the time outstanding, upon notice given as provided in Section 5(c) below, at a redemption price equal to the sum of (i) the Liquidation Amount per share and (ii) except as otherwise provided below, any accrued and unpaid dividends (including, if applicable as provided in Section 3(a) above, dividends on such amount) (regardless of whether any dividends are actually declared) to, but excluding, the date fixed for redemption; provided that (x) the Issuer (or any successor by Business Combination) has received aggregate gross proceeds of not less than the Minimum Amount (plus the “Minimum Amount” as defined in the relevant certificate of designations for each other outstanding series of preferred stock of such successor that was originally issued to the United States Department of the Treasury (the “Successor Preferred Stock”) in connection with the Troubled Asset Relief Program Capital Purchase Program) from one or more Qualified Equity Offerings (including Qualified Equity Offerings of such successor), and (y) the aggregate redemption price of the Designated Preferred Stock (and any Successor Preferred Stock) redeemed pursuant to this paragraph may not exceed the aggregate net cash proceeds received by the Issuer (or any successor by Business Combination) from such Qualified Equity Offerings (including Qualified Equity Offerings of such successor).
	 The redemption price for any shares of Designated Preferred Stock shall be payable on the redemption date to the holder of such shares against surrender of the certificate(s) evidencing such shares to the Issuer or its agent. Any declared but unpaid dividends payable on a redemption date that occurs subsequent to the Dividend Record Date for a Dividend Period shall not be paid to the holder entitled to receive the redemption price on the redemption date, but rather shall be paid to the holder of record of the redeemed shares on such Dividend Record Date relating to the Dividend Payment Date as provided in Section 3 above.
	(b) No Sinking Fund. The Designated Preferred Stock will not be subject to any mandatory redemption, sinking fund or other similar provisions. Holders of Designated Preferred Stock will have no right to require redemption or repurchase of any shares of Designated Preferred Stock.
	(c) Notice of Redemption. Notice of every redemption of shares of Designated Preferred Stock shall be given by first class mail, postage prepaid, addressed to the holders of record of the shares to be redeemed at their respective last addresses appearing on the books of the Issuer. Such mailing shall be at least 30 days and not more than 60 days before the date fixed for redemption. Any notice mailed as provided in this Subsection shall be conclusively presumed to have been duly given, whether or not the holder receives such notice, but failure duly to give such notice by mail, or any defect in such notice or in the mailing thereof, to any holder of shares of Designated Preferred Stock designated for redemption shall not affect the validity of the proceedings for the redemption of any other shares of Designated Preferred Stock. Notwithstanding the foregoing, if shares of Designated Preferred Stock are issued in book-entry form through The Depository Trust Company or any other similar facility, notice of redemption may be given to the holders of Designated Preferred Stock at such time and in any manner permitted by such facility. Each notice of redemption given to a holder shall state: (1) the redemption date; (2) the number of shares of Designated Preferred Stock to be redeemed and, if less than all the shares held by such holder are to be redeemed, the number of such shares to be redeemed from such holder; (3) the redemption price; and (4) the place or places where certificates for such shares are to be surrendered for payment of the redemption price.
	(d) Partial Redemption. In case of any redemption of part of the shares of Designated Preferred Stock at the time outstanding, the shares to be redeemed shall be selected either pro rata or in such other manner as the Board of Directors or a duly authorized committee thereof may determine to be fair and equitable. Subject to the provisions hereof, the Board of Directors or a duly authorized committee thereof shall have full power and authority to prescribe the terms and conditions upon which shares of Designated Preferred Stock shall be redeemed from time to time. If fewer than all the shares represented by any certificate are redeemed, a new certificate shall be issued representing the unredeemed shares without charge to the holder thereof.
	(e) Effectiveness of Redemption. If notice of redemption has been duly given and if on or before the redemption date specified in the notice all funds necessary for the redemption have been deposited by the Issuer, in trust for the pro rata benefit of the holders of the shares called for redemption, with a bank or trust company doing business in the Borough of Manhattan, The City of New York, and having a capital and surplus of at least $500 million and selected by the Board of Directors, so as to be and continue to be available solely therefor, then, notwithstanding that any certificate for any share so called for redemption has not been surrendered for cancellation, on and after the redemption date dividends shall cease to accrue on all shares so called for redemption, all shares so called for redemption shall no longer be deemed outstanding and all rights with respect to such shares shall forthwith on such redemption date cease and terminate, except only the right of the holders thereof to receive the amount payable on such redemption from such bank or trust company, without interest. Any funds unclaimed at the end of three years from the redemption date shall, to the extent permitted by law, be released to the Issuer, after which time the holders of the shares so called for redemption shall look only to the Issuer for payment of the redemption price of such shares.
	(f) Status of Redeemed Shares. Shares of Designated Preferred Stock that are redeemed, repurchased or otherwise acquired by the Issuer shall revert to authorized but unissued shares of Preferred Stock (provided that any such cancelled shares of Designated Preferred Stock may be reissued only as shares of any series of Preferred Stock other than Designated Preferred Stock).

	Section 6. Conversion
	Section 7. Voting Rights
	(a) General. The holders of Designated Preferred Stock shall not have any voting rights except as set forth below or as otherwise from time to time required by law.
	(b) Preferred Stock Directors.  Whenever, at any time or times, dividends payable on the shares of Designated Preferred Stock have not been paid for an aggregate of six quarterly Dividend Periods or more, whether or not consecutive, the authorized number of directors of the Issuer shall automatically be increased by two and the holders of the Designated Preferred Stock shall have the right, with holders of shares of any one or more other classes or series of  Voting Parity Stock outstanding at the time, voting together as a class, to elect two directors (hereinafter the “Preferred Directors” and each a “Preferred Director”) to fill such newly created directorships at the Issuer’s next annual meeting of stockholders (or at a special meeting called for that purpose prior to such next annual meeting) and at each subsequent annual meeting of stockholders until all accrued and unpaid dividends for all past Dividend Periods, including the latest completed Dividend Period (including, if applicable as provided in Section 3(a) above, dividends on such amount), on all outstanding shares of Designated Preferred Stock have been declared and paid in full at which time such right shall terminate with respect to the Designated Preferred Stock, except as herein or by law expressly provided, subject to revesting in the event of each and every subsequent default of the character above mentioned; provided that it shall be a qualification for election for any Preferred Director that the election of such Preferred Director shall not cause the Issuer to violate any corporate governance requirements of any securities exchange or other trading facility on which securities of the Issuer may then be listed or traded that listed or traded companies must have a majority of independent directors.  Upon any termination of the right of the holders of shares of Designated Preferred Stock and Voting Parity Stock as a class to vote for directors as provided above, the Preferred Directors shall cease to be qualified as directors, the term of office of all Preferred Directors then in office shall terminate immediately and the authorized number of directors shall be reduced by the number of Preferred Directors elected pursuant hereto.  Any Preferred Director may be removed at any time, with or without cause, and any vacancy created thereby may be filled, only by the affirmative vote of the holders a majority of the shares of Designated Preferred Stock at the time outstanding voting separately as a class together with the holders of shares of Voting Parity Stock, to the extent the voting rights of such holders described above are then exercisable.  If the office of any Preferred Director becomes vacant for any reason other than removal from office as aforesaid, the remaining Preferred Director may choose a successor who shall hold office for the unexpired term in respect of which such vacancy occurred.
	(c) Class Voting Rights as to Particular Matters. So long as any shares of Designated Preferred Stock are outstanding, in addition to any other vote or consent of stockholders required by law or by the Charter, the vote or consent of the holders of at least 66 2/3% of the shares of Designated Preferred Stock at the time outstanding, voting as a separate class, given in person or by proxy, either in writing without a meeting or by vote at any meeting called for the purpose, shall be necessary for effecting or validating:
	(i) Authorization of Senior Stock. Any amendment or alteration of the Certificate of Designations for the Designated Preferred Stock or the Charter to authorize or create or increase the authorized amount of, or any issuance of, any shares of, or any securities convertible into or exchangeable or exercisable for shares of, any class or series of capital stock of the Issuer ranking senior to Designated Preferred Stock with respect to either or both the payment of dividends and/or the distribution of assets on any liquidation, dissolution or winding up of the Issuer;
	(ii) Amendment of Designated Preferred Stock.  Any amendment, alteration or repeal of any provision of the Certificate of Designations for the Designated Preferred Stock or the Charter (including, unless no vote on such merger or consolidation is required by Section 7(c)(iii) below, any amendment, alteration or repeal by means of a merger, consolidation or otherwise) so as to adversely affect the rights, preferences, privileges or voting powers of the Designated Preferred Stock; or
	(iii) Share Exchanges, Reclassifications, Mergers and Consolidations. Any consummation of a binding share exchange or reclassification involving the Designated Preferred Stock, or of a merger or consolidation of the Issuer with another corporation or other entity, unless in each case (x) the shares of Designated Preferred Stock remain outstanding or, in the case of any such merger or consolidation with respect to which the Issuer is not the surviving or resulting entity, are converted into or exchanged for preference securities of the surviving or resulting entity or its ultimate parent, and (y) such shares remaining outstanding or such preference securities, as the case may be, have such rights, preferences, privileges and voting powers, and limitations and restrictions thereof, taken as a whole, as are not materially less favorable to the holders thereof than the rights, preferences, privileges and voting powers, and limitations and restrictions thereof, of Designated Preferred Stock immediately prior to such consummation, taken as a whole;

	(d) Changes after Provision for Redemption. No vote or consent of the holders of Designated Preferred Stock shall be required pursuant to Section 7(c) above if, at or prior to the time when any such vote or consent would otherwise be required pursuant to such Section, all outstanding shares of the Designated Preferred Stock shall have been redeemed, or shall have been called for redemption upon proper notice and sufficient funds shall have been deposited in trust for such redemption, in each case pursuant to Section 5 above.
	(e) Procedures for Voting and Consents. The rules and procedures for calling and conducting any meeting of the holders of Designated Preferred Stock (including, without limitation, the fixing of a record date in connection therewith), the solicitation and use of proxies at such a meeting, the obtaining of written consents and any other aspect or matter with regard to such a meeting or such consents shall be governed by any rules of the Board of Directors or any duly authorized committee of the Board of Directors, in its discretion, may adopt from time to time, which rules and procedures shall conform to the requirements of the Charter, the Bylaws, and applicable law and the rules of any national securities exchange or other trading facility on which Designated Preferred Stock is listed or traded at the time. 
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	Standard-Preferred-COD_Cumulative-Private.pdf
	(a) “Common Stock” means the common stock, par value $[●] per share, of the Issuer.
	(b) “Dividend Payment Date” means February 15, May 15, August 15 and November 15 of each year.
	(c) “Junior Stock” means the Common Stock, [Insert titles of any existing Junior Stock] and any other class or series of stock of the Issuer the terms of which expressly provide that it ranks junior to Designated Preferred Stock as to dividend rights and/or as to rights on liquidation, dissolution or winding up of the Issuer.
	(d) “Liquidation Amount” means $[1,000] per share of Designated Preferred Stock.
	(e) “Minimum Amount” means $[Insert $ amount equal to 25% of the aggregate value of the Designated Preferred Stock issued on the Original Issue Date].
	(f) “Parity Stock” means any class or series of stock of the Issuer (other than Designated Preferred Stock) the terms of which do not expressly provide that such class or series will rank senior or junior to Designated Preferred Stock as to dividend rights and/or as to rights on liquidation, dissolution or winding up of the Issuer (in each case without regard to whether dividends accrue cumulatively or non-cumulatively).  Without limiting the foregoing, Parity Stock shall include the Issuer’s [Insert title(s) of existing classes or series of Parity Stock].
	(g) “Signing Date” means [Insert date of applicable securities purchase agreement].
	Section 1. General Matters
	Section 2. Standard Definitions
	(a)  “Applicable Dividend Rate” means (i) during the period from the Original Issue Date to, but excluding, the first day of the first Dividend Period commencing on or after the fifth anniversary of the Original Issue Date, 5% per annum and (ii) from and after the first day of the first Dividend Period commencing on or after the fifth anniversary of the Original Issue Date, 9% per annum.
	(b) “Appropriate Federal Banking Agency” means the “appropriate Federal banking agency” with respect to the Issuer as defined in Section 3(q) of the Federal Deposit Insurance Act (12 U.S.C. Section 1813(q)), or any successor provision.
	(c)  “Business Combination” means a merger, consolidation, statutory share exchange or similar transaction that requires the approval of the Issuer’s stockholders.
	(d) “Business Day” means any day except Saturday, Sunday and any day on which banking institutions in the State of New York generally are authorized or required by law or other governmental actions to close.
	(e) “Bylaws” means the bylaws of the Issuer, as they may be amended from time to time.
	(f) “Certificate of Designations” means the Certificate of Designations or comparable instrument relating to the Designated Preferred Stock, of which these Standard Provisions form a part, as it may be amended from time to time.
	(g) “Charter” means the Issuer’s certificate or articles of incorporation, articles of association, or similar organizational document.
	(h) “Dividend Period” has the meaning set forth in Section 3(a).
	(i) “Dividend Record Date” has the meaning set forth in Section 3(a).
	(j) “Liquidation Preference” has the meaning set forth in Section 4(a).
	(k) “Original Issue Date” means the date on which shares of Designated Preferred Stock are first issued.
	(l) “Preferred Director” has the meaning set forth in Section 7(b).
	(m) “Preferred Stock” means any and all series of preferred stock of the Issuer, including the Designated Preferred Stock.
	(n) “Qualified Equity Offering” means the sale and issuance for cash by the Issuer to persons other than the Issuer or any of its subsidiaries after the Original Issue Date of shares of perpetual Preferred Stock, Common Stock or any combination of such stock, that, in each case, qualify as and may be included in Tier 1 capital of the Issuer at the time of issuance under the applicable risk-based capital guidelines of the Issuer’s Appropriate Federal Banking Agency (other than any such sales and issuances made pursuant to agreements or arrangements entered into, or pursuant to financing plans which were publicly announced, on or prior to November 17, 2008).
	(o) “Standard Provisions” mean these Standard Provisions that form a part of the Certificate of Designations relating to the Designated Preferred Stock.
	(p) “Successor Preferred Stock” has the meaning set forth in Section 5(a).
	(q) “Voting Parity Stock” means, with regard to any matter as to which the holders of Designated Preferred Stock are entitled to vote as specified in Sections 7(a) and 7(b) of these Standard Provisions that form a part of the Certificate of Designations, any and all series of Parity Stock upon which like voting rights have been conferred and are exercisable with respect to such matter.

	Section 3. Dividends
	(a) Rate. Holders of Designated Preferred Stock shall be entitled to receive, on each share of Designated Preferred Stock if, as and when declared by the Board of Directors or any duly authorized committee of the Board of Directors, but only out of assets legally available therefor, cumulative cash dividends with respect to each Dividend Period (as defined below) at a rate per annum equal to the Applicable Dividend Rate on (i) the Liquidation Amount per share of Designated Preferred Stock and (ii) the amount of accrued and unpaid dividends for any prior Dividend Period on such share of Designated Preferred Stock, if any.  Such dividends shall begin to accrue and be cumulative from the Original Issue Date, shall compound on each subsequent Dividend Payment Date (i.e., no dividends shall accrue on other dividends unless and until the first Dividend Payment Date for such other dividends has passed without such other dividends having been paid on such date) and shall be payable quarterly in arrears on each Dividend Payment Date, commencing with the first such Dividend Payment Date to occur at least 20 calendar days after the Original Issue Date.  In the event that any Dividend Payment Date would otherwise fall on a day that is not a Business Day, the dividend payment due on that date will be postponed to the next day that is a Business Day and no additional dividends will accrue as a result of that postponement. The period from and including any Dividend Payment Date to, but excluding, the next Dividend Payment Date is a “Dividend Period”, provided that the initial Dividend Period shall be the period from and including the Original Issue Date to, but excluding, the next Dividend Payment Date. 
	(b) Priority of Dividends.  So long as any share of Designated Preferred Stock remains outstanding, no dividend or distribution shall be declared or paid on the Common Stock or any other shares of Junior Stock (other than dividends payable solely in shares of Common Stock) or Parity Stock, subject to the immediately following paragraph in the case of Parity Stock, and no Common Stock, Junior Stock or Parity Stock shall be, directly or indirectly,  purchased, redeemed or otherwise acquired for consideration by the Issuer or any of its subsidiaries unless all accrued and unpaid dividends for all past Dividend Periods, including the latest completed Dividend Period (including, if applicable as provided in Section 3(a) above, dividends on such amount), on all outstanding shares of Designated Preferred Stock have been or are contemporaneously declared and paid in full (or have been declared and a sum sufficient for the payment thereof has been set aside for the benefit of the holders of shares of Designated Preferred Stock on the applicable record date).  The foregoing limitation shall not apply to (i) redemptions, purchases or other acquisitions of shares of Common Stock or other Junior Stock in connection with the administration of any employee benefit plan in the ordinary course of business and consistent with past practice; (ii) the acquisition by the Issuer or any of its subsidiaries of record ownership in Junior Stock or Parity Stock for the beneficial ownership of any other persons (other than the Issuer or any of its subsidiaries), including as trustees or custodians; and (iii) the exchange or conversion of Junior Stock for or into other Junior Stock or of Parity Stock for or into other Parity Stock (with the same or lesser aggregate liquidation amount) or Junior Stock, in each case, solely to the extent required pursuant to binding contractual agreements entered into prior to the Signing Date or any subsequent agreement for the accelerated exercise, settlement or exchange thereof for Common Stock.

	Section 4. Liquidation Rights
	(a) Voluntary or Involuntary Liquidation. In the event of any liquidation, dissolution or winding up of the affairs of the Issuer, whether voluntary or involuntary, holders of Designated Preferred Stock shall be entitled to receive for each share of Designated Preferred Stock, out of the assets of the Issuer or proceeds thereof (whether capital or surplus) available for distribution to stockholders of the Issuer, subject to the rights of any creditors of the Issuer, before any distribution of such assets or proceeds is made to or set aside for the holders of Common Stock and any other stock of the Issuer ranking junior to Designated Preferred Stock as to such distribution, payment in full in an amount equal to the sum of (i) the Liquidation Amount per share and (ii) the amount of any accrued and unpaid dividends (including, if applicable as provided in Section 3(a) above, dividends on such amount), whether or not declared, to the date of payment (such amounts collectively, the “Liquidation Preference”).
	(b) Partial Payment. If in any distribution described in Section 4(a) above the assets of the Issuer or proceeds thereof are not sufficient to pay in full the amounts payable with respect to all outstanding shares of Designated Preferred Stock and the corresponding amounts payable with respect of any other stock of the Issuer ranking equally with Designated Preferred Stock as to such distribution, holders of Designated Preferred Stock and the holders of such other stock shall share ratably in any such distribution in proportion to the full respective distributions to which they are entitled.
	(c) Residual Distributions. If the Liquidation Preference has been paid in full to all holders of Designated Preferred Stock and the corresponding amounts payable with respect of any other stock of the Issuer ranking equally with Designated Preferred Stock as to such distribution has been paid in full, the holders of other stock of the Issuer shall be entitled to receive all remaining assets of the Issuer (or proceeds thereof) according to their respective rights and preferences.
	(d) Merger, Consolidation and Sale of Assets Not Liquidation. For purposes of this Section 4, the merger or consolidation of the Issuer with any other corporation or other entity, including a merger or consolidation in which the holders of Designated Preferred Stock receive cash, securities or other property for their shares, or the sale, lease or exchange (for cash, securities or other property) of all or substantially all of the assets of the Issuer, shall not constitute a liquidation, dissolution or winding up of the Issuer.

	Section 5. Redemption
	(a) Optional Redemption. Except as provided below, the Designated Preferred Stock may not be redeemed prior to the first Dividend Payment Date falling on or after the third anniversary of the Original Issue Date.  On or after the first Dividend Payment Date falling on or after the third anniversary of the Original Issue Date, the Issuer, at its option, subject to the approval of the Appropriate Federal Banking Agency, may redeem, in whole or in part, at any time and from time to time, out of funds legally available therefor, the shares of Designated Preferred Stock at the time outstanding, upon notice given as provided in Section 5(c) below, at a redemption price equal to the sum of (i) the Liquidation Amount per share and (ii) except as otherwise provided below, any accrued and unpaid dividends (including, if applicable as provided in Section 3(a) above, dividends on such amount) (regardless of whether any dividends are actually declared) to, but excluding, the date fixed for redemption.  
	 Notwithstanding the foregoing, prior to the first Dividend Payment Date falling on or after the third anniversary of the Original Issue Date, the Issuer, at its option, subject to the approval of the Appropriate Federal Banking Agency, may redeem, in whole or in part, at any time and from time to time, the shares of Designated Preferred Stock at the time outstanding, upon notice given as provided in Section 5(c) below, at a redemption price equal to the sum of (i) the Liquidation Amount per share and (ii) except as otherwise provided below, any accrued and unpaid dividends (including, if applicable as provided in Section 3(a) above, dividends on such amount) (regardless of whether any dividends are actually declared) to, but excluding, the date fixed for redemption; provided that (x) the Issuer (or any successor by Business Combination) has received aggregate gross proceeds of not less than the Minimum Amount (plus the “Minimum Amount” as defined in the relevant certificate of designations for each other outstanding series of preferred stock of such successor that was originally issued to the United States Department of the Treasury (the “Successor Preferred Stock”) in connection with the Troubled Asset Relief Program Capital Purchase Program) from one or more Qualified Equity Offerings (including Qualified Equity Offerings of such successor), and (y) the aggregate redemption price of the Designated Preferred Stock (and any Successor Preferred Stock) redeemed pursuant to this paragraph may not exceed the aggregate net cash proceeds received by the Issuer (or any successor by Business Combination) from such Qualified Equity Offerings (including Qualified Equity Offerings of such successor).
	 The redemption price for any shares of Designated Preferred Stock shall be payable on the redemption date to the holder of such shares against surrender of the certificate(s) evidencing such shares to the Issuer or its agent. Any declared but unpaid dividends payable on a redemption date that occurs subsequent to the Dividend Record Date for a Dividend Period shall not be paid to the holder entitled to receive the redemption price on the redemption date, but rather shall be paid to the holder of record of the redeemed shares on such Dividend Record Date relating to the Dividend Payment Date as provided in Section 3 above.
	(b) No Sinking Fund. The Designated Preferred Stock will not be subject to any mandatory redemption, sinking fund or other similar provisions. Holders of Designated Preferred Stock will have no right to require redemption or repurchase of any shares of Designated Preferred Stock.
	(c) Notice of Redemption. Notice of every redemption of shares of Designated Preferred Stock shall be given by first class mail, postage prepaid, addressed to the holders of record of the shares to be redeemed at their respective last addresses appearing on the books of the Issuer. Such mailing shall be at least 30 days and not more than 60 days before the date fixed for redemption. Any notice mailed as provided in this Subsection shall be conclusively presumed to have been duly given, whether or not the holder receives such notice, but failure duly to give such notice by mail, or any defect in such notice or in the mailing thereof, to any holder of shares of Designated Preferred Stock designated for redemption shall not affect the validity of the proceedings for the redemption of any other shares of Designated Preferred Stock. Notwithstanding the foregoing, if shares of Designated Preferred Stock are issued in book-entry form through The Depository Trust Company or any other similar facility, notice of redemption may be given to the holders of Designated Preferred Stock at such time and in any manner permitted by such facility. Each notice of redemption given to a holder shall state: (1) the redemption date; (2) the number of shares of Designated Preferred Stock to be redeemed and, if less than all the shares held by such holder are to be redeemed, the number of such shares to be redeemed from such holder; (3) the redemption price; and (4) the place or places where certificates for such shares are to be surrendered for payment of the redemption price.
	(d) Partial Redemption. In case of any redemption of part of the shares of Designated Preferred Stock at the time outstanding, the shares to be redeemed shall be selected either pro rata or in such other manner as the Board of Directors or a duly authorized committee thereof may determine to be fair and equitable. Subject to the provisions hereof, the Board of Directors or a duly authorized committee thereof shall have full power and authority to prescribe the terms and conditions upon which shares of Designated Preferred Stock shall be redeemed from time to time. If fewer than all the shares represented by any certificate are redeemed, a new certificate shall be issued representing the unredeemed shares without charge to the holder thereof.
	(e) Effectiveness of Redemption. If notice of redemption has been duly given and if on or before the redemption date specified in the notice all funds necessary for the redemption have been deposited by the Issuer, in trust for the pro rata benefit of the holders of the shares called for redemption, with a bank or trust company doing business in the Borough of Manhattan, The City of New York, and having a capital and surplus of at least $500 million and selected by the Board of Directors, so as to be and continue to be available solely therefor, then, notwithstanding that any certificate for any share so called for redemption has not been surrendered for cancellation, on and after the redemption date dividends shall cease to accrue on all shares so called for redemption, all shares so called for redemption shall no longer be deemed outstanding and all rights with respect to such shares shall forthwith on such redemption date cease and terminate, except only the right of the holders thereof to receive the amount payable on such redemption from such bank or trust company, without interest. Any funds unclaimed at the end of three years from the redemption date shall, to the extent permitted by law, be released to the Issuer, after which time the holders of the shares so called for redemption shall look only to the Issuer for payment of the redemption price of such shares.
	(f) Status of Redeemed Shares. Shares of Designated Preferred Stock that are redeemed, repurchased or otherwise acquired by the Issuer shall revert to authorized but unissued shares of Preferred Stock (provided that any such cancelled shares of Designated Preferred Stock may be reissued only as shares of any series of Preferred Stock other than Designated Preferred Stock).

	Section 6. Conversion
	Section 7. Voting Rights
	(a) General. The holders of Designated Preferred Stock shall not have any voting rights except as set forth below or as otherwise from time to time required by law.
	(b) Preferred Stock Directors.  Whenever, at any time or times, dividends payable on the shares of Designated Preferred Stock have not been paid for an aggregate of six quarterly Dividend Periods or more, whether or not consecutive, the authorized number of directors of the Issuer shall automatically be increased by two and the holders of the Designated Preferred Stock shall have the right, with holders of shares of any one or more other classes or series of  Voting Parity Stock outstanding at the time, voting together as a class, to elect two directors (hereinafter the “Preferred Directors” and each a “Preferred Director”) to fill such newly created directorships at the Issuer’s next annual meeting of stockholders (or at a special meeting called for that purpose prior to such next annual meeting) and at each subsequent annual meeting of stockholders until all accrued and unpaid dividends for all past Dividend Periods, including the latest completed Dividend Period (including, if applicable as provided in Section 3(a) above, dividends on such amount), on all outstanding shares of Designated Preferred Stock have been declared and paid in full at which time such right shall terminate with respect to the Designated Preferred Stock, except as herein or by law expressly provided, subject to revesting in the event of each and every subsequent default of the character above mentioned; provided that it shall be a qualification for election for any Preferred Director that the election of such Preferred Director shall not cause the Issuer to violate any corporate governance requirements of any securities exchange or other trading facility on which securities of the Issuer may then be listed or traded that listed or traded companies must have a majority of independent directors.  Upon any termination of the right of the holders of shares of Designated Preferred Stock and Voting Parity Stock as a class to vote for directors as provided above, the Preferred Directors shall cease to be qualified as directors, the term of office of all Preferred Directors then in office shall terminate immediately and the authorized number of directors shall be reduced by the number of Preferred Directors elected pursuant hereto.  Any Preferred Director may be removed at any time, with or without cause, and any vacancy created thereby may be filled, only by the affirmative vote of the holders a majority of the shares of Designated Preferred Stock at the time outstanding voting separately as a class together with the holders of shares of Voting Parity Stock, to the extent the voting rights of such holders described above are then exercisable.  If the office of any Preferred Director becomes vacant for any reason other than removal from office as aforesaid, the remaining Preferred Director may choose a successor who shall hold office for the unexpired term in respect of which such vacancy occurred.
	(c) Class Voting Rights as to Particular Matters. So long as any shares of Designated Preferred Stock are outstanding, in addition to any other vote or consent of stockholders required by law or by the Charter, the vote or consent of the holders of at least 66 2/3% of the shares of Designated Preferred Stock at the time outstanding, voting as a separate class, given in person or by proxy, either in writing without a meeting or by vote at any meeting called for the purpose, shall be necessary for effecting or validating:
	(i) Authorization of Senior Stock. Any amendment or alteration of the Certificate of Designations for the Designated Preferred Stock or the Charter to authorize or create or increase the authorized amount of, or any issuance of, any shares of, or any securities convertible into or exchangeable or exercisable for shares of, any class or series of capital stock of the Issuer ranking senior to Designated Preferred Stock with respect to either or both the payment of dividends and/or the distribution of assets on any liquidation, dissolution or winding up of the Issuer;
	(ii) Amendment of Designated Preferred Stock.  Any amendment, alteration or repeal of any provision of the Certificate of Designations for the Designated Preferred Stock or the Charter (including, unless no vote on such merger or consolidation is required by Section 7(c)(iii) below, any amendment, alteration or repeal by means of a merger, consolidation or otherwise) so as to adversely affect the rights, preferences, privileges or voting powers of the Designated Preferred Stock; or
	(iii) Share Exchanges, Reclassifications, Mergers and Consolidations. Any consummation of a binding share exchange or reclassification involving the Designated Preferred Stock, or of a merger or consolidation of the Issuer with another corporation or other entity, unless in each case (x) the shares of Designated Preferred Stock remain outstanding or, in the case of any such merger or consolidation with respect to which the Issuer is not the surviving or resulting entity, are converted into or exchanged for preference securities of the surviving or resulting entity or its ultimate parent, and (y) such shares remaining outstanding or such preference securities, as the case may be, have such rights, preferences, privileges and voting powers, and limitations and restrictions thereof, taken as a whole, as are not materially less favorable to the holders thereof than the rights, preferences, privileges and voting powers, and limitations and restrictions thereof, of Designated Preferred Stock immediately prior to such consummation, taken as a whole;

	(d) Changes after Provision for Redemption. No vote or consent of the holders of Designated Preferred Stock shall be required pursuant to Section 7(c) above if, at or prior to the time when any such vote or consent would otherwise be required pursuant to such Section, all outstanding shares of the Designated Preferred Stock shall have been redeemed, or shall have been called for redemption upon proper notice and sufficient funds shall have been deposited in trust for such redemption, in each case pursuant to Section 5 above.
	(e) Procedures for Voting and Consents. The rules and procedures for calling and conducting any meeting of the holders of Designated Preferred Stock (including, without limitation, the fixing of a record date in connection therewith), the solicitation and use of proxies at such a meeting, the obtaining of written consents and any other aspect or matter with regard to such a meeting or such consents shall be governed by any rules of the Board of Directors or any duly authorized committee of the Board of Directors, in its discretion, may adopt from time to time, which rules and procedures shall conform to the requirements of the Charter, the Bylaws, and applicable law and the rules of any national securities exchange or other trading facility on which Designated Preferred Stock is listed or traded at the time. 
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